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Welcome to the 202 4 edition of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited. Australia and the world continue to
endure the challenges caused by macroeconomic and geopolitical events that have resulted in commodity
price volatility, inflation, rising interest rates and high energy costs . Interest rates and cost of living
continue to dominate headlines in Australia, with impacts felt across the economy. Entities will need to pay
attention to the accounting impacts of these uncertainties. Where relevant, certain such impacts have
been addressed in commentary throu ghout this publication. In addition, entities should consider whether
additional disclosures are necessary to explain macroeconom ic and geopolitical events and related
transactions that are significant to their financial statements

The current year sees few new standards coming into effect, with amended guidance applicable to the
classification of liabilities as current or non -current, and the subsequent measurement requirements for

sale and leaseback transactions that are accounted for as a sale. In addition,in © z © ] ¥a ©z 2 ¥ ~u@g-
{¥" £¥7z 287" voOlvizoax ¥{ O« | ¢~z" {~ovwoxz ythe'lASBhaz £ z
amended IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7Financial Instruments: Disclosure, introd ucing

additional disclosure requirements for companies that enter into  such arrangements . Timely consideration
should be given to their impacts.

Introduction

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has in recent years focused on better
communication in financial reporting. 2024 saw the issuance of IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements which changes the way entities communicate financial performance, replacing the
original IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements . This new standard aims to deliver more consistent,
comparable and transparent information to users and stakeholders. While not effective until reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, entities should pay attention to the potential impacts as the
standard ushers in a broad suite of changes.
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Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited provides illustrative consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 202 4. Although the main body of the financial statements references against

International Financial Reporting Standards, Australia has developed equivalent AASs, along with

supplementing additional reporting requirements , including a Directors Report, Remuneration Report,
Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement, Vhm vyy~2 ~¥ov (¢ ~of{ ¥ " £va~¥oA Y~"2
section illustrating additional Australian -specific disclosures as well as alternative presentations

commonly used in Australia.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited provides illustrative examples of the types of disclosures which may
be required (if material), and therefore the systematic ordering of the notes largely follows one possible
grouping suggested by AASB 101. An alternate grouping according to nature and p erceived importance
may permit users of the financial statements to more effectively understand and compare the information
provided. Further discussion on this and an example of such a grouping can be found on pages iv-v.

| trust this publication will prove useful when preparing your financial statements for the next reporting
season.

Additional Australian disclosures

Melissa Sim
Partner, Ernst & Young , Australia
December 2024
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The following styles of abbreviation are used in this set of lllustrative Financial Statements:

IAS 33.41
IAS 1.BC13
IFRS 2.44
SIC 29.6
IFRIC5.6
IFRS 91G.G.2

IAS 32.AG3

Commentary on
IFRSaccounting
standards

Commentary on
climate -related
matters

Commentary on
macroeconomic
and geopolitical
uncertainty

General
commentary

GAAP

IFRS® Accounting
Standards

IASB®
IAS®

IFRS
Interpretations
Committee

SIG®

IFRIC
interpretations

SIC Interpretations
AASB

AASB 15.105
AASB 1054.9

CA 300A

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
ASX

PS 2.88F

International Accounting Standard No. 33, paragraph 41

International Accounting Standard No. 1, Basis for Conclusions, paragraph 13
International Financial Reporting Standard No. 2, paragraph 44

Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretation No. 29, paragraph 6

IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly IFRIC) Interpretation No. 5, paragraph 6

International Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 C Guidance on Implementing IFRS 9
Section G: Other, paragraph G.2

International Accounting Standard No. 3 2 CAppendix A CApplication Guidance, paragraph AG3

The commentary explains how the requirements of IFRS accounting standards have been
implemented in arriving at the illustrative disclosure

The commentary explains how the impact from climate change has been considered in preparing the
illustrative financial statements and what factors an entity may need to consider in this regard

The commentary explains which issues an entity may need to consider in relation to the current
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

The commentary provides illustration s, guidance and further information on the Corporations Act
2001, Corporations Regulations 2001 , ASIC Corporation Instruments , ASX Corporate Governance
principles and recommendations, and ASX Listing Rules

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles/Practice

IFRS® accounting standards issued by the IASB

International Accounting Standards Board
International Accounting Standards

IFRS Interpretations Committee (the Committee)
(formerly International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC ®))

Standing Interpretations Committee

Interpretations by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly IFRIC)

Interpretations by the SIC

Australian Accounting Standards Board

Australian Accounting Standards No. 15 paragraph 105

Australian Accounting Standards No. 1054 paragraph 9

Corporations Act 2001, section 300A

Corporations Regulations 2001, Chapter 2M, Regulation 3.03, paragraph 1
Australian Securities Exchange Listing Rules

IFRS Practice Statement No. 2, paragraph 88

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited iii
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This publication contains an illustrative set of consolidated financial statements for  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the
parent) and its subsidiaries (the Group) that is prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting standards . The Group is a
fictitious, large publicly listed manufacturing company. The parent is incorporated in a fictitious country within Europe. Th e
| 7z©zondva~¥o x« 7 zox ¥ {Addiigha Australiancdisclosuees arg illustrated fratn  pdye 1@5.

Objective

This set of illustrative financial statements is one of the many prepared by EY to assist you in preparing your own financial
statements. The illustrative financial statements are intended to reflect transactions, events and circumstances that we
consider to be most common for a broad range of companies across a wide variety of industries. Certain disclosures are
included in these financial statements merely for illustrative purposes, even though they may be regarded as items
transactions or accounting policy information that are not material for Quality Holdings.

How to use these illustrative financial statements to prepare entity -specific disclosures

Users of this publication are encouraged to prepare entity  -specific disclosures. Transactions and arrangements other
than those applicable to the Group may require additional disclosures. It should be noted that the illustrative financial
statements of the Group are not designed to satisfy all Australia -specific regulatory requirements, nor is this
publication intended to reflect disclosure requirements that apply mainly to regulated or specialised industries.

Notations shown in the right -hand margin of each page are references to paragraphs in IFRSaccounting standards or
Australian Accounting Standards paragraphs, or other Australian pronouncements that describe the specific disclosure
requirements. Commentaries are provided to explain the basis for the disclosure or to address alternative disclosures not
included in the illustrative financial statements. If questions arise as to the disclosure requirements in IFRS accounting
standards, it is essential to refer to the relevant source material and, where necessary, to seek appropriate professional
advice.

Improving disclosure effectiveness

TermssuchasCy ~©x ¢ ¥©« " z ¥ -z " ¢ ¥ vy Candmoye piécisely? @iselosiire effgctvenass Gostribé aC
problem in financial reporting that has become a priority issue for the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB or
Board), local standard setters, and regulatory bodies. The growth and complexity of financial statement disclosure is also
drawing significant attention from financial statement preparers, and more importantly, the users of financial statements.

Notes structure

Considering the purpose of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited glllustrative consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 202 4, the notes largely follow the order in which items are presented in the primary financial
statements . Paragraph 113 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements requires the notes to be presented in a
systematic manner, and paragraph 114 provides examples of different systematic orderings and groupings that preparers
may consider. An alternative structure that some may find more effective in permitting the userst o identify the relevant
information more easily involves reorganising the notes according to their nature and perceived importance. An illustrative
ordering of the alternative structure thatis based on seven different notes sections is summarised in the table below:

Corporate and Group information 3 Corporate information
Group information

W

Basis of preparation and other accounting policies Basis of preparation

Summary of other accounting policies
Changes in accounting policies and errors
Fair value measurement

Climate-related matters

Standards issued but not yet effective

Group business, operations and management 3 Revenue from contracts with customers

3 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

3 Capital management

3 Distributions made and proposed

3 Segment information

3 Basis of consolidation and information on material partly -owned subsidiaries
3

Interest in joint ventures and investment in  an associate

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited iv
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Intr oduction (continued)

Significant transactions and events Business combinations and goodwill

Non-current assets held for sale and d iscontinued operations
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
Related party disclosures

Events after the reporting period

N N W W WKW

Detailed information on statement of profit or loss
and OClitems

Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Finance income

Other income

Depreciation, amortisation, lease payments, foreign exchange differences and
costs of inventories

Administrative expenses
Employee benefits expenses
Research and development costs
Share-based payments

Earnings per share (EPS)

N N W W N W

N N W W W

Detailed information on statement of financial
position items

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Intangible assets

Financial assets and liabilities
Inventories

Trade receivables and contract assets
Cash and short-term deposits

Issued capital and reserves
Provisions

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
Government grants

Contract liabilities

Trade and other payables

Income tax

Leases

N N W W N W W W W W W W W W WL

Commitments

Legal claim contingency
Guarantees

Other contingent liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

N N W W

By structuring the notes according to their nature and perceived importance, users may find it easier to  extract the relevant
information. In addition, information about the accounting policies, judgements, key estimates and assumptions could
alternatively be placed within the same note as the related qualitative and quantitative disclosures to provide a more

holistic discussion to users of the financial statements. The a lternative structure summarised above has been applied in
Good Group (International) Limited aAlternative Format . Good Group (International) Limited gAlternative Format is a useful

A¥Y¥e (¥ zma~23-~70 z®| ¢C¥ " ~o| -v © ¥ zwo}lvexz 2}z z{{zx®@~-zB8BZ@

Entities may find that other structures are better for enhancing disclosure effectiveness, and the approach

summarised above and illustrated in  Good Group (International) Limited g Alternative Format is only intended to
illustrate that IFRS accounting standards allow for alternative notes structures. Entities should carefully assess their

© zx~{~Xx X~"X«£0O2voxz© vay 2}z | "z{z"zaxz0 ¥{ &}z | ~E£v"”
key stakeholders will be a critical part of any process to mak e significant changes to the financial statements.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited \Y
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Intr oduction (continued)
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Materiality assessments

Applying the concept of materiality requires judgement, in particular, in relation to matters of presentation and disclosure,

and inappropriate application of the concept may be another cause of the perceived disclosure problem. IFRS accounting

standards set out a set of minimum disclosure requirements which, in practic e, is too often complied with without

X¥o0©~yz va~¥o ¥{ 2}z ~o{¥ £va-~¥oCO "zt¢tz-vexz {¥" 2}z ©ézx-~{-~
entity, then it is not relevant to users of financial statements, in which case, IFRS accounting standards do not require the

item to be disclosed (IAS 1.31). If immaterial information is included in the financial statements, the amount of information

may potentially reduce the transparency and usefulness of the financial statements as the material and, thus, relevant

inform ation, loses prominence.

IFRSPractice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provides practical guidance and examples that entities may find
helpful in deciding whether information is material. Entities are encouraged to consider it when making materiality
judgements.

Introduction

For annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, the IASB amended IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 to
provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures.

For an illustration of how the materiality assessment could be performed for disclosures of accounting policies , please refer
to Appendix D. For further guidance on the amendments, please refer to our publication, Applying IFRS: Disclosure of
accounting policy information .

As explained above, the primary purpose of these financial statements is to illustrate how the most commonly

applicable disclosure requirements can be met. Therefore, they include disclosures that may, in practice, be deemed

not material to Quality Holdings . It is essential that entities consider their own specific circumstances when

determining which disclosures to include. These financial statements are not intended to act as guidance for making

the materiality assessment s,2} z~ £«©2 vé¢-v © wz 23v~C¥ " zy 2¥ zo0O« ' z 2}v
portray its specific circumstances and its own materiality considerations. Only then will the financial statements

provide decision -useful financial information.

Consolidated financial statements

For more guidance on how to improve disclosure effectiveness, please refer to our publication , Applying IFRS: Enhancing
communication effectiveness (February 201 7).

Alternative performance measures

The use of alternative performance measures (APMsor ¢ @ WV Ve £ z v @sopal® B zommunicating financial
information to investors. APMSs are financial measures that are not defined in the applicable reporting framework . The
number of APMs in use is large and varied depending on the message the entities are trying to convey. The IASB has
recognised that management-defined performance measures (MPMs), which are a subset of alternative performance
measures that are subtotals based on income and expenses and meet certain criteria, can provide useful information about
zoma ~a-~-70C { ~8vaox~v Prederttatign ¥rid Pisclsure i@ Finapc@liStatEnénts , which will become effective on
1 January 2027. This will require entities to provide disclosures about MPMs in a single note in the financial statements.

Entities that are considering to present APMs in their financial statements should refer to our publications, Applying IFRS:
Alternative Performance Measures (October 2018).

Climate -related matters

haviz}¥¢yz" " © v’z ~mx’' zvO~mn| ¢ ~pndz7z0%3zy ~no 23}z ~f£]vx?a ¥({
position and financial performance. While IFRS accounting standards do not explicitly refer to climate -related matters,
entities must consider them in applying IFRS accounting standards when the effect of those matters is material. In its
educational material published in November 2020 (republished July 2023) , the IASB clarified its view that existing IFRS
accounting standards require entities to consider climate -related matters. In March 2023, the IASB added a project to its
work plan to consider whether an d how entities can provide better information about climate -related risks in their financial
statements, and what actions, if any, the IASB could take to improve the information it requires entities to provide about
climate -related matters. Climate-related risks include both physical risks and transition risks. Physical risks include the risk
of loss due to specific weather events (such as storms or wildfires), so -called acute physical risks, and risks due to longer -
term changes (such as rising sea levels). Transition risks relate to the risk of financial loss due to the economic transition
toward s a more sustainable economy.
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https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-disclosure-of-accounting-policy-information
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-disclosure-of-accounting-policy-information
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ey.com%2Fen_gl%2Fifrs-technical-resources%2Fapplying-ifrs-enhancing-communication-effectiveness&data=05%7C01%7CLany.Carlos%40gds.ey.com%7C03b39150a69947bb4e4508dadc02fcb1%7C5b973f9977df4bebb27daa0c70b8482c%7C0%7C0%7C638064202666989703%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6%2FmMH9taU%2FE7%2Bf8Q3jOn3fdUWyoT4sfe8jki2cMQrIU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ey.com%2Fen_gl%2Fifrs-technical-resources%2Fapplying-ifrs-enhancing-communication-effectiveness&data=05%7C01%7CLany.Carlos%40gds.ey.com%7C03b39150a69947bb4e4508dadc02fcb1%7C5b973f9977df4bebb27daa0c70b8482c%7C0%7C0%7C638064202666989703%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6%2FmMH9taU%2FE7%2Bf8Q3jOn3fdUWyoT4sfe8jki2cMQrIU%3D&reserved=0
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-alternative-performance-measures
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-alternative-performance-measures

Intr oduction (continued)

Contents

Where relevant, climate -related matters have been addressed in separate commentaries and illustrative disclosures in these
financial statements. Note 2.6 has been added to provide an overview of areas in the financial statements that have been
impacted by climate -related matters. As the impact of climate -related matters differ s significantly across between entities
and industries, entities need to consider carefully any specific impacts on their business, arising from physical and
transition risks when preparing their financial statements .

The level of disclosure provided may also be impacted b y the expectations of regulators, depending on the jurisdiction. For
example, regulators may require disclosure of climate -related matters that have not traditionally been considered material
in financial statements.

=
S
Reporting on climate -related matters outside the financial statements is included in what is commonly referred to as é
E@«©ayv~anvw~¢~2a~ " z! ¥"a~-g| émironmpeniak Jocial and gpverBance ¥attérg | Sdstainabitity ¥ o g
reporting is not illustrated nor addressed in this publication. =
As part of its work on sustainability reporting and climate -~ z ¢va zy £vaaz~ " ©C ~£!vxa ¥o {~avaox-~v

[ ¥«oyv?a ~Y¥ao Gatingodies gthe IASB and the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) ahave
emphasised the concept of connectivity between financial statements and sustainability disclosures. This concept includes,
but is not limited to, providing investors with holistic, comprehensive and coherent information about an entity. Regulators
have also highlighted the need for consistency in how climate -related matters are treated in IFRS financial statements and
in other financial and non -financial information provided by entities.

There have been developments in sustainability disclosure requirements since the December 2023 edition of  this

publication was released. In September 2024, the Corporations Act 2001 was amended to introduce a mandatory climate -
related disclosure regime for Australian entities that are large businesses or financial institutions. The regime applies to

both listed an d unlisted entities, and will commence as early as financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Under

this regime, entities in scope will wz ~z 8§« ~"zy 2 ¥ ¢¥y| z v € ©«©? vrelated diselostrés " z | ¥~
prepared in accordance with ASRS, which have now been issued by the AASB.

Inancial statements

e
\

The first two ASRSs issued by the AASB are AASB S1General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability -related Financial
Information and AASB S2 Climate-related Disclosures. Entities within the scope of the Corporations Act requirements must
apply AASB S2 for the preparation of climate -related financial disclosures. AASB S2 includes the general requirements for
the presentation of climate -related financial disclosures from AAS B S1 so that AASB S2 can be applied on astandalone
basis. Entities can also choose to voluntarily apply AASB S1 if they wish to disclose information about sustainability -related
risks and opportunities beyond climate.

Consolidated

AASB S1 and AASB S2 are based on IFRS SXGeneral Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability -related Financial

Information and IFRS S2Climate-related Disclosures issued by the ISSB. Themain difference between the ASRSs and IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standards in relation to climate -related financial disclosures is that an entity applying AASB S2 is

not required to disclose industry -based metrics or to consider industry -wv ©zy y ~Ox ¢ ¥ O« " z 2 ¥ lindustg- ¢ ~©2
based Guidance on Implementing IFRS S2.An entity that complies with  ASRSs will not necessarily be able to simultaneously

claim compliance with the IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards.

The amendments to the Corporations Act2001 ~ z §«~"2z vo zwoa~a~CO ©«O©av~aovw~¢~2~ =~ z!
reasonable assurance) for financial years commencing on or after 1 July 2030. For earlier years, the Auditing and

Assurance Standards Board (AUASB) will specify the phasing in of assurance requirements that will apply to each

component of the sustainability report.

Entities considering the requirements for potential climate-related impact on financial statements and disclosures should
refer to our publications:

z-  Applying IFRS: Connected Financial Reporting: Accounting for Climate Change (May 2024)

3 Mandatory climate -related financial disclosures: update and summary (September 2024)

3 An update on the requirements for climate -related financial disclosures in Australia (October 2024)

3 Reporting ready: preparing for assurance of climates -related disclosures (September 2024)

Additional Australian disclosures

For further information on latest developments for sustainability reporting, referto  EY Sustainability Disclosures HUB.

Macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

In recent years, there has been significant commodity price volatility, high inflation, rising interest rates and increasing
energy prices linked to geopolitical uncertainty and tensions that have affected the current economic environment. The
accounting issues that entities will need to pay special attention to as a result include, but are not limited to: impairment of
assets; expected credit losses; pensions; determination of fair values; disclosures; and hyperinflation.
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https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_sg/topics/assurance/ey-sg-applying-ifrs-06-2024.pdf
https://www.ey.com/content/dam/ey-unified-site/ey-com/en-au/noindex/ey-mandatory-climate-related-disclosures-update.pdf
https://www.ey.com/content/dam/ey-unified-site/ey-com/aus-nzl/documents/pdfs/sustainability/requirements-for-inbound-australian-subsidiaries.pdf
https://www.ey.com/content/dam/ey-unified-site/ey-com/en-au/insights/sustainability/documents/ey-assurance-insights-paper-final-sept-for-isqm1-approval.pdf
https://www.ey.com/en_au/services/sustainability

Intr oduction (continued)

Where relevant, these accounting issues have been addressed in commentary throughout t his publication . However, as the
~£!lvx?a ¢v'|z¢ yz!zony© ¥o 2}z nova«'z ¥{ vo zo?2-2arel@@t w«©~az®O
accounting issues have not been illustrated in these consolidated financial statements themselves.

Entities should consider whether additional disclosures are necessary to explain macroeconomic and geopolitical events and
related transactions subsequent to the previous reporting period that are significant to their financial statements . For
instance, t he current macroeconomic and geopolitical environment affects the assumptions and estimation uncertainty
associated with the measurement of assets and liabilities. Therefore, entities should carefully consider whether additional
disclosures are necessary to help users of financial statements under stand the impact of those uncertainties and
corresponding judgements applied in the financial statements.

The purpose of the commentaries on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty is to aid entities in making assessments
as to the impact of current macroeconomic and geopolitical environment on recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosures. Entities should also consider the latest local guidance released in their jurisdiction along with other publications
available on ey.com/ifrs .

Introduction

IFRS accounting standards

The abbreviation IFRS Standards is defined in paragraph 2 of the Preface to International Financial Reporting Standards to

include ¢standards and interpretations approved by the IASB, and International Accounting Standards (IAS Standards) and
havoy~o| ~pm2z" 1 "z28y2a~¥op0©O X¥f£f~2232z27 ~p2z7"17z738ya8~¥p0O ~00«zy «n
of IAS 1 and paragraph 5 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Following the formation

¥{ 2}z A g hss¢pératesyandard-3etirg body for IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards, the International

Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB™), the IFRS Foundation has clarified that the standards issued by the IASB should be
“z{z" " zy a¥ v © heN[ogyht TMisOWK findneiak statements are described as complying with IFRS

accounting standards , this means that they comply with the entire body of pronouncements sanctioned by the IASB. This

includes the IAS Standards, IFRSaccounting standards and Interpretations originated by the IFRS Interpretations

Committee (IFRIC interpretations and SIC interpretations .

Consolidated financial statements

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

The IASB is the independent accounting standard-setting body of the IFRS Foundation (an independent not -for -profit private
sector organisation working in the public interest) responsible for the  development and publication of IFRS accounting
standard. This includes the IFRS for SMEs accounting standard and approving Interpretations of |IFRSaccounting standard
as developed by the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

In fulfilling its standard -setting duties, the IASB follows a due process, of which the publication of consultative documents,
such as discussion papers and exposure drafts, for public comment is an important component.

The IFRS Interpretations Committee (Interpretations Committee)

The Interpretations Committee is a committee , appointed by the IFRS Foundation Trustees that assists the IASB in
maintaining and supporting the consistent application of IFRS accounting standards for the benefit of users, preparers and
auditors of financial statements.

The Interpretations Committee addresses issues of reasonably widespread importance, rather than issues of concern to
only a small set of entities. These include any identified financial reporting issues not addressed in IFRS accounting
standards. The Interpretations Committee also advises the IASB on issues to be considered in the annual improvements to
IFRSaccounting standards projects.

The International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB)

The ISSB, createdin November 2021 by the IFRS Foundation, is the independent sustainability disclosure standard -setting
body of the IFRS Foundation. The ISSB members are responsible for developing a set of sustainability disclosure standards
(referred to as IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards). The ISSBwill develop IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards
acknowledging the importance of their interoperability with other reporting initiatives that address broader information

needs of other parties.
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In fulfilling its standard -setting duties, the ISSB follows a due process, of which the publication of consultative documents,
such as discussion papers and exposure drafts, for public comment is an important component.

1 |FRS Foundation® Trade Mark Guidelines IFRSFoundation, 2023

Appendices
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https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources
http://www.ifrs.org/How+we+develop+standards/How+we+develop+standards.htm
http://www.ifrs.org/Current+Projects/IFRIC+Projects/IFRIC+Projects.htm
https://www.ifrs.org/content/dam/ifrs/about-us/legal-and-governance/legal-docs/trade-mark-guidelines.pdf

Intr oduction (continued)

IFRS accounting standards as at 30 June 2024

As a general approach, these illustrative financial statements do not early adopt standards , amendments or interpretations
before their effective date.

The standards applied in these illustrative financial statements are those that were in issue as at 3 0 June 2024 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 202 4. It is important to note that these illustrative financial
statements will require continual updating as standards are issued and/or revised.

Users of this publication are cautioned to check that there has been no change in requ irements of IFRS accounting
standards between 30 June 202 4 and the date on which their financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance
with paragraph 30 of IAS 8, specific disclosure requirements apply for standards and interpretations issued but not yet
effective (see Note 36 of these illustrative financial statements). Furthermore, if the financial year of an entity is other than
the calendar year, new and revised standards applied in these illustrative financial statements may not be applicable. For
instance, the Group has adopted Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangementsg Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS7 in its 2024
illustrative financial statements. An entity with a financial year that commences  on, for example, 1 October and ends on 30
September would have to adopt the amendments in its annual financial statements beginning on 1 October 202 4.
Therefore, the amendments would not have been applicable in the financial statements of an entity with a year -end of

30 September 202 4, unless it voluntarily chose to early adopt the standard.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the 1ASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1. While a number of sections have been brought forward from
IAS 1 with limited changes, IFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of loss, including
specified totals and subtotals. It also requires disclosure of management -defined performance measures and includes new

"z28«~"2z£zv2 0O {¥" v||"z|v2@~¥o voy y~0Ov]| | "z|v2&@~¥ao ¥{ {~ovaox-~ve¢e

financial statements and the notes.

Narrow scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, and some requirements previously included
within IAS 1 have been moved to IAS 8, which has been renamed IAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements.

These new requirements are expected to impact all reporting entities. IFRS 18 and all consequential amendments are
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is requir ed. Entities are strongly encouraged to begin analysing the new requirements. Many entities will need
to identify and collect information, which, in some cases, may necessitate changes to their internal information systems.

For additional information on IFRS 18, please refer to our publication, Applying IFRS- A closer look at IFRS 18.

For an overview of all upcoming changes in standards and interpretations, please refer to our recent version of the New
Australian accounting pronouncements publication .

Accounting policy choices

Accounting policies are broadly defined in IAS 8 and include not just the explicit elections provided for in some standards,
but also other conventions and practices that are adopted in  applying principle -based standards.

In some cases, IFRSaccounting standards permit more than one accounting treatment for a transaction or event.

IAS 8 requires an entity to select and apply its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, events and/or
conditions, unless an IFRS accounting standard specifically requires or permits categorisation of items for which different
policies may be appropriate. Where an IFRS accounting standard requires or permits such categorisation, an appropriate
accounting policy is selected and applied consistently to each category. Therefore, once a choice of one of the alternative
treatments has been mad e, it becomes an accounting policy and must be applied consistently. Changes in accounting
policies should only be made if required by a standard or interpretation, or if the change results in the financial statements
providing reliable and more relevant information.

In this publication, when a choice is permitted by IFRS accounting standard , the Group has adopted one of the treatments as
appropriate to the circumstances of the Group. In these cases, the commentary provides details of which policy has been
selected, and the reasons for this policy selection.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited ix
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https://www.ey.com/content/dam/ey-unified-site/ey-com/en-au/services/ifrs/documents/ey-new-accounting-standards-and-interpretations-30-june-2024.pdf

Intr oduction (continued)

Financial review by management

Many entities present a financial review by management that is outside the financial statements. IFRS accounting standards
do not require the presentation of such information, although paragraph 13 of IAS 1 gives a brief outline of what may be
included in an annual report. IFRS Practice Statement 1, Management Commentary provides a non-binding framework for
the presentation of a management commentary that relates to financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
accounting standard s. If a company decides to follow the guidance in the Practice Statement, management is encouraged to
explain the extent to which the Practice Statement has been followed. A statement of compliance with the Practice

Statement is only permitted if it is followed in its entire ty. The content of a financial review by management is often
determined by local market requirements or issues specific to a particular jurisdiction.

Preparers of financial statements that comply with Australian Accounting Standards should note that other guidance on
management commentary already exists in Australia (for example, ASIC Regulatory Guide 230 Disclosing non-IFRS financial
information and ASIC Regulatory Guide 247 Effective disclosures in an operating and financial review ), which may take
precedence over the IFRS Practice Statement. Further, the content of a financial review by management in relation to the
financial statements is often determined by the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

Changes in the 202 4 edition of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited annual financial
statements

The standards and interpretations listed below have become effective since 1  July 202 3 for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 202 4. While the list of new standards is provided below, not all of these new standards will have an impact
on these illustrative financial statements. To the extent these illustrative financial statements have changed since the 2023
edition due to changes in standards and interpretations, the impact of those changes is disclosed in Note 2.4 .

Other changes from the 202 3 edition have been made in order to reflect practice developments and to improve the overall
quality of the illustrative financial statements

Changes to IFRS

The following amendments became effective as at 1 January 202 4:

3 Classification of Liabilit ies as Current or Non-current and Non -current Liabilities with Covenants gAmendments to IAS 1
3 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leasebackg Amendments to IFRS16

3 Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements g Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited X
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Continuing operations

Revenue from contracts with customers
Rental income

Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other operating income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Finance income

Other income

Share of profit of an associate and a joint
venture

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense
Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

3 Basic, profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

3 Diluted, profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

Earnings per share for continuing operations

3 Basic, profit from continuing operations
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent

3 Diluted, profit from continuing operations
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

¥{

y{-~a y-

2024 2023
PEE PEEE
Notes Restated
(Note 2.5)
4 179,058 159,088
18 1,404 1,377
180,462 160,465
(136,5 69) (128,386)
43,893 32,079
13.1 2,435 2,548
(14,001) (12,964)
13.9 (18,290) (12,011)
13.2 (2,554) (353)
11,483 9,299
13.3 (1,366) (1,268)
13.4 202 145
13.5 98 66
10, 11 671 638
11,088 8,880
15 (3,09 2) (2,233)
7,996 6,647
14 220 (188)
8,216 6,459
7,928 6,220
288 239
8,216 6,459
16
DECEH DECH
PECEH PECH
16
DECEH DECH
PDECEH PECH

IAS 1.10(b)
IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 1.51(c),(e)
IAS 1.81A
IFRS 15.113(a)

IAS 1.82(a)

IAS 1.103
IAS 1.85, IAS 1.103

IAS 1.103

IAS 1.99, IAS 1.103
IAS 1.99, IAS 1.103
IAS 1.99, IAS 1.103
IAS 1.85,

IAS 1.BC55-56

IAS 1.82(b), IFRS
7.20

IAS 1.82(c)

IAS 1.85

IAS 1.82(d),
IAS 12.77

IAS 1.85

IAS 1.82(ea)
IFRS 5.33(a)

IAS 1.81A(a)

IAS 1.81B(a)(ii)
IAS 1.81B(a)(i)

IAS 33.66
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Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
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Group applies the titles suggested in IAS 1.

There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.

IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the notes. The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of IAS 8 so
that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in  the comparative period(s) of the
current period financial statements.

IFRS 15.113(a) requires revenue recognised from contracts with customers to be disclosed separately from other sources of rev  enue,
unless presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income or statement of profit or loss . The Group has elected to present
the revenue from contracts with customers as a line item in the statement of profit or loss separate from the other source of revenue.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers only applies to a subset of total revenue (i.e., revenue from contracts with customers).

Algh FJ yz{~ciz®@¥Ez-28«®~wP &0 2}z x¥« ©z ¥{itexcludezsomeréveni@onkactyfrom v -
~2© ©Ox¥!z =zC|CA ¢zv©z©>C ~[gh FJ y¥z© un¥2 z®! ¢~x~2¢ " zGB&C iz} zv
entities may use different terminology in their financial statements to describe revenue arising from transactions that are within the

scope of IFRS 15. However, entities should ensure the terms used are not misleading and allow users to distinguish revenue fr om

contr acts with customers from other sources of revenue.

The Group also presented a line item for total revenue on the face of the statement of profit or loss as required by IAS 1.82(a). The
Group presented rental income as part of revenue as it arises in the cou rse of its ordinary activities.

Cost of sales includes costs of inventories recognised as expense. IAS 2.34 requires that when inventories are sold, the carr ying amount
of those inventories must be recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

IAS 1.99 requires expenses to be analysed either by their nature or by their function within the  statement of profit or loss, whichever
provides information that is reliable and more relevant. If expenses are analysed by function, information about the nature o f expenses
must be disclosed in the notes. The Group has presented the analysis of exp enses by function. In Appendix B, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss is presented with an analysis of expenses by nature.

The Group has presented operating profit in the statement of profit or loss although @ ¥2 ~“ z8«~"2zy w  ~Vh FC i}
¥" ¢e¥!z"va@~o| ~ox¥£zC v'z an¥a yz{~azy ~o ~[ghC ~Vh FCWXJ Ktheésultd z
of operating activities, or a similar line item, even though thi s term is not defined. The entity should ensure the amount disclosed is

"z 7z©zwmava~a7z ¥{ VvX@~-~2-~70 2}lv?a -¥«Cy o¥ £ve¢ wz X¥u&oOexcgude zy
items clearly related to operations (such as inven tory write -downs and restructuring and relocation expenses) because they occur
irregularly or infrequently or are unusual in amount. Similarly, it would be inappropriate to exclude items on the grounds th at they do

not involve cash flows, such as depreciat~ ¥ voy v £ ¥~ 2 ~0©v 21LBESE). In @ractice, 6tkecrifles, sUctvas earnings before
interest and taxation (EBIT), are sometimes used to refer to an operating result. Such subtotals are subject to the guidance included in

IAS 1.85A.

The Group has presented its share of profit of an associate and joint venture using the equity method under IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures aftertheline -~2 z £ &¥! z "sCT~8NVh! FEM@0OR v "2z ¥{~23@ ! " ¥{~2a ¥
jointventures v x x ¥«wma zy {¥" «©~no| 2}z z8«~2" f£z72a}¥yC a¥ wz | "zO©zunazy -~
In complying with this requirement, the Group combines the share of profit or loss from  an associate and a joint venture in one line item.
Regulators or standard setters in certain jurisdictions recommend or accept share of the profit/loss of equity method  investees being
presented with reference to whether the operations of the investees are closely related to that of the reporting entity. This may result in
the share of profit/loss of certain equity method investees being included in the operating profit, whilst the share of profit/loss of other
equity method investees being excluded from operating profit. In other jurisdictions, regulators or standard setters believe that IAS
1.82(c) requires that share of profit/loss of equity method investees be presented as one line item (or, alternatively, as tw 0 or more
adjacent line items, with a separate line for the sub -total). This may cause diversity in practice.

IAS 33.68 requires presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for discontinued operations either on the face  of the
statement of profit or loss or in the notes to the financial statements. The Group has elected to show this information with other
disclosures required for discontinued operations in Note 14 and to show the EPS information for continuing operations on the face of
the statement of profit or loss.

IAS 1.82(ba) requires that the statement of profit or loss include line items that present the impairment losses (including r eversals of
impairment losses or impairment gains) determined in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The Group did not present its
impairment losses determined in accordance with IFRS 9 separately in the statement of profit or loss as the amounts  are not considered
material.

IFRS 16.49 requires a lessee to present in the statement of profit or loss , the interest expense on lease liabilities separately from the
depreciation charge for the right -of-use asset. The interest expense on the lease liabilities is a component of finance costs, which IAS
1.82(b) requires to be presented separately in the state ment of profit or loss. Consistent with this requirement, the Group presented
interestexpen©z ¥uo ¢zv©Oz ¢ inaneex ¥-0R OLO vayy 2} zE{y z | * z x ~ofrdse-assetunddré x ko2 ¥ ¥ {2 |
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IAS 1.51(c)
IAS 1.81A
2024 2023 |as 1.10()
DEETE PEE
Notes Restated  1as 1.51(d).(e)
(Note 2.5) 1AS 1.90
IAS 12.61A =
Profit for the year 8,216 6,459  I1AS 1.81A(a) %
=}
Other comprehensive income IAS 1.82A g

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax) :
Net gain on hedge of a net investment 195 - IFRS9.6.5.13

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 21.3,25 (246) (117) :22 gijgg(b)
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 21.3,25 (618) 24 IFRS 7.20(a)(i)
Net change in costs of hedging 21.3,25 (22) -
Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through other 2
comprehensive income 213,25 (15) (1) IFRS 7.20(a)(vii) %
Share of other comprehensive loss of an associate 11 (30) - 1AS 1.82A(h) g
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified IAS 1.82A _é
to profit or loss in subsequent periods (736) (94) g
=

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified %
to profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): §
Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at fair §

L IFRS 7.20(a)(vii) =
value through other comprehensive income 25 (18) 7 1AS 19.120(c) 8
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans 32 257 (273) 1As19.122
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland 17 592 - 1AS 16.39
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate 11 30 - 1AS 1.82A(b)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss)  that will not be IAS 1.82A
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 861 (266)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of IAS 1.81A(b)
tax 125 (360)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,341 6,099 1as181A®)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 8,053 5,860  AS 1.81B(b) (i)
Non-controlling interests 288 239 IAS181B0) ()

8,341 6,099
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Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group has elected as an accounting policy to present two statements, a statement of profit or loss and a statement of

comprehensive income, rather than a single statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income combining the two eleme  nts. If
a two-statement approach is adopted, the statement of profit or loss must be followed directly by the statement of comprehensive

income. For illustrative purposes, the disclosure of a single statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income isp  resented in
Appendix A.

There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.
IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the notes. The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of IAS 8 so
that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in comparative period (s) of the
current period financial statements.

IAS 1.90 requires an entity to disclose the amount of income tax relating to each item of other comprehensive income (OCI), i  ncluding
reclassification adjustments, either in the statement of comprehensive income or inth e notes. The Group presented each item of OCI

net of the related tax effects in the statement above. The Group then disclosed the income tax effects of each item of OClin Note 15

and the reclassification adjustments in Note 25 . Another alternative provided by IAS 1.91 is to present the different items of OCI before

the related tax effects with one amount shown for the aggregate amount of income tax relating to those items. An entity elect ing this
alternative must allocate the t ax between those items that Gtnaywz ~ zx ¢ v©O~{ ~zy awdl ndt be¥eclasdifiedtd profitvro © ¢
lossAn subsequent periods. This alternative is illustrated in  Appendix A.

IAS 1.8 2A requires that items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, when specific conditions are met, must be grouped
on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. Similarly, items that will not be reclassified must also be grouped tog  ether. In
order to make these di sclosures, an entity must analyse whether its OCI items are eligible to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
under IFRS accounting standards .

The Group has presented, in OClthe gains and losses arising from cash flow hedges, including those related to foreign currency and
commaodity forward contracts that are hedges of forecast inventory purchases, that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Under IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(i), if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non  -financial asset, the
entity must remove the amount from the cash flow hedge reserve and include it directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of

the asset as a basis adjustment. IAS 1.96 states that reclassification adjustments do not arise if a cash flow hedge results  in amounts
that are removed from the cash flow hedge reserve or a separate component of equity and included directly in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of an asset. In subsequent periods, the amount previously recorded in the cash flow hedge reserve may be recognised
in profit or loss when the asset (liability) is being recovered (settled). Furthermore,  other comprehensive income arising from a cash
flow hedge of a future transaction of a non -financial item may not always result in a basis adjustment . These amounts might be
reclassified to profit or loss in the case of a loss that is expected not to be partially or fully recovered (IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(iii)), or if the
future cash flows are no longer expected to occur (IFRS 9.6.5.12(b)). The Group concluded that it should present other compre  hensive
income arising from cash flow hedges consistently with the requirements for items of othe r comprehensive income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specified conditions are met.

Under the requirements of IAS 1.82A and the Implementation Guidance to IAS 1, entities must present the share of the OCl item s of
equity method investees (i.e., associates and joint ventures), in aggregateas ©~o | ¢z ¢~oz ~2 zM® -z2RGv@O0-2{ 2z
duillnot wz = z x ¢ v ©©~AsatBY Mecembe¥2024¢7C} z \ " ¥« ! CO v ©O¥ x ~ v atfair Jaedhrdugh ©Clrard-an ¢
office building located in Euroland that is accounted for under the revaluation model. Consequently, the Group presents items of other
comprehensive income related to the associate in two separate line items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incom e.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 6
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as at 31 December 2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets and goodwill

Right-of-use assets

Investment in an associate and a joint venture
Non-current financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Right of return assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets
Prepayments

Other current financial assets
Cash and short-term deposits

Assets held for sale

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Other capital reserves

Retained earnings

Other components of equity

Reserves of a disposal group held for sale
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions

Government grants

Contract liabilities

Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Refund liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other current financial liabilities
Government grants

Income tax payable

Provisions

Dividends payable

Notes

10, 11

E

W N N NN N
GREBBRRR

N NN N (W
BRRLEE

‘l\)l\)
[N

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for

sale

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

¥{

{ ~savaeax~v<e |

As at
2024 2023 1January 2023
PEE PEE PEELI
Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)
32,979 24,329 18,940
8,893 7,983 7,091
6,019 2,461 2,114
2,908 2,732 2,915
3,187 2,516 1,878
3,76 1 2,816 2,273
389 365 321
58,136 43,202 35,532
26,027 23,830 24,296
1,124 929 856
25,672 22,290 25,537
4,541 5,180 3,450
244 165 226
551 153 137
17,528 14,916 11,066
75,687 67,463 65,568
13,554 Cc C
89,241 67,463 65,568
147,377 110,665 101,100
21,888 19,388 19,388
4,780 80 C
(508) (654) (774)
1,171 864 566
31,622 25,929 21,582
(642) (505) (418)
46 o} Cc
58,357 45,102 40,344
2,410 740 208
60,767 45,842 40,552
22,147 23,313 21,358
806 Cc c
1,898 19 15
3,300 1,400 1,300
2,962 888 692
3,050 2,977 2,526
2,454 607 780
36,617 29,204 26,6 71
16,969 20,023 18,248
2,880 2,486 1,836
6,242 5,844 3,796
2,832 3,142 4,834
2,953 254 303
149 151 150
3,511 3,563 4,625
922 156 85
410 o} ¢
36,868 35,619 33,877
13,125 Cc Cc
49,993 35,619 33,877
86,610 64,823 60,548
147,377 110,665 101,1 00

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10(f)
IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)
IAS 1.40A, IAS 1.40B
IAS 1.60

IAS 1.54(a)

IAS 1.54(b)

IAS 1.54(c)

IFRS 16.47

IAS 1.54(¢), IAS 28.38
IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.66

IAS 1.54(g)

IFRS 15.B21

IAS 1.54(h), IFRS 15.105
IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55

IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54()

IAS 1.54(j), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(r) , IAS 1.78(e)

IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(q)

IAS 1.60
IAS 1.54(m)

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54())

IAS 20.24

IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55, IAS 1.78(d)
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.69
IAS 1.54(k)

IFRS 15.105

IFRS 15.821

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8(q)
IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.55, IAS 20.24

IAS 1.54(n)

IAS 1.54())

IAS 1.54(p), IFRS 5.38
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Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1 requires an entity to present a statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest comparative period when: it applies
an accounting policy retrospectively , it makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements , or when it reclassifies
items in its financial statements (IAS 1.10(f)), and the change has a material effect on the statement of financial position. In these
situations, IAS 1.40A states that an entity must present, at a minimum, three statements of financial position, two of each of the other
statements and the related notes. The three statements of financial position include the statement of financial position as a  t the curr ent
annual period year end, the statement of financial position as at the previous annual period year end, and the statement of f  inancial

! ¥©0~2~¥no vO va a}lz wz|~so-~o| ¥{ a8}z ! "za~¥«© voo«ve Ty w¥gveL?)}
the Group restated the financial statements to correct an error retrospectively , it has included a third balance sheet as at 1 January
202 3. Such an additional balance sheet is only required if the adjustment to opening balances is considered to be material

(IAS 1.40A(b)). However, the notes related to the third balance sheet are not required, nor are additional statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity or cash flows (IAS 1.40C).

Introduction

There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.

IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the notes. The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of |  AS 8 so
that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in comparative peri  od(s) of the
current period financial statements.

In accordance with IAS 1.60, the Group has presented current and non -current assets, and current and non -current liabilities, as
separate classifications in the statement of financial position. IAS 1 does not require a specific order of the two classifications. The
Group has elected to present non -current assets and liabilities before current assets and liabilities. IAS 1 requires entities to present
assets and liabilities in order of liquidity when this presentation is reliable and more relevant.

The Group presented € x ¥ o a8 " v x 2  W@G@Z av&(®@ \iretlye stétethenf of-fina@dial position using the terminology from IFRS 15.
IFRS 15.109 allows an entity to use alternative descriptions. However, it must disclose sufficient information so that users of the

financial statements can clearly distinguish between unconditional rights to receive consideration (receivables) and conditio  nal rights to
receive consideration (contract assets).

IFRS 15.B25 requires an entity to present the refund liability separately from the corresponding asset (on a gross basis, rat  her than a
net basis). The Grouppresented ¢ © ~| } @2 ¥{ " z3«" @ vOO©z2©C voy &  z{«my ¢~vw~¢~2~270

IFRS 16.47 requires a lessee to either present in the statement of financial position, or disclose in the notes, the right  -of-use assets
separately from other assets and lease liabilities separately from other liabilities. If a lessee does not present righ  t-of-use assets
separately in the statement of financial position, the lessee is required to include right -of-use assets within the same line item that the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned (e.g., under property, planta nd equipment) and it is required to
disclose which line items in the statement of financial position include those right -of-use assets. Similarly, if the lessee does not present
lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial position, the lessee is required to disclose the linei tems in the statement of
{~ovox~ve | ¥O~2~¥o -} ~x} ~oxt«yz 2} ¥HzxO0t~-vVOOLA®EzO0C) v} 22 t¥«tno!
! ¥O0~2~¥oC i}z "z¢vazy ¢zvOz ¢~vw~C¢~Bearingdov-oz® v oly’ aw@7 d ¥z y- a{©CC} z ¢

Consolidated financial statements

Under IFRS 16.48, right -of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property must be presented in the statement of financial
position as investment property. The Group does not have right -of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property.
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for the year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 202 4
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (Note 25)

Total comprehensive income
Depreciation transfer for office
properties in Euroland
Discontinued operations ( Note 14)
Issue of share capital (Note 25)
Exercise of options (Note 25)

Share based payments (Note 33)
Transaction costs related to issue of
share capital (Note 8)

Cash dividends (Note 26)

Transfer of fair value reserve of equity
instruments designated at FVOCI

Transfer of cash flow hedge reserve to
inventories

Acquisition of a subsidiary ( Note 8)

Acquisition of non -controlling interests
(Note 8)

At 31 December 202 4

2024
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Fair value
Other reserve of Foreign Reserve of
Issued Share  Treasury capital Cash flow Costof financial currency Asset disposal Non-

capital  premium shares  reserves Retained hedge hedging assetsat translation revaluation group held controlling Total
(Note 25) (Note25) (Note25) (Note 25) earnings reserve reserve FVOCI reserve surplus for sale Total interest equity
PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PbEE DEEE PEE PEE DEE! PEE PEE PEE PEE
19,388 80 (654) 864 25,929 (70) - 9 (444) - - 45,102 740 45,842
- - - - 7,928 - - - - - - 7,928 288 8,216

- - - - 257 (618) (22) (63) (51) 622 - 125 - 125

- - - - 8,185 (618) (22) (63) (51) 622 - 8,053 288 8,341

- - - - 80 - - - - (80) - - - -

- - - - - - - (46) - - 46 - - -
2,500 4,703 - - - - - - - - - 7,203 - 7,203
- 29 146 - - - - - - - - 175 - 175

- - - 307 - - - - - - - 307 - 307

- (32) - - - - - - - - - (32) - (32)

- - - - (2,389) - - - - - - (2,389) (30) (2,419)

- R - - 7 - - @) R R - - R -

- - - - - 126 2 - - - - 128 - 128

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1,547 1,547

- - - - (190) - - - - - - (190) (135) (325)
21,888 4,780 (508) 1,171 31,622 (562) (20) (107) (495) 542 46 58,357 2,410 60,767

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(c)
IAS 1.49

IAS 1.51(b),(c)
IAS 1.106(d)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.106(d)(i)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii)
IAS 1.106(a)

IAS 1.96
IFRS 5.38
IAS 1.106(d)(iii)

IAS 1.106(d)(iii),

IFRS 2.50
IAS 32.39,
IAS 1.109
IAS 1.107

IAS 1.106(d)(iii)

IAS 1.106(d)(iii)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 202 3 (restated)

As at 1 January 2023

Adjustment on correction of error (net of tax)
(Note 2.5)

As at 1 January 2023 (restated )
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (Note 25)
Total comprehensive income

Exercise of options (Note 25)
Share-based payments (Note 33)

Dividends (Note 26)

Non-controlling interests arising on a business
combination ( Note 8)

At 31 December 202 3 (restated)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Fair value
Other reserve of Foreign
Issued Share Treasury capital Cash flow financial currency Non-
capital premium shares reserves Retained hedge assets at translation controlling Total
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) earnings reserve FVOCI reserve Total interest equity
DEE DEE DEE DEE DEE dEEL DEEL PEE DEEL DEEL DEET
19,388 - (774) 566 22,282 (94) 3 (327)) 41,044 208 41,252
- - - - (700) - - - (700) - (700)
19,388 - (774) 566 21,582 (94) 3 (327) 40,344 208 40,552
- - - - 6,220 - - - 6,220 239 6,459
- - - - (273) 24 6 (117) (360) - (360)
- - - - 5,947 24 6 (117) 5,860 239 6,099
- 80 120 - - - - - 200 - 200
- - - 298 - - - - 298 - 298
- - - - (1,600) - - - (1,600) (49) (1,649)
- - - - - - - - - 342 342
19,388 80 (654) 864 25,929 (70) 9 (444) 45,102 740 45,842

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(c)
IAS 1.49

IAS 1.51(b),(c)
IAS 8.28

IAS 1.106(d)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.106(b)

IAS 1.106(d)(i)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii)
IAS 1.106(a)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii),
IFRS 2.50

IAS 1.107

IAS 1.106(d)iii)
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Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

There is no specific requirement to identify adjustments made retrospectively on the face of the financial statements, except for the

effect of a retrospective application or restatement on each component of equity (IAS 1.106(b)). IAS 8 requires details to be given only

~ao 2}z o¥az7OC W ¢vwze¢e¢~n| 2}z x¥E£!viva~-o70 €6gz©avazyCA 2#lAS8s0 ¥
that it is clear to the user that adjustments to the amounts in prior financial statements have been reflected in the compara tive periods

as presented in the current period financial statements.

For equity -settled share -based payment transactions, IFRS 2.7 requires entities to recognise an increase in equity when goods or

services are received. However, IFRS 2 Share-based Payment does not specify where in equity this should be recognised. The Group has
chosen to recognise the credit in other capital reserves. In some jurisdictions, it is common to transfer ~ amounts recognised in other
capital reserves to share premium or retained earnings when the share options are exercised or expire. Such transfer is also  permitted
by IFRS 223. However, the transfer to share premium is subject to legal restrictions that are in force in each jurisdiction. The Group h  as
elected to continue to present other capital reserves separately. The Group provided treasury shares to employees exercising  share
options and elected to recognise the excess of cash received over the acquisition cost of those treasury shares in share prem ium.

The acquisition of an additional ownership interest in a subsidiary without a change of control is accounted for as an equity  transaction
in accordance with IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. Any excess or deficit of consideration paid over the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests is recognised in equity of the parent in transactions where the non  -controlling interests are acquired or
sold without loss of control. The Group has el ected to recognise this effect in retained earnings. With respect to the subsidiary to which
these non-controlling interests relate, there were no accumulated components recognised in OCI. If there had been such components,
those would have been reallocate d within equity of the parent (e.g., foreign currency translation reserve or fair value reserve of

financial assets at FVOCI).

IFRS 5.38 requires that items recognised in OCI related to discontinued operations must be separately disclosed. The Group pr esents
this effect in the statement of changes in equity above. However, presentation of such items within discontinued operations does not
change the nature of the reserve. Generally, reclassification to profit or loss will only occur if and when required by IFRS  accounting
standards.

The Group recognises remeasurement gains and losses arising on defined benefit pension plans in OCI in accordance with IAS 19
Employee Benefits. As they will never be reclassified into profit or loss, they are immediately recorded in retained earnings (refer to the
statement of comprehensive income). IAS 19 does not require separate presentation of those components in the statement of cha  nges
in equity but an entity may choose to present the remeasurement gains and losses in a separate reserve within the statement of
changes in equity.

The amounts presented as change in the asset revaluation surplus and the fair value reserve of financial assets at FVOCI incl ude a share
of other comprehensive income of the associate, which relates to the revaluation of an office building in Euroland and  the

remeasurement of debt instruments at fair value through OCI. IAS 1 specifically requires that entities must present the share of other
X¥E£] "2} 20O~z ~ox¥fz ~23z£0 ¥{ 23}z~" z8«~23" f£z23a}¥y ~ao-x2ORQ@-A-z-yo
day¥a ay wz 7 zxittie®ther {omprehéhsivie inddme section . IAS 28, IAS 1 and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities do not provide specific guidance on how the investor should present its accumulated share of other comprehensive income of

equity -accounted investees. The Guidance on implementing IAS 1 contains an example in which the accumulated property, plant and
equipment revaluation gain is included into the revaluation surplus of the investor.  Quality Holdings (Australia) applies a similar
presentation of accumulated items of other comprehensive income of its associate. However, as current IFRS  accounting standards do
not contain specific requirements on this issue, other presentation approaches may also be acceptable.

IFRS 9.B5.7.1 states that accumulated gains and losses recognised in OCI for equity financial assets must not be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss. However, the entity may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. The Group transfer red the
accumulated gain on its equity financial assets from OCI to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial asset.

IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(i) requires that if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non  -financial asset or non -
financial liability, or a hedged forecast transaction for a non -financial asset or a non -financial liability becomes a firm commitment for
which fair value hedge accounting is applied, the entity must remove that amount from the cash flow hedge reserve and include it
directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability. This is not a reclassifi  cation adjustment and, as such, it does
not affect OCI. The Group has cash flow hedge reserve on its cash flow hedges of forecast inventory purchases that was includ ed in the
carrying amount of inventories.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 11
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

Operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant

Notes

and equipment and right -of-use assets 17,31

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and

impairment of goodwill

Equipment received from customers

Share-based payment expense

Decrease in fair value of investment properties

Net foreign exchange differences

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Fair value adjustment of a contingent consideration

Finance income

Finance costs

Other income

Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture

Movements in provisions, pensions and government grants
Working capital changes:

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, contract assets

and prepayments

Decrease in inventories and right of return assets

Increase in trade and other payables , contract liabilities

and refund liabilities

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of financial instruments

Proceeds from sale of financial instruments
Development expenditures

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Receipt of government grants

Net cash flows used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of share options
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Transaction costs on issue of shares

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

10,11

2024 2023
DEEE PEE
Restated
(Note 2.5)
11,08 8 8,880
213 (193)
11,301 8,687
4,341 3,794
325 174
(190) (150)
412 492
306 300
(365) (240)
(532) (2,007)
358 ¢
(202) (145)
1,366 1,268
(98) (66)
652 -
(671) (638)
(815) (65)
(7,102) 2,431
1,129 1,111
4,511 2,530
14,726 17,476
250 221
(1,067) (1,173)
(2,935) (3,999)
10,974 12,525
1,990 2,319
(10,16 7) (7,581)
(1,216) (1,192)
(272) (225)
328 145
(587) (390)
230 (1,450)
2,951 642
(6,743) (7,732)
175 200
(325) -
(32) -
(406) (341)
5,649 4,871
(2,032) (4,250)
(1,979) (1,600)
(30) (49)
1,020 (1,169)
5,251 3,624
339 326
12,266 8,316
17,856 12,266

IAS 1.49
IAS 1.51(c)
IAS 1.10(d)
IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 7.10,
IAS 7.18(b)

IAS 7.20(b)

IAS 7.20(c)
IAS 7.20(c)

IAS 7.20()

IAS 7.31
IAS 7.31
IAS 7.35

IAS 7.10, IAS 7.21
IAS 7.16(b)

IAS 7.16(a)

IAS 7.16(a)

IAS 7.16(c)

IAS 7.16(d)
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Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 7.18 allows entities to report cash flows from operating activities using either the direct method or the indirect method . The Group
presents its cash flows using the indirect method. A statement of cash flows prepared using the direct method for opera  ting activities is
presented in Appendix C for illustrative purposes.

There is no specific requirement to identify adjustments made retrospectively on the face of the financial statements, except for the

effect of a retrospective application or restatement on each component of equity (IAS 1.106(b)). IAS 8 requires details to be given only
~o a2}z n¥az7OC W ¢vwze¢et~an| a}z x¥£!v ' va-~-o7z© €6gz©3vazyCA 2HIAS8s0o ¥
that it is clear to the user that adjustments to the amounts in prior financial statements have been refl  ected in the comparative periods

as presented in the current period financial statements. This is consistent with the illustrative example in IAS 8.1G.1.6.

The Group has reconciled profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities. However, reconciliation from profita  fter tax is
also acceptable under IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

IAS 7.33 permits interest paid to be shown as operating or financing activities and interest received to be shown as operatin g or
investing activities, as deemed relevant for the entity. The Group has elected to classify interest received and interest pai  d (including
interest on lease liabilities and interest arising from revenue contracts , if there is any ) as cash flows from operating activities.

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the statement of cash flows, reflect the change in bala  nces
between 202 4 and 202 3, including the 202 4 balances of the discontinued operations grouped inline -~2 z £© €v©©z2 © x ¢V
OVmy E¢~vw~¢~2~270 y~"zx2¢ VOO¥x-~@®r&zyC-~2} a}lz vOOz2© x¢tvOO-~{-

IFRS 16.50 requires that in the statement of cash flows, a lessee classifies: cash payments for the principal portion of the  lease liability
within financing activities , cash payments for the interest portion of the lease liability applying the requirements in IAS 7 for interest

paid (i.e., IAS 7.31 -33), and short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low -value assets and variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of the lease liability within operating activities. Non  -cash activity (e.g., the initial recognition of the lease at
commencement) is required to be disclosed as a supplemental non -cash item in accordance with IAS 7.43 (see Note 31).

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 13
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. . IAS 1.10(e)
1. Corporate information IAS 1.49

The consolidated financial statements of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its subsidiaries IAS 1.113
(collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 December 202 4 were authorised for issue in accordance IAS 1.51(a)
with a resolution of the directors on 31 January 202 5. Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the Company or  |as 1.51(b)
the parent) is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in Euroland and whose shares are publicly

traded. The registered office is located at Fire House, Ashdown Square in Euroville. IAS 151(c)

IAS 1.138(a)

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of fire prevention and electronic equipment and services s 10.47

and the management of investment property (see Note5>C ~o{ ¥" £va@ ~¥no ¥wo 23}z \ " |aAs11380)
in Note 7. Information on other related party relationships of the Group is provided in  Note 35. IAS 1.138(c)

2. Accounting policies

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2023,  IAS 1 was amended to replace the require ment for
zRd ~a~70 3a¥ y-~Ox¢t¥0©z 23} z~C ~@QG~ |va ~{z-8x«v~0'3z £vzxa@Y¥ @ ¥ ~yo~|© xYCYECOZX
~o{¥ £va-~-¥oC =~Vh FCFFL>C i}z z®! ¢~x~2 " z8«~"2z£zmna a¥ y-

i}z "z!¢vxzEfzoa ¥{ EO~|a~{~xveaCl --~2a} @Ef£vaz ~veC VvVXxx¥«n?d
disclosures of entities. Determining whether accounting policies are material or not requires  the use of significant
judgement. Therefore, entities will have to revisit their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure compliance

with the amended standard.

i}z ~yzoa~{ ~xv2matérial a¥cduntingepolizies is artimp6r@nt aspect of the financial statements.  Entities
£«©2 xv ' z{«¢t¢ x¥o®©-~yz  -}z2}z" (O©2voyv y~0zy ~o{¥ " f£va-~Y¥
"z8«~"z£zv2© ¥{ a}z ~[ghoC ~© £vaz ~ve¢ ~o{¥ £va~¥o vayA
disclosures to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements.

The accounting policies disclosed in this note illustrate some of the more commonly applicable accounting policies
However, as these are illustrative financial statements, they include disclosures that may, in practice, be considered not
material to Quality Holdings (Australia) . It is essential that entities consider their specific circumstances when
determining which accounting polic y information is material and relevant and therefore need s to be disclosed. Entities
may find the publication Applying IFRS: Disclosure of accounting policy information helpful in assessing the impact of the
amended standard on their accounting policy disclosures.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting  'AS1.16
standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment IAS 1.112(a)
properties, certain office properties (classified as property, plant and equipment ), derivative financial
instruments, debt and equity financial assets and contingent consideration that have been measured at fair
value. The carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities that are designated as hedged items in fair
value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to recognise changes in the fair

) i ) ) : ) ] A IAS 1.51(d),(e)
values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. The consolidated
{~avex~ve¢ ©2vazEfgzod© vz | "z0O0OzrwazYy ~8o Z« ¥0O voy v¢
except when otherwise indic ated.
The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.
Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
Zan?d ~a-70 ¥«|}2a a¥ x¥m®@oupiags? Vayv y©€|-F¥ocEYypho| 2}z Xx¥£!
accordance with IAS 1.16 in order to explicitly differentiate between the information disclosed under IFRS  accounting
standards and IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards. Local regulators could require otherwise, in which case the local
requirements must be complied with.
The IFRS Foundation Trade Mark Guidelines which were revised in 2023, now require third parties to refer to the
VXX¥«@od@~po| ©2voyv’' yO© ~©0«zy w 2}z ~AVhW vO ¢~[gh Vxx¥«no?d
by the ISSB.
The IASB has not made corresponding amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements . However, IFRS 18
Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which supersedes IAS 1 for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027, refers to IFRS Accounting Standards.
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Entities in certain jurisdictions may be required to comply with IFRS accounting standards approved by local regulations,
for example, listed companies in the European Union (EU) are required to comply with IFRS accounting standards as
endorsed by the EU. These financial statements only illustrate compliance with IFRS accounting standards as issued by
the IASB.

A statement that the financial statements are prepared on a going -concern basis is not a requirement of IFRS accounting
standards. However, itisrequiredby ~ z | « ¢ v3 ¥" © ~@o xz 2v-~ago «" ~@Qy~X2~¥nm@© vaoy
disclosure. Therefore, the Group decided to disclose the basis of preparation. Entities should consider not only the

specific disclosure requirements relating to going concern in | AS 1.25, but also the overarching disclosure requirements

in IAS 1. These requirements include those in IAS 1.122 relating to judgements that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty
Going concern

When making the going concern assessment, management takes into consideration the existing and anticipated effects of
a1z x«" T zod@ L£vXT¥zZX¥o¥f~X voy | z¥]| ¥¢~2~xv_e¢ «mayzesdtin-materialz ©
«axz @ay~pna8~70 2}va xvO©a y¥«w? ¥o a}z zna~a~ CO vw~¢~2a a¥
' 7"z!'v'~o| {~mvex~ve¢ ©2vazfzun2 QA 2¥ vOOz©O© va zwma-~a " CO vw
concern assumption is appropriate. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, the standard

requires an entity to consider all available information about the future, which is at least, but not limited to, twelve

months from the end of the repor ting period. When an entity is aware, in making its going concern assessment, of

£Evaz' ' ~vet «pxz 2av-~p02~70 "zC¢v2zy 2¥ 7-2z820© ¥ x¥oy-~2a~¥p© 2
as a going concern, it must disclose those uncerta inties.

Entities will need to disclose the significant judgements made in the assessment of the existence of a material
uncertainty .

When making that assessment, management takes into consideration the existing and anticipated effects of the
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty ¥ 2}z zw@na ~23 CO© vx?~-~2~70C bvov| z£z
information about the future that was obtained after the reporting date , up until the date of which the financial

statements are issued in their assessment of going concern . As the IASB clarified in the educational material Going
concern - a focus on disclosure published in January 2021 , if management concludes that there are material

«@xz @ay~gd8~7© "z¢va@~o| 2a¥ a}z zpa-a~"CO vw~¢~2" 2¥ x¥pa-ag
uncertainties. If there are no material uncertainties, but significant judgement was required to arrive at this conclusion,

this judgement is required to be disclosed in line with IAS 1.122.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should consider the impact of climate -related matters on their going concern assessment. In making their going
concern assessments, entities are required by IAS 1.26 to take into account all available information about the future for
at least, but not limited to, twelve months beyond the end of the reporting period. Thus, even though most entities will
not be subject to acute physical risk or other climate -related effects that may cause doubts about their ability to continue
operating as a going concern, climate -related matters beyond the initial twelve month period may create material

«gxz " dy~p2~70 "z¢vi@zy 28¥ z-2zn20©O ¥ x¥poy~2a~¥p@© @}lva xvO©O*2
concern. An example of such events or conditions could be an obstacle to obtain ing replacement financing due an entity
operating in a carbon -intensive industry orclimate -" z¢va3 zy ¢z | ~©¢v?3 ~¥o ¥~ " z]| «tva~¥ao

model no longer being feasible. In their educational material Effects of climate -related matters on financial statement s,
the IASB clarifies that entities also need to consider any planned mitigating actions in the assessment.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In :22 i:ig?ﬂ

addition, the Group presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the  preceding IAS 1.38
period when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a IAS 1.38A
reclassification of items in financial statements. An additional statement of financial position as at

1 January 202 3 is presented in these consolidated financial statements due to the retrospective correction

of an error. See Note 2.5.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 17
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 202 4. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

3 Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

3 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
3 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing w hether it has power over an investee,
including:

3 The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

3 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

3 i}z \"¥«! CO -¥2~n| " ~|}20© voy ! ¥azpa~-y¢ -¥2a~g|
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control untilt he date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and

to the non -controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

' ¥¢~x~20© ~o ¢~umz -~2} a}z \ IgkuplatSes andliabitiesy ety tity, jncomet ¢ ~ x
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non -controlling interest and other components of equity, whilst any resultant gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

2.3 Summary of accounting policies

a) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is

measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair

value, and the amount of any non -controlling interest s in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non -controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the

"yl ¥y a~-yopyaz ©}v z ¥{ 2}z VX§«~" -mlat€i@osts greexgensdday we¢ z
incurred and included in administrative expenses.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and

the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the abili  ty to
continue producing outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date . This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued) ol

a) Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the IFRS 3.39
L. . . . - o . IFRS 3.58

acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingen t consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a

financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the

changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. Other

contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting

date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred IFRS 3.32
and the amount recognised for non -controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assu med). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess

of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re -assesses whether it has correctly identified all of IFRS 3.36
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures u sed to measure the

amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair

value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in

profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the IFRS 3.B63(a)
. . . . . . . . . . L IAS 36.80

purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,

vee¥xvazy 2¥ zvyx}-geadratifdglurts that a¥ee}pésted to bei@ifit from the combination,

irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit IAS 36.86
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the

operation when determining the gain o r loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is

measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash -generating unit

retained.

Consolidated financial statements
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b) Investment in associates and joint ventures S
The group holds an interest in a joint venture, Showers Limited, and an interest in an associate, Power IAS 28.3

Works Limited. ~
The financial statements of Showers Limited and Power Works Limited are prepared for the same reporting 2 [
period as the Group. The accounting policies of both companies are aligned with those of the Group . g I3\
Therefore, o ¥ vy «©2£zwn2© v'z £vyz -}zwo £zvO«  ~o| voy 7z P
of the investees after the date of acquisition. N

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the IFRS 11.16
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed IFRS 11.7
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require

the unanimous consent of the parties shar ing control.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group does not have an interest in a joint operation. If the Group had an interest in a joint operation, as per IFRS
11.20, it would recognise in relation to its interest its:

3 Assets, including its share of any assets held jointly

Additional Australian disclosures

3 Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly
3 Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
3  Share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
3  Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly o
™
2 [
o
2
0 G2
(o}
<
©
™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
b) Investment in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary
a¥Y yzaz ' f£~mz x¥82 ¥¢ ¥-z" O©O«wO~y~v ~zOC i}z \ "¥«!C
accounted for using the equity method.

i}z v||"z|lvaz ¥{ 2}z \"¥«!CO O©}v'z ¥{ !"¥{~a ¥ ¢¥
of the statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non -
controlling interests in the subsidiar ies of the associate or joint venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. IAS 28.10
i}z xv' 7" ~o| VE¥«n? ¥{ 28}z ~p-zO0O2f£zm? ~0O0 Vy «0O2zy

of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint

venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately. IAS 28.26-29
Thus, reversals of impairments may effectively include reversal of goodwill impairments. Impairments and
"z-2z70OVEtO® v©iz | TzOzwn2zy -~2}~o CEh}lviz ¥{ | T¥[~2 ¥{

or loss.

i}z ©3vazfgzod ¥{ | "¥{~2a ¥" ¢¥O00 "z{¢zx2© 2}z \ ¥« IASLE()
¥~p238 42zpd8«”"zC Ve~ x}ve|lz ~o dX” ¥{ 23}¥0©0z ~pm-z0%22zz

when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group

recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised

gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or jo int venture are

eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

i}z v||“z|lvaz ¥{ 2}z \"¥«!CO ©}v 'z ¥{ !"¥{~a ¥ ¢¥
of the statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non -
controlling interests in the subsidiar ies of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an IAS 28.40-43
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each  reporting date, the Group

determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is

impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference

between the recoverable a mount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then

"zZX¥| p~0z0© 2@}z ¢¥OO -~2}~o Cch}viz ¥{ | "¥{~2 ¥{ vo
loss.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group IAS 28.22(b)

measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon lo ss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

¢) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non -financial assets such as investment
properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
c¢) Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly IFRS 13.9
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to se |l the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

3 In the principal market for the asset or liability IFRS 13.16
Or

3 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would IFRS 13.22
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non -financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to IFRS 13.27
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data IFRS 13.61
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are IFRS 13.73
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

3 Level 1 CQuoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

3 Level 2 CValuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

3 Level 3 CValuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value IFRS 13.95
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis,

the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re -assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement  as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

i}z \ " ¥«!CO kvet«vad@~¥o X¥EEf~2323z77 yz2az " £~0z0© 2}z | ¥¢FRSI38@

measurement, such as investment properties and unquoted financial assets, and for non -recurring
measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued o perations. The Valuation Committee is

X¥E£, " ~0zy ¥{ 2}z }zvy ¥{ 2}z ~wob-zO2f£zm?a | "¥|z"2~7C
acquisitions team, the head of the risk management department, chief finance officers and the managers of
each property.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties and

unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of

external valuers is determined annually by the Val uation Committee after discussion with and approval by
2l z X¥E£!voe CO V«y~2 X¥E££~22727C hz¢zxa~¥o x~ ~2az" ~y
and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. T  he
kvet«vad~¥n X¥E£f£~223z7 yzx~yzOA v{2z" y~0Ox«OO0O~¥om©®© - ~2
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Valuation Committee analyses the movements in the values of assets and

liabilities which are required to be remeasuredorre -v ©©z ©©zy v© ! z" a}z \ " ¥«!C
this analysis, the Valuation Committee verifies th e major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing

the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Valuation Committee also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

c¢) Fair value measurement (continued)

On an interim basis, the Valuation Committee vey 2}z \ " ¥« ! CO z ®2the'vauatibn resulte «
ay¥Y alz Vey~2 X¥f£f~222zz voy 2}z \"¥«| CO ~woyz|zoyzuo?d
assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the IFRS 13.94
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy,
as explained above.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non -financial assets that are measured at fair
value or where fair values are disclosed, are summarised in the following notes:

3 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions Notes 3, 17, 18 and 21.4
3 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy Note 12

3 Investment in non -listed equity shares (discontinued operations) Note 14

3 Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model Note 17

3 Investment properties Note 18

3 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 21.4

3 Contingent consideration Note 21.4

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group has not elected to apply the portfolio exception under IFRS 13.48. If an entity makes an accounting policy
decision to use the exception, this fact is required to be disclosed, as per IFRS 13.96.

d) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is in the business of providing fire prevention and electronic equipment and installation services. IFRS 15.2
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred IFRS 15834
to the customer at an amount that reflec ts the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its

revenue arrangements, except for the procurement services below, because it typically  controls the goods

or services before transferring them to the customer.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 15.123 requires an entity to disclose the judgements, and changes in the judgements, made in applying the
standard that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers.

The Group included in its accounting policy disclosures those judgements that significantly affect the determination of the
amount and timing of its revenue from contracts with customers. Entities will need to apply judgement to ensure the
information disc losed is sufficient to meet the disclosure objective.

Sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment
Revenue from sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment is recognised at the point in time when IFRS 15.31
Xx¥oa ¥¢ ¥{ 23}z vOOz?® ~© 2 voO{z "zy 2¥ 23}z x«O2¥gz 0%

) _ ) _ IFRS 15.38

location. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance IFRS 15.22
IFRS 15.48

obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer
loyalty points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment,
the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component,
non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

d) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of IFRS 15.50
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The

variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and ¢ onstrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale
of electronic equipment provide customers with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The
Group also provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of electronic
equipment purchased during the period exceeds the threshold specified in the contract. The rights of return
and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

3 Rights of return IFRS 15.51
The Group uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the large number of IFRS 15.53
contracts that have similar characteristics. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining :EE? i:g:
estimates of variable consideration in order to d etermine the amount of variable consideration that can be

included in the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability is recognised for the goods

that are expected to be returned (i.e., the amount not included in the transaction price). A right of return

asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover the goods

from the customer.

3 Volume rebates IFRS 15.51
The Group applies either the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the :EEE i:gg

variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of vol ume thresholds contained in the contract. The most
likely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, whilst the expected value method
is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Group then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration in order to determine the amount of variable consideration
that can be included in the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability is recognised for
the expected future rebates (i.e., the amount not included in the transaction price).

The disclosures of significant estimates and assumptions relating to the estimation of variable consideration
for returns and volume rebates are provided in Note 3.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group recognised refund liabilities for the goods expected to be returned and the expected volume rebates. While the
most common form of refund liabilities may be related to sales with a right of return, the refund liability requirements
also apply if an entity expects to have to provide retrospective price reductions to a customer.

Entities must assess whether volume rebates are to be accounted for as variable consideration or as customer options to
acquire additional goods or services at a discount. Generally, if a volume rebate is applied prospectively, the rebate would

be accounted for as a customer option. Entities will need to evaluate whether the volume rebate or discount provides the
customer with an option to purchase goods or services in the future at a discount that represents a material right (and is,
therefore, accounted f or as a performance obligation). However, a volume rebate that is applied retrospectively is
VXX¥«oadzy { ¥ v©O v ~vwtz x¥o0©O~yz va@~¥oA wzxv«O©z 2}z {~n&o
total purchases that are subject to the r ebate programme.

Entities need to determine whether a refund liability ~should be characterised as a contract liability based on the specific
facts and circumstances of the arrangement. A refund liability will not typically meet the definition of a contract liability
When an entity concludes that a refund liability is not a ¢ ontract liability, it would present the refund liability separate

from any contract liability (or asset) and it would not be subject to the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15.116  -118. The
Group has determined that its refund liabilities are not contract li  abilities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
d) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii) Significant financing component

The Group receives advance payments from customers for the sale of customised fire prevention equipment ~ IFRS 15.60
with a manufacturing lead time of two years after signing the contract and receipt of payment. There is a IFRS 1564
©~|a~{~xve?d { ~ovex-~o| x¥£]| ¥ozo?2 [¥" 23170z x¥wo2“ vx?
payment and the transfer of the equipment, as well as the prevailing interest rate in the market. As such,

the transaction price for these contracts is discounted, using the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.,

the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the amount paid in advance). This

rate is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the

Group and the customer at contr act inception .

The Group applies the practical expedient for short -term advances received from customers. That is, the IFRS 15.63
promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the
period between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less.

(iii) Non -cash consideration

The Group receives moulds and other tools from certain customers to be used in manufacturing fire IFRS 15.66
prevention equipment to be sold to them. The fair value of such non-cash consideration received from the

customer is included in the transaction price and measured when the Group obtains control of the

equipment.

The Group estimates the fair value of the non -cash consideration by reference to its market price. If the fair IFRS 15.67
value cannot be reasonably estimated, the non -cash consideration is measured indirectly by reference to
the stand-alone selling price of the fire prevention equipment.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 15.48 requires that an entity considers the effects of: variable consideration , constraining estimates of variable
consideration , the existence of significant financing component in the contract , non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to a customer in determining the transaction price.

The Group did not incur any consideration payable to a customer. Consideration payable to a customer includes cash
amounts that an entity pays, or expects to pay, to the customer. The consideration payable to a customer is accounted
for as a reduction of the transaction price unless the payment to the customer is in exc hange for a distinct good or
service that the customer transfers to the entity (IFRS 15.70). Entities need to include this in their accounting policy
disclosures if material.

Warranty obligations IFRS 15.828

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as IFRS 15.B30
required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for as warranty provisions. Refer to the
accounting policy on warranty provisions in section v) Provisions.

The Group also provides a warranty beyond fixing defects that existed at the time of sale. These service - IFRS 15.B29
. . . " . . IFRS 15.B32

type warranties are sold either separately or bundled together with the sale of fire prevention equipment. IFRS 15.74

Contracts for bundled sales of equipment and service-type warranty comprise two performance obligations IFRS 15.76

because the equipment and service -type warranty are both sold on a stand -alone basis and are distinct
within the context of the contract. Using the relative stand -alone selling price method, a por tion of the
transaction price is allocated to the service -type warranty and recognised as a contract liability. Revenue
for service -type warranties is recognised over the period in which the service is provided based on the time
elapsed.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

If the customer has the option to purchase the warranty separately or if the  warranty provides a service to the customer,
beyond fixing defects that existed at the time of sale, IFRS 15.B29 states that the entity is providing a service  -type
warranty that is a separate performance obligation. Otherwise, it is an assurance -type warra nty, which provides the
customer with assurance that the product complies with agreed -upon specifications. In some cases, it may be difficult to
determine whether a warranty provides a customer with a service in addition to the assurance that the delivered  product
is as specified in the contract. To help entities make that assessment, IFRS 15.B31 -33 provides relevant application
guidance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
d) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Loyalty points programme
The Group has a loyalty points programme, Quality Points, which allows customers to accumulate points that ~ IFRS15.839

can be redeemed for free products. The loyalty points give rise to a separate performance obligation as they :Egz i::_ig
provide a material right to the customer. IFRS 15.74
IFRS 15.76

A portion of the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty points awarded to customers based on relative
stand-alone selling price and recognised as a contract liability until the points are redeemed. Revenue is
recognised upon redemption of products b y the customer.

When estimating the stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points, the Group considers the likelihood that
the customer will redeem the points. The Group updates its estimates of the points that will be redeemed on
a quarterly basis and any adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against revenue.

The disclosures of significant estimates and assumptions relating to the estimation of the stand -alone
selling price of the loyalty points are provided in Note 3.

Installation services

The Group provides installation services that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of IFRS 15.22
equipment to a customer. The installation services do not significantly customise or modify the fire

prevention equipment.

Contracts for bundled sales of equipment and installation services are comprised of two performance IFRS 15.74
obligations because the equipment and installation services are both sold on a stand -alone basis and are IFRS 15.76
distinct within the context of the contract. Accord ingly, the Group allocates the transaction price based on

the relative stand -alone selling prices of the equipment and installation services.

The Group recognises revenue from installation services over time because the customer simultaneously IFRS 15.39
receives and consumes the benefits provided to them. The Group uses an input method in measuring :Egz i:glls
progress of the installation services because thereisadire x 2 "~z ¢va& ~¥o®©} ~] wz?-2zzan

based on the labour hours incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. The Group recognises

revenue on the basis of the labour hours expended relative to the total expected labour hours to complet e

the service.

Procurement services

The Group has contracts with customers to acquire, on their behalf, special fire prevention equipment

produced by foreign suppliers. Under these contracts, the Group provides procurement services (i.e.,
coordinating the selection of suitable suppliers and managing the ordering and delivery of the imported
equipment). The Group does not have control of the equipment before it is being transferred to the

customer. The Group is acting as an agent and recognises revenue at the net amount that is retained for

these arrangements. Revenue is recognised at a point in time (i.e., upon receipt of the customer of the
z8«~| £zm2> wzxv«0©z 2} ~0 ~0© -}za 2} pcurgmed3eWwifes.” wz oz {

Contract balances IFRS 15.105

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from installation services because the receipt of IFRS 15.107
consideration is conditional on successful completion of the installation. Upon completion of the installation

and acceptance by the customer, the a mount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade

receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of
financial assets in section o) Financial instruments ginitial recognition and subsequent measurement .

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., IFRS 15.108
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting

policies of financial assets in section 0) Financial instruments ginitial recognition and subsequent

measurement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued) ol

d) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a IFRS 15.106
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or

services to the customer).

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

A right -of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by IFRS 15.821(c)
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs IFRS 15.825
to recover the goods and any potential decreases in value. The Group updates the measurement of the

asset for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in the value of the

returned products.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Refund liabilities
A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or IFRS 15.821(b)

zxz~-vwetz> {"¥E VvV Xx«©2¥£z"C i}z \"¥«!CO "z{«ny ¢ ~ FRS 15824
rebates. The liability is measured at t he amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the

customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the

transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Cost to obtain a contract IFRS 15.8
The Group pays sales commission to its employees for each contract that they obtain for bundled sales of IFRS 15.91
IFRS 15.94

equipment and installation services. The Group applies the optional practical expedient to immediately
expense costs to obtain a contract if the amortisation period of the asset that would have been recognised
is one year or less. As such, sales commissions are immediately recognised as an expense and included as
part of employee benefits.

Consolidated financial statements

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
IFRS 15 requires incremental costs of obtaining a contract and certain costs to fulfil a contract to be recognised as an

asset if certain criteria are met. Any capitalised contract costs assets must be amortised on a  systematic basis that is N
X¥a@©~0©2azua . ~a} alyz zpa-a~-CO a"voO{z" ¥{ 2}z Tz¢tvazy | ¥¥ »
to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract that are eligible for capitalisation. % ﬁ
z
Entities with costs to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract recognised as an asset will need to consider the ™
requirement in IFRS 15.128 to separately disclose the closing balances and the amount of amortisation and impairment N

losses recognised during the period.

Considering the nature of costs to obtain a contract and the lack of guidance in IFRS accounting standards , an entity may
present these costs in the statement of financial position as either a separate class of asset similar in nature to work in

I "¥| " z©O© ¥° @E~m-azwmd@¥  TCA =-~3} a}z yE£¥' 2a-Qva~¥o -~3aRk~p X
separate class of intangible asset (with the amortisation in the same line item as amortisation of intangible assets within

the scope of IAS 38 Intangible Assets). The presentation as a separate class of intangible assets would only be

appropriate if the asset capitalised is similar in nature to an intangible asset.

An entity will need to consider the requirements in IAS 7 (e.g., IAS 7.16(a)), when determining the classification of cash
flows arising from costs to obtain a contract, i.e., either as cash flow from operating activities or investing activities.

No x¥op?"vOaA 2}z ova«ciz ¥{ x¥020 ?2¥ {«¢t{~¢C v x¥po?a vx?a ~0
contract. Therefore, costs to fulfil a contract should be presented as a separate class of asset in the statement of
financial positi on and its amortisation within cost of goods sold, changes in contract costs or similar.

Regardless of whether costs to fulfil a contract meet the criteria for capitalisation in IFRS 15.95 or are expensed as
incurred, the presentation of such costs in the statement of profit or loss and the presentation of related cash flows in the
statement of cash flows needs to be consistent (i.e., operating).

Additional Australian disclosures

Capitalised contract costs are subject to an impairment assessment at the end of each reporting period. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss, but the standard is silent on where to present such amounts within the primary
financial statements. It would be appropriate for the presentation of any impairment losses to be consistent with the ™
presentation of the amortisation expense.

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

e) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it  is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of th e related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non -monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of
consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 20.24 permits two alternative ways of presenting a government grant relating to assets. The Group has elected to
present the grant in the statement of financial position as deferred income, which is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic and rati onal basis over the useful life of the asset. Alternatively, it may choose to reduce the carrying amount
of the asset. The grant is then recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the depreciable asset by way of a reduce
depreciation charge. Whi chever method is applied, no further disclosures are required.

The Group has chosen to present grants related to an expense item as other operating income in the statement of profit
or loss. Alternatively, IAS 20.29 permits grants related to income to be deducted in reporting the related expense.

IAS 20.23 permits grant of a non -monetary asset to be accounted for in two alternative ways. The asset and the grant
can be accounted for using a nominal amount. Alternatively, the asset and the grant can be accounted for at the fair
value of the non -monetary asset. The Group accounts for grants of non -monetary assets at nominal value.

f) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporti ng date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax r egulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

3 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects  neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal ta xable and deductible
temporary differences

3 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary di fferences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

f) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

3 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit n  or taxable profit or loss and does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences

3 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will revers e in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognis ed deferred tax assets are re -assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among st other things,
reflect the potential impact of climate -related development on the business, such as increased cost of
production as a result of measures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the report ing date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduc tion in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if
it was incurred during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes | evied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in eac h future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Sales tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:

3 When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

3 When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

g) Foreign currencies

i}z \"¥«! CO x¥on©¥¢~yvazy {~ovox~ve ©avazfzuma@© vz
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in

the financial statements of each entity are me asured using that functional currency. The Group uses the
direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to
profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
g) Foreign currencies (continued)

i) Transactions and balances
i "voOvXx?3~¥po0O ~o {¥'z~|B X« TzmX~20O V'Zz ~@m~2~ye¢e¢
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary itemsthat vz yz©~| ava2azy v©O |v~™2a ¥{ 2alz }zy]|:
foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits a ttributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recognised in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non -monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using th e exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non -monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) on the derecognition of a non -monetary asset or non -monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non -
monetary asset or non -monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

if) Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to
that particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

h) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non  -current assets and
disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset
(disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete
the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale
expected to be completed within one year from the date of the classificati on.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as
held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued) ol

h) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations  (continued)

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a
single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash flows from discontinued operations are included in the consolidated statement of cash flows and are
disclosed separately in Note 14 . The Group includes proceeds from disposal in cash flows from discontinued
operations.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 14 . All other notes to the financial statements include amounts IFRS 5.33
for continuing operations, unless indicated otherwise.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

i) Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution IFRIC 17.10
is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws of Euroland, a distribution is

authorised when it is approved by the sha reholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in

equity.

j) Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Plant and IAS 16.73(a)
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. :ﬁi igig
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long -term IAS 16.16

construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant pa  rts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a provision are met. Refer to significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(Note 3) and provisions (Note 27) for further information about the recognised decommissioning provision.

Consolidated financial statements

Property, plant and equipment transferred from customers are initially measured at fair value at the date on

which control is obtained. =
Office properties in Euroland are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment IFRIC 18.11 2 o
. . . . . . IAS 16.24 =
losses recognised after the date of revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency to = N
ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its fair value. IAS 16.73(a) .
IAS 16.31
I3\

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to ~ AS16.39

the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the IAS 16.40
increase is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation
surplus. 9
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference IAS 16.41 >
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the §
VOO©z2CO ¥  ~| ~ave Xx¥02C Vyy~2~¥ovee A vixx«f«ltvazy vy ‘E
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. %
Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained 7
earnings. K
g
Commentary on IFRS accounting standards 2
. . . . e}
Under IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment an entity has a policy choice for the measurement of property, plant and 2
equipment after initial recognition. An entity may choose either the cost model or the revaluation model for entire classes
of property, plant and equipment. The Group has elected to use the revaluation model for office properties in Euroland,
whilst other classes of property, plant and equipment are measured using the cost model. The Group has also elected to
transfer the revaluation surplus to retained earnings as the asset is being used. Alternatively, the amount could have
been transferred, in ful |, upon disposal of the asset. 8
2 )
9
=
i ™
(o}
<
©
™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
j) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight -line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: :22 112771((‘3
3 Buildings 15 to 20 years

3 Plant, machinery and equipment 5to 15 years

3 Office properties in Euroland 15 to 20 years

Commentary on climate -related matters

Paragraph 51 of IAS 16 requires entities to review the residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment at least at each financial year -end. In performing these reviews, entities need to consider whether climate -
related matters ha ve an impact. If relevant, entities should include both physical risks, e.g., recurring floods, rising sea
levels and wildfires, and transitional risks, such as legal or regulatory restrictions on the future use of assets and the
potential obsolescence of assets due to changes in consumer demand.

A growing number of entities have developed highly detailed roadmaps or plans to achieve specific ESG -targets, such as
targets for reductions ~a z £ ~©0O~¥un© { " ¥£ 2a}lz~" ¥/ z"va~¥o©C i}z ~£]|vx?a
business models must also be considered when reviewing useful lives and residual values, as this might change the

\ "¥«! CO {«2«"z «©Oz ¥glatéddepreciation antl theyamout ®bHé ohtaifed from their disposal. In
addition, entities need to consider whether climate -related matters impact the fair value of property, plant and

equipment, which is relevant for the application of the revaluatio n method and for determining fair value less costs of
disposal in the context of impairment testing.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon :ﬁi igg;
disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected IAS 16.71

from its use or disposal. Any gain or lo ss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed IAS 16.51
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

On disposal of property, plant and equipment:

3 The date of disposal of the asset is the date the recipient obtains control of the asset in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in IFRS 15 (IAS 16.69).

3  The amount of consideration to be included in the gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined in
accordance with the requirements for determining the transaction price in IFRS 15. Subsequent changes to the
estimated amount of the consideratio n included in the gain or loss shall be accounted for in accordance with the
requirements for changes in transaction price in IFRS 15 (IAS 16.72).

The above requirements also apply to disposals of investment properties (IAS 40.67 and IAS 40.70) and intangible assets

(IAS 38.114 and IAS 38.116).

k) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract IFRS 16.9
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for  consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short -term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right -of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 31

Contents

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Consolidated financial statements

Notes

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

i

[\

(9]

<t!

Tol




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

k) Leases (continued)
i) Right -of-use assets

The Group recognises right -of -use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the IFRS 16.23

. . . . IFRS 16.24
underlying asset is available for use). Right -of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated IFRS 16.30
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of | ease liabilities. The cost of IFRS 16.32

right -of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right -of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight -line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets, as follows:

3 Plant and machinery 3to 15 years

3 Motor vehicles and other equipment 3to 5years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the

exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. IFRS 16.33

The right -of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in
section r) Impairment of non -financial assets.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Under IFRS 16 Leases, the cost of a right -of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in

dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset

to the condition required by th e terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The lessee incurs the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the

underlying asset during a particular period (IFRS 16.24(d)).

i}z \ " ¥«!CO ¢zvOz v "vo|z£zo2© y¥ no¥2a x¥oady-~o va ¥we~|va

site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to a specified condition.

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present IFRS 16.26
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments IFRS 16.27
(including in -substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that

depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease

payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the

Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising

the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they IFRS 16.38(b)

are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the IFRS 16.36
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After IFRS 16.39
the commencement date, the amount of lease | iabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and

reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future

payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change

in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

i}z \"¥«! CO ¢tzvOz ¢~vw-~ beafingpa@s and borrowingx (See Watey?21.2)s Ao a z

iii) Short -term leases and leases of low -value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short -term leases of machinery and IFRS 16.5
. . IFRS 16.6

equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and

do not contain a purchase option). It also applies t he lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to

leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short -term leases and

leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

k) Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to  ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight -line basis
over the lease term and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs in curred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying

amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are ea rned.

I) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of f  unds.

m) Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market  conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined
based on an annual valuation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation
model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of (i.e., at the date the
recipient obtains control) or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic

benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference b etween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount
of consideration from the derecognition of investment property  the Group considers the effects of variable
consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non -cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the buyer (if any ).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner -occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. If owner -occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

Commentary of IFRS accounting standards

The Group has elected to state investment properties at fair value in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property . As an
alternative, IAS 40 permit s investment properties to be carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. IAS 40 requires disclosure of the fair value of investment property recorded at cost. Therefore, entities

would still need to determine the fair value of investment properties regardless of the policy choice.

n) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally genera ted intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued) ol

n) Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment IAS 38.97

whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the :ﬁi 22:?04
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least atthe e  nd of each

reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future

economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as §
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible _§
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is ,g
consistent with the function of the intangible assets. =
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, IAS 38.107

either individually or at the cash -generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually :22 gzjgg

to determine whether the indefinite | ife continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no IAS 38.113

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the diffe rence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

{2

c

Q

£

Q

g
= [

Research and development costs S
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised  !AS 38.54 g g‘

. . IAS 38.57 =

as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate: b
3 The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or 1= H‘

o
sale %’ oo‘

3 Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset ©
3 How the asset will generate future economic benefits 9.‘
3 The availability of resources to complete the asset =

3 The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any IAS 38.74 ~
. . . . . . . IAS 36.10(a)

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when P
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected £ &
future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is = o
tested for impairment annually. I3\

Patents and licences

The Group made upfront payments to acquire patents and licences. The patents have been granted for a IAS 38.122(a)
period of 10 years by the relevant government agency with the option of renewal at the end of this period.

Licences for the use of intellectual property are granted for periods ranging between five and ten years

depending on the specific licences. The licences may be renewed at little or no cost to the Group. As a 8
result, those licences are assessed as having an indefinite useful life. §
. )
V ©«E£E£v" ¥{ 2}z | ¥¢~x~z© v |¢t~zy 2¥ 2}lz \"¥« CO -~ =
Licen Patent Development cost S "—E
icences atents evelopment costs 38.118(a).(b) g
Useful lives Indefinite Finite (10 years) Finite (10 -20 years) 2
Amortisation method No Amortised on a Amortised on a straight -line basis over the ‘_g
used amortisation straight -line basis period of expected future sales from the =
over the period of the  related project 2
patent
Internally generated Acquired Acquired Internally generated
or acquired
™
0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement ™
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability IAS 32.11 <

or equity instrument of another entity.

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value IFRS 7.21

. . . " IFRS 9.4.1.1
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

i}z x¢vOO©~{ ~xva&a~¥no ¥{ {~mvox-~ve vO©za© v?& ~p~2~y (¢ IFRS9411
[C¥- X}V vxaz ~0©2~x© vay 2}z \  ¥«Wih@e exce@ionoktrade £¥yz o1
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the

practical expedient , the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a

financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not

contain a significant financing component or for which the  Group has applied the practical expedient are

measured at the transaction price as disclosed in section d) Revenue from contracts with customers .

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it IFRS 9.4.1.2(b)
BzZzZy© @¥ | ~-az " ~©z ¥ xvO} {C¥-0©0 a}vaz-hepreO¥ggmca) TRoMLAD
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument

level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irres pective of the business model.

i}z \ " ¥«! CO wW«©O~nzO©O®© £¥yz¢ {¥" E£vov]|~o| {~ovox~v¢ IFRS9BALL
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting

contractual cash flows, selling the financi al assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at

amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows whilst financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held

within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by IFRS9.3.1.2
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: IFRS 9.5.2.1

3 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

3 Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

3 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) IFRS9.4.1.2
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and IFRS9.5.4
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

i '}z \ " fmandiaCa®sets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate and loan
to a director included under other non -current financial assets.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

For entities that have more complex financial instruments, the SPPI assessment can be particularly challenging. The
vil¢t~xva~¥a | «~yv o ximernatiérial GAAPRO2 4 [drowde specificrexa@®ples of instruments that pass or
fail the SPPI test. Such entities should also consider providing more detailed accounting policies in relation to their SPPI

and business model assessments. Only equity instruments that meet the definit ~¥ o ¥{ z8«~23" { " ¥£ 2
can be designated at fair value through OCI at initial recognition. IFRS 9 also allows entities to elect to designate non -
financial contracts such as commodity contracts held for own use as financial assets at FV PL under certain

circumstances.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) IFRS 9.4.1.2A
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and IFRS 9.5.7.10
IFRS 9.5.7.11

impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. Th e remaining fair value changes are recognised
in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

i}z \"¥«! CO yzw?a ~po@©2" «£zwu2@© infestrientsifi quoted tebtinstturhent¥ « | }
included under other non -current financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity IFRS 9.5.7.5
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument -by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as IFRS 9.5.7.1A
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except IFRS 9.85.7.1
when the Group benefits from such proceeds a s a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which

case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not

subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non -listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair IFRS9.4.1.4
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. IFRS9.571

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non  -financial host, is separated from IFRS9.4.3.3
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if; the economic characteristics and risks are not closely

related to the host , a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the

definition of a derivative , and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies

the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value

through profit or loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial IFRS 9.3.2.3(a)
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removedfrom 2} z \ " ¥«! CO x¥o©¥¢t~yvazy C

position) when:

3 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

Or IFRS 9.3.2.4(a)
o . o IFRS 9.3.2.4(b)
3 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation

topaythe " zxz~=-zy xv©O} {¢¥-0© ~o {«C¢ - ~21} ¥« Blvay«|~}y
arrangement ; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass -
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retai ned substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:
3 Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3

3 Debt instruments at fair value through OCI Note 21

3 Trade receivables, including contract assets Note 21

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLSs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from

the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the con tractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 -months (a 12 -month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of th e timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward -looking factors specifi ¢ to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

An entity is required to apply the simplified approach for trade receivables or contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component, or when the entity applies the practical expedient for contracts that have a maturity of
one year or less. However, an entity has a policy choice to apply either the simplified approach or the general approach
for the follo wing:

3 Alltrade receivables or contract assets that contain a significant financing component in accordance with IFRS 15.
The policy choice may be applied separately to trade receivables and contract assets.

3 All lease receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16. The policy choice may be
applied separately to finance and operating lease receivables.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the inter nal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 9.3.2.6(a)
IFRS9.3.2.6(c)
IFRS 9.3.2.4(b)

IFRS 9.3.2.16

IFRS 9.5.5.1

IFRS 9.5.5.1

IFRS 9.5.5.3
IFRS 9.5.5.5

IFRS 9.5.5.15
IFRS 9.B5.5.35

IFRS 9.5.5.3
IFRS 9.5.5.5
IFRS 9.A
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

itz V" ¥«] CO yzw? ~p0O2 " «£z820© va {v~" avlC«z 2} ¥«| } IFRS735Ma)
the top investment category (Very Good and Good) by the Quality Credit Rating Agency and, therefore, are :Egz ;gz%‘az)z(")
X¥o0O~yz " zy 2¥ wz ¢¥- x"zy~2 " ~0fj ~\8-2z0O2f£zma©OC "2a ~g

on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings from the Quality Credit Rating
Agency both to determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 9 contains an important simplification that, if a financial instrument has a low credit risk, then an entity is allowed to
assume at the reporting date that no significant increases in credit risk have occurred. The low credit risk concept was
intended to provide entities relief from tracking changes in the credit risk of high  -quality financial instruments. This
simplification is optional, and the low credit risk simplification can be elected on an instrument  -by-instrument basis.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, :Egi ;f;éb)

in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external IFRS 9.B5.5.37
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contract  ual amounts in full before

taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is

no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition , measurement and presentation

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or IFRS 7.6
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective IFRS 7.21
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

i}z \"¥«!CO {~mvox~ve ¢~vw~¢~2~70© ~oxtC«yz 2" vyz vao
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

IFRS 9.5.1.1

The Group classifies financial liabilities that arise from supplier finance arrangement within ~ Trade and other
payables in the statement of financial position if they have a similar nature and function to trade payables.

This is the case if the supplier financev ™ " ve | z£zwv2 ~© v~ 2a ¥{ 2a}lz -¥"|~c«
operating cycle, the level of security provided is similar to trade payables and the terms of the liabilities that

are part of the supply chain finance arrangement are not substantially different from the terms of trade
payables that are not part of the arrangement. Cash flows related to liabilities arising from supplier finance
arrangements that are classified in Trade and other payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position are included in operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

3 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

3 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial IFRS 9.4.2.1(a)
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in

the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that

are not designated as hedging instru ments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated

embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or  loss. IFRS 9.5.7.1
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at

the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated

any financial liability as at f air value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

0) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement  (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest  -bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are d erecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to interest -bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to
Note 21.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exist ing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of  profit or loss.

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the  consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

p) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps
and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity
price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently reme asured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

3 Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

3 Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognis ed firm commitment

3 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge
effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of s ources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge
ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

3 i}z z ~© 6veo zZXx¥o¥f~x " z¢va-~¥o©O}~!C wz?-zzo 2}z
3 i}z z{{zx?2 ¥{ x"zy~2 " ~0j y¥zO w¥a (Cy¥f~ovaz a};
relationship.

3 The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group
actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 9.4.2.1
IFRS 9.5.7.2

IFRS 9.3.3.1

IFRS 9.3.3.3
IFRS 9.3.3.2

IAS 32.42

IFRS 9.5.1.1
IFRS 7.21

IFRS 9.6.5.2(a)

IFRS 9.6.5.2(b)

IFRS9.6.5.2(c)
IFRS 9.6.4.1

IFRS 9.6.4.1
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)
p) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other IFRS 9.6.5.8
expense. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part IFRS 96510
of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit o r loss as other

expense.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. The EIR
amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to
be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change IFRS 9.6.5.9
in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability
with a corresponding gain or loss recognis ed in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow IFRS 9.6.5.11
hedge reserve, whilst any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging

instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in
the commodity prices. The ineffective porti on relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised as other
expense and the ineffective portion relating to commaodity contracts is recognised in other operating income
or expenses. Refer to Note 21.3 for more details.

The Group designates only the spot element of forward contracts as a hedging instrument. The forward IFRS 9.6.5.16
element is recognised in OCI and accumulated in a separate component of equity under cost of hedging
reserve.

The amounts accumulated in OCI are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged IFRS 9.6.5.11
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non  -financial item, the

amount accumulated in equity is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial

cost or other carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and

will not be recognised in OCI for the period. This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a

non-financial asset or non -financial liability subsequently becomes a firm commitment for which fair value

hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or
loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCI must remain in
accumulated OCI if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be
immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After discontinuation, once the
hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated OCI must be accounted for depending on
the nature of the underlying transaction as described above.

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted IFRS 9.6.5.13
for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on FRS 96,513
the hedging instrument relating to the e ffective portion of the hedge are recognised as OCI whilst any gains

or losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of

the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to

the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

p) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting  (continued)

The Group uses a loan as a hedge of its exposure to foreign exchange risk on its investments in foreign
subsidiaries. Refer to Note 21.3 for more details.

g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. IAS 2.36(a)
IAS 2.9
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows: IAS 2.10
3 Raw materials: purchase cost on a first -inffirst -out basis IAS 2.25
3 Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of IAS 2.12
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs IAS 2.13
Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, IFRS

recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 8.8.8.11(a)()

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. IAS 2.6

r) Impairment of non -financial assets
Further disclosures relating to impairment of non -financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

3 Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3

3 Property, plant and equipment Note 17
3 Intangible assets Note 19
3 Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives Note 20

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
Under IFRS 16.33, right -of-use assets are subject to the impairment requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets .

Under IFRS 15.101, assets recognised for costs to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract are subject to
impairment testing. An impairment exists if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the amount of consideration the
entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods or services, less the remaining costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services. The Group does not incur any costs to obtain a contract or costs to fulfil a
contract that are eligible for cap italisation. Entities need to include an accounting policy for impairment if ~ such
information is deemed to be material.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If :2: :gg

any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the IAS 36.66
VOO©ZaZ&K@& -z " vwtz VE¥«oaC Vo vOOz2CO " zx¥-z"vwtz VE¥:
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,

_ ) IAS 36.59
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows tha t are largely independent of those from other assets or

groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -  AS36.30
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific :22 2225

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share pr ices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on the most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which are IAS 36.33

bozlv zy ©z!lv vaze™ [ ¥ zvx} ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO X\jO a IAS3635

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long -term growth rate is

calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense IAS 36.60
IAS 36.61

categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously revalued with
the revaluation taken to OCI. For such pro perties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued) ol

r) Impairment of non -financial assets (continued)

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is IAS 36.110
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such :2: 2211‘;
indication exists, the Group estimatestheasset C® ¥° X\ j CO " zx¥-z" " vwe¢z VEY¥«!ias36119

impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
VOO©z2aCO® " zx¥-z vwtz VE¥«o? ©~8oxz 2}z ¢v©O2 ~£!ovhat £z
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the

asset in prior years. Such reversal is recog nised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried

at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 October and when circumstances indicate that the IAS 36.10(b)
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)  |AS 36.104
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an IAS 36.124
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment lo sses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are also tested for impairment annually as at 31 October at the IAS 36.10(2)
CGUIlevel, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The Group assesseswhether climate risks, including physical risks and transition risks could have a
significant impact . If so, these risks are included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value -in-use
amounts. See Note 20 for further discussion of the impact of climate -related risks on the value in use.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 36.96 permits the annual impairment test for a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated to be performed at any time
during the year, provided it is at the same time each year. Different CGUs and intangible assets may be tested at different
times.

Consolidated financial statements
19 18 17 16 15

s) Cash and short -term deposits =
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and IAS 7.6
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are  held for the purpose of S 7.7 S
meeting short -term cash commitments and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject @
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. % N

IAS 7.46 z
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and @
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
~maz|"ve lvta ¥{ 2a}lz \"¥«! CO xv©} £vov]|zEf£zwoaC
t) Convertible preference shares
Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the IFRS 7.21
contract. :22 gz;g é

8

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined IFRS 7.21 2
using a market rate for an equivalent non -convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial :22 gz;g 'E
liability measured at amortised cost (net o f transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or -%
redemption. *‘§
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in IAS 32.35 %
equity. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of IAS 32.AG31(a) é
the conversion option is not remeasured in subse quent years. g

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible IAS 32.38
preference shares, based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are initially recognised.

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

u) Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from IAS 32.33
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

\ "¥«! CO ¥-1m z8«~27 ~ o OBetweeh thexchar@iGy amaeunt ang thd cprsideration, if

reissued, is recognised in the share premium.

v) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a IAS 37.14

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to IAS 37,53

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group IAS 37.54

expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed , for example, under an insurance contract, the

reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The

expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursem  ent.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre  -tax rate IAS 37.45

that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the  increase in

the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by

law. Provisions related to these assurance -type warranties are recognised when the product is sold, or the

service is provided to the customer. In itial recognition is based on historical experience. The estimate of

warranty -related costs is revised annually.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation, which is when: IAS 37.71

IAS 37.72
(i) there is a detailed formal plan that identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the
location and number of employees affected, the detailed estimate of the associated costs, and the
timeline, and

(i 2}z z£1¢¥ 220 v{{zx?zy }v-z wzzwo w¥a~{~zy ¥{ 2}z

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs to remediate the environmental damage of a IAS 16.16(c)
. - . . . . . IAS 37.45

manufacturing facility for the production of fire retardant materials. Decommissioning costs are provided IAS 37.47

for at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are IFRIC 1.8

recognised as part of the cost of the rel evant asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre -tax rate ~ 'AS37.59
that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as IFRIC15
incurred and recognised in the statement of profit or loss as a finance cos t. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. The impact of climate -related matters,

such as changes in environmental regulations and other relevant legislation, is considered by the Group in

estimating the decommissioning liability on the manufacturing facility . Changes in the estimated future

costs, or in the discount rate applied, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group receives free emission rights in certain European countries as a result of the European Emission IAS 8.10
Trading Schemes. The rights are received on an annual basis and, in return, the Group is required to remit
rights equal to its actual emissions. The Group has adopted the net liability approach to the emission rights
granted. The Group recognises the received emission rights at the nominal amount (i.e., nil). The Group
recognises a provision as emissions are made. As the Group intends to keep the emission rights received to
settle its emission liability, the Group takes into consideration the value of received emission rights on a
first -in-first -out basis when measuring a provision. Therefore, until the emission limit is exceeded, there is

no impact on the consolidated statement of financial provision and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. . The emission costs are recognised as other operating expenses. Where emission rights are purchased
from other parties, the cost of obtaining the allowances determine the measurement of the provision.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

v) Provisions (continued)

Onerous contracts
If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and IAS 37.66

measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the IAS 37.69
Group recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.
An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot IAS 37.68

avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it. The u navoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost
of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 37 provides a choice of presenting expenditures to settle a provision either net of any reimbursement or on a gross
basis. The Group has elected to present the expenses net of reimbursements.

IFRIC 3Emission Rights was withdrawn in June 2005. In the absence of a specific standard, management must develop
an accounting policy that results in information that is relevant and reliable. The Group has applied the net liability
approach based on IAS 20.23. However, emissi on rights received could also be recognised as intangible assets at their
fair value with all the disclosures required by IAS 38.

IFRS 15 contains no specific requirements to address contracts with customers that are, or have become, onerous. The
requirements of IAS 37 apply to the identification and measurement of onerous customer contracts (IAS 37.5(g)).

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)

The Group is a provider of electrical equipment that falls under the EU Directive on Waste Electrical and IFRIC &
Electronic Equipment. The directive distinguishes between waste management of equipment sold to private
households prior to a date, as determined by each Member State (historical waste), and waste management

of equipment sold to private households after that date (new waste). A provision for the expected costs of
management of historical waste is recognised when the Group participates in the market during the

measurement period, as determined by each Member State, and the costs can be reliably measured. These

costs are recognised as other operating expenses in the state ment of profit or loss.

With respect to new waste, a provision for the expected costs is recognised when products that fall within
the directive are sold, and the disposal costs can be reliably measured. Derecognition takes place when the
obligation expires, is settled or is transferred. These costs are recognised as part of costs of sales.

With respect to equipment sold to entities other than private households, a provision is recognised when the
Group becomes responsible for the costs of this waste management, with the costs recognised as other
operating expenses or cost of sales, as approp riate.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. IFRS 3.56
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the :E: 2;;
requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less (when appropriate) cumulative '
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for rev  enue recognition.

w) Employee benefits

Short -term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised for salaries and wages, annual leave and any other short term employee benefits that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

w) Employee benefits (continued)

Long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of long service leave and any other long term employee benefits that are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is
given to expected future salary levels, historical employee turnover rates and periods of se  rvice. Expected
future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds
with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Pensions and other post -employment benefits

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan in Euroland, which requires contributions to be made to a IAS 19.135
separately administered fund. The Group also provides certain additional post employment healthcare

benefits to employees in the United States. These benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits IAS 19.67
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding IAS 19.120(c)
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding :22 gig
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the

statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the

period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in  subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
IAS 19.102

3 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment IAS 19.103
3 The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The IAS 19.123
\ "¥«! Tzx¥|8~0z0 2}z {¥¢¢¥-~p| x}ve|zO ~o 2}z wnza ASI9IA
EVYyE~n~02 " va~¥no z@®!'zo@w@E-~¥oyz®Pze¢Oz®C voyayzOX¥oc(c
loss (by function):
3 Service costs comprising current service costs, past -service costs, gains and losses on curtailments

and non-routine settlements

3 Net interest expense or income

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Entities are required to state their policy for termination benefits, employee benefit reimbursements and benefit risk
sharing. Since these are not applicable to the Group, the disclosures related to such benefits have not been made. Entities
need to assess the nature of their employee benefits and make the relevant disclosures.

IAS 19 does not specify where in the statement of profit or loss service costs or net interest should be presented. IAS 1
allows, but does not require, disaggregation of the employee benefits cost components in profit or loss. The net interest
cost component is different from the unwinding of interest component and return on asset component in the previous
version of IAS 19. Entities must apply the requirement in IAS 8.10 when developing a presentation policy for net interest
cost.

Classification

Liabilities for employee benefits where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months after the reporting date are presented as current. Liabilities for employee benefits
where the Group has an unconditional righ t to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
date are presented as non-current.

X) Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share -based IFRS 2.44
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for equity instruments (equity -settled

transactions). Employees working in the business development group are granted Share Appreciation

Rights, which are settled in cash (cash -settled transactions).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of accounting policies (continued)

X) Share-based payments (continued)

Equity -settled transactions

The cost of equity -settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made IFRS 2.7
. . . . . . . IFRS 2.10

using an appropriate valuation model, further details of which are givenin Note 31.

That cost is recognised in employee benefits expense (Note 13.7 ), together with a corresponding increase in ~ IFRS2.19
equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the service and, where applicable, the performance IFRS 220
conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for equity -settled

transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has

z®! ~"zy voy a}lz \"¥«! CO wz©2r zO©a~fvaz ¥{ a}z o«fwz
expense or credit in the statement of profi t or loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative

expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant IFRS 2.21
yvadz {v~" vtz ¥{ v-v yoOA w«? 2}z ¢~jzC¢~}¥¥y ¥{ 2

best estimate of the number of equity instrumen ts that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions

are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an

associated service requirement, are considered to be non -vesting conditions. Non -vesting conditions are IFRS 2.21A
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also IFRS 2.27
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non -market performance and/or IFRS 2.28

. . . . . IFRS 2.B42-B44
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non -vesting condition, the IAS 33.45
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non -vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfi ed.

When the terms of an equity -settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date
fair value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modific ation, is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share -based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an
award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the  fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share (further details are given in Note 16).

Cash-settled transactions
A liability is recognised for the fair value of cash -settled transactions. The fair value is measured initially and IFRS 2.30

at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in :Egi zgi
employee benefits expense (see Note 13.7 ). The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date
with recognition of a corresponding liability. The fair value is determined using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in Note 31 . The approach used to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity -settled transactions also applies to cash -settled transactions.

i 7 IAS 10.21
y) Events after the reporting period |A§ 18.10

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of authorisation for issue,
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the information
affects the amounts that it recognises in its consolidated financial statements. The Group will adjust the
amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period

and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For non  -adjusting
events after the reporting period, the Group will not change the amounts recognised in its consolidated
financial statements , but will disclose the nature of the non -adjusting event and an estimate of its financial
effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies ( continued)

2.3 Summary of accounting policies ( continued)

z) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (after

adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year plus th e weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures IAS 8.14

Revaluation of office properties in Euroland (property, plant and equipment)

The Group re-assessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of a IAS 16.30
certain class of property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. The Group had previously measured

all property, plant and equipment using the cost model whereby, after initial recognition of the asset

classified as property, plant and equipment, the asset was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

On 1 January 202 4, the Group elected to change the method of accounting for office properties in Euroland
classified as property, plant and equipment, as the Group believes that the revaluation model provides more
relevant information to the users of its financial statemen ts as it is more aligned to practices adopted by its
X¥E£| z2~2¥"0C "o vyy~2~¥oA vav~C¢Cvwe¢z -vCt«v2@~¥o 2zx}
fair value. The Group applied the revaluation model prospectively.

After initial recognition, office properties in Euroland are measured at fair value at the date of the IAS 8.17
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. S 8.18
For details refer to Note 17.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards S 8.28
IAS 8.17 and IAS 8.18 exempt this change in accounting policy from the requirement to retrospectively apply the policy

and to provide detailed disclosure as outlined in IAS 8.28 to IAS 8.31. Hence, the Group has applied its change in

accounting policy for the measurement of office properties in Euroland to the revaluation model prospectively.

New and amended standards and interpretations IAS 8.28

The Group applied for the first -time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 202 4 (unless otherwise stated). The Group has not early adopted

any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments in IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller -lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller -lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the rig ht of use it retains.

i}z vEzuy£f£zo2@© }vy o¥ ~f£!vx?a ¥o 2}z \"¥«! CO {~ovox

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non  -current

The amendments to IAS 1 specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non -current. The
amendments clarify:

3 What is meant by a right to defer settlement

3 That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

3 That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

3 That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification

In addition, an entity is required to disclose when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non -
X« " "zma yoy a}z zma-~a~CO© " ~|}a ay yz{z" ©z22ag¢zLfznun?
twelve months.

The amendments have resulted in additional disclosures in Note 21.2 , but have not had an impact on the
X¢vOO~{ ~xva~¥o ¥{ 23}z \"¥«! CO ¢t~vw~¢~2~z0C
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial statements in
understanding the effects of supplie © { ~ovexz v" " vo| z£zo020© ¥8o vo
to liquidity risk.

zoa ~¢

As a result of implementing the amendments, the Group has provided additional disclosures about its supplier
finance arrangement. Please refer to Note 21.5 and Note 30.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

For illustrative purposes, the Group has listed all the disclosures of new and amended standards and interpretations that

are effective from 1 January 202 4 (unless otherwise stated), regardless of whether these have any impact on the

\ "¥«! CO {~mvax~vet ©3vaz£zuona©C | ¥ a}z z®azwa a}lya yo zoa-~
interpretation, it is sufficient to disclose that fact together  with its title.

In some jurisdictions, the adoption of IFRS accounting standards for reporting purposes may be subject to a specific legal
process (e.g., in the European Union or Australia). In those jurisdictions, the effective dates may, therefore, be different

from the IASB's effective dates. Nevertheless, all new standards and interpretations must be considered for disclosure as
standards issued but not yet effective, in ac cordance with IAS 8.30, when an entity provides a complete set of financial
statements, irrespective of whether the legal process referred to above has been completed.

2.5 Correction of an error

In July 20 22, a subsidiary entered into a sales contract with a new customer to sell fire prevention
equipment for a two -year period. As part of the negotiations, a variation was made to the standard terms
and conditions to sell the equipment to this customer on a consignment basis, under which the Group does
not relinquish control of the consigned product until it is sold to an end customer. However, the subsidiary
continued to recognise revenue at the point before control transferred to the  end customer. As a
consequence, revenue was overstated. In January 202 4, the subsidiary conducted a detailed review of the
terms and conditions of its sales contracts and discovered the error.

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial
periods, as follows:

statement line items for the prior

Impact on equity (increase/(decrease) in equity)

31 December 202 3 1 January 202 3

IAS 8.49

PEETE PEE
Inventories 1,000 500
Trade receivables (3,500) (1,500)
Total assets (2,500) (2,000)
Income tax payable 750 300
Total liabilities 750 300
Net impact on equity (1,750) (700)

Impact on statement of profit or loss (increase/(decrease) in profit)

31 December 202 3

PEE
Revenue from contracts with customers (2,000)
Cost of sales 500
Income tax expense 450
Net impact on profit for the year (1,050)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1,050)
Non-controlling interests c
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
2. Accounting policies (continued) o
2.5 Correction of an error (continued) 0|

Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) (increase/(decrease) in EPS ) IAS 8.49(b)(ii)
31 December 2023

Earnings per share
Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent =bEC

Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity s

holders of the parent =PEC S
Earnings per share for continuing operations B

Basic, profit from continuing operations attributable to E

ordinary equity holders of the parent =bEC

Diluted, profit from continuing operations attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the parent =bEC

i}z x}ve|z y~y w©o¥2 lv-az vo ~£]vx?2 ¥o dX~ {¥° a}z |
cash flows.

2.6 Climate -related matters

The Group considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This
assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the group due to both physical and transition risks.
Even though the Group believes its business model and products will still be viable after the transition to

a low-carbon economy, climate -related matters increase the uncertainty in estimates and assumptions
underpinning several items in the financial statements. Even though climate -related risks might not
currently have a significant impact on measurement, the Group is closely monitoring relevant changes and
developments, such as new climate -related legislation. The items and considerations that are most directly
impacted by climate -related matters are:

Consolidated financial statements

3 Useful life of property, plant and equipment. When reviewing the residual values and expected useful
lives of assets, the Group considers climate -related matters, such as climate -related legislation and
regulations that may restrict the use of assets or require significant capital expenditures . See
Note 2.3 j) for further information.

3 Impairment of non -financial assets. The value-in-use may be impacted in several different ways by

transition risk in particular , such as climate-related legislation and regulations and changes in demand N
{¥" 2}z \"¥«! CO ! " ¥y«x?2©C Z-za 2} ¥«|} 2Jemted "~ ¥ «! 2 [
assumption is a key assumption for the 202 4 test of goodwill, the Group considered expectations for g N
increased costs of emissions, ~a x " zv©zy yzEvoy { ¥ | ¥¥yO O¥¢y w -
equipment CGU and cost increases due to stricter recycling requirements in the cash -flow forecasts in N

assessing value-in-use amounts. See Note 20 for further information.

3 Fair value measurement. For investment properties and revalued office properties, the Group considers
the effect of physical and transition risks and whether investors would consider those risks in their
valuation. The group believes it is not currently ex posed to severe physical risks, but believes that
investors, to some extent, would consider impacts of transition risks in their valuation, such as
increasing requirements for energy efficiency of buildings due to climate -related legislation and
regulaton® v© -z¢¢ v©O 2azuovaoa@C -emissidnbuildngs:Jee Nore AN for jukher{ ¥
information.

3  Decommissioning liability. The impact of climate -related legislation and regulations is considered in
estimating the timing and future costs of decommissioning one of the \ ~ ¥ «maBu@acturing facilit ies.
See Note 2.3 v) for further disclosures.

3 Emission rights. The Group receives free emission rights on an annual basis and, in return, it is required

to remit rights equal to its actual emissions. The Group has adopted the net liability approach to the
emission rights granted. See Note 2.3 v) for further information.

Additional Australian disclosures

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

i}z ! 7"z!'viva~¥o ¥{ 2}z \"¥«! CO x¥uonO¥¢t~yvazy {~avaoy -
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets ]
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty -

about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requ ire a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
d2}z" y~Ox¢t¥0©«" z© " z¢va~a]| 2 vunckrjaintiesiricl¥dest CO z ®! ¥ O« "

3  Capital management Note 6

3 Financial instruments risk management and policies Note 21.5

3 Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 17, 18, 20, 21.4, 21.5 and 32.

Judgements

ANogoalz I T¥xzOO© ¥{ v!!¢T~m| 2}z \"¥«!CO vxx¥«wpad~pg]| IASLI22

judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options a Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non -cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods IFRS 16.18
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered IFRS 16.19
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers al | relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contro | and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of plant and machinery with
shorter non -cancellable period (i.e., three to five years). The Group typically exercises its option to renew
for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on production if a replacement asset is
not readily available. The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with longer non -cancellable
periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these ar e not reasonably certain
to be exercised. In addition, the renewal options for leases of motor vehicles are not included as part of the
lease term because the Group typically leases motor vehicles for not more than five years and, hence, is
not exercising any renewal options. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included
as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Refer to Note 31 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the
exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Property lease classification g Group as lessor

The Group hasentered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the ~ commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial

property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties

and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Assets held for sale
On 1 October 202 4, the Board of Directors announced its decision to discontinue the rubber segment IFRS 5.7

consisting of Hose Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. The Board considered the subsidiary to meet the IFRS 58
criteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for the followi ng reasons:

Judgements (continued)

3 Hose Limited is available for immediate sale and can be sold to the buyer in its current condition :EEE ?SA

3 The actions to complete the sale were initiated and expected to be completed within one year from the
date of initial classification

3 A potential buyer ha d been identified and negotiations were at an advanced stage, with a letter of
intent having been agreed between the two parties as of 1 October 2024

For more details on the discontinued operation, refer to Note 14.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Consolidation of a structured entity

In February 202 4, the Group and a third -party partner formed an entity, Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited, IFRS 12.7(2)
to acquire land and construct and operate a fire equipment safety facility. The Group holds 20% of the :Eiz i;:;
voting shares in this entity. The third -} v~ 2~ | v7 2 poz" x¥#82" ~w«2zy vVvi4l " ¥®- FRs128
representing 80% of the voting shares, for the acquisition and construction of the fire safety test facility. IFRS 12.9
Thethird-} v™ 2~ v 283nz" ~0©O x¥£f£~2323zy a¥ | "¥a~yz vl ¥0®-~ IFRS 12.14
years to complete the project. The constru ction is expected to be completed in 202 6 at a total cost of

vil " ¥®~£va@z¢ Dl ALEEAEEEC i}z |v 2@poz" ~© zwma~3agzy
commencement of operations. Under the contractual arrangement with the third  -party partner, the Group

has a majority representatonon 2} z zwa ~a -~ CO w¥v' 'y ¥{ y~"zx2¥"  © vagoy

major operational decisions. At the end of the fourth annual period, the partner is entitled to a 100% capital
return. The EIR is 11% and the interest accumulated onthe contribu 2 zy Vv E£¥«wo2 2a¥ay¢ezy
December 202 4. The Group is effectively guaranteeing the returns to the third -party partner. On

completion of the construction, the operations of Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited will be solely carried out

by the Group.

Based on the contractual terms, the Group assessed that the voting rights in Fire Equipment Test Lab
Limited are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity. Also, it is assessed that there is
~o0@«{{~x~z82 z8«~2" {owthe entity-t@finance Rs@&iAtiIkEnEHOG thé N6n  v-adity
financial support of the Group. Therefore, the Group concluded Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited is a
structured entity under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and that the Group controls it with no
non-controlling interests. The voting shares of the third -party partner are accounted for as a financial
liability.

i}z "z{¥" zA [~"2z Z8«~| £zn?& |jz0O02 avw a~£~2zy ~©O x¥o¢
statements. The shares of the third -party partner are recorded as a long -term loan and the return on
investment is recorded as interest expense.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than a majority of voting rights (de facto control)

The Group considers that it controls Electronics Limited even though it owns less than 50% of the voting IFRS
rights. This is because the Group is the single largest shareholder of Electronics Limited with a 48% equity iﬁé?ifj(i)
interest. The remaining 52% of the equity shares in Electronics Limited are widely held by many other IFRS 12.8
shareholders, none of which individually hold more than 1% of the equity shares (as recorded in the IFRS 12.9

X¥E£!va T CO ©}v 'z} ¥¢tyz" ©C “7z03%@etember 202 4. SincE 1 AcioBe¥20%7, GE
which is the date of acquisition of Electronics Limited, there is no history of the other shareholders
collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvote the Group.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

i}z \"¥«! }vO B0 AFAVEENMAEIFES ¥{ 23v® ¢t¥00z©O xv =~ ~zy |AS1281F)
subsidiaries that have a history of losses, do not expire, and may not be used to offset taxable income

elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have neither any taxable temporary difference nor any tax

planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax

assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax

losses carried forward.

If the Group had been able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit and equity would have
~ox" zvOzy w DFGMAEEEC [«7" 2}z Notgh2 v~¢C©O ¥8v8 23Vyv®ZO V-~

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1.122 requires an entity to disclose the judgements that management has made in the process of applying the
entity's accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
For some items, it will be necessary to provide disclosures both in the context of estimation uncertainty and significant
judgements. Entities need to determine the most appropriate disclosure for such items. For example, Good Group has
determined that dis closures about deferred tax assets primarily relate to judgements, even though also estimation
uncertainty is involved.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Judgements (continued)
IFRS 12 adds to the general requirements of IAS 1 by specifically requiring an entity to disclose all significant judgements
and estimates made in determining the nature of its interest in another entity or arrangement, and in determining the
type of joint arrange ment in which it has an interest. IFRS 12.7 requires that an entity disclose information about
significant judgements and assumptions it has made (and changes to those judgements and assumptions) in determining:

3 Thatit has control of another entity

3 Thatit has joint control of an arrangement or significant influence over another entity

3 The type of joint arrangement (i.e., joint operation or joint venture) when the arrangement has been structured

through a separate vehicle

An entity must disclose, for example, significant judgements and assumptions made in determining that

3 It does not control another entity even though it holds more than half of the voting rights of the other entity

3 It controls another entity even though it holds less than half of the voting rights of the other entity

3 Itis an agent or principal as defined by IFRS 10

3 It does not have significant influence even though it holds 20 per cent or more of the voting rights of another

entity

3 It has significant influence even though it holds less than 20 per cent of the voting rights of another entity
The Group assessed that it controls Electronics Limited, despite having less than a majority of the voting rights, based on
the guidance under IFRS 10.B42.
The Group does not have any interest in unconsolidated structured entities. Interests in such  entities require the
disclosures under IFRS 12.24-31.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should consider the impact of climate -related matters if those matters create uncertainties that affect
assumptions used to develop estimates. IAS 1 requires disclosure of information about the assumptions an entity makes
about the future and other sources of est imation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year. This information is intended to allow users to understand the judgements
entities make about the future.

Entities also need to consider expectations of their local regulators, as the expected level of disclosures may vary
between different jurisdictions. For example, some regulators might expect disclosures of the impact of climate -related
matters that go beyond the typical disclosures required by IAS 1.123 and IAS 1.125, based on a broad understanding of
the requirements in IAS 1.112(c).

The impact of climate -related matters has been illustrated throughout this publication, but is not on its own determined
to be a significant judgement or a major source of estimation uncertainty for the Group. Entities, however, need to make
this judgement in light of their specific circumstances, please see our publication, Applying IFRS: Accounting for Climate

Change.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated fina ncial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. For investment properties, a valuation methodology based on a discounted cash
flow (DCF) model was used, as there is a lack of comparable market data because of the nature of the
properties. In addition, t he Group measures the office properties in Euroland at revalued amounts, with
changes in fair value being recognised in OCI. The office properties were valued by reference to
transactions involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. The Group  engaged an
independent valuation specialist to assess fair values as at 31 December 202 4 for the investment
properties and at 1 January and 31 December 202 4 for the office properties in Euroland.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the properties and sensitivity analyses are
provided in Notes 17 and 18.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment of non -financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable IAS 36.6
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
X¥02 0 ¥{ y~0©] ¥Ovet xveéx«tva@~¥nm ~0O0 wvOzy ¥o vav-~Cvwd
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next

five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant

future investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the  CGUbeing tested. The

recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibl es with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions

used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUSs, including a sensitivity analysis, are

disclosed and further explained in Note 20.

IAS 36.33(b)

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

As the current environment remains uncertain, it is important that entities continue to provide detailed disclosure of the
assumptions made, including any updates since prior period, the evidence they are based on and the impact of a change
in the key assumptions (sensitivity analysis).

Given the inherent level of uncertainty and the sensitivity of judgements and estimates, disclosures of the key
assumptions used, and judgements made in estimating recoverable amounts is important.

It is possible that macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty is a triggering event for some entities that requires them

to perform an impairment test in accordance with IAS 36. Entities will need to assess the key assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs. Key inputs to both the va lue in use and the fair value less cost
of disposal models used to undertake the impairment assessment should be reassessed to factor in any impact.

The non-financial assets that may be subject to such impairment triggers include: property, plant and equipment;
intangible assets (including those with indefinite lives); goodwill; and inventories.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets IFRS 7.356

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The IFRS 7.35F(c)
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar

loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit

and other forms of credit insurance).

i}z | "¥-~0~¥o £v3a7  ~® ~O0 ~@m~2~y¢¢ wvOzy ¥&o 2}z \ 7\
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward  -looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i .e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over

the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default r  ates are updated and
changes in the forward -looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions

and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLSs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of

{¥  zxv©O©2 zx¥o¥f~x x¥aoyricdl erefitl@Cexpedence and férecasCobecgnentc? ¥
X¥oy~2a~¥o®© £v VvCeO¥ ©o¥2q wz “z|7z©zwaqva@~az7 ¥{ x«O©2)
alz ZXa®© ¥uo 2}z \ " ¥«!CO @"vyz "zxz~Noe®@ltz© vaoy x¥a?

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Under IFRS 7.35G(b), an entity must disclose how forward -looking information has been incorporated into the
determination of ECL, including the use of macroeconomic information. The Group did not provide detailed information
on how the forecast economic co nditions have been incorporated in the determination of ECL because the impact is not
significant. Entities are expected to provide more detailed information if the forward  -looking information has a
significant impact in the calculation of ECL.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share -based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs tot he valuation model including the expected life of the share
option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The Group
initially measures the cost of cash -settled transactions with employees using a binomial mo del to determine
the fair value of the liability incurred. For cash -settled share -based payment transactions, the liability needs
to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each
reporting period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity -settled transactions with employees at
the grant date, the Group uses a binomial model for Senior Exec utive Plan (SEP) and a Monte-Carlo
simulation model for General Employee Share Option Plan (GESP). The assumptions and models used for
estimating fair value for share -based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

Defined benefit plans (pension benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post -employment medical benefits and the present
value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ fr om actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long -term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The calculation is most sensitive to changes in the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount

rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the
currenciesofthepost-z £ ¢ ¥ £zwv23 wzwoz{~2 ¥we¢~|ve~¥o - ~2Ybyar ¢;
internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to

correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further

reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credi t spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on

which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about pension obligations are provided in  Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial

position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required

in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidit v risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. See Note 21.4 for further disclosures.

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition
date as part of the business combination. When the contingent consideration meets the definition of a
financial liability, it is subsequently remeasu red to fair value at each reporting date. The determination of
the fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the
probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor (see  Notes 8 and 21.4 for details).

As part of the accounting for the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited, contingent consideration with an
z©a~fvazy {v~" -=vet«z ¥{ DODLFI AEEE -v©O "zx¥|w8~0zy v?
the reporting date. Future developments may require further revisions to the estimate. The maximum
X¥o0O~yz" " va@~¥o a¥ wz |v~y ~© DFAFGJAEEEC i}z x¥npa~ag]|
Note 21.2).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Development costs

The Group capitalises costs for product development projects. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
Evov| z£zua CoO «y|lz£gzw?2 2a}yd azxlo¥¢C¥| ~xve voy zx¥c«
development project has reached a defined mile stone according to an established project management

model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the

expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of
benefits. At 31 December202 4A @}z xv~ ' 7 ~o| VvE¥«o?d® ¥{ xv]~2v(t~0Oz
(20230 PFAKMKAEEE>C

This amount includes significant investment in the development of an innovative fire prevention system.
Prior to being marketed, it will need to obtain a safety certificate issued by the relevant regulatory
authorities. The innovative nature of the product gives rise to some uncertainty as to whether the
certificate will be obtained.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of property, plant and

equipment at least annually. In particular, it considers the impact of health, safety and environmental

legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values. Furthermore, the Group
considers climate -related matters, including physical and transition risks. Specifically, it determines

whether climate -related legislation and reg ulations might impact either the useful life or residual values,

zC| CA w wvoo~o| ¥ 7 z0©2" ~x?2 ~duijen Mathinerwa@zequipfnentod z \ 7 3
imposing additional energy efficiency requirements on is buildings and office properties.

Provision for decommissioning

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the acquisition of Extinguishers
Limited in 202 4, the Group has recognised a provision for decommissioning obligations associated with a
factory owned by Extinguishers Limited. In determining the fair value of the provision, assumptions and
estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost to dismantle and remove the plant from
the site in order to remediate the environmental damage caused and the expected timing of those costs. In
estimating the expected cost, the Group takes into account changes in environmental legislation and

regulation that may impact the process for dismantling and removing the plant.  The carrying amount of the
provision as at 31 December202 4- v© DFAGGFABEEHEc =(GEG i } z \ " ¥«| z02 ~
wz “zvet~©zy ~a FJ Tzv ©C @~£z vay xvetx«tvazo 2}z |
assumptions:

3 Estimated range of cost persqgqm -BF ED G J
3 Discount rate 314%

If the estimatedpre 2 v® y ~Ox¥«wmod “"va&az «O©zy ~8 2}z XVEXxX«tv?d~¥;
z©3 ~£vazA 2}z xv' 7 ~o| VvE¥«wp? ¥{ 23a}lz | 7"¥2~0~¥8D - ¥
Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and volume rebates IFRS 15.126

The Group estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of
electronic equipment with rights of return and volume rebates.

The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns. The model uses the historical
return data of each product to estimate expected return percentages. These percentages are applied to
determine the expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in experience as
compared to historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages estimated by the Group.

i}z \ "¥«!CO z®!zx2zy -¥¢«f£z " zwva@z©O© v 'z vave ©zy 3
to a single volume threshold. Determining whether a customer is likely to be entitled to rebate will depend
¥o 28}l z7 Xx«O©2¥£z " CO }~02¥ " ~xve¢ " zwvaz© zwma~ag¢zfzma |\

The Group applied the statistical model for estimating expected volume rebates for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The model uses the historical purchasing patterns and rebates entitlement of
customers to determine the expected rebate percen tages and the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to historical purchasing patterns and
rebate entitlements of customers will impact the expected rebate percentages estimated by the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns and volume rebates quarterly and the refund

liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected returns and volume rebates are sensitive to

X}ve| zO® ~8 x~"Xx«f£O©a3vaxz©® vay a8}z \ "¥«! CO !vOo2 z®!:
o¥a wz " z! " z©zuw?aya~ qaurmn¥4nd rebat® 8n¥tisnentEirCtheviuxufe «Ag at 31

December 202 4, the amount recognised as refund liabilities for the expected returns and volume rebates
-vO DKAGI GAE® EHEJ AMBIEIGAEEE>C

Revenue recognition - Estimating stand -alone selling price g QualityPoints loyalty programme IFRS 15.126
The Group estimates the stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points awarded under the QualityPoints
programme. The stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points issued is calculated by multiplying the
estimated redemption rate and the monetary value assigned to the loyalty points. In estimating the
redemption rate, the Group considers breakage which re presents the portion of the points issued that will
gz=-z" wz "zyzz£fzyC i}tz \ " ¥« v | ¢~20 ©2va~02~xve¢ |
historical redemption patterns as the main input. The redemption rate is updated quarterly and the li  ability
for the unredeemed points is adjusted accordingly. In estimating the value of the points issued, the Group
considers the mix of products that will be available in the future in exchange for loyalty points and
X«©2¥E£z" ©C | " z{ z" znesth@ @e vallezassigrie¢te the layaityCpeifits is commensurate
to the stand -alone selling price of the products eligible for redemption (i.e., the value of each point is
equivalent to the stand -alone selling price of any products eligible for redemption divided by number of
points required).
As points issued under the programme do not expire, estimates of the stand -alone selling price are subject
a¥ ©~|o~{~xve?d «oxz dqy~pna C Vo  O~|w8~{~xvo?2 x}vo]|z
estimated redemption rate. As at 31 December 20 24, the estimated liability for unredeemed points was
DNEEAEEBO =fBlEIGMAEEE>C ~{ a8}z zO©2~fvazy "zyz£]|2~¥n
fvov| z£zv2CO z©2~£vazA 2}z xv " ~@o| VvE¥«oa ¥{ a}gz
December2024 - ¥« ¢y }v=-z wzze }~30zbIJAWNEEBD*@BEEE =GEG
IFRS 16.26

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have

to pay to borrow over a similar term , and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right -of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
alz \"¥«! E&-¥«tCy }v-az 2a¥ v CA -} ~ xeyates areSavaitable (Quchza® 2 -
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect

alz az"£0© voy x¥oy~2~¥pop© ¥{ 2}lz ¢zvOz ={¥" z®VE,| C:
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when

available and is required to make certainentity -©} zx ~{ ~x z©2 ~£v&z© =0« xajonev ©
credit rating).

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1 requires an entity to disclose significant judgements applied in preparing the financial statements (IAS 1.122) and
significant estimates that involve a high degree of estimation uncertainty (IAS 1.125). The disclosure requirements go
beyond the requirements that exist in some other IFRS, such as IAS 37.

These disclosures represent an important source of information in the financial statements because they highlight the
areas in the financial statements that are most prone to change in the foreseeable future. Therefore, any information
given should be sufficiently detailed to help read ers of the financial statements understand the impact of possible
significant changes.

The Group has, for illustrative purposes, included disclosures about significant judgements and estimates beyond what is
normally required, and potentially also beyond what is decision useful. Under IAS 1, it is only those judgements that have
the most sig nificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and those estimates that have a
significant risk of resulting in material adjustments in respect of assets and liabilities within the next financial year tha  t
should be addressed in this section.

It is important that entities carefully assess which judgements and estimates are most significant as required by IAS 1

and make the disclosures accordingly, to allow the users of the financial statements to appreciate the impact of the
judgements and esti mation uncertainties. Disclosures of judgements and estimation uncertainties that do not have a

©~| s ~{~xvea&d " ~0©j ¥{ " zO«¢t2&~po| ~@o £vaz  ~ve¢ vy «0©O2£zm20 £V
ability to identify the key judgemen ts and estimation uncertainties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Given the level of uncertainty and the sensitivity of judgements and estimates, clear disclosure of the key assumptions

used, and judgements made is particularly important in financial statements prepared during the

current period of

macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty . Although assumptions may already have been updated in the previous
year, entities should again carefully reconsider their existing judgements and estimates as they may find additional areas

in which they will need to make judgements and estimates.

4. Revenue from contracts with customers

4.1 Disaggregated revenue information

hz2 ¥«2 wz¢¥- ~0© 2}z y~Ov| | "z|va@~¥o ¥{ 2}z

\ -

¥ « | C(IFRS15.114-
115

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Fire prevention

Segments equipment Electronics Total
PEE PEE PEEE
Type of goods or service
Sale of fire prevention equipment 85,438 Cc 85,438
Sale of electronic equipment Cc 69,263 69,263
Installation services 17,131 Cc 17,131
Others* 7,226 c 7,226
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
Geographical markets
Euroland 76,413 50,421 126,834
United States 33,382 18,842 52,224
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 90,141 69,263 159,404
Services transferred over time 19,654 c 19,654
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
* Includes revenue from procurement services and service -type warranties.
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Fire prevention
Segments equipment Electronics Total
PEE PEE PEE
Type of goods or service
Sale of fire prevention equipment 69,107 Cc 69,107
Sale of electronic equipment ¢ 66,621 66,621
Installation services 16,537 ¢ 16,537
Others* 6,823 c 6,823
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088
Geographical markets
Euroland 62,239 48,968 111,207
United States 30,228 17,653 47,881
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 73,696 66,621 140,317
Services transferred over time 18,771 Cc 18,771
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088

* Includes revenue from procurement services and service -type warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with  customers (continued)
4.1 Disaggregated revenue information  (continued)

Set out below, is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in 'lFl':S 15.114-
the segment information ( Note 5):
For the years ended 31 December
2024 2023
Fire Fire
prevention prevention
equipment Electronics equipment Electronics
DEEE PEEE PEEE DEEE
Revenue
External customer 139,842 69,263 121,905 66,621
Inter -segment ¢ 7,465 Cc 7,319
139,842 76,728 121,905 73,940
Inter -segment adjustments and eliminations (30,047) (7,465) (29,438) (7,319)
Total revenue from contracts with
customers 109,795 69,263 92,467 66,621
Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
The Group presented disaggregated revenue based on the type of goods or services provided to customers, the
geographical region, and the timing of transfer of goods and services. Entities will need to make this determination based
on entity -specific and/or industry -specific factors that would be most meaningful to their business such as internal
reporting and external reporting to shareholders .
The Group presented a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment. Entities may find it appropriate to provide disaggregated revenue information within the segment
reporting disclosures.
4.2 Contract balances
IFRS
31 December 1January  15116@)
2024 2023 2023
DPEEE PDEEE DEE
Trade receivables (Note 23) 25,672 22,290 25,537
Contract assets 4,541 5,180 3,450
Contract liabilities ( Note 29) 5,842 3,374 2,528
The acquisition of a subsidiary resulted in increase in trade receivables of DF AL F K A FOE4£(202 8: IFRS 15.117
b MJ HA ENDEE 8). Ir202 4, B179,000 (202 3: 71,000 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit IFRS 15.118
losses on trade receivables.
Contract assets relate to revenue earned from ongoing installation services. As such, the balances of this IFRS15.117
account vary and depend on the number of ongoing installation services at the end of the year . In 2024, IFRS 15.118
D6,000 (202 3: B5,000 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on contract assets .
Contract liabilities include long-term advances received to deliver special fire prevention equipment and IFRS 15.117
IFRS 15.118

short-term advances received to render installation services as well as transaction price allocated to

unexpired service warranties, and loyalty points not yet redeemed . The outstanding balances of these
accounts increased in 2024 and2023y «z 2 ¥ 2} 7z X ¥0o02 ~o0«¥«®© ~ox"zvOz ~¢«
(Note 29).

The significant increase in contract liabilitiesin 2023 - v© £v~ao ¢~ y«z 2 ¥ aenradvareesC
received from customers during the year . In 2024A 139,000 (20230 DPKGAEEE> -v© " zx¥
onlong® z" £ vy-vaxz®© ~aox  zv©O~aga]| 2 (Nate 18.8 )y Phé acquisitios of & subsitiary? -
alsoresultedinan~o x " zv©z ~o Xx¥o2"yvx?ad 202420230~ DdB@D¥ £ DIl GMAL
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)

4.2 Contract balances (continued)
Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 2,486 1,836 IFRS 15.116(b)
Performance obligations satisfied in previous years 516 252 IFRS 15.116(c)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 15.116 requires the disclosure of the opening balances of receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from
contracts with customers, if not otherwise separately presented or disclosed. The Group has presented the balances as at 1
January 202 3 to comply with this requirement.

The Group disclosed its receivables arising from contract s with customers separately from other receivables. It will be
necessary for entities that have material receivables from non -IFRS 15 contracts to separate these balances for disclosure
purposes. For example, an entity may have accounts receivable relating to leasing contracts that would need to be
disclosed separately from accounts receivable related to contracts with customers.

IFRS 15.116 also requiresy ~©x ¢ ¥ ©« " z ¥{ €7 z-zv«z " zx¥|a~0zy ~@o 2a}7z 7
¢~vw~¢~2" wyveévoxz va a}lz wz|~oo~a| ¥{ a}z !z ~¥yC voy ¢&°
obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied)i @ | "z - ~¥«© | z " ~¥y©CC Zwa~2a-70© xva Vv(CE
format.

The Group provided qualitative and quantitative disclosures of its contact balances and changes on those balances during
the period. Entities are permitted to disclose information about contract balances, and changes therein, as they deem to be
most appropriate, which would include a combination of tabular and narrative information.

4.3 Right of return a ssets and refund liabilities

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Right of return assets 1,124 929 IFRS15.B21(c)
Refund liabilities IFRS 15.B21(b)
Arising from retrospective volume rebates 4,658 4,504
Arising from rights of return 1,584 1,340
6,242 5,844

4.4 Performance obligations
Na{ ¥T Eva~¥o v w¥ «8rmahce abligations arg shii@maliszed Helow: IFRS 15.119

Fire prevention equipment
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the equipment and paymentis generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery.

The performance obligation to deliver fire prevention equipment with a manufacturing lead time of two
years has two alternative payment options. The customer can pay the transaction price equal to the cash
selling price upon delivery of the equipment or pay a lower transaction price  upon signing the contract .
There is a significant financing component for those con tracts where the customer elected to pay in
advance.

In some contracts, a one -year warranty beyond fixing the defects that existed at the time of sale is provided
to customers . The warranty is accounted for as a separate performance obligation and a portion of the
transaction price is allocated . The performance obligation for the warranty service is satisfied over the
coverage period based on time elapsed.

Electronic equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the equipment and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates
which give rise to variable consideration subject to constraint .

Customers are entitled to loyalty points which results in allocation of a portion of the transaction price to
the loyalty points. Revenue is recognised when the points are redeemed.

In addition, the Group updates its estimates of the points that will be redeemed on a quarterly basis and any
adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against revenue.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)

4.4 Performance obligations (continued)

Installation services

The performance obl igation is satisfied over -time and payment is generally due upon completion of
installation and acceptance of the customer . In some contracts , short-term advances are required before
the installation service is provided .

Procurement services

There are contracts with customers to acquire, on their behalf, special fire prevention equipment produced
by foreign suppliers. The Group is acting as agent in these arrangements. T he performance obligation is
satisfied, and payment is due upon receipt of the equipment by the customer.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS15 requires an entity to provide more descriptive information about its performance obligations. IFRS 15.119 requires an
entity to include a description of all of the following:

3 When the entity typically satisfies its performance obligations (for example, upon shipment, upon delivery, as services
are rendered or upon completion of service), including when performance obligations are satisfied in a bill -and-hold
arrangement

3 The significant payment terms (for example, when payment is typically due, whether the contract has a significant
financing component, whether the amount of consideration is variable and whether the estimate of variable
consideration is typically constrained in accordance with IFRS 15.56 -58)

3 The nature of the goods or services that the entity has promised to transfer, highlighting any performance obligations
to arrange for another party to transfer goods or services (i.e., if the entity is acting as an agent)

3 Obligations for returns, refunds and other similar obligations
3 Types of warranties and related obligations

The Group provided this required information in this section of the notes. This is one way that entities can comply with the
disclosure requirement of IFRS 15.119. Entities may also decide to disclose this required information as part of its
disclosure of accounting policies . For illustrative purposes, most of the information included in this section of the notes

was also included in the disclosure of accounting policies.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially IFRS 15.120
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are, as follows::
IFRS
2024 2023 15.120(h)()
12.0[0]0] DEE
Within one year 12,915 8,793
More than one year 7,216 2,152
20,131 10, 945
The remaining performance obligations expected to be recognised in more than one year relate to the IFRS

delivery of special fire prevention equipment that is to be satisfied within two years and the customer loyalty 1512000}

programme. The customer loyalty points have no expiration and redemptions can go beyond two years
(Note 29). All the other remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

As a practical expedient provided in IFRS 15.121 , an entity can decide not to disclose the amount of the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with original expected duration of less than one year or those that meet the
requirements of the right to invoice practical expedient in IFRS 15.B16. If an entity uses this practical expedient, it is
required to disclose that fact.

The Group used a quantitative approach to disclose information about remaining performance obligations  and did not use
this practical expedient.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services IAS 1.138(b)
and has three reportable segments, as follows: IFRS 8.22(a)
IFRS 8.22(b)

3 The fire prevention equipment segment, which produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention
equipment and fire retardant fabrics .

3 The electronics segment, which is a supplier of electronic equipment for defence, aviation, electrical
safety markets and consumer electronic equipment for home use. It offers products and services in
the areas of electronics, safety, thermal and electrica | architecture .

3 The investment properties segment, which leases offices and manufacturing sites owned by the Group

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

A"l gh MCGG=v> " z8§«~"2z20© z#B23~23~70 2¥ y~-0Ox¢t¥0z {vx232¥"  © «Ozy
organisation, as well as factors considered in determining aggregation of operating segments. Operating segments often
exhibit similar long -term financial performance if they have similar economic characteristics. For example, similar long -
term average gross margins for two operating segments would be expected if their economic characteristics were similar.
Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment if the segments have similar
economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in each of the following respects:

(@) The nature of the products and services

(b) The nature of the production processes

(c) The type or class of customer for their products and services

(d) The methods used to distribute their products or provide their services

(e) If applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment, for example, banking, insurance or public utilities

This analysis requires significant judgement as to the circumstances of the entity. The Group does not have any operating

segments that are aggregated, but, if it had, disclosures about the basis for aggregation must be made.

The Executive Management Committee is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and monitors the

) . . . ) N IFRS 8.27(b)
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performanc e is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
V2" {¥ " Evexz ¥{ h}¥-z"0 a~£~2zyA 2}lz \"¥« CO ¥~noa
Also,t} z \ 7 ¥ « | @dginduding firance-costs, finance income and other income ) and income taxes are
managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.
i "veo{z" | " ~xz© wz?-zzua ¥z~ -lethbasisincaaamer sifil@tov" z ¥ o IFRS 8.27(a)
transactions with third parties. '

Fire Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 202 4 equipment Electronics properties  segments eliminations Consolidated
DEE PEEI DEE DEE PEE DEEE

Revenue
External customers 139,842 69,263 1,404 210,509 (30,047) 180,462  IFRS 8.23(a)
Inter -segment - 7,465 - 7,465 (7,465) - IFRS8.23(b)
Total revenue 139,842 76,728 1,404 217,974 (37,512) 180,462
Income/(expenses)
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense (99,533) (65,193) - (164,726) 33,619 (131,107 ) IFRS 8.23(f)
Employee benefits expenses (27,149) (5,323) (777) (33,249) (500) (33,749)  IFRS 8.23(f)
Depreciation and amortisation (3,852) (489) - (4,341) - (4,341) IFRS 8.23(e)
Goodwill impairment
(Note 20) - (200) - (200) - (200) IFRs 8.23(i)
Share of profit of an associate
and a joint venture
(Notes 10, 11) 83 - - 83 588 671 IFRS 8.23(g)
Segment profit 9,667 2,968 321 12,956 (1,868) 11,088 IFRs8.23
Total assets 78,454 44,814 8,893 132,161 15,25 2 147,413 IFRS8.23
Total liabilities 33,191 7,252 1,704 42,147 44,583 86,730 IFRS8.23
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information (continued)

Fire Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 202 4 equipment  Electronics properties segments  eliminations Consolidated

PEE PEEI PEE PEE PEE DEEE

Other disclosures
Investment in an associate and
a joint venture ( Notes 10, 11) 3,187 - - 3,187 - 3,187  IFRS 8.24(a)
Capital expenditure 7,325 2,842 1,216 11,383 - 11,383 IFRS 8.24(b)
Inter-©z | £z82 " z-2zo«z®© Vv'z z¢~£~pvVa@zy «| ¥8o XxX¥oO¥C¢-~yv?a

z¢~f£~o0va~¥o©OC x¥¢t«foC VEC¢ ¥2}z" vy «©2f£zma@© vay z¢
further below :

Fire Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 2023 equipment Electronics properties segments  eliminations  Consolidated
DEE PEEI PEE DEEL PEE DEEE

Restated Restated Restated
Revenue
External customers 121,905 66,621 1,377 189,903 (29,438) 160,465 IFRS 8.23(a)
Inter -segment - 7,319 - 7,319 (7,319) - IFRS 8.23(h)
Total revenue 121,905 73,940 1,377 197,222 (36,757) 160,465
Income/(expenses)
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense (95,642) (58,616) - (154,258) 32,960 (121,298)
Employee benefits expenses (19,199) (8,400) (702) (28,301) (850) (29,151)
Depreciation and amortisation (2,860) (610) - (3,470) (324) (3,794) IFRS 8.23(e)
Impairment of property, plant IFRS 8.23(i)
and equipment (Note 17) (301) - - (301) - (301) 1AS36.129
Share of profit of an associate
and a joint venture ( Notes 10,
11) 81 - - 81 557 638 IFRS 8.23(g)
Segment profit 4,387 5,396 314 10,097 (1,217) 8,880 IFRS 8.23
Total assets 61,747 40,409 7,983 110,139 526 110,665 IFRS 8.23
Total liabilities 30,167 4,066 1,688 35,921 28,902 64,823  IFRS8.23
Other disclosures
Investment in an associate and IFRS 8.24(a)
a joint venture ( Notes 10, 11) 2,516 - - 2,516 - 2,516 IFRS 8.24(b)
Capital expenditure 4,068 3,513 1,192 8,773 - 8,773

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Additional disclosure may be required if the chief operating decision maker (CODM), which is the Executive Management
Committee of the Group in the case of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited, regularly reviews certain other items
recorded in the statement of profit or loss, i.e., depreciation and amortisation, impairments and the share of profit in
associates.

Adjustments and eliminations
Finance costs, finance income, other income, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not
allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on a group basis.

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments
as they are also managed on a group basis.

IFRS 8.28

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment properties including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries. Inter -segment revenues are
eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information (continued)

Adjustments and eliminations (continued)
Reconciliation of profit

Segment profit
Finance income (Note 13.4)

Gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (
Loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (

Finance costs (Note 13.3)
Other income (Note 13.5)
Inter -segment sales (elimination)

Profit before tax and discontinued operations

Reconciliation of a ssets

Segment operating assets
Deferred tax assets (Note 15)
Loan to an associate (Note 21.1)
Loan to a director (Note 21.1)
Derivatives
Assets held for sale (Note 14)
Total assets

Reconciliation of | iabilities

Segment operating liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities ( Note 15)
Current tax payable
Interest -bearing loans and borrowing s
Derivatives
Liabilities held for sale ( Note 14)
Total liabilities

Geographic information

Revenue from external customers
Euroland
United States

Total

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Restated
12,956 10,097
202 145
Note 13.1) 850 c
Note 13.2) (1,502) Cc
(1,366) (1,268)
98 66
(150) (160)
11,088 8,880
2024 202 3
PEE PEE
132,119 110,139
389 365
200 ¢
13 8
1,102 153'
13,554 C
147,413 110,665
2024 2023
PEE PEE
Restated
42,027 35,921
2,454 607
3,511 3,563
22,806 24,478
2,687 254
13,125 C
86,610 64,823
2024 2023
PEE PEE
Restated
128,238 112,584
52,224 47,881
180,462 160,465

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

gz-zo«z {"¥f ¥opz Xx«O2¥f£z"

prevention equipment segment.

Non-current operating assets
Euroland
United States

Total

2024 2023

PEE PEE
40,934 29,684

9,865 7,821
50,799 37,505

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment,  right -of-use assets,

investment properties and intangible assets.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 8.28(b)

IFRS 8.28(c)

IFRS 8.28(d)

IFRS 8.33(a)

v £ ¥« cERGZFYA GFKYH ABEEJEA>JAG Fv A E-ECE-  IFRS8.34

IFRS 8.33(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Interest income and interest expense have not been disclosed by segment as these items are managed on a group basis
and are not provided to the CODM at the operating segment level. Disclosure of operating segment assets and liabilities is
only required when such measures are provided to the CODM. The Group provides information about operating assets
and liabilities to the CODM. The other operations (e.g., treasury) do not constitute an individual operating segment and

£v  wz | "z©zwo?zy «myz v ©z)lvivd@z xvaz|¥"  ¢vece ¥}z ©z
T z{CZXRYZWOPEZH2 O vay zC¢~£~uova-~-¥oOCC
i}z \ "¥«! CO ~maz  my¢ “z!¥"a-o| ~© a@auhtingsiandards. The segéertt diselasures x

could be significantly more extensive if internal reports had been prepared on a basis other than IFRS accounting
standards (e.g., national GAAP or tax basis). In this case, a reconciliation between the internally reported items and the
externally communicated items needs to be presented.

The Group has classified an operating segment as a discontinued operation in 202 4. IFRS 8 Operating Segments does not
provide guidance as to whether segment disclosures apply to discontinued operations. Although the disposed segment is
material, the Group has not disclosed the results within the segment disclosures under IFRS 8. IFRS 5.5B states that the
requirem ents of other standards do not apply to discontinued operations, unless they specify disclosures applicable to
them. Since IFRS 8 does not refer to discontinued operations, entities are not required to include them as a reportable
segment. This would be th e case even if the CODM continued to monitor the discontinued operation until disposal.
Nevertheless, an entity would not be prohibited from disclosing such information, if desired.

i}z \ " ¥«!CO XdYb "z|«¢v ¢ “z-~2-© 2}z ©z| £zw2a ~a{¥ f£va-~
profits, assets and liabilities to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance. However, as required by IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements A 2}z \ " ¥«! C© ~naz" z©2 ~an
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The eliminations arising on account of differences
wWz?a-zzo | "¥! ¥"23~¥pydz x¥oO¥C¢C~yvad@~¥no voy z8§«~2a f£z3} ¥y v~

6. Capital management

[¥" 2}z !« 1 ¥0z ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO xv!~2ve £vov|z£fzuoa AIASLIHA
shares, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The AS 1.135
P ~£v" 7T ¥wW zZXx?2~az ¥{nagerhent is\to méxiniis€ tBe skavehotdér value. £ v

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders , return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is éetdebtQy ~-~yzy w~ 2 ¥ay¢ xv! ~2avy¢
policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. The Group includes within net debt, interest

bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short -term deposits, excluding
discontinued operations. The Group has established a supplier finance arrangement to manage its working
capital. See Note 21.5 and Note 30 for further details.

2024 2023
DEEE PEE
Restated
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings other than convertible preference
shares (Note 21.2) 22,201 23,811
Trade and other payables (Note 30) 16,969 20,023
Less: cash and short-term deposits ( Note 24) (17,528) (14,916)
Net debt 21,642 28,918
Convertible preference shares (Note 21.2) 2,778 2,644
Equity 58,357 45,102
Total capital 61,135 47,746
Capital and net debt 82,777 76,664
Gearing ratio 26% 38%

No ¥"yz" a8¥ vx}~z-z 2} ~0 ¥~z vee ¥w z stdthenthings, dirhszo \
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans an d borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any

interest -bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
6. Capital management (continued) e <
No ¥Tyz" a8¥ vx}~z-az 2} ~0 ¥-zmavagemen¥ amorm st bthenthings, &iriszo \ ¢ 0l

ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans an d borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any
interest -bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 202 4 and 202 3.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1.134 -135 require entities to make qualitative and quantitative disclosures regarding their objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. The Group has disclosed its gearing ratio as this is the measure it uses to monitor capital.
The Group considers both capital and net debt as relevant components of funding, hence, part of its capital management.
However, other measures or a different type of gearing ra tio may be more suitable for other entities.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

IFRS 7.18-19 requires disclosures in the event of a default or breaches as at the end of a reporting period and during the
year. Although there are no explicit requirements addressing the opposite situation, the Group has disclosed the
restriction on capit al represented by financial covenants as it considers it relevant information to the users of the

financial statements. The Group did not provide additional information on its debt covenants because the likelihood of the g

breach occurring is remote. g

Q
7. Group information 2 ﬂ\

Subsidiaries :/;zéfifo(a) g
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include: IFRS12.12(a) £ S‘

IFRS12.12(b) 2
Country of % equity interest g l:"

Name Principal activities incorporation 2024 2023 3
Extinguishers Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 80 Cc § a‘
Bright Sparks Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 95 95 2‘

Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 100* ¢ [FRS129

Wireworks Inc. Fire prevention equipment  United States 98 98 =
Sprinklers Inc. Fire prevention equipment  United States 100 100 —
Lightbulbs Limited Electronics Euroland 87.4 80 N
Hose Limited Rubber equipment Euroland 100 100 é N
Electronics Limited Electronics Euroland 48* * 48 IFRS129 = -
I3

*  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited holds 20% of the equity in Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited but
consolidates 100% of this entity. See Note 3 for details on interest held in Fire Equipment Test Lab
Limited.

**  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited consolidates this entity based on de facto control. See Note 3 for
more details.

IAS 1.138(c)

The holding company IAS 24.13

The immediate and ultimate holding company of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is S.J. Limited which
owns 58.22% (202 3: 57.55%) of its ordinary shares is based and listed in Euroland.

Entity with significant influence over the Group

International Fires P.L.C. owns 31.48% of the ordinary shares in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
(202 3: 31.48%).

Associate

The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited (202 3: 25%). For more details, referto Note 11.
Joint arrangement in which the Group is a joint venturer

The Group has a 50% interest in Showers Limited (202 3: 50%). For more details, refer to Note 10.

Additional Australian disclosures

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 12.10(a) requires entities to disclose information about the composition of the group. The list above discloses ™
~a{¥ £va~¥no vw¥«?a 2} Entiies néed foBate thatthis @isclpsure is requige@ for material subsidiaries
only, rather than a full list of every subsidiary. The above illustrates one example as to how the requirements set out in
IFRS 12 can be met. However, local legislation or listing req uirements may require disclosure of a full list of all
subsidiaries, whether material or not.

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests

Acquisitions in 2024

Acquisition of Extinguishers Limited

On 1 May 202 4, the Group acquired 80% of the voting shares of Extinguishers Limited, a non-listed company FRS3.864
based in Euroland and specialising in the manufacture of fire retardant fabrics, in exchange for the :,522 2:222
CompanyC© ©} v~ " z©O©C i}z \ " ¥« vX8«~"zy Z®2~p| «~©}z" © a- IFRS3.B64

products in the fire prevention equipment segment that can be offered to its clients.

(
(
(
(

IFRS
The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value. 3.864(0)(i)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Extinguishers Limited as at the date of acquisition
were:
Fair value recognised |Frs3.864()
on acquisition IAS 7.40(d)

Assets DEEL
Property, plant and equipment ( Note 17) 7,042
Right-of-use assets (Note 31) 248
Cash and cash equivalents 230 AS7.40(c)
Trade receivables (Note 4) 1,716
Inventories 3,330
Patents and licences (Note 19) 1,200

13,766
Liabilities
Trade payables (1,901)
Lease liabilities (Note 31) (213)
Contract liabilities (Note 4) (428)
Contingent liability ( Note 27) (380)
Provision for restructuring (Note 27) (900)
Provision for decommissioning costs (Note 27) (1,200)
Deferred tax liability ( Note 15) (1,511)

(6,533)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 7,233
Non-controlling interest measured at fair value (1,547)  IFRS 3.B64(0)()
Goodwill arising on acquisition ( Note 19) 2,231
Purchase consideration transferred 7,917 IAS 7.40(a)
The acquisitondate { v~~" =v¢t«z ¥{ 2}z 2337 vyz 7" zxz~-Vvwetz© vVE£¥«i1lIFRS3B64M)

"zXxz~-vwtz© ~© DPFALJI AEEE voy ~2 ~© z®)zx?2zy 2}vse

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present value of the remaining lease payments IFRS 3.28B
at the date of acquisition. The right -of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities
and adjusted to reflect the favourable terms of the lease relative to market terms.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 3.28B require s the lease liability to be measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments as if the

acquired leasewerev ©mz- ¢zv©z v3@ 2}z vx8§«~©~2~¥p yvazC i}va ~0OA 2
provisions using the present value of the remaining lease payments at the acquisition date. The right -of-use asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted to reflect the favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease

when compared with market terms. Because the off -market nature of the lease is captured in the right -of-use asset, the
acquirer does not separately recognise an intangible asset or liability for favourable or unfavourable lease terms relative

to market terms.

Prior to the acquisition, Extinguishers Limited decided to eliminate certain product lines (further details are
given in Note 27). The restructuring provision recognised was a present obligation of Extinguishers Limited
immediately prior to the business combination. The execution of the restructuring plan was not conditional
upon it being acquired by the Group.

The deferred tax liability mainly comprises the tax effect of the accelerated depreciation for tax purposes of
tangible and intangible assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests  (continued) °Bi
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (continued) o

i}z | ¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DGAGHFAEEE Xx¥£! ~0z© 23}z -veC«z ¥{ IFRS3B64e)
customer list, which is not separately recognised. Goodwill is allocated entirely to the fire prevention

segment. Due to the contractual terms imposed on acquisition, the customer list is not separable.

Therefore, it does not meet the criteria for recognit ion as an intangible asset under IAS 38. None of the IFRS 3.B64(k)
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

V x¥gd~po|zed ¢~vw~¢~2" va {v~" -vet«z ¥{ DHMEAEEE - IFRS3B64()
of a supplier whose shipment was rejected, and payment was refused by the Group due to deviations from IFRS 3.55(2)

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

IAS 37.85
the defined technical specifications of the goods. The claim is subject to legal arbitration and is only
expected to be finalised in late 202 5. As at the reporting date, the contingent liability was re -assessed and
~© yz@z £~wmzy 2@¥ wz DI EEAEEEA wv ©Ozy N¥a27} Fhe charg toprofit z
or loss has been recognised.
The fair value of the non -controlling interest in Extinguishers Limited, a non-listed company, has been IFRS 3.864(0)

. . . . . . (ii)
estimated by applying a discounted earnings technique. The fair value measurements are based on
significant inputs that are not observable in the market. The fair value estimate is based on:
3 An assumed discount rate of 14%

3 A terminal value, calculated based on long -term sustainable growth rates for the industry ranging from
2% to 4%, which has beenused to determine income for the future years

3 A reinvestment ratio of 60% of earnings

[ " ¥£ 23}z yvaz ¥{ vXx8«~0O~2~¥noA Z®2~n0| «~0}z"© a~£~2z
IFRS 3.B64(q)(i)

Consolidated financial statements

profit before tax from continuing  operations of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the IFRS 3.B64(q)
beginning of the year, revenue from continuin | ¥ | z" v2& ~¥ o © - ¥ 2,589,000 anchprofitlveforen (i)
tax from continuing operationsf ¥~ 2} z \ " ¥« | - ¥ @285000} v~z wzze DF
Purchase consideration DEETE
Shares issued, at fair value 7,203  IFRS 3.B64(f)(iv)
Contingent consideration liability IFRS

714 3 Beaii)
Total consideration 7,917  |as7.40(a)
Analysis of cash flows on acquisition: N
Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) (600) Al
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) 230  1AS 7.40(c) S o
Transaction costs attributable to issuance of shares (included in cash flows from financing .
activities, net of tax) (32)
Net cash flow on acquisition (402)
The Company issued 2,500,000 ordinary shares as consideration for the 80% interest in Extinguishers IFRS 3.B64(f)

Limited. The fair value of the shares is calculated with reference to the quoted price of the shares of the W
X¥£,va~ va a3}z yyaz ¥{ vX8§«~0~2~¥nA -}~x} -v© BGCWN

-vO a2}z"z{¥"z DLAGEHAEEEC

i "voOvx3®~¥n x¥020© ¥{ DKEEAEEE -z7"2z z®] zvr©zy vaoy v  IFRS3B64m)
X¥020© ¥{ 2}z ~00C«voxz ¥{ 2}z ©}v'z©O ¥{ DHGAEEE } v~
premium.

Contingent consideration

Additional Australian disclosures

As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owner of Extinguishers Limited, a contingent IFRS
consideration has been agreed. There will be additional cash payments to the previous owners of ?,_Lisszl(g)(")
Extinguishers Limited of: 13.93(h)(ii)
a) PKLJAEEEA ~{ 23}z zn2a~23" | zoz"  v3az0O «| -mdnth p@iedafieEtReA E
acquisition date IFRS
or 3.B64(g)(iii) -
by PFAFGJAEEEA ~{ 23}z zma~2a" | zoz" " v?azO©O ©DF AnbfEHpAriocdafer ¥ ®
the acquisition date IFRS S

Asatthevx §« ~©~28 ~¥o yvazA 23}z [{yv~" avet«z ¥{ 2}z X¥UTheE3'BG4(g)(i)

contingent consideration is classified as other financial liability (see Note 21.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests  (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (continued)

As at 31 December 202 4, the key performance indicators of Extinguishers Limited show that it is highly
probable that the target will be achieved due to a significant expansion of the business and the synergies
realised. The fair value of the contingent consideration determined at 31 December 202 4 reflects this
development, among st other factors and a remeasurement charge has been recognised through profit or
loss. The fair value is determined using a DCF method. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair

value measurements, together with a quantitative sensitivity analysi s as at 31 December 202 4 are provided
in Note 21.4 . A reconciliation of fair value measurement of the contingent consideration liability ~ (Level 3) is

provided below:

PEE

As at 1 January 2024

Liability arising on business combination 714
Unrealised fair value changes recognised in profit or loss 358
As at 31 December 2024 1,072

The fair value of the contingent consideration liability increased due to a significantly improved
performance of Extinguishers Limited compared with the budget. The contingent consideration liability is
due for final measurement and payment to the former shareholders on 30 September 202 5.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The classification of a contingent consideration requires an analysis of the individual facts and circumstances. It may be
classified as follows: equity or a financial liability in accordance with IAS 32 and IFRS 9, a provision in accordance with
IAS 37, or in accordance with other standards, each resulting in different initial recognition and subsequent
measurement. The Group has determined that it has a contractual obligation to deliver cash to the seller and therefore it
has assessedit to be a financial liability (IAS 32.11). Consequently, the Group is required to remeasure that liability at
fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9
(IFRS3.58(b)(i))-

As part of the business combination, contingent payments to employees or selling shareholders are common methods of
retention of key people for the combined entity. The nature of such contingent payments, however, needs to be
evaluated in each individual c ircumstance as not all such payments qualify as contingent consideration, but are
accounted for as a separate transaction. For example, contingent payments that are unrelated to the future service of
the employee are deemed contingent consideration, whereas contingent payments that are forfeited when the
employment is terminated are deemed remuneration. Paragraphs B54 gB55 of IFRS 3 (in connection with IFRS 3.51,
52(b)) provide further guidance.

Acquisition of additional interest in Lightbulbs Limited
On 1 October 202 4, the Group acquired an additional 7.4% interest in the voting shares of Lightbulbs

DEE

a~£~2zyA ~ox"zvO~n| ~20Q© ¥-w0z" 0O}~ ~maz"z0O02 2¥ MLCI
controlling shareholders. The carrying value of the net assets of Lightbul bs Limited (excluding goodwill on
alz ¥ " ~| ~ove VX8§«~©~2~¥o> -v©O DFAMGI AEEEC [ ¥¢¢¥- ~o
Lightbulbs Limited:

Cash consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders 325
Carrying value of the additional interest in Lightbulbs Limited (135)
Difference recognised in retained earnings 190

Acquisitions in 202 3

On 1 December 2023, the Group acquired 80% of the voting shares of Lightbulbs Limited, a company based

in Euroland, specialising in the production and distribution of lightbulbs. The Group acquired this business to
enlarge the range of products in the electronics segment.

The Group elected to measure the non -controlling interest in the acquiree at the proportionate share of its

~maz" 702 ~@m 2}z vx8§«~"22zC0O ~yzwma~{~vwlz BZa VvOOZ?2aC

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 358 (b)(i)

IFRS 13.93(d)

IFRS 13.93(e)

IFRS 13.93(f)

IFRS10.B96
IFRS12.18
IFRS

12.10 (b)(iii)

IFRS 3.59
IFRS 3.B64(a)
IFRS 3.B64(b)
IFRS 3.B64(c)
IFRS 3.864(d)
IFRS 3.864(0)(i)
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Notes to the consolidate

d financial statement (continued)

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests  (continued)

Acquisitions in 202 3 (continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
were:

Land and buildings (Note 17)
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables (Note 4)
Inventories

Total assets

Trade payables

Deferred tax liability ( Note 15)

Provision for maintenance warranties

Total liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Non-controlling interest (20% of net assets)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 19)
Purchase consideration transferred

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary
Cash paid
Net cash flow on acquisition

liabilities of Lightbulbs Limited as at the date of acquisition

Fair value
recognised -oq 5 peag)
on acquisition s 7.40(d)
PEE
1,280
50 IAS7.40(0)
853
765

2,948

(807)
(380)
(50)
(1,237)
1,711
(342)
131

1,500 IAS 7.40(a)

Cash flow
on acquisition
DEE IAS7.40(b)
50 IAS 7.40(c)
(1,500)  IFRS 3.B64(f)()
(1,450)

The net assets recognised in the 31 December 202 3 financial statements were based on a provisional IFRS 3.45

assessment of their fair value whilst the Group sought an independent valuation for the land and buildings

owned by Lightbulbs Limited. The valuation

IFRS 3.B67(a)(i)
IFRS 3.B67(a)(ii)
had not been completed by the date the 202 3 financial

statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors .

In April 202 4, the valuation was completed

DPFAGMEAEEEA VvBGEBAEERER O¥- 21 2} z THe202 3 comparatvesirfformation was C

and the acquisition date fair value of the land and buildings was IFRS 3.49
IFRS3.B67(a

(iii

restated to reflect the adjustment to the provisional amounts. As a result, there was an increase in the
yz{z " "zy av® ¢~vw~¢~2 ¥{ DKEAEEEC¢sy|veolpXxzDpyOF/
correspondin| " zy«x?~¥wop ~no | ¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DFFGAEEEA "z0O«(¢?2~
acquisition. The increased depreciation charge on the buildings from the acquisition date to 31 December

202 3 was not material.

[ "¥£ 23}z yvaz ¥{ vx8§«~0~2~¥oA a~|}2w«twO a~£~2zy xIFRS3BOQ
before tax from continuing operations of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of
202 3, the Group@ revenue from continuing ¥ ! z " va ~¥ o © - ¥ « ¢ ¥78,p00 and thenprofit befoR2F N

taxfromcontinuin | ¥} z" v2& ~¥ao

© - ¥«¢090.}v=-z wzzam DLMI

i}z | ¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DFHFAEEE Xx¥£! ~0z© 2}z {v~" =ve«z IFRS3B6(e)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

In the 202 3 business combination, the Group elected to value the non -controlling interest using its proportionate share of
a}lz vx8«~"2zCO ~yzano?2 20p4husinéss combirfation, tBeGrduetcted to valug the non -controlling
interest at fair value. This election can be made separately for each business combination and is not a policy choice that
determines an accounting treatment for all business combinations the Group will carry out (IFRS 3.19).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

9. Partly -owned subsidiaries
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non -controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non

Name

Electronics Limited
Extinguishers Limited
Lightbulbs Limited

Country of incorporation
Euroland
Euroland
Euroland

Accumulated balances of material
Electronics Limited
Extinguishers Limited
Lightbulbs Limited

Profit allocated to material non
Electronics Limited
Extinguishers Limited
Lightbulbs Limited

-controlling interest:

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on

amounts before inter -company eliminations.

Summarised statement of profit or loss for 202 4:
Revenue from contracts with customers

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Total comprehensive income

Attributable to non -controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Summarised statement of profit or loss for 202 3:
Revenue from contracts with customers

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing  operations

Total comprehensive income

Attributable to non -controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

non-controlling interest:

-controlling interests:

IFRS12.10(ii)
IFRS12.12
and operation 2024 2023
52% 52%
20% ¢
12.6% 20%
2024 2023
PEE PpEE [FRs1212()
IFRS12.B10
490 277
1,696 ¢
263 344
243 192
149 ¢
54 2
IFRS 12.B11
IFRS 12.12(9g)
IFRS 12.B10
Electronics  Extinguishers Lightbulbs
Limited Limited Limited
PEE PEEI PEEI
2,546 17,857 5,748
(1,450) (15,678) (4,090)
(354) (1,364) (1,020)
(250) (65) (132)
492 750 506
(25) (6) (80)
467 744 426
467 744 426
243 149 54
30 c ¢
IFRS 12.B11
IFRS 12.12(9g)
IFRS 12.B10
Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
PEE PEE
2,100 476
(1,250) (360)
(150) (85)
(350) (11)
350 20
20 (8)
370 12
370 12
192 2
49 ¢
70
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

9. Partly -owned subsidiaries (continued)

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 202 4:
Electronics  Extinguishers Lightbulbs
Limited Limited Limited
DEE DEE DEE
Inventories and cash and bank balances (current) 971 7,043 2,348
Property, plant and equipment and other non -current
assets (non-current) 1,408 10,273 1,409
Trade and other payables (current) (417) (5,822) (1,182)
Interest -bearing loans and borrowing and deferred tax
liabilities (non -current) (1,019) (3,016) (485)
Total equity 943 8,478 2,090
Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent 453 6,782 1,827
Non-controlling interest 490 1,696 263
Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 202 3:
Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
DPEE PEE
Inventories and cash and bank balances (current) 698 1,668
Property, plant and equipment and other non -current
assets (hon-current) 1,280 1,359
Trade and other payables (current) (350) (822)
Interest -bearing loans and borrowing and deferred tax
liabilities (non -current) (1,095) (485)
Total equity 533 1,720
Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent 256 1,376
Non-controlling interest 277 344
Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 202 4:
Electronics  Extinguishers Lightbulbs
Limited Limited Limited
PEE PEE PEE
Operating 507 809 558
Investing (15) (280) 6
Financing (250) (65) (132)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 242 464 432
Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 202 3:
Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
PEE PEE
Operating 460 23
Investing (10) (20)
Financing (350) (12)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 100 (8)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 12.12 requires the above information only in respect of subsidiaries that have non
material to the reporting entity (i.e., the Group). A subsidiary may have significant non

-controlling interests that are
-controlling interest per se, but

disclosure is not required if that interest is not material at the Group level. Similarly, these disclosures do not apply to the
non-controlling interests that are material in aggregate but not individually. In addition, it should be noted that the ab ove

information should be provided separately for each individual subsidiary with a material non

-controlling interest. The

Group has concluded that Extinguishers Limited, Lightbulb Limited and Electronics Limited are the only subsidiaries with

non-controll ing interests that are material to the Group.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

9. Partly -owned subsidiaries (continued)

When there is a change in the ownership of a subsidiary, IFRS 12.18 requires disclosure of a schedule that shows the

effects on equity of any changes in its ownership interest in the subsidiary that did not result in a loss of control. When
alz"z v 'z ©~|wo~{~xvea " 7O2" ~xa8~¥p@© ¥m a}lz \"¥«! CO ¥ -~20
liabilities of the Group, IFRS 12.13 requires disclosure of the nature a nd extent of significant restrictions. The Group did

not have any such restrictions.

IFRS 12.10 (b) (iv) requires disclosure of information to enable the users to evaluate the consequences of losing control of
a subsidiary during the period. The Group did not lose control over a subsidiary during the period.

10. Interest in a joint venture

The Group has a 50% interest in Showers Limited, a joint venture involved in the manufacture of some of the IFRS 12.20

V¥« €O Ev~n | ¥y«x® zmd @ 208 {0 Z | ¥AvmyeC- Mg oz \ e tE
is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information of the joint venture, based on its financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
accounting standards , and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated
financial statements are set out below:
Summarised statement of financial position of Showers  Limited:

2024 2023

PEE DEEE IFRs12B12
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents BN MNAEEE IFRS 12.B13
(20230 PLI HAEEE> vaey ! " z! @028:ANi)2 © DFAL 3,226 2,808
Non-current assets 2,864 2,964
Current liabilities, including tax payable ® MN AE2BZE3O= bF| HAEE (224) (1,102)
Non-current liabilities, including deferred tax liabilties B GL MAEEE
(20230 PHGJAEEE®zVEByw¥¥bk¥- ~o2023D) DEEEL (1,020) (1,000)
Equity 4,846 3,670
\ "¥«! CO ©} v-5%(2023: 0%« ~ 2 2,423 1,835
Goodwill ¢ ¢
\ "¥«! CO xv™ " T ~m| VE¥«ma ¥{ a}lz ~uan-; 2,423 1,835 IFRS 12.B14(b)
Summarised statement of profit or loss of Showers Limited:

2024 2023
PEEI PEEE

Revenue from contracts with customers 60,094 58,876
Cost of sales (54,488) (53,420)
Administrative expenses, including depreciation PFAGHKAEEE IFRS 12.B13
(20230 PFAGHJAEEE> (2,638) (2,586)
Finance costs, including interest expense D GE | A R®BO =DFJ EAEE (204) (200)  IFRS12.B13
Profit before tax 2,764 2,670
Income tax expense (1,588) (1,556) IFRS 12.813
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 1,176 1,114
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) 1,176 1,114 IFRS 12.B12(b)
\ "¥«! CO ©}v© iz ¥{ ! "¥{~a [¥" a}yz Tzv 588 557

The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or commitments as at 31 December 2024 and 202 3,
except trade purchase commitments of £620,000 ( 202 3: 1,032,000) , for which the Group has a
corresponding commitment, a s disclosed in Note 34 . Showers Limited cannot distribute its profits without the
consent from the two venture partners.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 12.B14 requires separate presentation of goodwill and other adjustments to the investments in joint ventures and
associates in the above reconciliation. The Group does not have goodwill or other adjustments.

IFRS 12.21(a) requires the separate disclosure of information for joint operations, as it relates to all types of joint
arrangements. The Group does not have any joint operations.

The Group has presented the summarised financial information of the joint venture based on its financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting standards .

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

10. Interest in a joint venture  (continued)

IFRS 12.B15 allows this information to be provided using alternative bases, if the entity measures its interest in the joint
venture or associate at fair value, and if the joint venture or associate does not prepare financial statements in accordance
with IFRS accounting standards and preparation on that basis would be impracticable or cause undue cost. Applying both the
impracticable and undue cost thresholds involves significant judgement and must be carefully considered in the context of
the specific facts and circumstances. In e ither case, the entity is required to disclose the basis on which the information is
provided.

IFRS 12.22(b) requires additional disclosures when the financial statements of the joint venture or associate used in applyin g
equity method are as of a different date or for a different period from that of the entity. This is not applicable to the Gro up.

IFRS 12.22(c) requires disclosure of unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture and associate. This is not applicable to

the Group.

Entities will need to consider whether there is any impairment of their investments in joint ventures. Impairment charges

relating to investments in joint ventures should be accounted for in accordance with the equity method under IAS 28. IAS 28
requires the investment in a joint venture to be considered as asinglecash -| zez " v2& ~o| «@o~3A " ya} gz~
the separate cash-generating units determined by the joint venture. The impairment test should be undertaken in

accordance with the requirements of IAS 36.

11. Investment in an associate

The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited, which is involved in the manufacture of fire prevention
equipment for power stations in Euroland. Power Works Limited is a private entity that is not listed on any

l«wt~x z®x}ve|zC i}z \ " ¥«! CO ~n2z"z0@2 ~o e¥-2z" | ¥
consolidated financial statements. The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the
\ " ¥« CO ~o-z0©@L£zo2 ~o e¥-z" | ¥ ;0 a~£~22zyO0
2024 2023
PEELI PEEE
Current assets 6,524 6,324
Non-current assets 13,664 12,828
Current liabilities (4,488) (3,904)
Non-current liabilities (12,644) (12,524)
Equity 3,056 2,724
\ "¥«! CO ©} vd25%(2023: 25%) ~ 2 764 681
Goodwill ¢ ¢
\ "¥«! CO xv " T ~p| VvE¥«uoa ¥{ alz ~og-; 764 681
2024 2023
PEELI PEEE
Revenue from contracts with customers 33,292 32,640
Cost of sales (27,299) (26,765)
Administrative expenses (1,665) (1,632)
Finance costs (2,996) (2,938)
Profit before tax 1,332 1,305
Income tax expense (1,000) (981)
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 332 324
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods, net of tax (120) C
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in the subsequent periods, net of tax 120 C
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) 332 324
\ "¥«! CO O} v iz ¥{ ! "¥{~2a [¥" a}lz T zy 83 81

The associate requires the \ " ¥ « cor3@nt to distribute its profits. The Group does not foresee giving such
consent at the reporting date.

The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 and 202 3.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

11. Investment in an associate (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 12.21(c) and IFRS 12.B16 require disclosure of the aggregated information of associates and joint ventures that are
accounted for using the equity method and are not individually material. The Group did not have any immaterial associates

or joint ventures.

The Group has presented the summarised financial information of the associate based on its financial statements

prepared in

accordance with IFRS accounting standards . IFRS12.B15 allows this information to be provided using alternative bases.

Entities will need to consider whether there is any impairment of their investments in associates. Impairment charges
relating to investments in associates should be accounted for in accordance with the equity method under IAS 28. IAS 28

requires the inves tment in an associate to be considered as a single cash-| z & z ~

va-~ao|

« o ~aA

“vayze

separate cash-generating units determined by the associate. The impairment test should be undertaken in accordance with

the requirements of IAS 36 .

12. Fair value measurement

i}z {¥¢¢¥-~o| avwez |7

¥-~yz©O

Ay 2 [y~

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 202  4:
Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation

Assets measured at fair value:

Investment properties ( Note 18 ):

31 December 202 4
31 December 202 4
Derivative financial assets ( Note 21.4 ):

Office properties
Retail properties

Foreign exchange forward

contracts US dollars 31 December 202 4

Foreign exchange forward
contracts GB pounds sterling

Embedded foreign exchange
derivatives Canadian dollars

31 December 202 4

31 December 202 4
Listed equity investments ( Note 21.4 ):
31 December 202 4
31 December 202 4
(Note 21.4):

Power sector

Telecommunications sector
Non-listed equity investments

Power sector 31 December 202 4

Electronics sector 31 December 202 4
Quoted debt instruments ( Note 21.4 ):

Euroland government bonds 31 December 202 4

Corporate bonds consumer
products sector

Corporate bonds technology
sector

31 December 202 4

31 December 202 4
Revalued property, plant and equipment ( Note 17 )*:
Office properties in Euroland 31 January 2024
Discontinued operations ( Note 14) 1 October 2024
Assets for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4 ):
Loan at amortised cost
31 December 202 4
31 December 202 4

Loan to an associate
Loan to a director

—v ¢ «z

£zvO«"’ z

Quoted

prices  Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PEE PEE PEE PEE
4,260 c c 4,260
4,633 ¢ o 4,633
492 Cc 492 Cc
400 c 400 c
210 c o 210
219 219 Cc Cc
118 118 Cc Cc
675 ¢ Cc 675
363 ¢ o 363
1,378 1,378 Cc Cc
92 92 C C
152 152 Cc Cc
1,749 Cc Cc 1,749
772 ¢ Cc 772
197 c Cc 197
11 ¢ o 11

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
12. Fair value measurement (continued) °Bi
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 4. IFRS 13.9(c) ol

* Due to a change in accounting policy, revaluations of property, plant and equipment were recognised in Level 3 for the
first time. Refer to Note 17 for more information.

Fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 December 202 4:
Fair value measurement using

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant =
in active  observable unobservable §
markets inputs inputs 1=
Date of valuation Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) I=
PEE PEE PEE PEE
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative financial liabilities ( Note 21.4 ):
Interest rate swaps 31 December 202 4 35 c 35 c
Foreign exchange forward
contracts (GB pounds sterling) 31 December 202 4 800 ¢ 800 Cc "
Embedded commodity 5
derivatives (brass) 31 December 202 4 600 c Cc 600 E
©
Embedded commodity @
derivatives (chrome) 31 December 2024 182 c C 182 8
Foreign exchange forward é
contracts gUS dollars 31 December 202 4 90 ¢ 90 Cc =
p . g
Commodity derivative (copper) 31 December 2024 980 C 980 C 8
2
Contingent consideration liability é’
(Note 8) 31 December 202 4 1,072 Cc ¢ 1,072 o
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4 ):
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings:
Floating rate borrowings
(Euroland) 31 December 2024 10,420 ¢ 10,420 Cc o
Floating rate borrowings (US) 31 December 2024 2,246 c 2,246 C IFRS13.93(a) N
Convertible preference shares 31 December 202 4 2,766 c 2,766 C IFRS 13.93(b) ® o
. i 5 N
Fixed rate borrowing 31 December 2024 6,321 C 6,321 C IFRS13.97 2
™
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 4. N‘
J
N
Q
N
48
@
e
i N
©
S I
I
|2
2 [
T
=
S o‘
= | o0
e
< H‘
™
&
™
8
™
o IS
S
2 LO‘
i ™
Q.
<
8
™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

12. Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 202 3:

Date of valuation

Assets measured at fair value:
Investment properties ( Note 18 ):
Office properties 31 December 202 3
Retail properties 31 December 202 3
Derivative financial assets ( Note 21.4 ):
Foreign exchange forward

contracts US dollars 31 December 202 3

Foreign exchange forward

contracts GB pounds sterling 31 December 202 3
Listed equity investments (Note 21.4):

Power sector 31 December 202 3

Telecommunications sector 31 December 202 3
Non-listed equity investments (Note 21.4 ):

Power sector 31 December 202 3

Electronics sector 31 December 202 3
Quoted debt instruments (Note 21.4):

Euroland government bonds 31 December 202 3

Corporate bonds consumer

products sector 31 December 202 3

Assets for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4 ):
Loan at amortised cost
Loan to a director 31 December 202 3

Fair value measurement using

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 3.

Fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 December 202 3:

Date of valuation

Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative financial liabilities ( Note 21.4 ):

Foreign exchange forward
contracts - US dollars 31 December 202 3

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4 ):
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings:
Floating rate borrowings

(Euroland) 31 December 202 3
Convertible preference shares 31 December 202 3
Fixed rate borrowing 31 December 202 3

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during

Quoted

prices  Significant Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PEE PEE DEE PEE
3,824 Cc Cc 3,824
4,159 ¢ c 4,159
100 ¢ 100 ¢
53 ¢ 53 ¢
200 200 c ¢
100 100 Cc Cc
390 Cc Cc 390
508 ¢ c 508
1,210 1,210 c ¢
400 400 Cc Cc

9 ¢ c 9

Fair value measurement using
Quoted

prices  Significant Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
bDEE PEE PEE PEE
254 - 254 -
11,877 - 11,877 -
2,621 - 2,621 -
8,944 - 8,944 -

202 3.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

12. Fair value measurement (continued)

In determining fair value measurement, the impact of potential climate -related matters, including legislation,
which may affect the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities in the financial statements has been
considered. For investment properties and revalued office properties, the Group considers the effect of

physical and transition risks and whether investors would consider those risks in their valuation. The group has
assessed whether its properties are exposed to phy sical risks, such as flooding and increasing wildfires, but
believes that this is currently not the case. However, the Group believes it is, to some extent, impacted by
transition risks, and, more specifically, increasing requirements for energy efficiency  of buildings due to
cimate-" z¢vazy ¢z| ~O©O¢va~¥o vaoy " z| «Cv?2~¥o0O v-@nissianbulldings®© °?
The Group, therefore, takes into account necessary upgrades required to ensure future compliance with those
requirements whe n measuring the fair value of investment properties and revalued office properties.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standard
IFRS 13.94 requires appropriate determination of classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of:
3 The nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and
3 The level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised

The Group has applied the factors and disclosed the quantitative information under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement based
on the classes of assets and liabilities determined as per IFRS 13.94. As judgement is required to determine the classes of
properties, other criteria and aggregation levels for classes of assets may also be appropriate, provided they are based on
the risk profile of the assets (e.g., the risk profile of properties in an emerging market may differ from that of properties in
a mature market).

Inputs used in a valuation technique may fall into to different levels of the fair value hierarchy. However, for disclosure
purposes, the fair value measurement must be categorised in its entirety (i.e., depending on the unit of account) within the
hierarchy. That categorisation may not be so obvious when there are multiple inputs used. IFRS 13.73 clarifies that the
hierarchy categorisation of a fair value measurement, in its entirety, is determined based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the entire measurement requires
judgement and consideration of f actors specific to the asset or liability (or group of assets and/or liabilities) being measured
and any adjustments made to the significant inputs in arriving at the fair value. These considerations have a follow -on impact
on the disclosures of valuation techniques, processes and significant inputs and entities should tailor their disclosures to the
specific facts and circumstances.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, IFRS
13.93(c) requires disclosure of the amounts of transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the hierarchy, the reasons for those
trans{ z°" © voy 2}z zwa-~-2a " CO© | ¥¢~x  {¥" yzaz f£~ug~m| -}za 2}z a
must be disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of each level.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

There may be an impact on fair value measurement of certain assets arising from the current macroeconomic  conditions.
When valuations are subject to significant measurement uncertainty due to the current environment, and there is a wider
range of estimates of fair value, the entity is required to apply judgement to determine the point within that range that is

most representative of fair value in the circumstances. While market volatility may suggest that the prices are aberrations

and do not reflect fair value, it would not be appropriate for an entity to disregard market prices at the measurement date,
unless those prices are from transactions that are not orderly. A significant decrease in volume or activity in a market can

also influence the valuation techniques used in the fair value measurement. Entities will need to assess how those techniques
are applied and whether inputs are observable at the measurement date and provide additional disclosures if material.

Factors such as increasing interest rates and volatile commodity prices may have a significant impact on fair values. Entitie s
should consider whether the credit risk of counterparties to the derivate contracts has changed, which may also impact the

fair value. The increased uncertainty may require more extensive disclosure about valuation levels, fair valuation techniques
and inputs.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should ensure that the climate -related assumptions that are incorporated in a fair value measurement are those that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability to ensure it is an IFRS 13 fair value measurement.
Entities may need to use significant judgement when cons idering whether climate -related factors should be adjusted for in
their fair value measurements and this may lead to greater estimation uncertainty and a need for more transparent

disclosure. For example, the fair value of real estate in certain geographic al areas may be exposed to significant physical risk
and this should be considered in the fair value determination and disclosures. Importantly, the information available to

market participants will be affected by sustainability reporting. While entities cannot ignore information that is reasonably
available to market participants, determining the impact of that information on market participant assumptions, inputs and
sensitivities, is likely to require significant judgement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

13. Other income and expenses
13.1 Other operating income

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Government grants ( Note 28) 1,053 541 1AS 20.39(b)
Gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 850 - IFRS 7.20(a)(i)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 532 2,007 1As1.97
Total other operating income 2,435 2,548 ias1.98

The net gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to foreign exchange forward
contracts that did not qualify for hedge accounting and embedded derivatives which have been separated.

13.2 Other operating expenses

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Bid defence costs 579 31 As1.97
Cost of WEEE (Note 27) 102 22 IAs 1.97
Change in fair value of investment properties ( Note 18) 306 300 ias1.97
Loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1,502 - IFRS 7.20(a)
Ineffectiveness on forward commodity contracts designated as
cash flow hedges (Note 21.3) 65 - IFRS 7.24(b)
Total other operating expenses 2,554 353

Bid defence costs were incurred in respect of obtaining advice in defending a hostile takeover bid by a
competitor. The competitor did not proceed with the bid.

Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to foreign exchange forward
contracts that did not qualify for hedge accounting and embedded derivatives which have been separated.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1 does not require an entity to present the results of operating activities as a line item in the income statement. If an

entity elects to do so, it must ensure that the amount presented is representative of activities that would normally be
“z|viyzy vO C¥!z " va@~o|C =~Vh FCWXJK>C VO ~Vh F y¥z© wn¥a !~
apply judgement in developing its own accounting policy under IAS 8.10.

The Group has taken the view that presenting the gains and losses on foreign exchange forward contracts and embedded
derivatives in operating income and expenses reflects the economic substance of those transactions as they are entered into

to hedge foreca st sales and purchases and are, therefore, clearly associated with transactions which are part of the operating
income and expenses (IAS 8.10(b)(ii)). Other entities may take alternative views and, hence, there is diversity in practice.

13.3 Finance costs

2024 2023

PEEE PEEE
Interest on debts and borrowings 1,036 1,020
Interest arising from revenue contracts 109 62  IFRS 15.65
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 31) 178 185
Total interest expense 1,323 1,267 IFRS 7.20(b)
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate on provisions IAS 37.60
(Note 27) 43 1
Total finance costs 1,366 1,268
13.4 Finance income

2024 2023

PEEE PEEL
Interest income on a loan to an associate 17 -
Interest income from debt instruments at fair value through OCI 185 145 |Frs 7.200)
Total finance income 202 145
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

13. Other income and expenses (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Finance income and finance cost are not defined terms in IFRS accounting standards . Some regulators limit the inclusion
of certain income and expense within those items (e.g., restricted to interest income and expense),  whilst other
jurisdictions allow additional items to be included.

IFRS 15.65 requires the effects of financing (interest revenue or interest expense) to be presented separately from
revenue from contracts with customers in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group included the interest
expense on contract liabilities as part of finance costs.

13.5 Other income

2024 2023

PEETE DEEE
Foreign exchange gains on interest -bearing loans and borrowings 57 67
Fair value gain on equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 37 9
Gain (loss) on sale of debt instruments at fair value through OCI 8 4)
Dividend income from equity instruments at fair value through OCI 3 -
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair value through OCI (7) (6)
Total other income 98 66

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Nox¥fz ~© yz{~ozy ~8 2}z x¥oxz,?«ve¢ {"vEz-¥"j vO ¢~mx’zv
~o z§«~a" A ¥2a}z" alyo 2} ¥0©Oz “zC¢vd@~o| ¥ x¥p?' ~w«?~¥o0© {°
has presented a net measure of income with impairment losses on debt instruments at fair value through OCI offsetting

other income items. IAS 1.32 does not permit the offsetting income and expenses unless required or permitted by an
IFRSaccounting standards . In this case, the Group does not consider this to be offsetting as it is for presentation

purposes only and the balances are not material enough to warrant separate presentation.

13.6 Depreciation, amortisation, lease payments, foreign exchange differences and costs of
inventories

2024 2023
PEEE PEEI
Included in cost of sales:
Depreciation 3,802 3,063
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ( Note 17) - 301
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets ( Note 19) 125 174
Net foreign exchange differences (65) (40)
Warranty provision ( Note 27) 106 52
Variable lease payments (Note 31) 71 66
Expense relating to short -term leases (Note 31) 22 21
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense 131,107 121,298
Included in administrative expenses:
Depreciation 429 430
Impairment of goodwill ( Note 20) 200 -
Remeasurement of contingent consideration ( Note 8) 358 -
Net foreign exchange differences 33 8

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.20(a)(i)
IFRS
7.20(a)(viii)
IFRS
7.20(a)(vii)

IAS 1.104

IAS 36.126(a)
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IAS 2.36(d)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

13. Other income and expenses (continued)
13.7 Employee benefits expense

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Included in cost of sales:
Wages andsalaries 6,551 6,513
Social security costs 664 659
Pension costs 350 305
Post-employment benefits other than pensions 38 28
Share-based payment expense 103 123
Included in selling and distribution expenses:
Wages and salaries 10,882 10,220
Social security costs 1,102 1,135
Pension costs 560 496
Post-employment benefits other than pensions 61 45
Share-based payment expense 165 197
Included in cost of administrative expenses:
Wages and salaries 11,238 7,410
Social security costs 1,349 1,343
Pension costs 488 465
Post-employment benefits other than pensions 54 40
Share-based payment expense 144 172
Total employee benefits expense 33,749 29,151

13.8 Research and development costs

i}z \"¥«!'CO z¢zx2 ¥o~x0© wW«©~0z©O© " z©zv' X} voy yz-az

enabled safety equipment. Research and development costs that are not eligible for capitalisation have
been expensed in the period incurred (in 2024A 23} ~© - v©O DBOGHFAEHE AEEE>>A
recognised in administrative expenses.

13.9 Administrative expenses

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Employee benefits expense (Note 13.7) 13,273 9,430
Acquisition -related transaction costs 600 c
Research and development costs 2,235 1,034
Depreciation 429 430
Expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets (Note 23) 185 76
Impairment of goodwill ( Note 20) 200 ¢
Expenserelating to leases of low-value assets (Note 31) 18 17
Remeasurement of contingent consideration ( Note 8) 358 c
Net foreign exchange differences 33 8
Other administrative expenses 959 1,016
Total administrative expenses 18,290 12,011

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.104

IFRS 2.51(a)

IAS 38.126

IAS 1.104
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

14. Discontinued operations

On 1 October 202 4, the Group publicly announced the decision of its Board of Directors to sell Hose

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. On 14 November 202 4, the shareholders of the Company approved the
plan to sell. The sale of Hose Limited is expected to be completed within a year from the reporting date . At
31 December 202 4, Hose Limited was classified as a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued

¥z va@~¥oC i}z w«©~onz0C0© ¥{ |]¥0©z a~£~23zy " z,°

z©zuodz

operating segment until 1 October 202 4. With Hose Limited being classified as discontinued operations, the
Rubber Equipment segment is no longer presented in the segment note. The results of Hose Limited for the

year are presented below:

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Revenue from contracts with customers 42,809 45,206
Expenses (41,961) (44,880)
Operating income 848 326
Finance costs (525) (519)
Impairment loss recognised on the remeasurement to fair value less costs )
to sell (110) C
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations 213 (293)
Tax benefit/(expense):
Related to pre-tax profit/(loss) from the ordinary activities for the period (26) 5
Related to remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell 33 c
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 220 (188)
Gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at fair value included in OCI Cc 4
Other comprehensive income for the year from discontinued operations C 4

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Hose Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 December are,

as follows:
2024
DPEE
Assets
Intangible assets (Note 19) 135
Property, plant and equipment ( Note 17) 4,637
Debtors 7,180
Equity investments gnon-listed 308
Cash and short-term deposits ( Note 24) 1,294
Assets held for sale 13,554
Liabilities
Creditors (7,241)
Deferred tax liability (75)
Interest -bearing liabilities ( Note 21.2) (5,809)
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale (13,125)
Net assets directly associated with disposal group 429
Amounts included in accumulated OCI:
Fair value reserve of equity investments gnon-listed 66
Deferred tax on fair value reserve (20)
Reserve of disposal group classified as held for sale 46

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 5.30
IFRS 5.41

IFRS 5.33(b)(i)
IFRS 5.34

IFRS 5.33(b)(iii)

IFRS 5.33(b)(ii)
IAS 12.81(h)(ii)
IFRS 5.33(b)(iv)
IAS 12.81(h)(i)

IFRS 5.38

IFRS 5.38

IFRS 5.38
IFRS 5.40

IFRS 5.38
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

14. Discontinued operations (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by Hose Limited are, as follows: IFRS 5.33(c)
2024 2023
DEE PEE
Operating (1,999) 3,192
Investing Cc Cc
Financing (436) (335)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow (2,435) 2,857
Earnings per share 2024 2023
Basic, profit/(loss) for the year from  discontinued operations DECH =D E C IAS33.68
Diluted, profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations PECIE =bEC
Interest-wzv ™ ~a]|] ¢~vw~¢~2~70 x¥£| ~©z v {~®zy "v?az wvaj IFRS77

repayable in full on 1 January 2025.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 5Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations specifies certain disclosures required in respect of
discontinued operations and non -current assets held for sale. IFRS 5.5B states that the requirements of other standards
do not apply to discontinued operations, unless the other standards specify disclosures that are applicable to them.

IFRS 12.B17 clarifie s that disclosures of summarised information specified in IFRS12.B10-B16 are not required when an
zona ~a~CO ~maz" 702 ~©o Vv O«wO~y~v A ¥~p238 Szpo2«”z ¥° VvOBO¥
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5. Theothery ~©x ¢ ¥©« " z "z 8§«~"z£z8238 © ~8o /
held-for -sale interests. The Group concluded that there is no additional information that it needs to disclose about its

wholly owned subsidiary, Hose limited, which is classified as disposal group held for sale as at 31 December 202 4.

IAS 33.68A provides an option to present the earnings per share from discontinued operations either on the face of the
statement of profit or loss or in the notes. The Group has opted to present the earnings per share from discontinued
operations in the no tes.

Write -down of property, plant and equipment

Immediately before the classification of Hose Limited as discontinued operations, the recoverable amount
was estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss was identified.
Following the classification, awrite -y ¥ - o« HEAEEE =nz?2 ¥{ 2v® DLLAEEE>
202 4 to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the disposal group to their fair value less coststo  sell.
This was recognised in discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss. Fair value measurement
disclosures are provided in Note 12.

IFRS 5.33(b)(iii)
IFRS 5.33(b)(iv)

As at 31 December 202 4, there was no further write -down as the carrying amount of the disposal group did
not fall below its fair value less costs to sell.

Investment in non-listed equity shares

The disposal group includes an investment in non-listed equity shares (Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy) of IFRS 7.8(d)
Electronici z ©@ a2y - ~21} v x308,000. Fhe group Eo¥akorat es With El€xtronic Test Ltd, :E§:77'.1145
this is closely related to the discontinued operation of Hose Limited and is therefore reclassified as part of IFRS 7.25

the discontinued operations. This investment is classified as equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI. The Group did not pledge the financial asset s nor receive any collateral for them. As at the
reporting date, the carrying amount equals the fair value of the instrument.  Refer Note 21.4 for the details
on the recognition, measurement, valuation techniques and inputs used for this investment

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of the investmentin  non-listed equity shares: IFRS 13.93(e)
PEE
As at 1 January 2023 304
Sales c
Purchases ¢
Total gains and losses recognised in OCI 4
As at 1 January 202 3 and 1 October 202 4 308
Sales ¢
Purchases ¢
Total gains and losses recognised in OCI c
As at 31 December 2024 308

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 82
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

14. Discontinued operations (continued)
There were no gains or losses recognised in profit or loss with respect to these assets.

Refer to Note 21.5 for details on the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 5 explains that disclosures in other standards do not apply to non -current assets (or disposal groups) classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations unless those other standards require:

3 Specific disclosures in respect of non -current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations
3 Disclosures about the measurement of assets and liabilities within a disposal group that are not within the
scope of the measurement requirements of IFRS 5 and such disclosures are not already provided in the other
notes to the financial statements
The requirement in the second bullet above reflects the fact that such assets continue to be measured in accordance with
the specific standard dealing with them. In practice, much of the requirements will be satisfied by the disclosure of
accounting polici es. The requirement for other disclosures will depend on the standard concerned. The illustration above
reflects this circumstance, as the non -listed equity instruments is a financial instrument as defined in IFRS 9 and is
therefore scoped out of the measu rement requirements of IFRS 5.

While, the assets of discontinu ed operations are non -recurring fair value measurements under IFRS 13.93(a), equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI held by the discontinued operations are recurring fair value
measurements since they are required to be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting p eriod.

15. Income tax

On 23 May 2023, the International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) issued International Tax

Reform gPillar Two Model Rules g Amendments to IAS 12 which clarify that IAS 12 applies to income taxes
arising from tax law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the OECD, including tax law that implements Qualified Domestic Minimum Top -up Taxes. The Group has
adopted these amendments. However, they are not yet applicable for the current reporting year as the

G¥«! <© x¥oO©¥¢~yvadzy " z-zo«z ~© X« " zwoa ¢ wz~¢¥- 2}z

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

VO 2}z \ " ¥«! CO x¥n@©¥¢t~yvadzy " z-z8«z®© Vv 2z ¢z©O© 2} wmodelZijles.
Therefore, neither the mandatory recognition and disclosure exception in IAS 12.4A nor the disclosure requirements in
IAS 12.88A -88D apply to the Group. Appendix E illustrates the disclosures the Group would have made, if its annual
revenues had exceeded EUR 750 million and Pillar Two model rules were (substantively) enacted in some or all of the
jurisdictions it operates .

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 13.93(f)

IAS 1.17(c)
IAS 12.88
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

15. Income tax (continued)

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 202 3 are:

Consolidated profit or loss

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Consolidated other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Net (gain)/loss on cash flow hedges
Net change in costs of hedging

Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through OCI
Net (gain)/loss on equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI

Revaluation of office properties in Euroland
Net gain on hedge of net investment

Remeasurement (gain)/loss on actuarial gains and losses

Deferred tax charged to OCI

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Deferred taxes related to the revaluation of office properties in Euroland have been calculated at the tax rate of the
jurisdiction in which they are located (30% of the total revaluation of

2024 2023
DEE DEE
Restated

2,883 2,770
(18) (44)
227 (493)
3,092 2,233
2024 2023
PDEE DEE
265 (10)
10 Cc

6 Cc

8 3
(254) Cc
(83) Cc
(110) 117
(158) 104

HB846,000, see Note 17).

The tax effect of cash flow hedge instruments reflects the change in balances from 202 3 to 202 4 only for the effective
portion (ineffectiveness has been accounted for directly in profit or loss). The reconciliation of these changes to the notes

is difficult to directly observe. For illustrative purposes, a reconciliation is provided below (please no

change is also included in the statement of comprehensive income):

Foreign exchange forward contract assets
(Note 21.1)

Foreign exchange forward contract liabilities
(Note 21.2)

Commodity forward contract ( Note 21.2 )
Ineffectiveness of commodity contract

(Note 13.2)

Amount transferred to inventories ( Note 21.3)
Total balances

Net variation in OCI

Net increase of cash flow hedge balances during
202 4 (net liability and net loss)

Tax rate

Tax gain

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

te that the net

Assets Liabilities
2024 2023 2024 2023
DEEI DEE! DEEE DEE!I
252 153 c c
Cc C 170 254
Cc Cc 980 Cc
¢ ¢ (65) ¢
¢ c 183
252 153 1,268 254
99 1,014
915
30%
275

IAS 12.79

IAS 12.80(a)
IAS 12.80(b)

IAS 12.80(c)

IAS 12.81(ab)

IAS 1.90
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

15. Income tax (continued)

gzx¥ox~¢~va~¥n ¥{ 3yv® z®| zrv©®z voy 23}z vxXx¥«o?d~op| 3| IAS1281(0
and 202 4:

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Restated
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 11,088 8,880
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 213 (193)
Accounting profit before income tax 11,301 8,687
Va  Z«" ¥thtuteryinGdne tax rate of 30% (202 3: 30%) 3,390 2,606
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (18) (44)
Government grants exempted from tax (316) (162)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (231) (89)
Share of results of an associate and joint ventures (201) (291)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Impairment of goodwill 60 c
Contingent consideration remeasurement ( Note 8) 107 Cc
Other non-deductible expenses 10 Cc
Effect of higher tax rates in the United States 284 108
At the effective income tax rate of 27% (202  3: 26%) 3,085 2,228
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 3,092 2,233
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation (7) (5)
3,085 2,228

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The tax effects above can be reconciled using a 30% tax rate applied to the amounts in the following notes:

3  Government grants (Note 28) upon recognition in the income statement .

3 Unrecognised tax losses using the change in the amount mentioned in Note 3 under the section headed Taxes.

3 Impairment of goodwill in Note 20 and contingent consideration expense in Note 8.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Increasing interest rates, slowing or negative economic growth, geopolitical risks, rising inflation and other factors may
lead to an entity recognising asset impairments or forecasting future losses. These circumstances may involve
uncertainties that an entity must consider in its analysis of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Entities should

update their project ions of income for recent events. Tax losses that were otherwise expected to be utilised in the near
term should be reviewed to determine if they might expire unutilised and how this would impact management's judgement
on the amount of deferred tax asset t o be recognised. Entities should further consider whether they need to provide
additional disclosures to more fully explain the use of estimates or management's judgement in reaching its conclusions
on the amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets.

Such judgements may include whether the tax laws were substantively enacted as of the reporting date, and the
determination of the accounting for income tax credits. Similarly, the impact of expected or already enacted curtailments
of previously introduced measures must be considered.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 85
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
15. Income tax (continued) o <
Deferred tax o

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Consolidated statement Consolidated statement
of financial position of profit or loss
2024 2023 2024 2023 'fm(g)(i)
PEE PEE PEE b E E E 'AS 12.81(g)(ii) -
Restated Restated 2
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (2,838) (599) 723 (298) '§
Revaluations of investment properties to fair value (1,330) (1,422) (92) (90) E
Revaluations of office properties in Euroland to fair ) ) )
value (254) C C C
Revaluations of equity instruments to fair value
through profit or loss (16) (5) 11 3
Revaluations of financial assets at fair value ) )
through OCI 13 4) C C
Revaluation of forward contracts and embedded ) ) ‘g
derivatives 196 C (196) C £
Revaluation of a hedged loan to fair value (11) Cc 11 Cc §
Net gain on hedge of a net investment (83) Cc Cc Cc T
Share based payments 51 100 49 ¢ §
Post-employment medical benefits 102 59 (43) (33) %
Pension 813 834 (89) 55 S
Revaluations of an interest rate swap (fair value ) ) 2
hedge) to fair value 11 C (12) C 3
Revaluations of cash flow hedges 270 30 35 Cc
Expected credit losses of debt financial assets 110 70 (40) 3
Contract liabilities for customer loyalty points 270 203 (67) (199)
Right-of-use assets (246) (267) (421) (62) 4
Lease liabilities 322 339 17 42 &
Convertible preference shares 91 55 (36) (31) g N
Losses gvailable for offsetting against future 389 365 (24) (44) z
taxable income @
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 227 (654)
Net deferred tax liabilities (2,140) (242)
Reflected in the statement of financial position as
follows:
Deferred tax assets 389 365 8
Deferred tax liabilities: §
Continuing operations (2,454) (607) g
Included in liabilities directly associated with the 5
assets held for sale @ c g
Deferred tax liabilities, net (2,140) (242) ﬁ
[
Commentary on IFRS accounting standards :é
i}z \ "¥«!CO ¢tzvOz ! v £zun?2 © fortaxpurgoses drxatceunting for «He Yeferrdd vax rélatingeto §

the lease, the Group considers both the lease asset and liability separately. The Group separately accounts for the
deferred taxation on the taxable temporary difference and the deductible temporary difference , which upon initial
recognition are equal and offset to zero. Deferred tax is recognised on subsequent changes to the taxable and temporary
differences.

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

15. Income tax (continued)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net 2024 2023

DEE DEE

Restated

As of 1 January (242) (459)
Tax expense during the period recognised in profit or loss (227) 493
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (158) 104
Discontinued operation ) ¢
Deferred taxes acquired in business combinations (1,511) (380)
As at 31 December (2,140) (242)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
Although not specifically required by IAS 1 or IAS 12, the reconciliation of the net deferred tax liability may be helpful.

As in some other disclosures included in this note, the cross reference with the amounts from which they are derived is
not direct. Nevertheless, the reasonableness of each balance may be obtained from the respective notes by applying a
30% tax rate. The exception being the accelerated depreciation for tax purp oses whose change during the year is mainly
explained by the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ( see Note 7).

i}z V7T ¥« }vO 2v® ¢¥00z0 2} v20280 ¥RZAFFNMAKE B¢ vanlyv & { IAS1281()
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset IAS 12.37
taxable profits elsewhere in the Group, they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss -making for some IAS 12.81(e)
time, and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the near

future. If the Group were able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the profit would increase by
DFGMAE®RBO 39,400).

i}z 2z£¥" v y~{{z7z8x20 vOO¥x~vaazy -~2} ~no-7z02¢f£z
venture, for which a deferred tax liability has not been recognised in the periods presented, aggregate to

DFALI JARBBBFAI JMAEEE>C i}z \ " ¥«, }vO yz2az" £~nzy 21} viasi12sif)
subsidiaries, joint venture or associate will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group has an

agreement with its associate that the profits of the associate will n ot be distributed until it obtains the

consent of the Group. The Group does not anticipate giving such consent at the reporting date.

[« "2}z " £¥"zA 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ¥~p8 Szpf«"z -~¢C¢ D¥?a y-~

partners. IAS 12.82A

There are no income tax consequences attached to the payment of dividends in either 202 4 or 202 3 by the
Group to its shareholders.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 1.61 requires an entity to separately disclose the line items that are included in the amounts expected to be
recovered or settled within 12 months and more than 12 months after the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities may be considered one example, for items comprising such amounts. However, IAS 1.56, in contrast, does not
permit presentation of those items as current, which suggests that providing the disclosures required by IAS 1.61 does
not apply to deferred tax assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Group did not provide disclosures of the expected recovery
and settlement of its deferred tax assets.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should assess the impact of climate -related matters on future taxable profits and whether they are sufficient to
recover the deferred tax assets. The assumptions used in these estimations should be consistent with those used
elsewhere in the financial statements. Entities should also consider whether there are enacted or substantively e nacted
climate -related changes to tax legislation that might have a significant impact on the income taxes that the entity expects
to pay.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

16. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

2024 2023
DEE PEE
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent: Restated
Continuing operations 7,708 6,408
Discontinued operations 220 (188)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for basic earnings 7,928 6,220
Interest on convertible preference shares 247 238
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent adjusted
for the effect of dilution 8,175 6,458
2024 2023
Thousands Thousands
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic EPS* 20,797 19,064
Effects of dilution from:
Share options 112 177
Convertible preference shares 833 833
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect
of dilution* 21,742 20,074

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share s
during the year.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

To calculate the EPS for discontinued operations ( Note 14), the weighted average number of ordinary
shares for both the basic and diluted EPS is as per the table above. The following table provides the
profit/(loss) amount used:

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Profit/(loss) attributable to  ordinary equity holders of the parent from
discontinued operations for the basic and diluted EPS calculations 220 (188)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Entites ©} ¥« ¢y wz v-v 'z ¥{ 2@}z "z8§«~"z£f£zw? ~ao ~Vh HHCLE=x> 23
shares) that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share because® } z~ v~z veo2d~y~¢«d~-z {¥7 23}z |2z " ~¥y=0>

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 33.70(a)

IAS 33.70(a)

IAS 33.70(b)

IAS 33.70(b)

IAS 33.70(d)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

17. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Office Plant
land and properties Construction and Other IAS 1.78(2)
buildings in Euroland in progress  machinery equipment Total |as16.73(e)
PEE PEEE PEE PEEE PEEE P E E 1as16.73(d)
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2023 10,765 1,122 Cc 17,657 5,500 35,044
Additions 1,587 ¢ ¢ 6,048 150 7,785
Acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 8) 1,280 ¢ Cc ¢ ¢ 1,280
Disposals (3,381) ¢ ¢ (49) C (3,430
Exchange differences 10 C c 26 C 36
At 31 December 2023 10,261 1,122 Cc 23,682 5,650 40,715
Additions 1,612 c 4,500 4,403 190 10,705
Acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 8) 2,897 c c 4,145 c 7,042
Disposals Cc c c (4,908) C  (4,908)
Assets held for sale (Note
14) (4,144) c c (3,980) C (8,129
Revaluation adjustment c 846 Cc c Cc 846 IlFSiJSS(e)(ii)
Transfer* Cc (219) C C C (219) 1As 16.35(b)
Exchange differences 30 C C 79 C 109
At 31 December 202 4 10,656 1,749 4,500 23,421 5,840 46,166
Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2023 4,061 99 Cc 11,044 900 16,104
Depreciation charge for
the year 351 3 c 2,278 450 3,082
Impairment ( Note 20) Cc ¢ c 301 ¢ 301
Disposals (3,069) ¢ c (49) ¢ (3118
Exchange differences 5 c ¢ 12 c 17
At 31 December 2023 1,348 102 ¢ 13,586 1,350 16,386
Depreciation charge for
the year** 383 117 Cc 2,827 470 3,797
Disposals Cc ¢ Cc (3,450) ¢ (3,450)
Assets held for sale
(Note 14) (1,283) ¢ Cc (2,094) ¢ (3,377
Transfer* Cc (219) Cc c c (219)
Exchange differences 20 C c 30 C 50
At 31 December 202 4 468 Cc Cc 10,899 1,820 13,187
Net book value
At 1 January 202 3 6,704 1,023 ¢ 6,613 4,600 18,940
At 31 December 202 3 8,913 1,020 C 10,096 4,300 24,329
At 31 December 202 4 10,188 1,749 4,500 C 12,522 4,020 32,979

* This transfer relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated  against the gross
carrying amount of the revalued asset.

??2 Yz Tzx~va~¥no (¥ a}gz zv' z®XC«WNatldyn ~£|v~"£zo2 ¢¥O0O0

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

If a lessee does not present right -of-use assets separately in the statement of financial position, IFRS 16.47 requires the
right -of-use assetsto be included within the same line item that the corresponding underlying assets would be presented

in if they were owned . If the Group had included its right -of-use assets within property, plant and equipment, a column for
the right -of-use assets would be included in the above table with a cross -reference to the details in Note 31.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)
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17. Property, plant and equipment  (continued) L

IAS 36.126(a)

IN2023A 2}z ~£| v~" £z o2 regresented the writeD-dboli- oA derilald property, plant and IAS 36.130 0|

equipment in the fire prevention segment to the recoverable amount as a result of technological
obsolescence. This was recognised in the statement of profit or loss as cost of sales. The recoverable
VE¥«o?2 ¥{ DJAKLDecehlEeE2023@asbasedHdirvalue in use and was determined at the level
of the CGU. The CGU consisted of the Eurolandbased assets of Sprinklers Limited, a subsidiary. In
determining value in use for the CGU, the cash flows were discounted at a rate of 12.4% on a pre -tax basis.

Capitalised borrowing costs

The Group started the construction of a new fire safety facility in February 202 4. This project is expected to
be completed in February 202 5. The carrying amount of the fire safety facility at 31 December 202 4 was
b HA E E E R® B:Hil).The fire safety facility is financed by a third party in a common arrangement.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

IAS 23.26(a)

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2024 - v © D HE 2G@BE I 1AS 23.26(0)

Nil). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 11%, which is
the EIR of the specific borrowing.

Land and buildings
avey voy w«~C¢y~o| © -~2} v x20230 DJ|AEBEEEAEEE>¥ {v BL D« IAS16.74(a)
aY ©zx«"z @-¥ ¥{ 23}z \"¥«! CO wvao| ¢¥vooOC

Assets under construction
Included in property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2024- v© v o v E¥«ao?d ¥2023ENH)A J IAS 16.74(b)
relating to expenditure for a plant in the course of construction.

Equipment received from customers

In 202 4, the Group received D F N E A RB2BO =b F J E & EgHijghrent from customers to be utilised in the IAS 16.73(2)
. L . . . IFRS 15.66

production process. The initial gross amount was estimated at fair value by reference to the market price of IFRS 15,69

these assets on the date on which control is obtained .

Consolidated financial statements

Disposals of property, plant and equipment
IN2024A 23}z \ " ¥«| ©O¥C¢y z8«~| £zwm2 - ~231} vy a¥ayg¢ woz?a xy IASIEEsA

¥{ BDF ANNEB2BEHe Grodpsold freehold land and a building with a net carrying amount of :22 12;2

PHFGAEEE {¥" v xv0©O} x¥o0©~yz ' va@~¥o ¥{ DGAHFNAEEEC i

of other operating income in the statement of profit or loss ( Note 13). <

Revaluation of office properties in Euroland 2 o

Management determined that the office properties in Euroland constitute a separate class of property, plant IFRS 13.94 g N

and equipment, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property. ™
N

The fair value of the properties was determined using the market comparable method. The valuations have IAS 16.77(b)

been performed by the valuer and are based on proprietary databases of prices of transactions for IFRS 13.93(d)

properties of similar nature, location and condition. As at the date s of revaluation on 1 January and 31

December2024A 2}z ! "¥!z"2a~70C {v~" -vt«z© v 'z wvOzy ¥n&n

Co., an accredited independent valuer who has valuation experience for similar office properties in Euroland

since 201 4. A net gain from the revaluationof the ¥ { { ~xz | " ¥| 2728 ~20 ~uo 2R4Wwas¢ v

recognised in OCL
Fair value measurement disclosures for the revalued office properties are provided in Note 12.

Significant unobservable valuation input: Range IFRS
Price per square metre PHG-PHJE 13.93(h)())

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square metre in isolation would result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value on a linear basis.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
17. Property, plant and equipment  (continued) L
Reconciliation of carrying amount IFRS 13.93(e) o]
PEE

Carrying amount as at 1 January 202 4* 1,020
Level 3 revaluation gain recognised due to change in accounting policy to revaluation model
as at 1 January 2023 1,210
Carrying amount and fair value as at 1 January 2024 2,230
Depreciation for the year (117) c
Level 3 revaluation loss on revaluation as at 31 December 2024 (364) '%
Carrying amount and fair value as at 31 December 2024 1,749 é

=

* The Group changed the accounting policy with respect to the measurement of office properties in Euroland as at 1
January 202 4 on a prospective basis. Therefore , the fair value of the office properties in Euroland was not measured at
1 January 202 3.

If the office properties in Euroland were measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts would be, as IAS 16.77(€)
follows:

2024

DEE|
Cost 1,122
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (105)
Net carrying amount 1,017

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group has changed its accounting policy to measure the office properties in Euroland at the revalued amount in
accordance with IAS 16. Under IAS 16.36, if an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire class of

property, plant and equ ipment to which that asset belongs should be revalued. IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant
vey z8«~| £zwd vO v | ¥« ~o| ¥{ vO0Oz2?©O ¥{ O~£~¢v" w@mvaa«’z |\
properties in Euroland constitut e separate class of property, plant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics

and risks.

Consolidated financial statements

Under IAS 16.31, the revalued amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is its fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
shall be made with suffici ent regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of reporting period. Due to significant volatility of the fair value of office

L . . —
properties in Euroland during 202 4 the Group performed a revaluation as at 31 December 202 4. N
Fair value was determined using the market comparable method. This means that valuations performed are based on prices Al
of transactions involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. Since this valuation was performed using a g N
significant non -observable input, the fair value was classified as a Level 3 measurement. .

N

Since revaluations of property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16 represent a recurring fair value
measurement, the Group disclosed the information required by IFRS 13.93 for recurring fair value measurements. The
disclosures provided are based on Example 17 from the lllustrative examples to IFRS 13. It is assumed in these illustrative
financial statements that only one unobservable input, price per square metre, was used by the valuers. In practice, the
market comparable method may require the use more than one unobservable input. In such cases, the disclosures would
cover the additional significant unobservable inputs.

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another format
is more appropriate. The Group included the quantitative disclosures in a tabular format.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should consider the impact of climate -related matters on the useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment. The introduction of legislation or other regulations may result in a reduction of the useful life of assets,
compared to original forecasts. Entities may also need to assess deprecation rates to increase the rate of deprecation of
these assets. Furthermore, new legislation may introduce new or stricter obligations to decommission assets and, as a
result, may give rise to new or remeasured provisions for decommissioning.

Additional Australian disclosures

For further commentary, see Note 2.3 |) and Note 12 above.

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

18. Investment properties

2024 2023

DEE DEE
Opening balance at 1 January 7,983 7,001
Additions (subsequent expenditure) 1,216 1,192
Net loss from fair value remeasurement (306) (300)
Closing balance at 31 December 8,893 7,983
Thel " ¥«! CO ~m-z©af£zuma | "¥!z"a-70 x¥o0O~02 ¥{ a.¥ x¥f
yzaz " £~nmzy 22}lvya 2}z ~pop-oz0O2fzmn?2 | "¥]2z2"2~70 X¥o00O~02

nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

As at 31 December 202 4 and 202 3, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by
Chartered Surveyors & Co., an accredited independent valuer. Chartered Surveyors & Co. is a specialist in
valuing these types of investment properties. A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the
International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied.

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Rental income derived from investment properties 1,404 1,377
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating
rental income (included in cost of sales) (101) (353)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not
generate rental income (included in cost of sales) (37) (127)
1,266 897

Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair value

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations
to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment properties are in  Note 12.

Reconciliation of fair value:
Investment properties

Office properties

Retail properties

DEE DEE
As at 1 January 2023 3,397 3,694
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss (144) (156)
Purchases 571 621
As at 31 December 2023 3,824 4,159
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss (in other
operating expenses) (147) (159)
Purchases 583 633
As at 31 December 2024 4,260 4,633
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique inputs Range (weighted average)
2024 2023
Estimated rental value per PFEPGJ = DNDGHDF
Office DCF method sgm per month
properties (refer below) Rent growth p.a. 1.75% 1.76%
Long-term vacancy rate 3%- 10% (5%) 3%- 9% (4%)
Discount rate 6.5% 6.3%
Estimated rental value per bDFJIPHJ = DFIEPHH =
Retail DCF method sgm per month
properties (refer below) Rent growth p.a. 1% 1.2%
Long-term vacancy rate 4%- 12% (7%) 4%- 13% (8.5%
Discount rate 6.5% 6.3%

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 40.76

IAS 40.75(€)

IAS 40.75(f)

IAS
40.75(f)(ii)

IAS
40.75(f) i)

IAS 40.75(g)
IAS 40.75(h)

IFRS 13.93(e)(i)

IFRS13.93(e)iii)

IFRS 13.93(f)

IFRS 13.93(d)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

18. Investment properties (continued)

Using the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
¥-0z"©}~! ¥-z" 2}z vo0z2CO ¢~{z ~uaxt«y~n| vao z@®~2
series of cash flows on a real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a market -derived
discount rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The
exit yield is normally separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by events

such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related re -letting, redevelopment, or refurbishment. The

appropriate duration is typically driven by market beha viour that is a characteristic of the class of real
property. Periodic cash flow is typically estimated as gross income less vacancy, non -recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance cost, agent and commission costs and other oper ating and
management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth per annum in isolation would
result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of the properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the
long-term vacancy rate and discount rat e (and exit yield) in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair value.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally =~ IFRS13.93(h)()
similar change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield), and an opposite change in
the long-term vacancy rate.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
The Group has elected to value investment properties at fair value in accordance with IAS 40.

If, for recurring and non -recurring fair value measurements, the highest and best use of a non -financial asset differs from

its current use, an entity must disclose that fact and the reason why the asset is being used in a manner that differs from

its highest and best use (IFRS13.93(i)). The Group has assessed that the highest and best use of its properties does not
differ from their current use. An example of what might be disclosed if the highest and bestuse ¥ { 2} z \ " ¥« !
property is determined to be other than its current use is, as follows:

3  The Group has determined that the highest and best use of the property used for office space is its current use.

3 The highest and best use of the retail property at the measurement date would be to convert the property for
residential use. For strategic reasons, the property is not being used in this manner.

In addition to the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13, IAS 1 requires disclosure of the significant judgements management
has made about the future and sources of estimation uncertainty. IAS 1.129(b) includes, as an example of such a
disclosure, the sensit ivity of carrying amounts to the methods, assumptions and estimates underlying their calculation,
including the reasons for the sensitivity. As such, information beyond that required by IFRS 13.93(h) may be needed in
some circumstances.

IAS 40 permits investment properties to be carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. If the Group accounted for investment properties at cost, information about the cost basis and
depreciation rates (similar to the requirement under IAS 16 for property, plant and equipment) would be required. IAS
40.79(e) requires disclosure of fair valu e of the properties. For the purpose of this disclosure, the fair value is required to
be determined in accordance with IFRS 13. Also, in addition to the disclosures under IAS 40, IFRS 13.97 requires
disclosure of:

3 The level at which fair value measurement is categorised i.e., Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3
3 A description of valuation technique and inputs, for Level 2 or Level 3 fair value measurement
3 If the highest and best use differs from the current use of the asset, th at fact and the reason

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another format
is more appropriate. The Group included the guantitative disclosures in tabular format, above.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

18. Investment properties  (continued)

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

The impact on fair value measurement arising from the current macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty and market
disruptions varies across countries, markets and industries. When valuations are subject to significant measurement
uncertainty due to the current environment and there is a wider range of estimates f or FVM, the entity is required to
apply judgement to determine the point within that range that is most representative of FVM in the circumstances.

While market volatility may suggest that the prices are aberrations and do not reflect fair value, it would not be
appropriate for an entity to disregard market prices at the measurement date, unless those prices are from transactions
that are not orderly.

A significant increase or decrease in volume or activity in a market can also influence the valuation techniques used in
the FVM. Entities will need to assess how those techniques are applied and whether inputs are observable at the
measurement date.

19. Intangible assets and goodwill
Patents and Licences

licences with with
Development definite indefinite
costs useful life  useful life  Goodwill Total  |as38.118(c)
PEE PEE PEE PEE P E E 1AS38.118()
Cost
At 1 January 2023 1,585 395 240 119 2,339
Additions ginternally developed 390 Cc Cc Cc 390
Acquisition of a subsidiary (restated *) Cc Cc Cc 131 131
At 31 December 2023 1,975 395 240 250 2,860
Additions ginternally developed 587 Cc Cc Cc 587
Acquisition of a subsidiary Cc 30 1,170 2,231 3,431
Assets held for sale Cc (138) Cc Cc (138)
At 31 December 2024 2,562 287 1,410 2,481 6,740
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2023 165 60 Cc Cc 225
Amortisation 124 50 c ¢ 174
At 31 December 2023 289 110 ¢ ¢ 399
Amortisation 95 30 Cc Cc 125
Impairment ( Note 20) Cc Cc Cc 200 200
Assets held for sale Cc 3) Cc Cc 3)
At 31 December 2024 384 137 c 200 721
Net book value
At 1 January 202 3 1,420 335 240 119 2,114
At 31 December 202 3 (restated*) 1,686 285 240 250 2,461
At 31 December 202 4 2,178 150 1,410 2,281 6,019

* The amount of goodwill is restated and does not correspond to the figures in 202 3 financial statements since
adjustments to the final valuation of acquisition of Lightbulbs Limited were made, as detailed in  Note 8.

There are two fire prevention research and development projects: one is to improve fire detection and
sprinkler systems and the other is related to fire -retardant fabrics for motor vehicles and aircraft.

Acquisition during the year

Patents and licences include intangible assets acquired through business combinations. The patents have
been granted for a minimum of 10 years by the relevant government agency, whilst licences have been
acquired with the option to renew at the end of the period at little or no cost to the Group. Previous licences
acquired have been renewed and have allowed the Group to determine that these assets have indefinite
useful lives. As at 31 December 202 4, these assets were tested for impairment (Note 20).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite  useful lives

For impairment testing goodwill acquired through business combinations and licences with indefinite useful
lives are allocated to the electronics and fire prevention equipment CGUs, which are also operating and
reportable segments .

Carrying amount of goodwill and licences allocated to each of the CGUs:
Fire prevention

Electronics unit equipment unit Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
DEE DEE PEE DEE DEE DEE
Goodwill 50 250 2,231 c 2,281 250  1AS 36.134(a)
Licences 360 c 1,050 240 1,410 240  1AS 36.134(b)

The Group performed its annual impairment test in  October 202 4 and 202 3. The Group considers the
relationship between its market capitalisation and its book value, among st other factors, when reviewing
for indicators of impairment. As at 31 December 202 4, the market capitalisation of the Group was below
the book value of its equity, indicating a potential impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of
the operating segment s. In addition, the overall decline in construction and development activities around
the world, as well as the ongoing economic uncertainty, have led to a decreased demand in both the fire
prevention equipment and electronics CGUs.

Electronics CGU

The recoverable amount of the electronics CGU of PHL AJ KGAEEE v © 20624 hbB be¥nz x z £ w'AS36130()
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved :22 2?12353;812
by senior management covering a five -year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect IAS 36.134(d)(v)
the decreased demand for products an d services. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections  AS 36.126()
is 15.5% (202 3: 12.1%) and cash flows beyond the five -year period are extrapolated using a 3.0% growth

rate (202 3: 5.0%) that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the electronics industry. It was

concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal did not exceed the value in use. As a result of this

analysis, management has recognised an impairmentc} v~ | z ¥{ BDDGEEAEEE ~&ao 21}z

| ¥¥y-~¢¢ -~2} v xv' 7 7 ~o| VvEY¥«o2023¥The idpaidrien eh&dge isveCorded

within administrative expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Fire prevention equipment CGU

The recoverable amount of the fire prevention equipment CGU is also determined based on a value in use IAS 36.130(e)
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a :22 22:12180m
five-year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for products IAS 36.134(d)(iv)
and services. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.4% ( 202 3: 12.8%). The IAS 36.134(d)(v)
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the unit beyond the five -year period is 4.1% (202 3: 3.8%).

This growth rate exceeds the industry average growth rate by 0.75%. Management of the fire prevention

equipment unit believes this growth rate is justified based on the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited. This

acquisition has resulted in the Gro up obtaining control of an industry patent, thereby preventing other

entities from manufacturing a specialised product for a period of 10 years. The Group has an option to

renew the patent after the 10 years have expired. As a result of the analysis, there is headroom of IAS 36.134 (f)()
DJAKLI AEEE vey £f£veov]| z£f£ze? y~y pD¥2 ~yzpda~{"~ vo ~f£]v

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations and s ensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of value in use for both electronic s and fire prevention equipment units is most sensitive to IAS 36-134$;?))
. . IAS 36.134(d)(ii

the following assumptions: IAS 36.134()

IAS 36.134(f)(ii)

Gross margins IAS 36.134(f)(Gii)

Discount rates
Raw materials price inflation
Market share during the forecast period

[ON I ON I GNEN GN BN ON|

Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives  (continued)

Climate-related matters gThe Group constantly monitors climate -related risks, including physical risks and
transition risks, when measuring the recoverable amount. While the Group does not believe its operations

are currently significantly exposed to physical risk, the value -in-use may be impacted in several different

ways by transition risk, such as climate -related legislation, climate -related regulations and changes in

demand forthe GroupC© | " ¥y «x2 ©C Z-za 23} ¥«|} 2}z \ " ¥c«telatddv © x
assumption is a key assumption for the 202 4 test of goodwill, the Group has incorporated its expectations

for the following: increased costs of emissions under the emission trading scheme it is subject to;

Z®] zx3v2~¥o0©O {¥" ~ox"zvOzy yzEveoey {¥7 | ¥¥yO ;@¥lcy v
expected cost increases due to stricter recycling requirements in  the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value -
in-use amounts.

Commentary on climate -related matters

When measuring the value-in-« ©z A 2~ Vh HKCHH =v > base Gshflowzpmjections on redsondble afd¥ ¢
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist

over the remaining useful life ofthe asset CC Zra ~a ~ 7 © £« ©?2 x ¥-rel@edyigks, includlimyphysical riskst ~
and transition risks, will have an impact on the viability of their business going forward, and whether and how such risks

will impact the legal, technological and market env ironment in which they operate.

For example, the business models of some entities may no longer be viable in the jurisdiction in which they operate as a
result of the transition to a climate -neutral future, and existing business models might be replaced or become obsolete.
Other entities may be impacted by changing trends in consumer behaviour or rising costs due to stricter demands
regarding emissions and recycling.

To the extent that an assetor CGLL © ~ z x ¥ - z * v wdngitivertEc¥mate qrelate®assumptions, entities must
consider whether those assumptions must be disclosed separately as key assumptions potentially together with, e.g.,
sensitivity disclosures. See Note 12 for further discussion of the impact of climate -related matters on fair value
measurement.

Gross margins Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the three years preceding the
beginning of the budget period. The gross margins for the electronics CGU and the fire prevention
equipment CGUwere 22.17% and 26.03%, respectively. These are increased over the budget period for
anticipated efficiency improvements. An increase of 1.5% per annum was applied for the electronics unit
and 2% per annum for the fire prevention equipment unit .

Decreased demand can lead to a decline in the gross margin. Any decrease in the gross margin would result
in a further impairment in the electronics unit. A decrease in the gross margin by 5.0% would result in
impairment in the fire prevention equipment unit.

Discount rates Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU,
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not
been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The disco unt rate calculation is based on the specific
circumstances of the Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of

capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the

ext zx2zy " z2«" @ ¥o ~@m-oz©2afzwa w2}z \"¥«! CO -bearng ©2
borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Segment -specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta
factors. The beta factors are evaluated an nually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the
discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a
pre-tax discount rate.

Any rise in the pre -tax discount rate from the current level of 15.5% in the electronics unit would result in a
further impairment. A rise in the pre -tax discount rate to 15.6%(i.e. +1.2%) in the fire prevention
equipment unit would result in impairment.

Raw materials price inflation Estimates are obtained from published indices for the countries from which
materials are sourced, as well as data relating to specific commodities. Forecast figures are used if data is
publicly available (principally for Euroland and the United States), otherwise past actual raw material price
movements are used as an indicator of future price movements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives  (continued)

Management has considered the possibility of greater -than-forecast increases in raw material price
inflation. This may occur if anticipated regulatory changes result in an increase in demand that cannot be
met by suppliers. Forecast price inflation lies wi thin a range of 1.9% to 2.6% for the electronics unit and
2.1% to 4.5% for the fire prevention equipment unit, depending on the country from which materials are
purchased. In the electronics unit, any increases in the prices of raw materials would result in a further
impairment. If prices of raw materials increase on average by 0.5% more than the forecast price inflation,
the fire prevention equipment unit  will have a further impairment.

Market share assumptions When using industry data for growth rates (as noted below), these assumptions
v'iz ~f£]| ¥"2vyvnona wzxv«©z £vov|z£fzwo?2 v©OOz O®mEtitds¥might? } z
X}ve|z ¥-z" 2}z {¥"zxv0?2 | z" ~¥yC bvev]|z£fzao?2 z@QJ%Wtx 2

wz ©avwetz ¥-z" 2}z {¥"zxv02 | z"~¥yC bvaoav|z£fzeo2d z®|
equipment market relative to its competitors to strengthen following the acquisition of Extinguishers
Limited. i } z \ "¥«! C©® £v~ jz? ©}v' z ~@ 2a}lz {~"2z ! 7" z-zoa -y

Although £veov | z£zo2a z®!zx2© 2}z \ " ¥«! CO £v jz2a ©}v z ¥
forecast period, a ny decline in the market share would result in a further impairment in  the electronics unit .
Similarly, a decline in market share in the fire prevention equipment market by 20% would result in

impairment in the fire prevention equipment unit.

Growth rate estimates Rates are based on published industry research. For the reasons explained above,
the long-term rate used to extrapolate the budget for the fire prevention equipment unit includes an
adjustment on account of the acquisition of a significant industry patent.

Management recognises that the speed of technological change and the possibility of new entrants can
have a significant impact on growth rate assumptions. The effect of new entrants is not expected to have an
adverse impact on the forecasts, but could yield a reasonably possible alternative to the estimated long -
term growth rate of 5.2% for the electronics unit and 8.4% for the fire prevention equipment unit. A ny
reduction in the long -term growth rate in the electronics unit would result in a further impairment. For the
fire prevention equipment unit, a reduction by 0.3% in the long-term growth rate would result in
impairment.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group has determined the recoverable amounts of its cash generating units (CGUs) based on value in use under

IAS 36. If the recoverable amounts are determined using fair value less costs of disposal, IAS 36.134(e) requires
disclosure of the valuation technique(s) and other information including: the key assumptions used , a description of
fEvav|z£zoaCoO v!! " ¥vx} 2the lexelof fhir value hierarabyCandithe teas¥ngs) for changing
valuation techniques, if there is any change. Furthermore, if fair value less cost of disposal is determined using

discounted cash flow projections, additional information such as the period of cash flow projections, growth rate used to
extrapolate cash flow projections and the discount rate(s) applied to the cash flow projections are required to be

disclosed. An entity is not required to provide disclosures required under IFRS 13, these disc losures under IAS 36.134(e)
are similar to those under IFRS 13.

IAS 36.134(d)(i) requires disclosure of key assumptions made for each CGU for which the carrying amount of goodwill or
~opdyo| ~wtz vOOza© -~2} ~poyz{~8~3z «O©z{«¢ ¢~-zO© veCt¥xvazy
of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. While the disclosures above have been provided for illustrative
purposes, companies need to evaluate the significance of each assumption used for the purpose of this disclosure.

IAS 36.134(f) requires disclosures of sensitivity analysis for each CGU for which the carrying amount of goodwill or
intangible assets with indefinite useful¢ ~-z © ve¢¢c¥xvazy @a¥ alya X\j ~© O~|a~{~:
carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite  useful lives. These disclosures are made if a reasonably

| ¥00O~w¢z x}lve|z ~o Vv jz VOO«E]?3a~¥o «O©zy ?2¥ yisicarryifgamant ? }
to exceed its recoverable amount. The Group has made these disclosures for all the key assumptions for the electronics

unit, since there is an impairment charge during the year and the carrying amount equals recoverable amount, and for

the fire prevention equipment unit, as it is believed that a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions may cause
impairment. Entities need to also take into account the consequential effect of a change in one assumption on other
assumptions, as part of the sensitivity analyses when determining the point at which the recoverable amount equals the
carrying amount (IAS 36.134(f)(iii)). The Group has considered this in the disclosures herein.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities
21.1 Financial assets

2024 2023
DEE DEE
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 640 Cc
Embedded derivatives 210 Cc
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 252 153
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity investments 337 300
Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI
Non-listed equity investments
Power Limited 417 205
Power Supplier Inc. 258 185
Electronics Manufacturing Inc. 70 151
Electronics Seller Inc. 293 c
Electronic Test Ltd. Cc 308
Electronics Supplier Ltd. Cc 49
1,038 898
Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
Quoted debt instruments 1,622 1,610
Total financial assets at fair value 4,099 2,961
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Trade receivables (Note 23) 25,672 22,290
Loan to an associate 200 c
Loan to a director 13 8
Total financial assets * 29,984 25,259
Total current 26,223 22,443
Total non -current 3,761 2,816

* Financial assets, other than cash and short -term deposits

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments  reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign
exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended
to reduce the level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable forecast sales in US dollars
(USD).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  include investments in listed equity shares. Fair values
of these equity shares are determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market

Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI include investments in equity shares of non -listed
companies. The Group holds non-controlling interests (between 2% and 9%) in these companies. These
investments were irrevocably designated at fair value throug h OCI as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

In 202 4, the Group sold its equity interest in Electronics Supplier Ltd. as this investment no longer

X¥~ox~yz© -~2} 2}z \"¥«! CO ~n-z02f£zo?2 BIEAEEE Loy}

a

VXX«E«tva@zy |v~a " zx¥|w8~0zy ~a dX* ¥{ Bn262HEHe Grouwp®©
received dividends in the amount of B H A Efiorla Power Limited.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.6
IFRS 7.8

IFRS 7.11A(a)
IFRS 7.11A(c)

IFRS7.32A

IFRS 7.11A(b)

IFRS 7.11A(e)
IFRS 7.11B
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.1 Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI include investments in quoted government and corporate
bonds. Fair values of these debt instruments are determined by reference to published price quotations in
an active market .

Debt instruments at amortised cost  include trade receivables and receivables from related parties.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7.11A requires disclosure of which investments in equity instruments have been designated to be measured at fair
value through OCI and the fair value of each such investment at the end of the reporting period. For illustrative purposes,
the Group provided disclosure for each individual investment .

Entities will need to apply the concept of materiality for this disclosure requirement , such that disclosures are provided

separately for investments that are themselves material and aggregated disclosures may suffice for immaterial items.

21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest -bearing loans and borrowings

Interest rate Maturity 2024 2023  |Frs7.7

% DEE DEE
Current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 45-7.8 2025 455 418
Bank overdrafts EURIBOR+1.0 On demand 966 2,650
DPFAJEEAEEE wvaoj ¢ ¥vo EURIBOR+0.5 1 Nov 2025 1,411 c
DGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢ ¥vo EURIBOR+0.5 31 Mar 2024 C 74
Total current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings 2,832 3,142
Non-current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 45-7.8 2026-2037 2,706 2,553
8% debentures 8.2 2026-2031 3,374 3,154
8.25% secured loan of USD3,600,000 *SOFR+0.2 31 May 2029 2,246 ¢
Secured bank loan SOFRr2.0 31 Jul 2029 3,479 3,489
DFAJEEAEEE (20230; D#¥M £ E EURIBOR+0.5 1 Nov 2025 Cc 1,357
DGALJEAEEE (20230;] DIGAWHEE EURIBOR+1.1 2027-2029 2,486 2,229
DGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao EURIBOR+0.5 31 Mar 2027 2,078 2,078
DJAMENAEEE wvaoj C¥vao 7.5 1Jan 2028 Cc 5,809
Loan from a third -party investor in Fire
Equipment Test Lab Limited 11.0 2026 3,000 ¢
Convertible preference shares 11.6 2027 2,778 2,644
Total non -current interest -bearing
loans and borrowings 22,147 23,313
Total interest -bearing loans

24,979 26,455

and borrowings

* Includes the effects of related interest rate swaps.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7.7 requires disclosure of information that enables users of the financial statements to  evaluate the significance of
financial instruments for its financial position and performance. As the Group has a significant amount of interest  -bearing
loans and borrowings on its statement of financial position, it has decided to provide detailed informa tion to the users of
the financial statements about the EIR as well as the maturity of the loans.

Bank overdrafts
i}z wvaej

IFRS 7.7

¥z y"v{20© vz ©zx«  z-fermweposits. | ¥ 2 ~¥o ¥{ =2}

PFAJEEAEEE wvaoj C¥vo
This loan is unsecured and is repayable in full on 1 November 202 5.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest -bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

8% debentures

The 8% debenturesare™ z} v vw¢z ~o z8§«ve¢ voo«ve ~o©2veEeEzo2© ¥
202 6. The debentures include a requirementto increase f « v ¢ ~2 = ] ¥ ¢ y ~ upe@f recydledo? = v
materials in the production of its products to 30 %. If this requirement is not met by 1 January 202 6, the
interest rate will rise by 100 basis points to 9 %.

. . . .. 1AS 1.76ZA(a)
- a a a a a a
i}z M: yzwzeodd «"z© v'z O«w zX ¥ V X¥-zova } v IAS 1.76ZA(b)

balance of cash and short-term deposits on a consolidated basis during the repayment period of the loan.
The covenant is tested at the end of each quarter until the maturity of the 8% debentures. The Group has no
indication that it will have difficulty complying with this covenant.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities that issue financial liabilities with ESG -features will need to carefully assess the accounting treatment of such
contracts, particularly as financial liabilities with ESG features that impact the cash flows of the liability may contain
embedded derivatives.

Firstly, it will need to be determined if the liability will be carried at amortised cost, or fair value through profit and | oss. If
the liability is carried at fair value through profit and loss, then separation of an embedded derivative will not be requi  red.

If the liability is carried at amortised cost, then the embedded derivative will need to be accounted for separately from
the host liability if the economic characteristics and risk of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic charact eristics and risks of the host contract.

This assessment will depend on the specific facts and circumstances. If the ESG features include metrics that are specific
a¥ alz zmpad~a“ A [ ¥" 7zZ®VE|] CzA w ©z22~o| ©}zx~{~x 23v']|z2a0®©
economic characte ristics and risk of the embedded derivative will generally be closely related to those of the host

contract, and the embedded derivative would not need to be accounted for separately. On the other hand, if the ESG
features refer to broader metrics that are  not specific to the issuer of the instruments, such as a broader ESG index or
national reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, the economic characteristics and risk of the embedded derivative would
generally not be closely related to those of the host con tract, and the embedded derivative would need to be accounted
for separately.

i}~© vOoO©z©©fzu?2 £v- wz {« 2}z x¥E£!¢~xva@zy ~{ vo zwma~a~—C
of the parent or of an entire group, rather than a metric specifically related to the stand  -alone group entity that has
issued the instruments.

If a liability is carried at amortised cost, and it is determined that the embedded derivative is not separated, the entity w il
estimate the cash flows as part of determination of the effective interest rate. If in the future these estimates change,
say due to a change in the ESG metric effecting the cash flows, then this is treated as an adjustment to profit and loss.

8.25% secured loan
i}z ¢¥ve ~© ©Ozx«"zy w v {~7©2 x}v' |z ¥-z" xz" ?a@v-~c
DGAI EE R®B:Hil).=

Secured bank loan

This loan has been drawn down under a six-year multi -option facility (MOF). The loan is repayable within AS 173

12 months after the reporting date but has been classified as long term because the Group expects, and has

the discretion, to exercise its rights under the MOF to refinance this funding. Such immediate replacement

funding is available until 31 July 2029C i } z 2 ¥23v¢ vE¥«m@ "zl v vwtz ¥n

~© ©zx«"zy w v {~70©% x}v' |z ¥-z" xz"?3v~o ¥{ 23}z \
DJAEEEARBRBE&E BJAEEEAEEE>C

The secured bank loan is subject to the following covenants: IAS 1.76ZA(2)

IAS 1.76ZA(b)
3 Interest cover ratio greater than 5. The interest cover ratio in the secured bank loan is calculated as
operating profit divided by interests on debts and borrowings (see Note 13.3). The interest cover ratio
was 11.1 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 9.1)

3 Gearing ratio below 45%. SeeNote6 { ¥° 2}z yz{~@a~2 ~¥pop voy xveéx«¢v?a
gearing ratio was 26% as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 38%)

Both covenants are tested half -yearly, at 30 June and 31 December. The Group has no indication that it will
have difficulty complying with these covenants.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest -bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

DPGALJEAEEE wvej ¢¥vao

i}z \"¥«}] ~ox"zvOzy ~20 W¥" " ¥-~0|] 0O «oyz" 2} ~0 C¢C¥vec
loanis” z} v vw¢z ~o 2a.-¥ ~o@323vetf£zea© ¥{ DPFAGJEAEEE y«z
December 2029.

PGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao
i} ~© ¢¥va ~0© «w@zx«' zy vey ~© “zjv vwtz ~zo {«¢t¢ ¥c
repayable on 31 March 2024.

PJAMENAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao
This loan has been transferred to the net balance of the liabilities held for sale.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The right to defer settlement of liabilities might be subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting date. In such cases, IAS 1.76ZA requires entities with liabilities classified as non -current to disclose
informati on to enable users to understand the risk of liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period. Entities must disclose information about the covenants, as illustrated above. In addition, if facts and
circumstances indicate that the entity may have difficulty complying with the covenants, they must be disclosed. To meet
this requirement, factors entities must consider include whether it has acted to avoid or mitigate a potential breach,

either during or after the reporting period , and whether it would have complied with future covenants, had they been
tested at the end of the reporting period. When assessing the materiality of information about covenants, the guidance
provided by the IASB in paragraphs 81 -83 of IFRS Practice State ment 2 is relevant.

Convertible preference shares

At 31 December 202 4 and 202 3, there were 2,500,000 convertible preference shares in issue. Each share

}vo v v vtz ¥{ DF voy ~0O0 x¥wo-z"2a~w¢z va a}z ¥|

of the Group on 1 January 202 6 on the basis of one ordinary share for every three preference shares held.

Any preference shares not converted will be redeemed on 31 December 202 9v & v | " ~xz ¥{

The preference shares carry a dividend of 7% per annum, payable half -yearly in arrears on 30 June and

31 December. The dividend rights are non -cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the ordinary

shares in the event of a liquidation. The presentation of the equity portion of these shares is explained in IAS 1.79(2)(v)
Note 25 below.

Other financial liabilities

2024 2023
PEE PEE
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 720 Cc
Embedded derivatives 782 C
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 170 254
Commodity forward contracts 980 Cc
Interest rate swaps 35 c
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration ( Note 8) 1,072 Cc
Total financial instruments at fair value 3,759 254
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost, other than interest -bearing
loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables (Note 30) 16,969 20,023
Total other financial liabilities 20,728 20,277
Total current 19,922 20,277
Total non-current 806 c

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflect the negative change in fair value of those
foreign exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless,
intended to reduce the level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) °Bi
21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest -bearing loans and borrowings (continued) 0|

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflect the negative change in fair value of foreign IFRS 7.32A
exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future purchases in
GBP. This also includes the change in fair value of commodity forward contracts entered into during 202 4.

Contingent consideration

As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owner of Extinguishers Limited, a contingent

consideration has been agreed. This consideration is dependent on the profit before tax of ~Extinguishers
Limited during a 12 -month period. The fair value of the contingent consideration at the acquisition date was
DLFI AEEEC i}z {v~" =~vt«z ~n8ox' zv©2024du¥to®dHgAficantysthéneed v
performance compared to budget. The contingent consideration is due for final measurement and payment

to the former shareholders on 30 September 2025.

IFRS 3.B64(g)

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7 requires an entity to disclose information about rights to set off financial instruments and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements) and to provide users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting
arrangementsonva zwoa ~a~ CO {~ovax~ve ! ¥O~2a~¥oC

The Group is not setting off financial instruments in accordance with IAS 32 and does not have relevant offsetting
arrangements. However, if an entity has recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 or
are subject to an enfo rceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, even if the financial instruments are not
set off in accordance with IAS 32, then the disclosures in IFRS 7.13A -13E will be required.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Entities may have obtain ed additional financing, amend ed the terms of existing debt agreements or obtain ed waivers if
they no longer satisfied debt covenants. In such cases, they will need to consider the guidance provided in IFRS 9 to
determine whether changes to existing contractual arrangements represent ed a substantial modification or, potentially, a
contract extinguishment, which would have accounting implications in each case. Furthermore, e ntities may need to
determine whether a breach of covenants will require non -current liabilities to be reclassified as current liabilities in the ir
financial statements .

i}z £vx  ¥zx¥o¥f~x voy | z¥| ¥¢~2~xvet «omxz @dv~ma fv VCLEO¥

Consolidated financial statements

usage requirements for non -financial items, ©«x} v© “"v- £v&2z " ~v(¢(© «O©zy ~@8 vao zno?
applied the own -use scope exemption in IFRS 9 may need to reassess whether it continues to meet these requirements. If (.F\',
they are no longer met, the entity would be required to recognis e related contracts as financial instruments under IFRS 9 . "
L N
. L L o «
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives 2

The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed IFRS 7.21A &
using derivative instruments are foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, and interest rate risk.

i}z \ "¥«!CO "~©j £vaov|z£fzwma ©2"vaz|  voy }Noe2152 ~¢C
below.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The disclosure requirements for entities applying hedge accounting are set out in IFRS 7 .21A-24G. The objective of the
hedge accounting disclosures is for entities to disclose information about:

3 Therisk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risks (IFRS 7.22Ag22C)

3 How the risk management activities may affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows (IFRS
7.23A a23F)

3  The effect hedge accounting had on the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive
income and the statement of changes in equity (IFRS 7.24A-24F)

In applying this objective, an entity has to consider the necessary level of detail, the balance between different disclosure
requirements, the appropriate level of disaggregation and whether additional explanations are necessary to meet the
objective.

Additional Australian disclosures

The hedge accounting disclosures should be presented in a single note or a separate section of the financial statements.
An entity may include information by cross -referencing to information presented elsewhere, such as a risk report,
provided that information is available to users of the financial statements on the same terms as the financial state  ments [42]
and at the same time.

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses foreign currency -denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to
manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not designated as
cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods consis tent with foreign currency exposure of the
underlying transactions, generally from one to 24 months.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast IFRS 7.22B(a)
sales in US dollars and forecast purchases in GBP. These forecast transactions are highly probable, and they

X¥E! " ~©z vw¥«?2 GJ: ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«!CO 2¥2avye¢ z®!zx2zy €
purchases in GBP.The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign

currency sales and purchases and changes in foreign exchange forward rates.

Commodity price risk

The Group purchases copper on an ongoing basis as its operating activities in the electronic division require IFRS 7.22B(a)
a continuous supply of copper for the production of its electronic devices. The increased volatility in copper

price over the past 12 months has led to the decision to enter into commodity forward contracts.

These contracts, which commenced on 1 July 202 4, are expected to reduce the volatility attributable to
price fluctuations of copper. Hedging the price volatility of forecast copper purchases is in accordance with
the risk management strategy outlined by the Board of Directors.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of IFRS 7.22B(b)
the foreign exchange and commaodity forward contracts match the terms of the expected highly probable :iEE ;;;E(c)
forecast transactions (i.e., notional amount and exp ected payment date). The Group has established a

hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the foreign exchange and

commodity forward contracts are identical to the hedged risk components. To test the hedge effectiveness,

the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the

hedging instruments against the changes in fair value of the hedged items attributable to the hedged risks.

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from: IFRS 7.22B(c)

Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged item s and the hedging instruments

3 Different indexes (and accordingly different curves) linked to the hedged risk of the hedged items and
hedging instruments

3 i}z x¥«wm2z " ly 2a~-70C x"zy~2 " ~0ij y~{{z" zwa¢~ ~£!v
instruments and hedged items
3 Changes to the forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged item s and hedging instruments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued)
The Group is holding the following foreign exchange and commodity forward contracts:

Maturity
Less than 1to3 3to6 6t09 9to 12
1 month months months months months Total
As at 31 December 2024
Foreign exchange forward contracts
(highly probable forecast sales)
c¥2 ~¥ove VE¥«omd@=~o f 2,950 3,000 3,150 3,450 3,250 15,800
Average forward rate ( EUR/USD) 1.166 1.169 1.172 1.175 1.185 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
(highly probable forecast purchases
cC¥2~¥ove¢ VvVE¥«o?=~o ¢ 1,450 1,330 1,880 1,750 1,550 7,960
Average forward rate (EUR/ GBP) 0.876 0.877 0.878 0.879 0.881 -
Commodity forward contracts
Notional amount (in tonnes) - - 450 530 - 980
Notional amount (in D E E E > - - 2,600 3,000 - 5,600
Vaz"v]|z }zyl|lzy "v2az - - 5.77 5.66 - -
As at 31 December 2023
Foreign exchange forward contracts
(highly probable forecast sales)
C¥2 ~¥ove VE¥«n?=~no ¢ 2,650 2,850 3,000 3,200 2,900 14,600
Average forward rate (EUR/ USD) 1.200 1.203 1.206 1.209 1.211 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
(highly probable forecast purchases
cC¥2~¥ove¢ vVvE¥«o?=~no ¢ 1,250 1,150 1,500 1,600 1,450 6,950
Average forward rate (EUR/GBP) 0.882 0.883 0.884 0.885 0.886 -

The impact of the hedging instruments on the statement of financial position is, as follows:

Change in fair
value used for

measuring
Notional Carrying  Line item in the statement of ineffectiveness
amount amount  financial position for the period
PEEI PEEI PEEE
As at 31 December 2024
Foreign exchange forward
contracts 15,800 252  Other current financial assets 386
Foreign exchange forward Other current financial
contracts 7,960 (170) liabilities (99)
Commodity forward contracts Other current financial
5,600 (980) liabilities (980)
As at 31 December 202 3
Foreign exchange forward
contracts 14,600 153  Other current financial assets 137
Foreign exchange forward Other current financial
contracts 6,950 (254) liabilities (31)
The impact of hedged items on the statement of financial position s, as follows:
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Change in fair Change in fair
value used for  Cash flow  Cost of value used for ~ Cash flow  Cost of
measuring hedge hedging measuring hedge hedging
ineffectiveness reserve reserve ineffectiveness reserve  reserve
PEE! PEEI PEEI PEEI DEEI DEEI
Highly probable forecast sales 386 165 12 137 107 -
Highly probable forecast purchases (99) (110) 9) (31) 177) -
Copper purchases (915) (617) (23) - - -

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.23B

IFRS 7.24A

IFRS 7.24A(a)
IFRS 7.24A(b)
IFRS 7.24A(c)
IFRS 7.24A(d)

IFRS 7.24B(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued)

The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income s, as
follows:

Total  Ineffective - Amount Line item IFRS 7.24C(b)
hedging ness Line item Cost of reclassif ied in the
gain/(loss) recognised in the hedging from OCI  statement
recognised in profit or statement of  recognised to profit or of profit or
in OCI loss  profitor loss in OCI loss loss
Year ended 31 December 2024 PEE PEE PEE PEE
Highly probable forecast sales 386 - - 21 (283) Revenue
Highly probable forecast purchases (99) - - (16) - -
Other
operating
Copper purchases (915) 65 expenses (33) - -
Year ended 31 December 2023
Highly probable forecast sales 137 - - - (125) Revenue
Highly probable forecast purchases (31) - - - 53 Cost of sales

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7.24C(b)(iv) requires that the amount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve into profit or loss as a

reclassification adjustment be differentiated between : (a) amounts for which hedge accounting had previously been used,
but for which the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur , and (b) the amounts that have been
transferred because the hedged item has affected profit or loss. The amounts reclassified by the Group from OCI to profit
or loss only relates to the latter.

Fair value hedge

At 31 December 202 4, the Group had an interest rate swap agreement in place with a notional amount of IFRS 7.22B(a)
i hYYHAKEEAEEE =RB2WIEKAREBE > }=z " zw_ 2}z \ " ¥«! “zxz~-2z

pays interest at a variable rate equal to SOFR+0.2% on the notional amount. The swap is being used to

hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of its fixed rate 8.25% secured loan.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the IFRS 7.22B(b)
. ) . . . IFRS 7.22B(c)
interest rate swap match the terms of the fixed rate loan (i.e., notional amount, maturity, payment and IFRS 7.22C

reset dates). The Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying
risk of the interest rate swap is identical to the hedged risk component. To test the hedge effectiveness, the
Group uses the hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument against the changes in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

3 Different interest rate curve applied to discount the hedged item and hedging instrument

3 Differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument

3 i}z x¥«m2z " ly"a-70C x"zy~2 " ~0j y~{{z"zma¢  ~£!v
and hedged item

The impact of the hedging instrument on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 is, as  FRS7.24A

follows:
Change in fair value  IFRS 7.24A(a)
used for measuring  IFRS 7.24A(b)

(

(

Notional Carrying Line item in the ineffectiveness ~ IFRS 7.24A(c)
amount amount statement of financial position for the period IFRS 7.24A(d)
US$000 PDEE]! PEE!

Interest rate swap 3,600 35 Other current financial liability 35

The impact of the hedged item on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 is, as follows: FRS 7.24B(a)

Change in fair value

Accumulated used for measuring
Carrying fair value Line item in the ineffectiveness
amount adjustments  statement of financial position for the period
PEE! DEEI PEE!
Fixed-rate borrowing Interest -bearing loans and
2,246 35 borrowings 35

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 105

Contents

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

Consolidated financial statements

19 18 17 16 15

[}
Q
=
o
=

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

i

[\

(9]

<t!

Tol




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued)
The ineffectiv eness recognised in the statement of profit or loss was immaterial.

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

Included in interest -bearing loans at 31 December 202 4 was a borrowing of USD3,600,000 which has been
designated as a hedge of the net investments in the two subsidiaries in the United States, Wireworks Inc.

and Sprinklers Inc., beginning 2024.i } ~© w¥ " " ¥- ~#o| ~0 wz~#o| «Ozy 2a¥ }
foreign exchange risk on these investments. Gains or losses on the retranslation of this borrowing are
transferred to OCI to offset any gains or losses on translation of the net investm ents in the subsidiaries.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the net
investment creates a translation risk that will match the foreign exchange risk on the USD borrowing . The
Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 as the underlying risk of the hedging instrument is identical to
the hedged risk component. The hedge ineffectiveness will arise when the amount of the investment in the
foreign subsidiary becomes lower than the amount of the fixed ra te borrowing.

The impact of the hedging instrument on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 is, as

follows:
Change in fair
value used for

measuring
Notional Carrying  Line item in the statement of ineffectiveness
amount amount  financial position for the period
US$000 PEEI PDEEI
Foreign currency denominated Interest -bearing loans and
borrowing 3,600 2,246  borrowings 278
The impact of the hedged item on the statement of financial position is, as follows:
Change in fair value used for Foreign currency
measuring ineffectiveness translation reserve
PEE PEE
Net investment in foreign subsidiaries 278 195

The hedging gain recognised in OCl before tax is equal to the change in fair value used for measuring
effectiveness. There is no ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.22B(a)

IFRS 7.22B(b)
IFRS 7.22B(c)
IFRS 7.22C

IFRS 7.24A

IFRS 7.24A(a)
IFRS 7.24A(b)
IFRS 7.24A(c)
IFRS 7.24A(d)

IFRS 7.24B(b)

IFRS 7.24B(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives (continued)
Impact of hedging on equity

Set out below is the reconciliation of each component of equity and the analysis of other comprehensive :E: ;gig
income:
Foreign
Cash flow Cost of currency
hedge hedging translation
reserve reserve reserve
PEE DPEEI
As at 1 January 2023 (94) - (327)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast sales 137 - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast - -
purchases (31)
Amount reclassified to profit or loss (72) - -
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations * - - (117)
Tax effect (20) - -
As at 1 January 2024 (70) - (444)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast sales 365 21 -
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast (16)
purchases (83) -
Commodity forward contracts (882) (33) -
Amount reclassified to profit or loss (283) 4) -
Amount transferred to inventories 180 3 -
Foreign currency revaluation of the USD borrowing - - 278
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - - (246)
Tax effect 211 9 (83)
As at 31 December 2024 (562) (20) (495)

* Hedging of net investment in foreign operations only started in 202 4.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty
Hedging

Ao zoa~a~"CO 2" yoOVX2~¥0@© £v wz | ¥02!¥ozy ¥° xvaxz¢ezyad
a result of the macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty, including factors such as lower economic growth and rising
inflation rates . If the entity designated such transactions as a hedged forecast transaction in a cash flow hedge, it would
ozzy 2¥ Xx¥pop0©O~yz" -}z2}z" 2}z 2a"yoOvxa®~¥m -vO ©2a~¢¢ v €} -

That is, if the macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty affects the probability of hedged forecast transactions
occurring and/or the time period designated at the inception of a hedge, an entity would need to determine whether it
can continue to apply hedge accounting to the forecast transaction or a proportion  of it, and for continuing hedges
whether any additional ineffectiveness has arisen.

3 Ifan entity determines that a forecast transaction is no longer highly probable, but still expected to occur,
the entity must discontinue hedge accounting prospectively .

3 If an entity determines that the timing of a forecast transaction has changed, and the cash flows are now
expected to occur at a different time than initially forecast, the outcome would depend on the nature of
the hedged item and how the hedge relationship was documen ted and judgement will be needed in
considering the appropriate accounting treatment .

3 If an entity determines that a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, in addition to
discontinuing hedge accounting prospectively , it must immediately reclassify to profit or loss any
accumulated gain or loss on the hedging instrument that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives

Embedded derivatives

In 202 4, the Group entered into long -term sale contracts with a customer in Canada. The functional

(continued)

IFRS 9.4.3.3

currency of the customer is USD. The selling price in the contracts is fixed and set in Canadian dollars

(CAD). The contracts require physical delivery and will be held for the purpose of the delivery of the
- ~s¥efuirénierts. The«Cortraces Baveze@bedded® z y

X¥EEL£¥y~23~ ~anp

VXX¥ yvaxz

foreign exchange derivatives that are required to be separated.

The Group also entered into various purchase contracts for brass and chrome (for which there is an active
market) with a number of suppliers in the United States and South Africa. The prices in these purchase
contracts are linked to the price of electricity. The contracts have embedded commodity swaps that are

required to be separated.

The embedded foreign currency and commodity derivatives have been separated and are carried at fair
value through profit or loss. The carrying values of the embedded derivatives at 31 December

VE¥«nodzy
(20230 bPc~¢t>C
respectively.

i}z

21.4 Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value s¥ {
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Financial assets
Loans to an associate and a director
Non-listed equity investments
Listed equity investments
Quoted debt instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Embedded derivatives
Foreign exchange forward contracts in
cash flow hedges

Total

Financial liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Floating rate borrowings*
Fixed rate borrowings
Convertible preference shares

Contingent consideration

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives in effective hedges

Total

a¥ DGFEAEEE

z{{zx2© ¥o |7

y{~-a y-

ayz

2024
=30230z Dc{~¢t>v avxayv O LWEBBRAZEEE> == 2 }
¢ ¥ ©OOexpenses, "~z { ¢

. 1 ~
¥ «! C IFRS725

* Includes an 8.25% secured loan carried at amortised cost adjusted for the fair value movement due to the hedged

interest rate risk.

i}z {v~" =vet«z

£zVvO«”

IFRS 7.26
IFRS 7.29
2024 2023
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
PEE PEE PEE DEE|
213 208 8 9
1,038 1,038 898 898
337 337 300 300
1,622 1,622 1,610 1,610
640 640 - -
210 210 - -
252 252 153 153
4,312 4,307 2,969 2,970
(12,666) (12,666) (11,877) (11,877)
(6,374) (6,321) (8,239) (8,944)
(2,778) (2,766) (2,644) (2,621)
(1,072) (1,072) - -
(720) (720) - -
(782) (782) - -
(1,185) (1,185) (254) (254)
(25,577) (25,512) (23,014) (23,696 )
z£zw?2 }~z"v7"x} ¥{ vec¢ Note W« (
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.4 Fair values (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7.29 provides that disclosure of the fair value s of financial instruments is not required:

3 When the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (e.g., short -term trade receivables and
payables)

Or
3 For lease liabilities
Management assessed that the fair values of cash and short -term deposits, trade receivables, trade

payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short -term maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

3 Long-term fixed -rate and variable -rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the

customer and the risk characteristics of the financed pro ject. Based on this evaluation, allowances are

taken into account for the estimated losses of these receivables.

3  The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The
fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other
non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive
to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of  the
equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The valuation
requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable

IFRS 13.93(d)

inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Manage ment regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible

alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair
value.

3 The fair values of the non-listed equity investments have been estimated using a DCF model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including
forecast cash flows, the discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various
estimates withinthe " va|] z xve wz ~“zvO¥aosvwt¢ vOOz©Ozy vaoy
value for these non-listed equity investments.

There is an active market { ¥~ 2 } z listed efuity iBv@stments and quoted debt instruments .

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forward
contracts and commodity forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employ the
use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward
pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs
including the cre dit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of
the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate
curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity. Some derivative contracts are fully cash
X¥¢¢vaz ve~©zyA @}z zw zC¢~£~8oV?a~po| w¥gerformangeqisk?
As at 31 December 202 4, the mark -to-market value of other derivative asset positions is net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in
counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for derivatives
designated in hedge relationships and other financial instruments recognised at fair value.

3 Embedded foreign currency and commodity derivatives are measured similarly to the foreign currency
forward contracts and commodity derivatives. The embedded derivatives are commodity and foreign
currency forward contracts which are separated from long -term sales contracts where the transaction
currency differs from the functional currencies of the involved parties.  However, as these contracts
V'z ©B¥?2 x¥¢c¢vaz"'ve~0zyA 2}z \7T ¥« VeCO¥ 2vizO -~
zEwzyyzy yz ~ava@~az v OO z-pediorma¥ce risk (forthe\erbéddéd d@ivative o
liabilities) and includes a cre dit valuation adjustment or debit valu ation adjustment, as appropriate, by
assessing the maximum credit exposure and taking into account market -based inputs concerning
probabilities of default and loss given default.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) °Bi
21.4 Fair values (continued) 0|

3 i}z {v~" avet«z© ¥ fbeatingwans an&borfoRifys arexdetermize®By using the DCF
£z28}1 ¥y «©~n| y~Ox¥«na& “yaz alya "z{L{¢tzx20 2}z ~0OC
period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 December 202 4 was assessed to be insignificant.

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the

fair value hierarchy, together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2024 and 202 3 é
are shown below: -§
Signifcant kel =
Valuation unobservable Range Sensitivity of the IFRS 13.93(h)(ii)
technique  inputs (weighted average) input to fair value IFRS 13.97
Non-listed DCF Long-term 2043: 3.1%-5.2% (4.2%) 5% Q02 3: 5%) increase
equity method growth rate for - 502 3:3.19-5.1% (4%) (decrease) in the growth rate
investments cash flows for would result in an increase
power sector subsequent (decrease) in fair value by
years DFLAE®E:BFJAEEE> 2
Q
Long-term 2024:5.0%-12.1% 15% (@02 3: 12%) increase é
operating (8.3%) (decrease) in the margin would Kz
margin 2023 5.2%- 12.3% result in an increase (decrease) '§
(8.5%) ~o {v~" =avt«z wW g
(2023:BPFNAEEE> b
[
WACC 2024:11.2% - 14.3% 1% Q02 3: 2%) increase %
(12.6%) (decrease) in the WACC would %’
202 3: 11.5% - 14.1% result in a decrease (increase) in -
(12.3%) {v~" =—vt«z w DF
(2023:PFJ AEEE>
Discount for 2024:5.1%- 15.6% 2% Q02 3: 3%) increase
lack of (12.1%) (decrease) in the discount would N
marketability 202 3: 5.4%- 15.7% decrease (increase) the fair "
(12.3%) vauew~ DMA@BB NAEL ﬁ &
Non-listed DCF Long-term 2024:4.4%-6.1% (5.3%) 3% Q02 3: 3%) increase Q
equity method growth rate for 202 3: 4.6%- 6.7% (5.5%) (decrease) in the growth rate
investments cash flows for would result in an increase
electronics subsequent (decrease) in fair value by
sector years PGHAE®E:BGJ AEEE>
(%]
Long-term 2024:10.0% - 16.1% 5% @02 3: 4%) increase %
operating (14.3%) (decrease) in the margin would 73
margin 2023 10.5% - 16.4% result in an increase (decrease) E
(14.5%) ~o {v~" avet«z w %
(2023:PFHAEEE> B
=}
WACC 2024:12.1% - 16.7% 1% @02 3: 2%) increase ;—E
(13.2%) (decrease) in the WACC would £
202 3: 12.3% - 16.8% result in a decrease (increafe) in §
(13.1%) {v~" vtz w b(
(2023:PGGAEEE>
Discount for 2024:5.1%-20.2% 1.5% (202 3: 2%) increase
lack of (16.3%) (decrease) in the discount would 9
marketability 202 3: 5.3% - 20.4% decrease (increase) the fair

(16.4%) valuew DL 202BEHD MA Gl
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

21.4 Fair values (continued)

(continued)

Significant

Valuation unobservable Range Sensitivity of the

technique  inputs (weighted average) input to fair value
Embedded Forward Discount for 202 4:0.02% - 0.05% 0.5% increase (decrease)
derivative pricing counterparty (0.04%) would result in an increase
assets model credit risk 2023: - (decrease) in fair value by

23,000

Embedded Forward Discount for non - 202 4:0.01% - 0.05% 0.4% increase (decrease)
derivative pricing performance risk (0.03%) would result in an increase
liabilities model 2023: - (decrease) in fair value by

Constant
prepayment rate

Loansto an DCF
associate and method
a director

Discount for non -
performance risk

Assumed
probability -
adjusted profit
before tax of
Extinguishers
Limited

Contingent DCF
consideration  method
liability

Discount rate

Discount for own
non-performance
risk

202 4: 1.5%- 2.5%
(2.0%)
2023: 1.6%- 2.7%
(2.2%)

202 4:0.08%
202 3: 0.09%

20240 BIE MO0
2023: -

2024: 14%
2023: -

202 4: 0.05%
2023: -

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

520,000

1% @02 3: 2%) increase
(decrease) would result in an
increase (decrease) in fair
—vt«z w DGJAEE
(2023:DGFAEEE>

0.4% (202 3: 0.4%) increase
(decrease) would result in an
increase (decrease) in fair
-vt«z w  DGFAEE
(2023:DGEAEEE>

10%decrease in the assumed
probability -adjusted profit
before tax of Extinguishers
Limited result s in a decrease in
fair value of the contingent
consideration liability by
DHNEAEEE

5% increase inthe assumed
probability -adjusted profit
before tax of Extinguishers
Limited would not change fair
value of the contingent
consideration liability

2% increase (decrease) inthe
discount rate would result in
an increase (decrease) in fair
value of the contingent
consideration liability by
DGJAEEE

0.4% increase (decrease) inthe
discount for own non -
performance risk would result
in an increase (decrease) in fair
value of the contingent
consideration liability by
DJAEEE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.4 Fair values (continued)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of non -listed equity investments classified as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI  (Level 3):

Power Electronics Total
PEEE PEE DEEE
As at 1 January 2023 386 502 888
Remeasurement recognised in OCI 4 6 10
Purchases Cc ¢ ¢
Sales c Cc ¢
As at 1 January 2024 390 508 898
Remeasurement recognised in OCI 54 (80) (26)
Purchases 231 293 524
Reclassified in assets held for sale Cc (308) (308)
Sales ¢ (50) (50)
As at 31 December 2024 675 363 1,038
Reconciliation of fair value measurement of embedded derivative assets and liabilities (Level 3):
Embedded foreign
exchange Embedded commodity
derivative asset derivative liability
Canadian dollar Brass Chrome
DEEE DEE DEEL

As at 1 January 2023 and 202 4 Cc c ¢
Remeasurement recognised in statement of profit or
loss during the period (363) (209) (80)
Purchases 573 809 262
Sales Cc Cc Cc
As at 31 December 2024 210 600 182

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

An entity should provide additional information that will help users of its financial statements to evaluate the quantitative
information disclosed. An entity might disclose some or all of the following to comply with  IFRS 13.92:

3 The nature of the item being measured at fair value, including the characteristics of the item being measured
that are taken into account in the determination of relevant inputs. For example, if the Group had residential
mortgage -backed securities, it migh t disclose the following:

The types of underlying loans (e.g., prime loans or sub -prime loans)
Collateral

Guarantees or other credit enhancements

Seniority level of the tranches of securities

The year of issue

The weighted-average coupon rate of the underlying loans and the securities
The weighted-average maturity of the underlying loans and the securities
The geographical concentration of the underlying loans

Information about the credit ratings of the securities

(S I GN R O RGN R N R O I O N B GN R ON IO

How third -party information such as broker quotes, pricing services, net asset values and relevant market data
was taken into account when measuring fair value

The Group does not have any liabilities measured at fair value and issued with an inseparable third -party credit
enhancement. If the Group had such liabilities, IFRS 13.98 requires disclosure of the existence of credit -enhancement
and whether it is reflect ed in the fair value measurement of the liability.

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another
format is more appropriate. The Group included the quantitative disclosures in tabular format, above.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 13.93(e)(i)
IFRS 13.93(e)(iii)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.4 Fair values (continued)

IFRS 13.93(h)(ii) requires a quantitative sensitivity analysis for financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis. For all other recurring fair value measurements that are categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy, an entity is required to provide:

3 A narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs if a
change in those inputs to a different amount might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value
measurement.

3 Ifthere are inter -relationships between the inputs and other unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement, a description of the inter -relationships and of how they might magnify or mitigate the effect of
changes in the unobservable inputs on the fair value measurement .

For this purpose, significance shall be judged with respect to profit or loss, and total assets or total liabilities, or, whe n
changes in fair value are recognised in OCI, total equity. The Group included the quantitative sensitivity analyses in
tabular fo rmat, above.

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

i}z \"¥«!CO ! ~ox~!vet {~avox~ve ¢~vw~0¢~2~z ©Aandtfadez " IFRS733
vey ¥alz" v vw¢tzOC i}tz £v~8 | «" | ¥0z ¥{ 23} z0z {~uv'FRS7'21A(a)
\ "¥«! CO ! "~ax~!ve {~ovox~ve vOOz?2©O ~termtepgsitsthatdevive z

directly from its operations. The Group also holds investments in debt and equity instruments and enters
into derivative transactions.

i}z \"¥«;, ~© z®, ¥0Ozy 2¥ fv~ jzq@ "~0OjiA x"zy~a "~0j Vv
alz f£vov|z£fzwa ¥{ a}z0z " ~0jOC i}z \ " ¥«! CO ©Ozo~¥"
that advises on financial risks and the appr opriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The
{~ovex~vet " ~0Of x¥E£f~23z7z7 | "¥2~yz0O VOO« " voxz 2a¥ a}lgy
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial ri  sks are identified,
£zvO«" " zy voy £vov|zy ~@o VXX¥“'yvoxz -~2} alz \"¥«;(
for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills,
experience and supervision. 12 ~© a2}z \ "¥«! CO ! ¥¢~x~ 2a}va o¥ a’yy.
may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value o r future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because IFRS 7.33
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and

other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial inst ruments affected by market risk

include loans and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity investments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2024
and 202 3.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to IFRS 7.40
floating interest rates of debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 202 4.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of pension and
other post -retirement obligations , provisions, and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign
operations. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in  Note 8.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

3 The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
31 December 202 4 and 202 3 including the effect of hedge accounting.

3 The sensitivity of equity is calculated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges and
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation at 31 December 202 4 for the effects of the assumed
changes of the underlying risk.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) L
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued) 0|
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate IFRS 7.21A(a)
Wzxv«©z ¥{ x}ve|zO ~o £v' jz?® ~p2z"z702 "vaz0OC i}z \ [FRS 7224
"vazoO© “ze¢vaz© | ~E£v termtdebt Shhgatiény with foati¥gdnte@ @ ratesy o |
The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and -
W¥" " ¥-~o| ©C i}z \maMtain borwihg¥ at fixed rates @inteéraést  of not more than 50%, %
excluding borrowings that relate to discontinued operations. To manage this, the Group enters into interest -§
rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable ‘g
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed -upon notional principal amount. At 31
December 202 4, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 44% of the
\ "¥«! CO W¥ T " ¥-~0| © vz 2023:50%f ~®zy “vaz ¥{ ~maz’ z0O?2
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables
}z¢y x¥om@avamaA 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ! " tHe{impact om HoftMg rate bdriowings, & v { 2
follows: g
(0]
Increase/decrease Effect on profit g
in basis points before tax  |ers 7.40(a) _c—g
2024 PEE E
Euro +45 (48) 5
US dollar +60 (13) %
Euro -45 33 2
US dollar -60 12 8
2023
Euro +10 (29)
USdollar +15 ¢
—
Euro -10 12 N
US dollar -15 C § ﬁ
o
The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently =
observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior  years. ﬁ
Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because IFRS 7.21A(a)
¥{ x}vo|z©® ~o {[¥"z~|®m z®x}vo|z "vaz©OC i}z \ ¥« IFRS 7228
"z¢vaz@© | T ~£v i ~¢T a¥ a}lz \"¥«! CO ¥!z"va~uo] VX2&~o-~2
X« "zax > voy 28}z \"¥«!CO wz? ~u-z0©2f£zwn2®© ~uo {[¥"z-

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected to occur within a
maximum 12 -month period for hedges of forecasted sales and purchases and 24 -month period for net
investment hedges.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of the
derivative to match the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions, the derivative
covers the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the
point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign currency.

Additional Australian disclosures

The Group hedges its exposure to fluctuations on the translation into euros of its foreign operations by
holding net borrowings in foreign currencies and by using foreign currency swaps and forwards.

At 31 December 202 4 and 202 3, the Group hedged 75% and 70%, for 9 and 12 months, respectively, of its
expected foreign currency sales. Those hedged sales were highly probable at the reporting date. This 8]
foreign currency risk is hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

For hedges of forecast transactions, useful information to help users understand the nature and extent of such risks may
include:

3 Time bands in which the highly probable forecast transactions are grouped for risk management purposes

3 i}z zra~2"CO | ¥¢t~x~2z2© voy ! "¥xz0©0z© {¥° £vav|-~o| 2};
instruments and the hedged items may be aligned, such as using foreign currency bank accounts to address
differences in cash flow dates)

Entities should tailor these disclosures to the specific facts and circumstances of the transactions.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in  US Dollars (USD) and GB
pounds sterling (GBPz ®x } vae| z "vazOA -~22} vee¢ ¥21z" v’ ~vwezc
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non -
designated foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives. The ~£ | vx 2 ¥ o 2 }.-pax \ " ¥
equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges and
mza ~p-z©af£zwad }zy|zOC i}z \ ¥«!CO z®! ¥O« "z a¥ [¥°
material.

Effect on IFRS 7.40(a)
Change in profit before Effect on
USD rate tax pre-tax equity
DEE DEE
2024 +5% (30) (154)
-5% 20 172
2023 +4% (40) (146)
% 40 158
Effect on
Change in profit before Effect on
GBP rate tax pre-tax equity
DEE DEE
2024 +5% 26 102
-5% (15) (113)
2023 +4% 31 92
A% (28) (96)

The movement in the pre-tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments not designated in a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in US
dollars, where the functional currency of the entity is a currency oth  er than US dollars. Although the
derivatives have not been designated in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset
the underlying transactions when they occur.

The movement in pre -tax equity arises from changes in US dollar borrowings (net of cash and cash
equivalents) in the hedge of net investments in US operations and cash flow hedges. These movements will
¥{{©z2 2a}z 2 "yoO¢tva~¥o ¥dintehras. j h ¥! z" " v2a~¥o®©C w©za v

Commodity price risk

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the IFRS 721A(a)
ongoing purchase and manufacture of electronic parts and therefore require a continuous supply of copper. IFRS 7.22A
The Group is exposed to changes in the price of copper on its forecast copper purchases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)

i}z \"¥«! CO W¥v " yeveloped and énacked &riskdnanage®ent strategy for commaodity price
risk and its mitigation. Based on a 12-month forecast of the required copper supply, the Group hedges the
purchase price using forward commodity purchase contracts. The forward contracts do not result in
physical delivery of copper but are designated as cash flow hedges to offset the effect of price changes in
copper. The Group hedges approximately 45% of its expected copper purchases considered to be highly
probable.

The Group also entered into various purchase contracts for brass and chrome (for which there is an active
market). The prices in these purchase contracts are linked to the price of electricity.

Forward contracts with a physical delivery that qualify for normal purchase, sale or usage and that are
therefore not recognised as derivatives are disclosed in Note 21.3 .

Commodity price sensitivity
The following table shows the effect of price changes in copper net of hedge accounting impact.

Change in

year-end Effect on profit Effect on

price before tax equity
2024 PEE PEE
Copper +15% (220) (585)
-15% 220 585

Brass +4% (8) (8)
-4% 8 8

Chrome +2% (20) (20)
-2% 10 10

Equity price risk

i}z \7¥«! CO disted equity invesinyentsia¥esusceptible to market price risk arising from
uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk

through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the
z8«~2a" l¥rafy¢~¥ vz O«wfg~22azy ay alz \"¥«!' CO ©zan-~
Directors reviews and approves all equity investment d ecisions.

At the reporting date, the exposuretonon ¢ ~©2 zy z8«~23~ ~p-2z0©0©2£z020© v?a ({
Sensitivity analyses of these investments have been provided in Note 21.4 .

va alz "oz ¥7 yvazA 23}z zQ® ¥O0«"z ¥ z8«~2T
Given that the changes in fair values of the equity investments held are strongly positively correlated with
changes of the NYSE market index, the Group has determined that an increase/(decrease) of 10% on the
cnhz £v’jz2a ~oyz® x¥«¢ty }v-z ve ~£)1vx?a ¥{ v|| ¥®~f
equity attributable to the Group.

a ~auo| ~Q0-az

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing ac tivities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.40(a)

IFRS 7.33(b)

IFRS 7.33(a)

IFRS 7.40

IFRS 733
IFRS 7.35B
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

(9]

Contents

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) L

21.5 Financial instruments risk  management objectives and policies (continued) 0|

Trade receivables and contract assets

X«©2¥E£z" X" zy~2 " ~0©j ~© £vov]|zy W zZVX} W«O~nz©O©O « IFRST34c)
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on IFRS 7.88
an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this

assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and contract assets are regularly monitored and any

shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of crediti  nsurance

obtained from reputable banks and other financial institutions. At 31 December 202 4, the Group had 55

customers (202 3: 65) that owed itmorethan PGJEAEEE zvx} voy vxXx¥«wo2zy3:{

56%) of all the receivables and contract assets outstanding. There were five customers (202 3: seven

X«©a¥£z" ©> - ~2} wv ¢ wmiliena®@ouhtingzfor st dver 20%\(202 B E2%) of the total

amounts of receivable and contract assets.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected IFRS 7.35F(c)
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments

with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and

coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability -

weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at

the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. IFRS 7.35F(e)
Generally, trade receivables are written -off if past du e for more than one year and are not subject to IFRS 7.35K
enforcement activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of

each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 23. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The

letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered an integral part of trade receivables and

the calculation of impairment. At 31 December 2024, 60% (2023: 65%) of the Group@ trade receivables are

covered by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance. These credit enhancements obtained by

alz \"¥«] "TzO«t2zy ~m Vv yzx'zv©Oz ~8o &4QRE3IQ XEAGCHFKAE BEX

Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as

its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Consolidated financial statements

hza ¥«2 wz¢¥- ~© 2}z ~a{¥ £va@~¥o vw¥«? 23}z x"zy~2 IFRS73M
. - - IFRS 7.35N
contract assets using a provision matrix:

31 December 2024 Trade receivables o~
Days past due
Contract 30860 61390 >91
assets Current <30 days days days days Total ™
bEE PEE PEE PEE PEE DEE DEE
Expected credit loss rate 0.13% 0.12% 1.5% 4% 7% 12%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 26,0
default 4,547 16,787 4,864 2,700 1,151 514 16
Expected credit loss 6 20 73 108 81 62 344

Notes
2

31 December 2023 Trade receivables
Days past due
Contract 303860 61890 >91
assets Current <30 days days days days Total
PEE PEE PEE DEE PEE PDPEE DPEE

Expected credit loss rate 0.10% 0.10% 1.2% 3% 5% 10%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 22,5
default 5,185 15,603 3,482 1,897 995 531 08
Expected credit loss 5 16 42 57 50 53 218

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Financial instruments and cash deposits

X"zy~2 " ~0©fj {"¥f£ wvetvoxz© -~2} wvoi®© voy {~ovox-~y(¢IFRS73
yz!v afzma ~o vxx¥“yvaxz -~2} 2a}lz \"¥«! CO !¥¢~x_C :Egg;éiom)

approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned t o each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits
vz Tza~z-zy w 2}z \ " ¥«! CO béaskwaridmaybd updated trroughdut i@ year
©O«w zx?2 2a¥ y! ! "¥oyve ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO [~avaxz X¥E££~22
"~©j© vey 2}lz"z{¥" 2z £~2~|va@az {~ovax~veE C¥OO 2} " ¥«]|

The Group invests only on quoted debt securities with very low credit risk. The Group C ©  yinstrhents at

fair value through OCI compr ised solely of quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category

(Very Good and Good) by the Quality Credit Rating Agency and, therefore, are considered to be low credit

risk investments. The Group recognise d provision for expected credit losses on its debt instruments at fair IFRS 7.16A
value through OCl of DL A EilE2024 (2023: DK AB.EE

i}z \ " ¥«!'CO £VO~£«E z®! ¥O« "z a8¥ x'zy~2a " ~0j {¥° 2}z
31 December 202 4 and 202 3 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in  Note 21.1 except for derivative financial
~o0©2"  «£z82OC i}z \ " ¥«! CO E£VO®~£«Ef zZ®! ¥O«"z “ze¢va~ano|
table below.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

As required by IFRS 9, the Group usedthe simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract

assets that did not contain a significant financing component. The Group applied the practical expedient to calculate ECL
using a provision matrix. In practice, many entities use a provision matrix to calculate their current impairment

allowances. However, in order to comply with the IFRS 9 requirements, corporates would need to consider how current

and forward-looking ~a { ¥ £va ~¥o £~]|}2 v{{zx2a a}z~" x«O©O2¥£z ©C } ~02%¥%
information would affect their current expectations and estimates of ECLs.

The Group applied the low credit risk operational simplification in assessing the significant increase in credit risk of its
debt instruments at fair value through OCI. This simplification is optional and can be elected on an instrument -by-
instrument basis. For low -risk instruments for which the simplification is used, an entity would recognise an allowance
based on 12-month ECLs. However, if a financial instrument is not, or no longer, considered to have low credit risk at the
reporting date, it does not follow that the entity is required to recognise lifetime ECLs. In such instances, the entity has to
assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition which requires the recognition
of lifetime ECLs.

The ECLs relating to cash and short-term deposits of the Group rounds to zero. In practice, an ECL may need to be
charged on cash and short-term deposits.

Refer to Good Bank (International) Limited (December 2023) publication for the illustrative disclosures on the general
approach of measuring ECLs.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Entities should assess the impact of climate -related matters on the creditworthiness of customers and other debtors.

Y z w2 ¥bilitp 1 pay debts may be reduced if they are also impacted by climate -related matters. While physical risks

may take longer to manifest, transition risks could trigger a more rapid deterioration of credit quality in counterparties,
sectors or countries, - } ~x} ©} ¥«¢y wz {vx2®¥“"zy ~@o -}lzm vOOz©O©O~n| Vv w!
further discussion of the impact of climate risk on credit risk, see our  publication, Good Bank (International) Limited
(December 2023) .

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. :EE: ;-:g(c)
i}z \ " ¥«! CO ¥wW zx2%~-2z ~0© 2¥ f£v-~pma2y~o v wveévoxz wz?

of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, and¢ zv ©z x¥a2 " vx20©C i}

that not more than 25% of borrowings should mature in the next 12 -month period. Approximately 10% of

a1z \"¥«!CO yzw?2 - ~¢¢ £va«’z ~R026¢@R2EG:17%) based ¥dhe carrying RS 788

value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of
sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in  similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

Concentrati¥ s © ~oy~xvaaz a8}tz "z¢va@~-z ©zoO~28~--~2 ¥{ 2}z
particular industry.

No ¥"yz" 28Y¥ Va¥~y zZ®OXzOO~-z x¥oxzo?'yva~¥popO ¥{ " ~0j
guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly. Se lective hedging is used within the Group to manage risk
concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

V O«wO©2avama~y¢ ! ¥ 2a~¥og ¥{ 2}z \"¥«! CO 2"vyz ! v vw¢z FRS7BLFJ
IFRS 7.B11F(j)

arrangement and are, thus, with a single counterparty rather than individual suppliers. This results in the
Group being required to settle a significant amount with a single counterparty, rather than less significant
VE¥«B2@© -~23} ©z-2z2"Vve x¥«m22z"lv'28~70C |¥-z-2z2"A 2}z
the arrangement are identical to the payment terms for other trade payables. Management does not

consider the supplier finance arrangement to result in excessive concentrations of liquidity risk, and the
arrangement has been established to ease the administrative burden of managing invoices from a

significant number of suppliers, rather than to obtai n financing. Please refer to Note 30 for further
disclosures about the arrangement.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Entities with concentrations of risk may face greater risk of loss than other entities. IFRS 7.34(c) requires that
concentration of risk should be disclosed if not otherwise apparent from other risk disclosures provided.

Therefore, entities should consider including the following information:
3 A description of how management determines concentrations of risk

3 Adescription of the shared characteristic that identifies each concentration. For instance, the shared characteristic
may refer to geographical distribution of counterparties by groups of countries, individual countries or regions
within countries and/or by industry .

3 The amount of the risk exposure associated with all financial instruments sharing that characteristic

3 Entities that identified concentrations of activities in areas or industries affected by the ~ macroeconomic and
geopolitical uncertainty and have not previously disclosed the concentration because they did not believe that the
entity was vulnerable to the risk of a near -term severe impact, should now reconsider making such a disclosure.
Therefore, it is expected that the disclosure required under IFRS 7 in this area will reflect any significant changes in
the liquidity position as a result of the macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty and its development. Entities
should be mindful that this disclosure is consistent with their assessment of the going concern assumption.

i}z 2vwtz wzCe¥- O««EEV™  ~©zO© 2}z £va@«’ ~2 P ¥{~¢z ¥{
undiscounted payments:
Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 >5
Year ended 31 December 202 4 demand months months years years Total
PDEEI PDEEI PEEI PDEEI PEEI PDEEI

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings

(excluding items below) 966 c 1,422 10,554 8,000 20,942
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 48 117 290 2,454 1,473 4,382
Convertible preference shares C C C 676 2,324 3,000
Contingent consideration Cc c 1,125 Cc ¢ 1,125
Other financial liabilities Cc Cc Cc 150 Cc 150
Trade and other payables 3,620 12,547 802 Cc C 16,969
Derivatives and embedded derivatives 1,970 2,740 391 1,191 1,329 7,621

6,604 15,404 4,030 15,025 13,126 54,189
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk  management objectives and policies (continued)

Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 >5

Year ended 31 December 202 3 demand months months years years Total

PEEI PEE! PEEI PEEI DEE! PEE!
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
(excluding items below) 2,650 ¢ 76 8,872 11,600 23,198
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 32 90 296 2,386 1,432 4,236
Convertible preference shares Cc c Cc 624 2,376 3,000
Trade and other payables 4,321 13,959 1,743 Cc ¢ 20,023
Other financial liabilities Cc ¢ Cc 202 ¢ 202
Derivatives and embedded derivatives 549 1,255 Cc Cc c 1,804

7,552 15,304 2,115 12,084 15,408 52,463

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 16.58 requires disclosure of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities applying IFRS 7.39 and IFRS 7.B11 separately

from the maturity analyses of other financial liabilities. As such, the Group presented a separate line item for lease
liabilities in the maturity analysis of its financial liabilities.

The maturity analysis sh ould include the remaining contractual maturities for derivative financial liabilities
contractual maturities are essential to an understanding of the timing of the cash flows .

, for which

The financial derivative instruments disclosed in the above table are the gross undiscounted cash flows.

However, those amounts may be settled gross or net. The following table shows the corresponding
reconciliation of those amounts to their carrying amounts:

Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 Over
Year ended 31 December 202 4 demand months months years 5 years Total
PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Inflows 800 1,000 250 700 950 3,700
Outflows (1,970) (2,740) (391) (1,191) (1,329) (7,621)
Net (1,170) (1,740) (141) (491) (379)  (3,921)
Discounted at the applicable
interbank rates (1,170) (1,731) (139) (463) (343)  (3,846)
Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 Over
Year ended 31 December 202 3 demand months months years 5 years Total
PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Inflows 500 1,000 ¢ ¢ ¢ 1,500
Outflows (549) (1,255) ¢ Cc C (1,804)
Net (49) (255) c Cc Cc (304)
Discounted at the applicable i ] i
interbank rates (49) (255) c C C (304)

Collateral

The Group has pledged part of its short -term deposits in order to fulfil the collateral requirements for the
derivatives contracts. At 31 December 2024 and 202 3, respectively, the fair values of the short -term
yz, ¥6~20© | ¢tzy|zy -z"z DIJAEEEAEEE voy DGAEEEAEEEA
return the securities to the Group. The Group also holds a deposit in respect of derivative contracts  of
DPJKJAEEE Defembet2024F20230 PHMJAEEE>C i}z \ " ¥«! }v®O vao
the counterparties upon settlement of the contracts. There are no other significant terms and conditions
associated with the use of collateral.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 16.58

IFRS 7.B11B

IFRS 7.39(a)(b)

IFRS 7.39(a)(b)

IAS 7.48
IFRS 7.14
IFRS 7.38

" IFRS 7.15

IFRS 7.36(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.6 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Reclassified Foreign  Changes 31
1 January Cash as part of exchange in fair New December
2024 flows disposal group movement values leases Other 2024
DEE PEE PEEI DEEI PDEE PEE DEE DEE
Current interest -
bearing loans and
borrowings
(excluding items ) ) )
listed below) 2,724 (2,032) C (6) C C 1,691 2,377
Current lease ] ] i}
liabilities (Note 31) 418 (406) C C C 42 401 455
Non-current
interest -bearing
loans and
borrowings
(excluding items ) i
listed below) 20,760 5,649 (5,809) (51) C C (1,208) 19,441
Non-current lease ) ] ] i}
liabilities (Note 31) 2,553 C C C C 551 (398) 2,706
Dividends payable Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc 410 410
Derivatives c c c ¢ 58 ¢ C 58
Total liabilities
from financing
activities 26,455 3,211 (5,809) (57) 58 593 996 25,447
1 Foreign 31
January Cash exchange New December
2023 flows  movement leases Other 2023
PEEI DEEI PEEI PEEI DEEE DEEI
Current interest -bearing loans and ]
borrowings (excluding items listed below) 4,479 (4,250) (10) C 2,505 2,724
Current lease liabilities (Note 31) 355 (341) c 22 382 418
Non-current interest -bearing loans and ]
borrowings (excluding items listed below) 18,624 4,871 (57) C (2,678) 20,760
Non-current lease liabilities (Note 31) 2,734 C C 203 (384) 2,553
Total liabilities from financing activities 26,192 280 (67) 225 (175) 26,455
i}z €da}z"C x¥t«frn ~uoxt¢t«yz© 2-gumentpdriforofimterast| -bearng loansd © ~

and borrowings, including lease liabilities to current due to the passage of time, the accrual of special
dividends that were not yet paid at year -end, and the effect of accrued but not yet paid interest on interest -
bearing loans and borrowings , including lease liabilities . The Group classifies interest paid as cash flows
from operating activities.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 7.44A requires an entity to provide disclosures that will enable the users of the financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non -cash
changes. The Group provided a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing activities, which include the changes identified in IAS 7.44B as applicable.
This reconciliation provides a lin k to the amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows (IAS 7.44D).

An entity may provide the disclosure required by IAS 7.44A in combination with disclosures of changes in other assets
and liabilities. However, it is required to disclose the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities separately
the changes on those other assets and liabilities (IAS 7.44E).

from

There is no prescribed format for this disclosure, but Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has selected a tabular format as
it considered it the most efficient and meaningful way of meeting the requirement in IAS 7.44A and its objective, given
the facts and circumstances.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 7.44A
IAS 7.44C

IAS 7.44B
IAS 7.44D

IAS 7.44B
IAS 7.44D
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

22. Inventories

2024 2023 1AS2.36(b)
PEEI D E E | 1AS1.78(c)
Raw materials (at cost) 6,240 7,136
Work in progress (at cost) 13,357 9,722
Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 6,430 6,972
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 26,027 23,830
During 2024A D GMKZEFOE DGl GAEEE> - v © expens#fprinve@iarigs carried at et IAS 2.36(e)

realisable value. This is recognised in cost of sales. For a subsequent event related to inventories, refer to
Note 37.

Commentary on climate -related matters

Inventories might be impacted by climate -related matters in multiple ways. Due to the short -term nature of inventories,
they would typically be more exposed to physical risks than transition risks

23. Trade receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables

2024 2023 IAS1.78(b)
PEEI PDEE|IFRS76
Receivables from third -party customers 24,845 21,376
Receivables from an associate (Note 35) 551 582
Receivables from other related parties ( Note 35) 620 550
26,016 22,508
Allowance for expected credit losses (344) (218)
25,672 22,290
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, referto  Note 35. AS 20.15(0)

Contract assets

As at 31 December 202 4, the Group has contractassets ¥ { D1 AJ I262BEEEBJ AF MEAEEE >  IFRS737
anveet¥-vaxz {¥° z® zx?2zy20230z PIAEEESC@z© ¥{ BDKAEEE = "1

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract ~ IFRS7.35H
assets:

2024 2023
PEEI PEEI
As at 1 January 223 244
Provision for expected credit losses (Note 13.9) 185 76
Write -off (54) (95) IFRS7.35I(c)
Foreign exchange movement 4 2)
As at 31 December 350 223

IFRS 7.35I
The significant changes in the balances of trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in Note 4.2

whilst the information about the credit exposure s are disclosed in Note 21.5 .

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 7.35H requires tabular disclosure of a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance of the loss
allowance by class of financial instrument. The Group has provided this required reconciliation for trade receivables and
contract assets. The reconciliation for debt instruments at fair value through OCI was not provided as the movement of
the loss allowance is not material.

IFRS 7.35I requires an entity to provide an explanation of how significant changes in the gross carrying amount of
financial instruments during the period contributed to changes in the loss allowance. However, it does not explicitly
require a reconciliatio n of movements in the gross carrying amounts in a tabular format and the requirement could be
addressed using a narrative explanation.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 122
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

23. Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Large-scale business disruptions may give rise to liquidity issues for some entities and consumers. Changes in credit
quality of loan portfolios and trade receivables (amongst other items) as a result of  increasing interest rates, slowing or
negative economic growth, geopolitical risks, rising inflation and other factors  may have a significant influence on an
zoa~a~CO z®| zx2zy x' zy ~Theretod @6tities Znxuddeondiderth® followirfy in wddating their ECL
calculations:

3 The use of reasonable and supportable information. Given the unprecedented circumstances, it is critical that
entities provide transparent disclosure of the critical assumptions and judgements used to measure the ECL

3 Re-segmentation of loan portfolios or groups or receivables

Individual and collective assessment of loans, receivables and contract assets. In order to accelerate the
detection of such changes in credit quality not yet detected at an individual level, it may be appropriate to
adjust ratings and the probabilities of default on a collective basis, considering risk characteristics such as the
industry or geographical location of the borrowers

3 Changesin payment terms. If payment terms are extended or reduced in light of the current economic
circumstances, the terms and conditions of the extension or reduction will have to be assessed to determine
their impacts on the ECL estimate

The ECL calculation and the measurement of significant changes in credit risk both incorporate forward -looking
information using a range of macroeconomic scenarios and, as such, entities need to reassess the inputs to their provision
matrix used to calculate ECLs.

24. Cash and short -term deposits

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Cash at banks and on hand 11,732 11,125
Short-term deposits 5,796 3,791
17,528 14,916

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short -term deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the resp ective short -term deposit rates.

At 31 December 2024A 2} z \ " ¥«| } vy v -20230vWEAGBIEAEEEAERE = oy IAS7.50@a)
borrowing facilities.

The Group has pledged a part of its short -term deposits to fulfil collateral requirements. Referto  Note 21.5 IAS 7.48
for further details.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at 31 IAS 7.45
December:

2024 2023

PEE PEE
Cash at banks and on hand 11,732 11,125
Short-term deposits 5,796 3,791
Cash at banks and short-term deposits attributable to discontinued )
operations 1,294 C

18,822 14,916

Bank overdrafts (966) (2,650)
Cash and cash equivalents 17,856 12,266

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group included its bank overdrafts as part of cash and cash equivalents. This is because these bank overdrafts are
"zlv vw¢z ¥o yz£fvoy voy {¥" £ vao ~o?2z| (IABE8)) v 2 ¥{ 2a}z \ ¥

An entity would need to assess whether its banking arrangement is an integral part of its cash management. Cash
management includes managing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of meeting short -term commitments rather

than for investment or other purposes. The Interpretations Committee concluded in June 2018 thati  f the balance of a
banking arrangement does not often fluctuate from being negative to positive, then this indicates that the arrangement
y¥z© o¥a (¥"f£ vo ~gaz|“vye¢ v a ¥{ a}lz zpa-a~CO xvO} £vaov
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

25. Issued capital and reserves

(continued)

Authorised shares 2024 2023 IAS1.78()
Thousands Thousands AS 1.79(a)()
d"y~sv’™ " ©})v ' z© ¥{ DF zvx} 22,588 20,088  IAS 1.79(a)(iii)
L: x¥wo-z"2a~w¢z | "z{z"zoxz ©}v" z0O0 ¥({ 2,500 2,500
25,088 22,588
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid Thousands PEE r_\fg(a)(“)’(iv)
At 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 19,388 19,388
Issued on 1 May 202 3 for acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ( Note 8) 2,500 2,500
At 31 December 2024 21,888 21,888
During 2024A 2}z v«@} ¥" ~0zy ©}v z xv| ~2ve¢ -v©O ~ax"zvOzy
©}v" z©o ¥{ DOF zvx} C
Share premium P E E | 1as1.78()
At 1 January 2023 c
Cash on exercise of share options in excess of cost of treasury shares 80
At 31 December 2023 80
Issuance of share capital for the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ( Note 8) 4,703
Cash on exercise of share options in excess of cost of treasury shares 29
Transaction costs for issued share capital (32)
At 31 December 2024 4,780
IAS
Treasury shares Thousands DEE 179amwp
At 1 January 2023 335 774
Issued for cash on exercise of share options (65) (120)
At 31 December 2023 270 654
Issued for cash on exercise of share options (75) (146)
At 31 December 2024 195 508
Share option schemes
i}z \"¥«] }vO 2-¥ ©}lv'z ¥|2~¥no Ox}z£z© «woyz" -} ~x}
granted to certain senior executives and certain other employees. Refer to Note 31 for further details.
Share options exercised in each respective year have been settled using the treasury shares of the Group.
The reduction in the treasury share equity component is equal to the cost incurred to acquire the shares, on
a weighted average basis. Any excess of the cash received from employees over the reduction in treasury
shares is recorded in share premium.
Other capital reserves Convertible
Share-based preference
payments shares Total
PEE PEE PEE
As at 1 January 2023 338 228 566
Share-based payments expense during the year 298 c 298
At 31 December 2023 636 228 864
Share-based payments expense during the year 307 c 307
At 31 December 202 4 943 228 1171
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

25. Issued capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves AS 1.79(0)
Other capital reserves
Share-based payments
The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the value of equity -settled share -based payments
provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to
Note 33 for further details of these plans.
Convertible preference shares
The convertible preference share reserve covers the equity component of the issued convertible preference
shares. The liability component is included in Interest -bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 21.2).
All other reserves are as stated in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
OCI items, net of tax:
The disaggregation of changes of OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below: IAS 1.106A
Year ended Fair value
31 December 202 4 Cash reserve of Foreign
flow Cost of financial currency Asset
hedge  hedging assetsat  translation revaluation Retained
reserve reserve FVOCI reserve surplus  earnings Total
PEEI DEEI DEEI DEEI DEEE PEEI PEEI

Net gain on a hedge of net

investment c ¢ ¢ 195 ¢ C 195
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign

operations C ¢ ¢ (246) ¢ C (246)
Currency forward contracts 197 4 c Cc Cc Cc 201
Commodity forward (23) . . 3 3
contracts (617) C C C C (640)
Reclassified to statement of ) ) )
profit or loss (198) 3) (6) C C C (207)
Fair value loss on debt ) ) ) ) )
instruments at FVOCI C C 9) C C C 9)

Fair value loss on equity
instruments designated at

FVOCI Cc (18) c c Cc (18)
Share of OCI of an associate Cc c (30) Cc 30 Cc Cc
Remeasurement on defined
benefit plan c ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ 257 257
Revaluation of office
properties in Euroland Cc o} o} Cc 592 Cc 592
(618) (22) (63) (51) 622 257 125
Year ended 31 December 202 3 Fair value
reserve of Foreign
financial currency
Cash flow assets at translation Retained
hedge reserve FVOCI reserve earnings Total
DEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations C C (117) C (117)
Currency forward contracts (265) Cc Cc C (265)
Reclassification to statement of profit
or loss 289 Cc Cc ¢ 289
Fair value loss on debt instruments at FVOCI ¢ @) ¢ ¢ 4)
Reclassification to statement of profit
or loss C 3 C C 3
Fair value gain on equity instruments
designated at FVOCI C 7 C C 7
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan ¢ ¢ ¢ (273) (273)
24 6 (117) (273) (360)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

26. Distributions made and proposed

share)

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:

share)

December.

27. Provisions

At 1 January 202 4
Acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 8)
Arising during

the year

Utilised

Unused amounts
reversed
Unwinding of
discount and
changes in the
discount rate

At 31 December 202 4

Current
Non-current

At 1 January 2023
Arising during the year

(continued)

IAS 1.107

At 31 December 2023

Current
Non-current

2024 2023
DEE PEE
Cash dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for 202 3: 5.66 cents per share (2022: 3.93 cents per share) 1,089 749
Interim dividend for 202 4: 4.66 cents per share ( 202 3: 4.47 cents per 890 851
1,979 1,600
Special cash dividends on ordinary shares declared but not paid:
Special dividends for 202 4: 2.14 cents per share ( 202 3: Nil) 410 C
Final cash dividend for 202 4: 5.01 cents per share ( 202 3: 5.66 cents per 1,087 1,082
Special dividends were approved by an extraordinary shareholders meeting on 15 December 2024 and are
included as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. Proposed dividends on ordinary shares
are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31
Social Waste Contingent
security  electrical liability
Assurance - contributions and recognised in
type onshare electronic a business Onerous
warranties  Restructuring Decommissioning options equipment  combination contracts Total
PEEL DEEL PEEL DEEL DEEL DEEL PEEL PEE
118 ¢ ¢ 4 53 ¢ ¢ 175
¢ 900 1,200 ¢ ¢ 380 2,480
112 ¢ ¢ 26 102 20 20 280
(60) (59) ¢ (19) (8) ¢ ¢ (146)
(6) (6) ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ (12)
2 17 21 1 2 ¢ ¢ 43
166 852 1,221 12 149 400 20 2820
166 305 ¢ 28 400 20 922
Cc 547 1,221 121 c ¢ 1,898
Social security Waste
contributions electrical and
Assurance - on electronic
type warranties share options equipment Total
DEE]I DEEI DEE| DEEI
66 3 31 100
52 1 22 75
118 4 53 175
118 ¢ 38 156
¢ 4 15 19
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.137(a)

IAS 37.84(a)

IAS 37.84(b)
IAS 37.84(c)

IAS 37.84(d)

IAS 37.84(e)

IAS 1.61
IAS 37.85( a)

IAS 37.84(a)
IAS 37.84(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

27. Provisions (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The above table shows the voluntary disclosure of provisions for the comparative period as IAS 37.84 does not require
such disclosure.

Assurance -type warranties

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the year, based on past

experience of the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next

financial year. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on current sales levels IAS 37.85
and current information available about returns based on the warranty period for all products sold.

Restructuring

Extinguishers Ltd recorded a restructuring provision prior to being acquired by the Group. The provision
relates principally to the elimination of certain of its product lines. The restructuring plan was drawn up and
announced to the employees of Extinguis hers Limited in 202 4 when the provision was recognised in its
financial statements. The restructuring is expected to be completed by 2026.

Decommissioning

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with a factory owned by
Extinguishers Limited. The Group is committed to decommissioning the site as a result of the construction of
the manufacturing facility for the production of fire  retardant fabrics.

Social security contributions on share options

The provision for social security contributions on share options is calculated based on the number of options
outstanding at the reporting date that are expected to be exercised. The provision is based on market price

of the shares at the reporting date wh ich is the best estimate of the market price at the date of exercise. It is
expected that the costs will be incurred during the exercise period of 1 January 2025 to 31 December 202 7.

Waste electrical and electronic equipment
The provision for waste electrical and electronic equipment is calculated based on sales after 13 August
200 8 (new waste) and expected disposals of historical waste (sales up to 13 August 200 8).

Onerous contracts

A provision is recognised for certain contracts with suppliers for which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received. It is anticipated that these costs will be
incurred in the next financial year.

28. Government grants IAS 20.39(0)
2024 2023
DEE DEE
At 1 January 1,551 1,450
Received during the year 2,951 642
Released to the statement of profit or loss (1,053) (541)
At 31 December 3,449 1,551
Current 149 151
Non-current 3,300 1,400
Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. IAS 20.39(c)
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.
29. Contract liabilities
2024 2023
DEE DEE
Long-term advances for equipment 2,820 844
Short-term advances for i nstallation services 1,374 1,258
Customer loyalty points 900 678
Service-type warranties 524 410
Equipment received from customers 224 184
Total contract liabilities (Note 4) 5,842 3,374
Current 2,880 2,486
Non-current 2,962 888
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

29. Contract liabilities (continued)

29.1 Quality Points transactions

2024 2023

PEE PEE
At 1 January 678 551
Deferred during the year 1,381 1,256
Recognised as revenue during the year (1,159) (1,129)
At 31 December 900 678
Current 398 346
Non-current 502 332

These amounts relate to the accrual and release of Quality Points transactions. As at 31 December 2024,
alz z©Ga~£L£vazy ¢t~vw~¢~2" {¥" 90050004 302 FOL6FY,000).¥ ~0 2 © V£ ¥«

30. Trade and other payables

2024 2023
DEE PEE
Restated
Trade payables 15,421 18,551
Other payables 1,508 1,450
Related parties 40 22
16,969 20,023
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: IFRS 7.39
3 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled by the Group on 60 -day terms, AS
~ox¢t«y~o| 2} ¥©z 2@"vyz v vwez©O 3} va vz ~aoxC«yzZy 74Hpb)ii
3  Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
3 Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year
3 For terms and conditions with related parties, referto  Note 35
[¥" z®!' ¢vova~¥o© ¥o a3}z \ " ¥«! CO ¢~§dotgME. ~ ~0Oj £V“|FRs7_39(c)
The Group has established a supplier financev ™ " veo | z£zwo2 2}l vyva ~0© ¥{{z"zy 2 IAS744F
O« | ¢~2"0© ~no Z«"¥¢voyC ev @ ~x~]va&~¥no ~o &}z v77"vno]| AS744H@)
participate in the supplier finance arrangement will receive early payment on invoices sentt o the Group
{"¥£ 2}z \ "¥«! CO z®2z  oveE¢ {~ovoxz | " ¥a~-yz"C "{ O«|
the finance provider, to which the Group is not party. In order for the finance provider to pay the invoices,
the goods must have been received or supplied and the invoices approved by the Group. Payments to
suppliers ahead of the invoice due date are processed by the finance provider and, in all cases, the Group
settles the original invoice by paying the finance provider in line with the  original invoice maturity date
described above. Payment terms with suppliers have not been renegotiated in conjunction with the
arrangement. The Group provides no security to the finance provider.
All trade payables subject to the supplier finance arrangement are included in trade and other payables in IAS 7.44H(b)(i)
the consolidated statement of financial position and within trade payables in the table above.
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 1 January 2023
PEE PEE PEE
Restated
Carrying amount of trade payables 8,278 7,437 6,238  IAS7.44H(b)()
that are part of a supplier finance
arrangement
Of which suppliers have received 4,697 4,140 3,389 |as 7.44H(b)(i)
payment
IAS 7.44H(c)

There were no significant non -cash changes in the carrying amount of the trade payables included in the
Group's supplier finance arrangement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

30. Trade and other payables (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standard s

IAS 7.44F requires entities to disclose information about supplier finance arrangements, which are also described
with other terms, such as supply chain finance, payables finance and reverse factoring. While IAS 7.44G describes
the characteristics of such arrangements, the standard d oes not provide a clear definition of an arrangement in the
scope of the disclosure requirements, which can make their application more challenging and increase the amount of
judgement that entities need to apply. If an entity has several supplier finance arrangements, the terms and
conditions need to be disclosed separately for the dissimilar arrangements.

The IFRS Interpretations Committee, in December 2020, addressed relevant aspects related to supplier finance
arrangements that need to be considered when determining whether to derecognise, and how to classify, the liability and
related cash flows, which m ay impact the disclosures provided.

31. Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, machinery, vehicles and other equipment used in
its operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and 15 years, whilst

£¥23¥" 47} ~x¢z©® veoy ¥23}z" z8«~|£zw?® | zBZ VCEE }v-az

¥we~| va@~¥po®© «myz " ~2© ¢zv©z®©® vz ©zx«"zy w 2}z
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leas ed assets and some contracts require the Group to
maintain certain financial ratios. There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below.

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office

z8«~! £zma . ~2a} ¢¥- -ve«zCARTE CzYOzCYVNBy<LtEQRzZVPLDZE(]

recognition exemptions for these leases.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 16.52 requires lessees to disclose information in a single note or a separate section in the financial statements.
However, there is no need to duplicate certain information that is already presented elsewhere, provided that
information is incorporate d by cross-reference in a single note or separate section. The Group provided most of the
required disclosures by IFRS 16 in this section of the financial statements. Cross -references are provided for certain
required information outside of this section.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right -of-use assets recognised and the movements during the
period:

Plant and machinery Motor vehicles Other equipment Total
PEEE PEEE PEEE PEE!
As at 1 January 2023 1,552 699 664 2,915
Additions (Note 8) 124 58 46 228
Depreciation expense (158) (131) (122) (411)
As at 31 December 2023 1,518 626 588 2,732
Additions (Note 8) 424 108 78 610
Depreciation expense (173) (136) (125) (434)
As at 31 December 2024 1,769 598 541 2,908

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest -bearing loans and
borrowings) and the movements during the period:

2024 2023

PEEI PEEI
As at 1 January 2,971 3,089
Additions 593 225
Accretion of interest 178 185
Payments (581) (528)
As at 31 December 3,161 2,971
Current (Note 21.2) 455 418
Non-current (Note 21.2) 2,706 2,553

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 21.5 .

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 16.51
IFRS 16.52

IFRS 16.59(a)
IFRS 16.59(c)

IFRS 16.60

IFRS 16.54

IFRS 16.53(h)
IFRS 16.53(a)

IFRS 16.53(j)
IFRS 16.53(h)
IFRS 16.53(a)

IFRS 16.53(j)

IFRS 16.54

IFRS
16.53(b)

IFRS 16.58
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

31. Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: IFRS 16.54
2024 2023
PEEI PEEI
IFRS
Depreciation expense of right -of-use assets 434 411  16.53(a)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 178 185 llFeFiaSs(b)
IFRS
Expenserelating to short -term leases (included in cost of sales) 22 21 16.53(c)
Expense relating to leases of low -value assets (included in administrative IFRS
expenses) 18 17  1653(d)
IFRS
Variable lease payments (included in cost of sales) 32 28 16.53(e)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 684 662
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of 653,000 in 202 4 (594,000 in 202 3). The Group also IFRS 16.53(9)
had non-cash additions to right -of-« ©z v ©©z2 © vaoy ¢zv©z Z224-WwBD-GGCPAEEKE ¥ |1F6|.?559(b)(iv)
202 3). The future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in Note 34. IAS 7.43

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IFRS 16.53 requires disclosure of the following information, which users of the financial statements have identified as
being most useful to their analysis:

Depreciation charge for right -of-use assets, split by class of underlying asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Short-term lease expense for such leases with a lease term greater than one month
Low-value asset lease expense (except for portions related to short -term leases)
Variable lease expense (i.e., for variable lease payments not included in the lease liability)
Income from subleasing right -of-use assets

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right -of-use assets

[ON RGN RGN N GN R N R N R GN R N R N |

Gains and losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions
3 Carrying amount of right -of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying asset

All of the above disclosures are required to be presented in a tabular format, unless another format is more appropriate.
The amounts to be disclosed must include costs that the lessee has included in the carrying amount of another asset
during the reporting period (IFRS 16.54).

The standard requires disclosure of the total cash outflow for leases. T he Group also included the cash outflow related to
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases in the disclosure of the total cash outflow .

IFRS 16.55 requires disclosure of the amount of lease commitments for short -term leases when short -term lease
commitments at the end of the reporting period are dissimilarto the ©v £z | z 7 ~ ¥eyn(e&@se @3pehsedthat is
otherwise required to be disclosed). This disclosure requirement is not applicable to the Group.

Afgh FKCJIJN "z8§«~"z© vyy~2~¥ove¢ 8S§«ve¢~2ya~-z yvoy 8S«yvnonad~2aya
meet the disclosure objective of the standard. This additional information may include , but is not limited to, information
that helps users of the financial statements to assess:

3 i}z mva«iz ¥{ a2}z ¢z©0zzCO ¢zvO~a| VvXa~-a~23-~70

3 Future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the measurement of
lease liabilities:

Variable lease payments
Extension options and termination options

Residual value guarantees

Restrictions or covenants imposed by leases

)
3
3
3 Leases not yet commenced to which the lessee is committed
3
3  Sale and leaseback transactions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 215
31. Leases (continued) o
Group as a lessee (continued) 0|

The Group has lease contracts for machiner y that contain s variable payments based on the number of units  IFRS 16.59(b)()
to be manufactured. These terms are negotiated by management for certain machiner y that is used to IFRS 16.849
manufacture products without steady customer demand. Mv e v | z £z o2 C© ¥align the ltase~z -

expense with the units manufactured and revenue earned. The following provides information on the

\ " ¥«! CO -v " ymant$, mcludiagvti@ znagnitude in relation to fixed payments:

Variable 5
Fixed payments payments Total g
2024 PEE PEE PEE 8
Fixed rent 352 C 352 =
Variable rent with minimum payment 176 a7 223
Variable rent only Cc 24 24
528 71 599
2023
Fixed rent 392 ¢ 392
Variable rent with minimum payment 189 45 234
Variable rent only ¢ 21 21
581 66 647 ‘

A 5% increase inunits produced for the relevant products would increase total lease payments by 1%.

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Disclosures of additional information relating to variable lease payments could include (IFRS 16.B49):
3 i}z ¢2z00zzCO " zvO¥n®© {¥° «O©~»| -vi ~vwetz ¢zv©Oz ! Vv £z
3 The relative magnitude of variable lease payments to fixed payments

Consolidated financial statements
19 18 17 16 15

3 Key variables upon which variable lease payments depend on how payments are expected to vary in response

to changes in those key variables 8

3 Other operational and financial effects of variable lease payments
—
Entities would need to exercise judgement in determining the extent of disclosures needed to satisfy the disclosure N
objective of the s tandard (i.e., to provide a basis for users to assess the effect of leases on the financial position, 2|
financial performance, and cash flows of the lessee). g N
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are @

negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the
\ " ¥ «Bugin@ss needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether the se
extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised (see Note 3).

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the IFRS 16.59(b)(i)
exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term: IFRS 16.850 ®
5
Within five  More than five 8
years years Total g
As at 31 December 202 4 PEE PEE PEE _<_§
@
Extension options expected not to be exercised 525 403 928 <§
Termination options expected to be exercised 424 202 626 ;_'é
949 605 1,554 s
o
As at 31 December 202 3 B
Extension options expected not to be exercised 504 398 902
Termination options expected to be exercised 388 176 564
892 574 1,466 &
™
<
4
= )
i ™
(o}
<
©
™

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 131




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

31. Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards
Disclosures of additional information relating to  extension and termination options could include (IFRS 16.B50):
3 i}z ¢ zreasonzf@ @sing extension options or termination options and the prevalence of those options
3 The relative magnitude of optional lease payments to lease payments
3 The prevalence of the exercise of options that were not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
3 Other operational and financial effects of those options
Entities would need to exercise judgement in determining the extent of disclosures needed to satisfy the disclosure
objective of the standard (i.e., to provide a basis for users to assess the effect of leases on the financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows of the lessee).
Group as a lessor
The Group has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of certain office IFRS 16.90

and manufacturing buildings (see Note 18). These leases have terms of between five and 20 years. All :EEE 12:;
leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to
prevailing market conditions. The lesseeis also required to provide a residual value guarantee on the
properties. Rental income recognised by the Groupy « ©~ ~=a | 2 } £404,000/ (2023@ 1,877,000 ).
Future undiscounted lease payments to be received under operati ng leases as at 31 December are, as
follows:
2024 2023 IFRS 16.97
PEE! PEE
Within one year 1,418 1,390
Between 1 and 2 years 1,387 1,371
Between 2 and 3 years 1,411 1,389
Between 3 and 4 years 1,452 1,420
Between 4 and 5 years 1,380 1,340
More than 5 years 5,901 5,864
12,949 12,774
32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans
Net employee defined benefit liabilities
2024 2023
PEETE PEE
US post-employment healthcare benefit plan 339 197
Euroland pension plan 2,711 2,780
Total 3,050 2,977
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan in Euroland (funded). Also, in the United States, the Group IAS 19.135
provides certainpost-z £} ¢ ¥ £zwm2 }zve¢@} xv' z wzez{~20© 2¥ zE£| ¢¥_:ﬁ2£:122
benefit pension plan is a final salary plan for Eurol and employees, which requires contributions to be made
to a separately administered fund.
This plan is governed by the employment laws of Euroland, which require final salary payments to be IAS 19.139

adjusted for the consumer price index upon payment during retirement. The level of benefits provided
yz!zoy© ¥wo 2}z £z£f£wz CO ¢ zretrengntagd The®fmrd has thelegal foyn of@v ¢ v
foundation and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and
employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan as sets

and for the definition of the investment strategy.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
s
32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued) °Bi
Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the Euroland pension plan as required by IAS 19.146
_ 1AS 19.147(3) Lo|

Z« " ¥¢vayCO z£!¢¥ £zu?a ¢z]| ~0¢v?2 ~Nabilly matehing strategy and~ ~ z -
investment risk management policy. This includes employing the use of annuities and longevity swaps to
manage the risks. The Board of Trustees decides its c ontribution based on the results of this annual review.
Generally, it aims to have a portfolio mix of a combined 40% in equity and property and 60% in debt
~0@©2" «£2z820©C Z« ¥¢voyCO z£!¢¥ £zun?2 ¢z| ~0¢tva~¥ma  z§
valuation performed in accordance with the regulations in Euroland) over a period of no more than five

years after the period in which the deficit arises. The Board of Trustees aim to keep annual contributions
relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed in accordance with the
regulations in Euroland) will arise.

=
o
=
o
>
°
o
=
=]
=

h~axz 2}z | zo0O~¥8o ¢~vw~¢~2" ~0O vy «O2zy 2¥ 23}z x¥ag
inflation, interest rate risks and changes in the life expectancy for pensioners. As the plan assets include
significant investments in listed equity shares of entities in manufacturing and consumer products sector,

the Group is also exposed to equity market risk arising in the manufacturing and consumer products sector.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the statement of financial position for the
respective plans:

Post-employment healthcare benefit plan

Net benefit expense (recognised in profit or loss) 2024 2023
PEEE PEEL
Current service cost 142 108
Interest cost on benefit obligation 11 5
Net benefit expense 153 113

Consolidated financial statements

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
D E E IAS19.141

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 2023 88
Interest cost 5
Current service cost 108 —
Benefits paid (34) &
Exchange differences 30 g ~
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 202 3 197 2 o
Interest cost 11 g
Current service cost 142
Benefits paid (21)
Exchange differences 10
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2024 339

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

Euroland Plan

202 4 changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in OCI

Sub-total Return on plan Actuarial changes Actuarial changes IAS
included in assets (excluding arising from arising from 19.140
Net profit or amounts included changes in changes Sub-total IAS
1 January Service interest loss Benefits in net interest demographic in financial Experience included in  Contributions 31 December  19.141

2024 cost expense (Note 13.7) paid expense) assumptions assumptions adjustments OCl by employer 2024

PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE DEEE PEE PDEE PEE PEE PbEE
Defined benefit
obligation (5,610) (1,267) (256) (1,523) 868 c 211 (80) (20) 111 Cc (6,154)
Fair value of plan assets 2,830 ¢ 125 125 (868) 256 c ¢ ¢ 256 1,100 3,443
Benefit liability (2,780) (1,398) Cc 256 211 (80) (20) 367 1,100 (2,711)
202 3 changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in OCI
Sub-total Return on plan Actuarial changes  Actuarial changes
included in assets (excluding arising from arising from
Net profit or amounts included changes in changes Sub-total
1 January Service interest loss Benefits in net interest demographic in financial Experience included in  Contributions 31 December

2023 cost expense (Note 13.7) paid expense) assumptions assumptions adjustments OCl by employer 2023

PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PDEE PEE PDEE PEE
Defined benefit
obligation (5,248) (1,144) (283) (1,427) 1,166 o (201) 70 30 (101) c (5,610)
Fair value of plan assets 2,810 é 161 161 (1,166) (289) Cc Cc Cc (289) 1,314 2,830
Benefit liability (2,438) (1,266) Cc (289) (201) 70 30 (390) 1,314 (2,780)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

An entity must assess whether all or some disclosures should be disaggregated to distinguish plans or groups of plans with ma terially different risks under the requirements of IAS 19.138. For example, an
entity may disaggregate disclosure about plans showi ng one or more of the following features: different geographical locations, characteristics such as flat salary pension plans | final salary pension plans or
post-employment medical plans, regulatory environments, reporting segments and/or funding arrangeme  nts (e.g., wholly unfunded, wholly or partly funded).

Entities must exercise judgement and assess the grouping criteria according to their specific facts and circumstances. In thi
there is no further disaggregation shown.

s case, the Group has only one defined benefit pension plan in Euroland, hence

Additional disclosures may also be provided to meet the objectives in IAS 19.135. For example, an entity may present an analy
nature, characteristics and risks of the obligati on. Such a disclosure could distinguish:

(a) between amounts owing to active members, deferred members, and pensioners

(b) between vested benefits and accrued but not vested benefits
(c) between conditional benefits, amounts attributable to future

sis of the present value of the defined benefit obligation that distinguishes the

salary increases and other benefits
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

The acquisitions of Extinguishers Limited in 202 4 and Lightbulbs Limited in 202 3 did not affect plan assets or
the defined benefit obligation, as neither of the entities had  defined benefit plans.

The fair values of each major class of plan assets are as follows:

2024 2023
DEE DEE
Investments quoted in active markets:
Listed equity investments
Manufacturing and consumer products sector 830 655
Telecom sector 45 33
Bonds issued by Euroland Government 1,670 1,615
Cash and cash equivalents 400 250
Unquoted investments:
Debt instruments issued by Good Bank International Limited 428 222
Property 70 55
Total 3,443 2,830

The plan assets include a property occupied by the Group witha { v ~~

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Euroland plan

Under IAS 19.142, the Group has separated the plan assets within different classes. The Group hasaclass -¢ |

which has not been further classified into categories. The amount is not determined to be material to the consolidated

financial statements.

-V (¢ «z 20280 DD EBAEEEIAS19.143

¥ z"

The fair values of each class of plan assets were determined in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13. However, the
fair value disclosures required by IFRS 13 do not apply to plan assets measured at fair value in accordance with IAS 19.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post -employment medical benefit obligations for

alz \"¥«! CO !¢tvooO v~z

Discount rate:
Euroland pension plan
Post-employment medical plan

Future salary increases:
Euroland pension plan

Future consumer price index increases:
Euroland pension plan

Healthcare cost increase rate

Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65:
Euroland pension plan

Male

Female

Post-employment healthcare benefit plan
Male
Female

©} ¥-o wz¢¥-0

2024 2023
% %
4.9 5.5
5.7 5.9
3.5 4.0
2.1 21
7.2 7.4
Years Years
20.0 20.0
23.0 23.0
19.0 19.0
22.0 22.0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption s as at 31 December is, as shown below:

Assumptions for Euroland pension plan:
Future pension cost increase :
1%increase
1% decrease
Discount rate:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease
Future salary increases:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease
Life expectancy of male pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year
Life expectancy of female pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Assumptions for US post -employment healthcare benefit plan:

Future pension cost increase:
1%increase
1% decrease

Discount rate:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease

Life expectancy of male pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Life expectancy of female pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Impact on defined
benefit obligation

202 4 2023
PEE PEE
70 60
(80) (70)
(90) (100)
80 70
120 110
(110) (130)
110 100
(120) (130)
70 60
(60) (70)
110 105
(90) (95)
(90) (120)
100 80
130 125
(150) (155)
90 75
(80) (95)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the

defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur i

another.

The following are the expected payments or contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Between 5 and 10 years

Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

n isolation from one

2024 2024
PEE DEE
1,500 1,350
2,150 2,050
2,160 2,340
3,000 2,600
8,810 8,340

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 26.5 years

(202 3: 25.3 years).

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 19.145

IAS 19.145(b)

IAS 19.147(a)

IAS 19.147(b)
IAS 19.147(c)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 19.145(c) also requires disclosure of changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analyses, and the reasons for such changes. The Group did not have such changes.

IAS 19.145(a) requires disclosure of sensitivity analyses showing how the defined benefit obligation would be affected by
reasonably possible changes in actuarial assumptions. The purpose of this publication is to illustrate the disclosures
required and th e changes in the assumptions provided in the sensitivity analyses above are not necessarily reflective of
those in the current markets.

The standard includes some overarching disclosure objectives and considerations that provide a framework to identify the
overall tone and extent of disclosures that should be included in the financial statement notes. For example, IAS 19.136
indicates that entities should consider the followin g when providing defined benefit plan disclosures:

3  The level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements
3 How much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements
3 How much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake
3

Whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information
disclosed

These considerations are meant to assist entities in reconciling the overriding disclosure objective along with the fact that
an extensive list of required disclosures still remains in the standard. In the Basis for Conclusions accompanying IAS 19,
the IASB emphasise that informat ion that is immaterial is not required to be disclosed, as set out in IAS 1.31.

The addition of clear disclosure objectives provides entities with an opportunity to take a fresh look at their defined benef it
i ¢tva y~OxC¢t¥0O«" zOC Z¢~£~ovd@~o| ~££va@z " ~vet y~OxC¥0O« z©O - ¥«
tran sactions and details that truly matter.

Commentary on macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty

Increasing interest rates, slowing or negative economic growth, geopolitical risks, rising inflation ~ and a reduction in asset
values may have triggered the need for a re -measurement of the defined benefit obligation and pension plan assets. The
current environment may continue to affect the values of the plan assets and obligations resulting in potential volatility in

the amount of the net defined benefit pension plan surplus/deficit recognised.

The impact of the current macroeconomic and geopolitical environment will vary by entity, with some entities recognising
increases in net pension assets, while others having to recognise decreases. Entities should ensure that sufficient
disclosures are made such that users are able to understand the impacts on pension plans.

33. Share-based payments

Senior Executive Plan IFRS 2.45(a)

Under the Senior Executive Plan (SEP), share options of the parent are granted to senior executives of the
parent, including members of key management personnel, - ~3} £¥"z 2} vao FG £¥uoa}
price of the share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant. The

©} vz ¥!a~¥po© -z02 ~{ (wom-marketjcanditiorf) Jinzreases By 4J%Gv@hinZhect years
from the date of grant and the senior executive remains employed on such date. The share options granted
will not vest if the EPS performance condition is not met.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option pricing model, IFRS 2.46
taking into account the terms and conditions on which the share options were granted. However, the  above
performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

The share options can be exercised up to two years after the three -year vesting period and therefore, the
contractual term of each option granted is five years. There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group
does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options. The Group accounts for the SEP as
an equity -settled plan.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

33. Share -based payments (continued)

General Employee Share Option Plan

Under the General Employee Share Option Plan (GESP), the Group, at its discretion, may grant share options
of the parent to employees other than senior executives, once the employee has completed two years of

©z" -~xzC kz©2a~n| ¥{ &}z
compared to a group of principal competitors. Employees must remain in service for a period of three years
from the date of grant. Th e fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a
Monte-Carlo simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the share options
were granted. The model simulates the TSR and compares it against the grou p of principal competitors. It

takes into account historical and expected dividends, and the share price volatility of the Group relative to

©} vz ¥)|238~¥o0

that of its competitors so as to predict the share performance.

~© yz|zuonyzuo?d

The exercise price of the share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of
grant. The contractual term of the share options is five years and there are no cash settlement alternatives
for the employees. The Group does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these awards.

Share Appreciation Rights

i}z \ " ¥«! CO wW«O©O~nz0©O yz -z ¢¥ShéreAppreciatibn Rights (BARS), setiledin | ~ v
cash. The SARs vest when a specified target number of new sales contracts (non-market vesting condition)

are closed within three years from the date of grant and the employee continues to be employed by the
Group at the vesting date. The SARs can be exercised up to three years after the three -year vesting period

and therefore, the contractual term of the SARs is six years.
is measured, initially and at the end of each reporting period until settled, at the fair value of the

Appreciation Rights . This is done by applying an option pricing model, taking into account the terms and

conditions on which the Share Appreciation Rights were granted, and the extent to which the employees

have rendered services to date.

The carrying amount of the liability relating to the SARs at 31 December

The liability for the Share Appreciation Rights
Share

2024- v© DGN@REBEE
D F NI A EN®BARS had vested, granted or forfeited at 31 December 202 4 and 202 3, respectively.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Expense arising from equity -settled share -based payment transactions

Expense arising from cash-settled share -based payment transactions

Total expense arising from share -based payment transactions

2024 2023

) )
307,000 298,000
105,000 194,000
412,000 492,000

There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards in 202 4 or 202 3.

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements
in, share options during the year (excluding SARS):

2024 2024 2023 2023

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at 1 January 575,000 PDGCN 525,000 PGCL
Granted during the year 250,000 PHCN 155,000 PHCF
Forfeited during the year Cc c (25,000) DGCtH
Exercised during the year (75,000) 2 PGC}F  (65,000)1 PHCE
Expired during the year (25,000) PHCE (15,000) PGCF
Outstanding at 31 December 725,000 PHCC 575,000 DGCN
Exercisable at 31 December 110,000 PGCNH 100,000 PGClJ
Y'i}Yz -z~|}2zy v=az"v|z ©}v'z | " ~xz va@ 2a}lz yvaz ¥{ z®z x~-0

2 The weighted average share price atthe y v 2 z

¥{

z®z" x~0z

¥{ 2}z0z ¥!2-¥100

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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2.47(a )(iii)

IFRS 2.50
IFRS 2.51(b)

IFRS 2.50
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IFRS 2.47(c)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

33. Share -based payments (continued)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December
was 2.94 years (202 3: 2.60 years).

2024

IFRS 2.45(d)

itz -z~|}3zy v=az"v]z {v~" avt«z ¥{ ¥20230f Dd CIFM>C? z y IFRS247()
Therangeofz ®z " x~©z | " ~xz© {¥" ¥ 2~¥o00© ¥«20©2vaoy~o2D23v?a@ 2 |Frs2454d)
DPGCFH 2¥ DPHCFH>C

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the three plans for the years ended 31 December
202 4 and 202 3, respectively:

2024 2024 2024
SEP GESP SAR

Weighted average fair values at the measurement date bDHCI bHCF BGCN
Dividend yield (%) 3.13 3.13 3.13
Expected volatility (%) 15.00 16.00 18.00
Riskafree interest rate (%) 5.10 5.10 5.10
Expected life of share options/SARs (years) 4.25 3.00 6.00
lz~|}2zy v=az"v]|z ©})v 'z | " ~X 3.10 3.10 3.12
Model used Binomial Monte Carlo Binomial
2023 2023 2023
SEP GESP SAR

Weighted average fair values at the measurement date DHCEH PHCE DGCEk
Dividend yield (%) 3.01 3.01 3.01
Expected volatility (%) 16.30 17.50 18.10
Riskgfree interest rate (%) 5.00 5.00 5.00
Expected life of options/SARs (years) 4.25 3.00 6.00
Weighted average©} v~z | " ~xz =B> 2.86 2.86 2.88
Model used Binomial Monte Carlo Binomial

The expected life of the share options and SARs is based on historical data and current expectations and is
not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future
trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

34. Commitments and contingencies

Commitments

At 31 December 2024A 2}z \ " ¥« }vy X¥££~2R2230% 2B AJ{E BDAEAEBH>E A-EcE
DGAEEEAR®BE Bc~¢> " z¢va@~o| 2a¥ 2alz x¥£| ¢z2a~¥no ¥{ 2}z
(20230 PIJFKAEEE> " z¢va@~no| 2a¥ a”"yyz | jointwgnur@z x¥E£E£~2 £z

The Group has various lease contracts that ha ve not yet commenced as at 31 December 202 4. The future
lease payments for these non -cancellable lease contracts are b1 MA EvEhih oneyear A BDFNJ AEEE
five years v & y10'B000 thereafter .

Legal claim contingency

An overseas customer has commenced an action against the Group in respect of equipment claimed to be
yz{zx3~-zC i}z z©*~f£vadzy | Vv ¥«@ ~0 DMIEAEEE O} ¥«¢ty
set. Therefore, it is not practicable to state the timing of the payment, if any.

The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that it is only possible, but not probable, that the action will
succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements.

Guarantees

The Group has provided the following guarantees at 31 December 202 4:

3 Guarantee to an unrelated party for the performance in a contract by the joint venture. No liability is
expected to arise

3 \«v voazz ¥{ ~2020R30 EFHAEDBDEBEALEEE }=z vOO¥x~vazCO
been incurred jointly with other investors

Contingent liabilities

i}z VT ¥« "z X¥| va~0zy v

Limited (see Notes 8 and 27).

X¥pd~p| zo?d ¢~vw~¢~2" ¥{ Pl E

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 2.47(a)(i)

IFRS 2.47(a)(ii)

IAS 16.74(c)
IFRS 12.23 (a)
IFRS 12.B18-
B19

IFRS
16.59(b)(iv)

IAS 37.86

IAS 24.21(h)
IAS 24.19(d)
IAS 24.19(e)

IAS 37.86

IFRS 12.23(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

35. Related party disclosures

Note7! " ¥-~yz© ~o{¥ £va~¥o vw¥«? 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ©2" «x?«”
holding company. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into

with related parties for the relevant financial year

Amounts Amounts
Sales to Purchases owed by owed
related  from related related to related IAS 24.18
parties parties parties* parties*  |as 2401
b b b b
Entity with significant
influence over the Group:
International Fires P.L.C. 2024 7,115 ,889 Cc 620,989 Cc
2023 5,975,222 ¢ 550,103 c
Associate:
Power Works Limited 2024 2,987,882 Cc 551,996 Cc
2023 2,113,452 ¢ 582,224 c
Joint venture in which the
parent is a venturer:
Showers Limited 2024 Cc 589,975 Cc 30,204
2023 ¢  431,0,885 c 12,123
Key management personnel
of the Group:
da}z" y~"2zx2¥" 2024 225,022 510,400 Cc 10,000
2023 135,135 489,790 Cc 10,000

* The amounts are classified as trade receivables and trade payables, respectively (see Notes 23 and 30).

Amounts owed by  1AS24.13

Interest received related parties ~ 'AS 2418

Loans from/to related parties b b
Associate:
Power Works Limited 2024 20,000 200,000

2023 ¢ Cc
Key management personnel of the
Group:
Y~"zx2¥ ©C ¢¥voo© 2024 1,000 13,000

2023 ¢ 8,000

There were no transactions other than dividends paid between the Group and S.J. Limited, the ultimate
parent during the financial year ( 20230 bc ~¢ >C

Loan to an associate

The loan granted to Power Works Limited is intended to finance an acquisition of new machines for the
manufacturing of fire prevention equipment. The loan is fully -secured and repayable in full on 1 June 202 5.
Interest is charged at 10%.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

i}z ©OvezO ¥ voy |« ' x}vOz©O {"¥f£ " z¢vdadzy | via~z0O v lAS242
length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year -end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. There have been no guarante es provided or received for any related party receivables or
payables. For the year ended 31 December 202 4, the Group recognised provision for expected credit losses
¥ { b GrwelaikBggo amounts owed by related parties (20230 1,800 ).

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

i}z y~-Ox¢t¥0O«” "z 2}v?ad 283" yoQOVUX2®~¥o© -~2} “z¢vadazy |v ' a~720 v~
required if an entity can substantiate such terms, but IAS 24.23 does not require such a disclosure. The Group was able to
substantiat e the terms and therefore provides the disclosure.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 24.18(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

35. Related party disclosures (continued)

Commitments with related parties

On 1 July 202 4, Bright Sparks Limited entered into a two -year agreement ending 30 June 202 6 with Power
Works Limited to purchase specific electrical and optical cables that Bright Sparks Limited uses in its

I "¥y«x?~¥o x x¢zC W ~|}2 hlv j© a~£~2zy z®] zx026arfd}

DPGJEAEEE ~@&mdhthsof 2026 T@& purchase price is based on Power Works LimitedC© v x 2 « \

plus a 5% margin and will be settled in cash within 30 days of receiving the inventories.

The Group has provided a contractual commitment to Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited , whereby if the

assets held as collateral by Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited for its borrowing fall below a credit rating of
EVVCA 2}z v zoma . ~¢¢ O«wOa~2«2z yvOOz2a© ¥{ vo z8§«-~
a¥ wz “"zi¢tvxzy ~0© DPGERKRERERIOODGFEMNEEEz2KLzEfwz"™

Transactions with key management personnel
Director G loans

i}z \ " ¥« ¥{{z  © ©zuo~¥" £vov]|z£fzwro?a v {vx-~¢~23" 2a¥ w

the date of disbursement. Such loans are unsecured, and the interest rate is based on EURIBOR plu€.8 %
Any loans granted are included in financial instruments on the face of the statement of financial position.

da}z" y~"zx2¥ ©C ~paz" z0©2O©
During both 202 4 and 202 3, Group companies made purchases at market prices from Gnome Industries
Limited, of which the spouse of one of the directors of the Group is a director and controlling shareholder.

One director has a 25% (202 3: 25%) equity interest in Home Fires Limited. The Group has a contract for the
supply of fire extinguishers to Home Fires Limited. During 202 4 and 202 3, the Group supplied fire
extinguishers to Home Fires Limited at market prices.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
2024 2023
b b
Short-term employee benefits 3,417,483 2,965,140
Post-employment pension and medical benefits 455,557 359,009
Termination benefits 158,725 ¢
Share-based payment transactions 312,727 63,860
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 4,344,492 3,388,009

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period
related to key management personnel. Senior management personnel of the Group, excluding non -executive
directors, are included in an annual cash bonus scheme. Bonuses in this scheme are determined on the basis
of both financial and non -financial KPIs, such as emission reduction targets and r ecycling targets, depending
on their roles. Amounts awarded under this scheme are included in short -term employee benefits in the

table above.

Generally, the non-executive directors do not receive pension entitlements from the Group. During 202 4, an
VE¥«o?ll0gs PDvO | v~y 2¥ v y~"zxa¥" -1 ¥ Tza~"zy2023" ¥£

Y~"zx2¥ ©C ~n2z" z0©2© ~un 2}z hzo~¥" Z®zx«2@~-z etvao
Share options held by executive members of the Board of Directors under the Senior Executive Plan to
purchase ordinary shares have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Expiry Exercise

Date of grant date price 202 2023
Number Number

outstanding  outstanding

2023 2026 BGCtH 10,000 10,000
2023 2026 PHCF 83,000 83,000
2024 2027 DHCN 27,000 c
Total 120,000 93,000

No share options have been granted to the non -executive members of the Board of Directors under this
scheme. Refer to Note 33 for further details on the scheme.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 24.18(b)
IAS 24.21(i)

IFRS 12.14-15

IAS 24.18

IAS 24.18
IAS 24.19(f)

IAS 24.17

IAS 24.17(e)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

35. Related party disclosures (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

Certain jurisdictions may require additional and more extensive disclosures, e.g., remuneration and benefits of key
management personnel and members of the Board of Directors.

36. Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of IAS 8.30
~©O©«vuaxz ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«!CO {~mvax~ve¢ ©2vazfzona@© mewandy IAS 8.31(d)
amended standards and interpretations , if applicable, when they become effective.

Lack of exchangeability AAmendments to IAS 21 IAS 8.31
In August 2023, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a

spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking . The amendments also require disclosure of information

that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into

alz ¥23alz" x«" Tzmx v{{zx?©A ¥ ~© z®| zx?2 zycialPpdsitionfnd z

cash flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Early
adoption is permitted, but will need to be disclosed. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information.

i}z vEzoyfze2© v 'z o¥? z®|zx2%zy ¥ }v-az v £va&@z" ~v¢e

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. IFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified

totals and subtotals. Furthermore, entities are required to classify all income and expenses within the
statement of profit or loss into one of five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and
discontinued operations, whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management -defined performance measures, subtotals of
income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of financial
~a{ ¥ £va~¥n wvOzy ¥ao 2}z ~financidl stafements (PES) #d thethGtes¥ { 2} z

In addition, narrow -scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, which include
changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under the indirect method, from

! "¥{~2 ¥ ¢¥0OC 2¥ @& ¥rowifigiht eptiohality droar{d eldssifiéation of ¥aSHcilGwsv a y
from dividends and interest. In addition, there are consequential amendments to several other standards.

IFRS 18, and the amendments to the other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply
retrospectively.

The Group is currently working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the primary financial
statements and notes to the financial statements.

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

In May 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 19, which allows eligible entities to elect to apply its reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements in other IFRS
accounting standards. To be eligible, a t the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as
defined in IFRS 10, cannot have public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that
prepares consolidated financial statements, available for public use, which co mply with IFRS accounting
standards.

IFRS 19 will become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted.

VO 2}z \ " ¥«! CO z§«~2~ ~0028 " «£z820© v z !«wt~x¢_ a’y
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

36. Standards issued but not yet effective  (continued)

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

IAS 8.30 requires disclosure of standards that have been issued but are not yet effective. These disclosures are required

to provide known or reasonably estimable information to enable users to assess the possible impact of the application of

such IFRSaccounting standards ¥ @ va zma ~2a CO® {~mvax~ve¢ ©2vazfza20OC i}z \
that are not yet effective, primarily for the illustrative purpose of these financial statements. An alternative that entitie S
may consider would be toonly listaey vyy~  z©© 2} ¥©z -}~x} v'z z®|zx?2zy 2a¥ }
position, performance, presentation and/or disclosures.

37. Events after the reporting period

On 14 January 2025A v w«~¢y~n| - ~2} v w©mzad Ww¥¥| -vet«z ¥{ DF/ASI2
inventories withanetbook - v ¢ «z ¥{ BOBMILAEEE -z"2z yz©02a ¥ zyC ~"a _1As 1010
{vee ©} ¥ 2 ¥{ 2alz x¥020 ¥{ "zw«~Cy~o| voy C¢¥0OO ¥{
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For the year ended 31 December 202 4

Australian Accounting Standards as at 30 June 2024

The disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are applicable to the Group and
have beenillustrated in this section :

AASB 1054

Interpretation 1031
Interpretation 1052

Australian Additional Disclosures
Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Tax Consolidation Accounting

The disclosure requirements of the Corporation Act 2001, Corporations Regulations 2001, ASIC and ASX are
also applicable to the Group and have been illustrated in this section. The following abbreviations are used:

ASIC CI
CA300A

Reg 2M.3.03(1)

ASX

Australian Securities & Investments Commission Corporations Instrument
Corporations Act 2001, section 300A

Corporations Regulations 2001, Chapter 2M, Regulation 3.03, paragraph 1
Australian Securities Exchange Listing Rules

The disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are not applicable to the Group
and have therefore not been illustrated in this supplement:

AASB 1004 Contributions

AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts (Public sector entities only)

AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports

AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting
AASB 1050 Administered Items

AASB 1051 Land Under Roads

AASB 1052 Disaggregated Disclosures

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Accounting Standards

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting

AASB 1056 Superannuation Entities

AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for -Profit Entities

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements g Simplified Disclosures for For -Profit

and Not-for -Profit Tier 2 Entities
Australian Petroleum Resource Rent Tax

Interpretation 1003
Interpretation 1019
Interpretation 1030

The Superannuation Contributions Surcharge

Depreciation of Long -Lived Physical Assets: Condition-Based Depreciation and
Related Methods

Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly -Owned Public Sector Entities
Accounting for Road Earthworks

Interpretation 1038
Interpretation 1055

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Corporate Information

Directors

V. Sheen, Chair

T. Hannah (Managing Director and CEO)
D.J. Estreux

M. Simson

Company Secretary ASX 4.10.10
G.K. Dellas

Directors C Report

Introduction

Registered office

Fire House ASX 4.10.11
Ashdown Square AASB 101.138(a)
Australia

Principal place of business AASB101.138(a)
Bush Avenue

Mulberry Park

Australia

Phone: 61 2 9876 5432

Remuneration report gAudited

Share register ASX 4.10.12
Everest Registry Services

23rd Floor

43 Terry Street

Mulberry Park

Australia

Phone: 61 2 9876 5431

Consolidated financial statements

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited shares are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) ASX 4.10.13

Corporate governance

Solicitors
Solicitors & Co
7 George Street
Mulberry Park
Australia

Bankers
Bank Limited
Martin Place
Mulberry Park
Australia

Auditors

EY

Mulberry Park
Australia
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General commentary

While there is no specific requirement in the Corporations  Act to disclose information relatingtothe z a2 ~a =~ C©
solicitors, bankers and auditors as part of the Corporate information, the above is an illustration of common
disclosures as seen in practice.
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Your directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 202 4

Directors CA 298(1)

The names and details of the Company's directors in office during the financial year and until the date of CA 300(1)(c)
this report are set out below. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Corporate Information

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities CA 300(10)(@)
V. Sheen (Non-Executive Chair)

V. Sheen joined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited in 201 9 as Non-Executive Chair. He also serves on

alz \"¥«! CO v«y~2 x¥ff£~22377 voy ~© x}v-~" ¥{ a}z

past three years, Mr Sheen has served as a director of the following other listed companies:

Directors C Report

Introduction

D.A. Bank Ltd* Cappointed 30 June 20 20

The Oil Company Ltd* Cappointed 15 July 20 21

Spartan Ltd Cappointed 30 October 201 5, resigned 29 October 202 2 CA 300(11)(e)
* Denotes current directorship

T. Hannah, B.Sc. (Managing Director and CEO)

T. Hannah joined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as part of the acquisition of the fire prevention

business in 200 3, becoming Production Manager in 201 5 and Managing Director in 201 9. He also serves
¥o a3}z \ " ¥«! CO " z£ «nzschairefheGroupsHifance &nd treasury opmmittees.

Remuneration report gAudited

D.J. Estreux , B.Com., FCA. (Finance Director)

D.J. Estreux joined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as Finance Director in 201 9. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a senior partner in an accounting firm. Mr Estreux also serves on the Group's finance and
treasury committees.

Consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

M. Krupp, LL.B.

M. Krupp has combined her work as a practising solicitor with her role as a non -executive director of the
Company since 2017. She resigned as a nornrexecutive director of the board on 31 January 202 5. M.
Krupp©z " =wzy v©O x}v~" ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO v«y~2 x¥Eff~aagz
committee. During the past three years she has also served as a director of the following listed

companies:

Castle Ltd* Cappointed 15 July 20 21
Carrington Ltd Cappointed 30 June 20 19, resigned 29 June 202 3 CA300(11)(e)

* Denotes current directorship

M. Simson, M. Eng.

M. Simson joined the board of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as a non -executive director in 20 20.
He is an engineer with significant expertise in the electronics and aviation industries and also serves on
the nomination and remuneration committees of the Group.

C. Mohot

C. Mohot is an American citizen and served as the President of the Australasian operations of S.J.
Limited, the ultimate holding company of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited, from 201 6 to 20 20 and
non-executive director and member of the audit and remuneration committees from January 20 20. She
retired as a non -executive director of the board on 28 July 202 4. During the past three years Ms Mohot
has held the following listed company directorships:

Disclosures in the financial statements

DE Manufacturing Ltd Cappointed 31 December 2019, resigned 30 June 202 2

Additional Australian disclosures
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Directors (continued)

Officers who are former partners of the auditors of the Company CA 300(1)(ca)

The following person w as an officer of the Company at any time during the year and w as previously a
partner of the current audit firm, Ernst & Young, Australia, at the time when the audit firm undertook
the audit of the Group:

D.J. Estreux

CA 300(11)(a),(c)

Interests in the shares , rights and options of the Company and related bodies corporate

As at the date of this report, the interests of the  directors in the shares , performance rights and options
of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited were:

V. Sheen 331,940 20,000 - -
T. Hannah 702,000 6,000 60,000 50,000
D.J. Estreux 117,500 5,000 48,500 50,000
M. Krupp 122,000 - - -
C. Mohot 92,000 - - -
M. Simson 59,000 - - -

Company Secretary

G.K. Dellas B.Com. (Hons), FCA. CA 300(10)(d)
G.K. Dellas has been the Company Secretary of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited for eight years. She
is a chartered accountant - ~2} ¥-z" HE ~zv  ©C z®! 2z " ~zuxz
Dividends
Cents $000 CA 300(1)(b)
Final dividends recommended:
ordinary shares 5.01 1,087
Dividends paid in the year: CA 300(1)(a)
Interim for the year
on ordinary shares 4.66 877
on preference shares 0.46 13
890

Final for 202 4 shown as recommended
in the 202 4 financial report

on ordinary shares 5.66 1,069
on preference shares 0.46 13
1,082

General commentary

Dividend information presented above includes dividends on preference shares in addition to dividends on ordinary
shares for illustrative purposes. In the notes to the financial statements, it is assumed that dividends were only paid
on ordinary shares.
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Principal activities
The principal activities during the year of entities within the consolidated group were: CA299(1)(c)

Corporate Information

Supply and servicing of electronic equipment for defence, aviation and electrical safety markets

3 Production, installation and servicing of extinguishers, fire  prevention equipment and fire retardant
fabrics

3 Management of investment property
3 Production of rubber hosepipes for commercial applications
3 Leasing of offices and manufacturing sites that are surplus to the Group's requirements

Directors C Report

Other than the planned discontinuance of the rubber equipment segment which came about through the
decision to sell Hose Limited, there have been no other significant changes in the nature of these

Introduction

o . °
activities during the year. 2
e}
=
. . . . CA299(1)(a) <
Operating and financial review A 209A(1) o
General commentary ASX 4.10.17 s
i}z v | ¥ 7 ~va2z ~a{¥"fva~¥n 2a¥ y-~-OxC¢C¥Oz ~n 2}z ¥|z"va~i g
operations and the sector in which it operates. o g
= ©
The requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 are: é =
>
3 For all entities, a review of operations and the results of those operations % g
3 For listed entities, information that members of the listed entity would reasonably require to make an % =
informed assessment of: ]
3  The operations .g g
3 Financial position 3 §
3 The business strategies, and prospects for future financial years § §
o
Please also note that for listed entities, ASIC RG 247 Effective disclosure in an operating and financial review assists g S
directors of listed entities in preparing useful and meaningful operating and financial reviews. o %
o
The purpose of this section is to: §
3 Provide an overview of our business model
3 Discuss our strategy (including the risks associated with our strategy)
3 Outline the significant changes in the state of affairs 2
Q
3 Provide a review of our financial condition £
IS
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited akeeping the world safe from fire °
[
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has a long and proud history of protecting people and property from g
fire and other safety risks. From our beginnings in 197 9, as a local manufacturer of fire extinguishers =
serving the Australian market, we have expanded to supply a range of innovative safety products to =
customers around the globe. Today, we have operations in eight countries and employ 500 people, =
supplying the defence, aviation, property and manufacturing sectors with safety solu tions. 3
=)
[%2]
Our business is divided into two key areas: 2 B
5 B
3 The fire prevention equipment business produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention 8 e
equipment and fire retardant fabrics g
3 The electronic safety products business produces and supplies electronic equipment, including é
electronics, safety, thermal and electrical architecture, for electrical safety applications g
All of our activities are driven by the same vision: to keep the world safe from fire. kS
g
K]
£
T
<
=
K]
5]
£
alL
< B
=l i
g|s
2|3
<
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Realising the Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited vision
Keeping the world safe from fire

Market drivers Client focus Efficiency Enablers

Technological Agility gnd Knowin_g Deliv_ering Beon|
change creativity to what will the highest SRS
keep us at keep our quality
Increased safely the forefront clients sa_fe service at Technology
expectations of safety now and in the lowest
technology the future possible
Globalisation price Relationship

Strategic pillars
Market drivers
Technological change: drives demand for new and improved safety technology and creates the possibility
for lower cost mass market safety solutions. There is the potential for disruptive market entrants from
the technology sector.

Increased safety expectations: new regulatory requirements in domestic and overseas markets drive
demand for mass market solutions. Requirement for aviation and defence to maintain best practice
solutions drive demand for innovative tailored products. This also means that existing solu tions become
obsolete more quickly and innovation and speed to market are now necessities, whilst price pressures
continue to grow.

Globalisation: allows access to new, high growth markets. There is the potential for competition from
new market entrants from developing countries, with lower cost base.

Strategic pillars

Innovation

We need to stay at the forefront of technology if we are to find new ways of keeping the world safe from
fire, and to meet emerging risks to the safety of people and property. To  help us meet this challenge,
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has a world -leading research and development program that creates
innovative solutions to safety issues.

For the value of that innovation to be realised for our customers and our shareholders, solutions need to
be developed and brought to market as quickly as possible. Our business is focused on building a pipeline
of solutions from our leading edge, tailored offerings to affordable, mass market products.

Client focus

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has a proud history of collaboration with our clients in aviation and
defence to create cutting -edge solutions. Through our involvement in industry sector associations,
including our support of the International Aviatio n Safety Solutions Network, we continue to build strong
relationships across these sectors, backed by our own Quality Holding Touch client relationship program.

Efficiency

To meet the challenges of a rapidly changing market, last year the Board announced the investment of
$300,000 in a five -year Quality Holding Agility plan. Quality Holding Agility is a set of initiatives focusing
our business on continuous improvement and enabling us to adapt to the changing needs of our
customers for new, lower cost products. Key initiatives are:

3 Engagement with external consultants to develop more effective management of our working
capital

3 Improving our product development processes to increase our speed to market for new mass
market products

3 Better integration of management reporting systems across the business, with particular focus on
the newly acquired operations

Enablers
People
Our people, their experience, enthusiasm and dedication, are the foundation of our business.

Technology
We ensure our people have the tools they need to deliver value.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

RG 247.42
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Relationships

Strong relationships with regulators, suppliers and business partners help us to deliver on our promise of
keeping the world safe from fire.

The Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited value chain

Corporate Information

e E e s EEEEEaEEsEEEEEEssssEEEEsEsssEEEEEnssssEEEEnns o
H Client value §.
e s sEEEsmsssEEEEEsEssEEEEsssssssEsssssssssssssmsssssssssssssnennant o
(&)
Aviation & Defence Manufacturing & Property - g
I} ©
S
. =2 A

Social value g

Innovation flow keeping the E

- world safe from
Conversation to/ fire

Coadevelopment of

RSP tailored solutions

development of mass
market solutions

= =

Capital investment Capital investment

Remuneration report gAudited

The market opportunity

Safety continues to be a growing market globally, driven by rapidly changing technology, increasingly
stringent regulation, and continuing expectation from our clients and their stakeholders that they will be
safe in everything they do. In particular, we see great opportunities in emerging markets as community
expectations of safety increase in line with economic growth.

Consolidated financial statements

At the same time, safety is a highly competitive business. We now compete on a global basis with
manufacturers from emerging markets such as China and India. We also face the potential of disruptive
market entrants from the technology sector, building ont heir existing customer base and technology
platforms to deliver electronic safety services.

Corporate governance

CA 299A(1)(c)
Our strategy RG 247 60 .
In order to respond to these challenges, we are focusing our business on the development of market - RG 247.58 £
ready products, rather than components. To that end we are divesting our component manufacturing £
operations as and when market conditions are favourable, and building our future product pipeline §
through a combination of strategic acquisitions and a strong research and development program. z
(8]
We consider our strategy to be sufficiently agile to deal with the increasing demand for sophisticated fire §
detection and prevention products. Our R&D programs are set to deliver customised and mass market @
. . d=
products to our customers on a timely basis. =
(%]
As we begin to recognise revenue from products developed in previous years, we are confident that our £
ongoing investment in R&D will continue to deliver sustainable returns in the future. o B
o N3
Managing the risks to our growth strategy RG 247.63-66 § a
In developing our strategy, the Board undertook a comprehensive risk review to identify the key risks to 2
our business. The review included an internal and external stakeholder analysis that identified the =
diverse needs of our various stakeholders and the potential risks to our business if those needs are not %
met. This analysis is updated annually. *§
<
T
=
S
£
T
<
=
e
T
£
al 8
e
Tl=
<|3
<
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Supply chain for components less certain The group has made additional investment in its procurement division

since rubber hose division divestment to ensure ongoing and competitive sources of components. In
addition, the terms of sale of Pipe Limited included long -term
guarantees of supply.

Development of new R&D and products is Quality Holding Agility is improving our product development
more expensive than forecast processes, resulting in an increase in our speed to market for new
mass market products.

Supply chain genvironmental and human The Group is highly aware of managing risk in the supply chain,

rights impacts particularly as it moves away from manufacturing. Key issues relate to
the environmental impacts associated with the manufacturing process
and human rights risks in developing countries where we, or our
supplier, have a presence. The Group is preparing a supply chain
strategy that will include supplier screening against environmental and
social criteria.

Increased competition from new market The Group is particularly focused on maintaining strong relationships

entrants with its clients and ensuring we continue to innovate to meet their
needs. Our Quality Holding Agility program will enable us to be agile in
our response to hew competitive threats as they emerge, particularly
through the development of innovative products.

Climate change risk The Group is aware that climate change may cause certain physical
and environmental risks that cannot be predicted. The Group has
established an Executive Sustainability Committee which is developing
an environmental action plan to manage the impact of cli mate change
and monitor new environmental laws, with a focus on achieving net
zero emissions.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
Divestments, acquisitions and formations

Sale of Hose Limited

Y« " ~o| dxfAWz}zZ GEG¥«| voo¥«coxzy 2}z yzXx~¥Oo~o¥zoy 2@« W
i}z ©O}viz}¥cecyz © ¥{ 2a}lz X®EReoy«Vh-p] ¥leCX¥y Bz "a|~EE!
"z} 72z2©z020© 2}z zwo?~"7 g«wwz B VvZ8y« ~— CE zya-20O xClz¥ CEzzyn 2v C¥ {
¥l z"va~¥n va2a HFCYzxz£Ewz"  GEG

Acquisition of Extinguishers Limited

The fire prevention division of our business was substantially strengthened by the acquisition on 1 May
202 4 of Extinguishers Limited, a company that has been operating in Australia for many years. As well
as a strong customer base and quality product line, Extinguishers Limited has a world -leading research
and development program that is well placed to contribute to converting our tailored products for the
mass market. The acquisition also included a number of highly profitable fire prevention patents that will
bring in stable revenue streams for several years to come.

Formation of Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited
itz \ " ¥«] }VvO w¥¢tO02z zy ~20© ¥uo| ¥~o| g;Y voy 8«ve-

Z8«~}| £zn? jz©O® avw a~£~2zyC i}z avw -~¢¢ | " ¥-~yz
Evijza | "¥y«x®0© voy 2¥ COxX¥AgATVE ¥CT¥ |¥ov Y ¥ §Z«@~(OR
¥{ @}z oBz- {vx~¢~2" ~ECy«z {¥" x¥£)¢z2@~¥o ~o GEG

Capital structure

Long-term borrowings

itz VU ¥«] ¥w?2v-~ozy¥{vyyHCEER vit? §{ oWk eyl ©z~¥f 2}z Tz
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Issued shares
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3 $0.675 million, if the entity generates up to $1.500 million of profit before tax in a 12 -month
period after the acquisition date

v -

3 $1.125 million, if the entity generates $1.500 million or more of profit before tax in a 12 -month
period after the acquisition date

At 31 December 202 4, the key performance indicators of Extinguishers Limited indicated that it was
highly probable it would generate a profit before tax in excess of $1 .500 million. Accordingly, that
probability, when considered in combination with the time value of money, resulted in a contingent
consideration liability at balance date of $1 .072 million associated with the acquisition of Extinguishers
Limited. The contingent consideration liability is due to be settled on 30 September 202 5.

Review of financial condition CA 299A(1)(a)
. - . CA 299A(1)(b)
Profit from continuing operations RG 247.44

The Group reported a profit before tax from continuing operations of $11.088 million for the year ended
31 December 202 4 (202 3: $8.880 million), an increase of 25.1% from the prior year. The increase in
profit before tax from continuing operations was substantially driven from the contribution of Lightbulbs
Limited in its first full year post acquisition ($0.506 million) and the  acquisition of Extinguishers Limited
($0.750 million).

Liquidity and capital resources

i}z X¥oO¥¢~yvazy xv©O} {¢¥- 02w zELf£ux?z vQx «OF § ¥ Q¢
~o 2}z Tzv" zoyzy ¥HF 9V LG FwHIHBEER =fGEA ~¥o>C d] z
| zez"vadazy OFECNH® FGECICIF ¥B~¢GEHLo> ¥{ wzd xv©Oo} {¢¥-

i}z ~ox7zvOz XH¥EXWO}~O¥wm{ ¢-¥-2}~-r}z | " ~¥" T zv’~  ~0O0 ¢
XVv) ~2ve¢e £veov]|z£zr?d ©2"vaz| ~z0O0 ~£) ¢zE£zr?azy w 2}z
fave~2T ] ¥¢y~a| ©® =V«O©2"ve~v>CO xv! ~2g¢¥XExs2A¥{ ~¢
| 7Z22~¥«®© T zv'  © ©o¥- wz| ~mo~@o| ¥ wz “zve~-©zyC BB-~¢
alRg" @ {~"z yz?zx?®~¥op voy O] " ~mjt¢tz" © ©2z£© B=n{v-wizz
©v{z?3d z8«~| £Ex® ©z41 Ezx®>¥n

}~© ©vz2% ~Ox"zvOz ~8B 28}z XxVvO} {¢¥-0©O {"¥Ef ¥,z va~:

i

~8-2202 ~o0| VvXq@~a~2~7EOYXLCLHIGCEIECEXY¥OGCCY¥ D } =@GE@| v~>B
| ¥~o2 ¥{ 2}z xv]~2ve¢e x x¢zA -}z "z -z x¥p?~pD«z 2%¥
az- | "T¥y«x? ¢~w0z0C i}lz"z -vO VCI(H¥FEFRRNCEGEC E£¥ 8 ¢x\
{~svex~s| VvX@~-~2~70A ¢v | z¢ y«z 2¥ | "¥xzzy© {77!

Business divisions

Fire prevention equipment

The fire prevention equipment business produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention equipment
and fire retardant fabrics for industrial markets.

The Group has been an assertive player in the fire prevention market over the last 12 months. Revenue
in the fire prevention segment was $139.842 million for the year compared to $121.905 million in the
previous year. The focus on cost efficiencies as part of Quality Holding Agility has contributed to
segment profit increasing by 121% to $9.687 million.
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Business divisions (continued)
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Electronics

Quality Holding produces and supplies electronic equipment for electrical safety application, with
particular focus on the defence, aviation, property and industrial sectors. Our products include
electronics, safety, thermal and electrical architecture.

The electronics business continues to perform strongly in a difficult market with revenues increasing by
3.8% to $76.728 million (202 3: $73.940 million).

Significant events after the balance date CA 299(1)(@)

On 14 January 2025, a building with a net book value of $1.695 million and inventory with a net book
value of $0.857 million were severely damaged by flooding resulting in estimated impairment losses of
$2.552 million. It is expected that insurance proceeds will fall short of the costs of rebu ilding and the
loss of inventories by $0.750 million. The financial effects of these events have not been reflected in the
31 December 202 4 financial statements.

On 22 January 2025, the directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited declared a final dividend on
ordinary shares in respect of the 202 4 financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $1 .087 million
which represents a fully franked dividend of 5.01 cents per share. The dividend has not been provided
forin the 31 December 2024 financial statements.

Likely developments and expected results CA299(1)(e)

General commentary
These disclosures are unique to the business operations of the Company and the sector it operates in.

For all entities, the Corporations Act2001 "~z 8« ~"2z© 2} va a}lz y~"zx2a¥" ©C "z ¥"a2a

zu2a ~a " CO ¥!z"va~¥o0O ~o {«?«”z Zv' © voy 2}z z®!zxazy
Please also note that for listed entities, RG 247 provides additional guidance relating to this.

Environmental regulation and performance CA 299(1)(7)

The Group holds licences issued by the relevant environmental protection authorities of the various
countries in which the Group operates. These licences specify limits and regulate the management of
discharges to the air and storm water run -off associated with the fire prevention and rubber equipment
operations.

The Group is registered under the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act, under which it is
required to report energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions for its Australian facilities for the
12 months ended 31 December and future periods. The Group has established a separate sustainability
group and data collection syste ms and processes are in place to meet the new requirements.

There have been no significant known breaches of the consolidated entity's licence conditions or any
environmental regulations to which it is subject.

Share options CA 300(1)(d)

Unissued shares CA

300(1)(e),(3),(6)
As at the date of this report, there were 723,875 unissued ordinary shares under options (725,000 at
the reporting date). Refer to the remuneration report for further details of the options granted to the
five highest paid officers (excluding directors) of the company

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the
Company or any related body corporate.
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Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options CA
300(1)(M.(3).(7)

During the financial year, employees and executives have exercised options to acquire 75,000 fully paid
ordinary shares in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited at a weighted average exercise price of $3.13 per
share.

Performance rights CA 300
As at the date of this report, there were 192,000 unissued ordinary shares under performance rights
(192,000 at the reporting date). Refer to the Remuneration Report for further details of the
performance rights granted to the five highest paid officers (excluding directors) of the company.
Holders of performance rights do not have any right, by virtue of the right, to participate in any share
issue of the Company or any related body corporate.
Shares issued as a result of the exercise of performance rights CA
300(1)(®.(3).(7)
During the financial year, no performance rights have been exercised.
CA 300(1)(g)

Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers

During the financial year, the Company indemnified Ms Krupp against a liability for costs and expenses CA 300(8)(a).(9)
incurred in defending proceedings brought against her for a breach of employment regulations by Bright
Sparks Ltd. Ms Krupp was acquitted. The amount of the indemnity was $8,000.

The Company has agreed to indemnify all the directors and executive officers for any breach of CA 300(8)(a).(9)
environmental or discrimination laws by the Company for which they may be held personally liable. The
agreement provides for the Company to pay an amount not exc eeding $200,000 provided that:

a i}z ¢t~vw~¢~2" y¥70 ©n¥d v’ ~0z ¥«? ¥{ x¥oy«x? -~an
b. i}z ¢~vw~¢~2" ~© {¥° XxXx¥0©20©0O voy z®| zr©z©® ~ox«’ 7

-} ~x1} «y| z£z8? ~© | ~=-zw ~@o 2}z~" {v-a¥«" ¥ ~anp
During or since the financial year, the Company has paid premiums in respect of a contract insuring all CA
the directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited against legal costs incurred in defending 300@)0)O)0
proceedings for conduct other than:
a VvV -~¢{«¢t wizvx} ¥{ y«a~
b. V x¥po28 "v-ozo?2~¥o ¥{ Oz X¥~¥¥0OvFMGBoA® VCk MHGEER2}zzy

FNNW ¥X¥ 2} " va~¥o© Vx?& GEEF
The total amount of insurance contract premiums paid was $1 7,800.
Indemnification of auditors
To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young , CA 300(8)(@)
Australia, as part of the terms of its audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising 300(9)0))’(0)’(3
from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young CA300(9)(d)

Australia during or since the financial year.

Non-audit services

The following non -audit services were provided by the entity's auditor, Ernst & Young Australia. The CA 300(118)
directors are satisfied that the provision of non -audit services is compatible with the general standard of

independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001 . The nature and scope of each type of

non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

Ernst & Young Australia received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of
non-audit services:

9
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The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the
year and the number of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

=
RS
IS
=
=
S
o
=
i
@©
o
9]
s
2
IS
(@)

bzz2a~o0| © ¥{ x¥££~223770 g
Number of meetings held: 12 4 2 2 2 2 O
Number of meetings .S é
attended: 3 B
V. Sheen 12 4 2 2 : : E] °
T. Hannah 12 - 2 - 2 2 =
D.J. Estreux 12 - - - 2 2
M. Krupp 10 4 2 - -
M. Simson 11 - 2 2 - -
C. Mohot 7 4 1 - - -

All directors were eligible to attend all meetings held, except C. Mohot who was eligible to attend seven
y~"zx2¥" ©C £zz2a~uo]| ©OC

CA 300(10)(c)

Remuneration report gAudited

Committee membership
As at the date of this report, the Company had an audit committee, a remuneration committee, a
nomination committee, a finance committee and a treasury committee of the board of directors.

Consolidated financial statements

Members of the committees of the board during the year were: §
(]
M. Krupp (c) V. Sheen (c) V. Sheen (c) T. Hannah (c) T. Hannah (c) 08:
C. Mohot T. Hannah M. Krupp D.J. Estreux D.J. Estreux g
V. Sheen C. Mohot M. Simson %
M. Simson °

Notes

(c) Designates chair of the committee

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

Commentary on Corporations Act CA 300(14, 15)

For any application of leave under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 made in respect of the company,
y~Ox¢t¥©« z ~m a}z y-~"zxa¥" ©Ce@ime M a stateMentifdicating whethgrzeavé Was v
granted.

Where leave is granted under section 237 of the Corporations Act, disclosure should be made for any proceeding that
a person has brought or intervened in on behalf of the company , including the following details:

3 i}z !z ©¥uCO© ©ovEz

3 The name of the parties to the proceedings

Disclosures in the financial statements

3 Sufficient information to enable members to understand the nature and status of proceedings (including the
cause of action and any orders made by the court)
o CA 298(1A)
True and fair view

Commentary on Corporations Act

If the financial statements for the year include additional information under paragraph 295(3)(c) of the Corporations

Act to give a true and fair view of financial position and performance (e.g., alternative measures of financial

'z {¥ Evoexz>A 2}z yzav~¢0O© ¥{ y~"zx2a¥ ©C "zvO¥an {¥" ~nox
Vyy~a3~¥ove¢ ~o{¥ " £va&@~¥o xvo wz {¥«oy ~@o 2}lz {~ovax~ve¢ O©

Additional Australian disclosures

Rounding

The amounts contained inthe y ~ ~ z xrép¥rt h@&€ been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where ASICCI
rounding is applicable) where noted ($000) under the option available to the Company under 2016191
ASICX¥ " ! ¥ " va~¥o© =g¥«oy~a| ~u [~ovax-~yv (¢ DTheCompahydsa® C

entity to which this legislative instrument applies.

Appendices
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Auditor independence and non -audit services
The directors received the following declaration from the auditor of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited.

Z " n©2a n¥«ao| iz¢O @KF G

GEE \z¥" |z ha"zz? [v®O @KF MG

h~ yoz™ chl GEEE V zZ CX¥E£DvV«
Building a better \'ed W¥® GKIK h yaz™

working world

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Quality Holdings
(Australia) Limited
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Ernst & Young Australia

9,(}“%@“"\

D.G. Brown
Partner

Sydney

31 January 202 5

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

CA 298(1)(c)
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Letter from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Dear shareholders

The past year has been one of sound performance in a competitive market and delivery of several key initiatives to
support future shareholder value. We achieved 25.1% growth in profit before tax and delivered strong results for
shareholders, with our Total Shareholder Return (TSR) continuing to outperform our market peers. Sales were up
12.6%, largely driven by the timing of our R&D cycle, however building market share will be a focus for 202 5 to ensure
this trend continue s. Our executive team was also successful in refocusing our business for future growth, with the
acquisition of Extinguishers Ltd and decision to sell Hose Limited. The implementation of our Quality Holdings Agility
program is also delivering returns. The safety of our people is always our primary concern and a key measure of
performance for everyone at Quality Holdings (Australia). The 20%reduction of our Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
was a very pleasing result.

For more detail on these initiatives, please refer to our Operating and Financial Review on page 150.

Remuneration outcomes

Our achievements above are reflected in the executive remuneration outcomes for this year. Executives received an
average of 74 % of their Short-Term Incentive (STI) at target for performance against a balance scorecard of measures
(see section 3B for more information). The sustained long -term performance of the Group was also reflected in the
vesting of Long -Term Incentives (LTI), with 100% of the award granted in 20 22 vesting in FY24 based on Quality

] ¥¢y~n| © =V« ©2 otal Gharehol@e® Retum ¢TSR) resuit. i

Changes to remuneration structure

The Board regularly reviews our executive remuneration structure to ensure it continues to drive shareholder value and
enables us to attract and retain the talent we need. As we consolidate our newly focused Group, the Board has decided
to adopt changes to our executive remuneration structure from FY24 onwards to ensure a focus on long -term
sustainability of returns. These changes are outlined below.

FY?24 gintroduction of STI deferral

From FY24, executives receive STl awards as 75% cash and 25% in Quality Holdings (Australia) shares. The shares will

be deferred for a further two yearsandvest ©@«w zx2 a8¥ 23lz z®zx«2~-zCO x¥p?2 ~p«z
greater alignment with shareholder interests through executive share ownership and encourages retention.

FY?24 gIntroduction of STI ESG scorecard measures
The STI scorecard was rebalanced in FY24 to include a non-financial measure related to environmental, social and
governance matters (ESG), reflecting the importance of ESG as a measure of ongoing sustainable success.

FY?24 glIntroduction of return on equity performance measure for LTI

ai® v-v'y© | "vo?dzy y«' ~o| 2}z Tzv"® voy vttt {«@«"z Vv-v yc
Z8 «~2 7 pedgndadce £z v O« z©C gdZ -vO ~02 ¥y«XxzZlyv@ O~ [¥XXQHyO £zE
| zez"va@~po| zv ' oe~o|© @}vad z{{~x~z83¢ «©z ©O}v z}¥¢yz " xv|

FY24 glntroduction of performance rights for LTI

VO y~0Ox«©0zy ~un HeBa@fdhasdetermih@l thatperfdrinande rights, rather than share options, are
granted under the LTI plan for executives fromFY24¥ o - v " y©C ez " {¥ " £vaoxz " ~|}230 v~z
growth profile, the challenging market conditions and prevailing Australian market practice.

i}z W¥V'Yy ~0O x¥o{~yzpon?a 2a}lyad f«ve¢~2" ]J]¥¢y~non| O =V«O2 " ve~v
financial and strategic goals. We are committed to transparency and an ongoing dialogue with shareholders on
remuneration and to this end we ha ve made changes to the remuneration report to improve the overall format and flow

of information.

On behalf of the Board, | invite you to review the full report and thank you for your continued interest.

Your sincerely

Vincent Sheen

Remuneration Committee Chair

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 159
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10. Actual remuneration earned by executive KMP in FY2 4

1. Remuneration report overview

The Directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited present the Remuneration Report (the Report) for CA 308(3C)
the Company and its controlled entities for the year ended 31 December 202 4. This Report forms part
¥{ 2}z Y~"zx2¥" ©C gz!¥"2a vay }v©O wzzga vQoyperatiang Act o
2001. i }z gz} ¥"2a yzay~¢O© 2}z " zE«wmz " va@~¥wo v’ "vao| z£z AASB 124.9
management personnel (KMP) which include those persons who, directly or indirectly, have authority

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Company and Group

including:

CA 300A(1)(c)

Remuneration report gAudited

3 Non-executive directors (NEDs)
3 Executive directors and certain senior executives (collectively the Executive KMP)

Consolidated financial statements

(0]
The table below outlines the KMP of the Group and their movements during FY2 4: %
=
cvEz e¥O0~2~¥n iz"£ vO " be Reg 2M.3.03(1) g
Items1-3 o)
Non-executive directors @
©
V. Sheen C¥E®zXx«?~az X}v-~" [«¢¢ {~ovoex~ve g
M. Krupp C¥B®zX«2~az Y~"zx2¥" [«¢¢ {~ovoex~ve 8
M. Simson C¥B®zXx«? ~=z Y~"zx23¥" [«¢¢ { ~avox-~v(e
C. Mohot C¥E®zx«?@~az Y~"zx2¥" Xzv 0Oz y« (GEIG_
Executive KMP 2
Q
T. Hannah bY; XZd [«¢¢ { ~avox-~ve g
D.J. Estreux [ ~avaxz Y~"2zx2a¥" [«¢¢ {~ovoex~ve §
R.J. Ferns \V\zmz"ve bvhgw| zd} z"v2~¥o0O Vi | ¥~o2zy H I_vae .Tg
G. Braddy X} ~led©2 v ~ W —txz& [«¢¢ {~ovax-~ve s
S. Moran \bCZ¢tzx2a ¥o~x© hvezo [«¢¢ {~ovex~ve .“q:)
=
M.X. Vo X}y ~z{ d}z"va~¥o© d{{~xz" =X Xzv©OzpPpvHEGEG E
A.M. John X}y ~z{ d}z"va~¥o0©O d{{~xz" =X V|| ¥~o0%xzoGEG aﬁ
2 =)
L.P. Lyn \VbC[ ~"2z e"z-zu?~¥n Z8«~| £z0o¢XzvOzy HF Yzlxz £ o B
. . o Reg 2M.3.03(1) = 3
M. Krupp resigned on 31 January 202 5, after the reporting date and before the date the financial report Items4 -5 ] O
was authorised for issue. There were no other changes to KMP in this time. B
©
=
General commentary CA300AM(@) £
To2}z z®2zwa a}ya al}lyz x¥f£l!lyo~ “zxz~-azy v ¢o¥C -¥2z ¥o a’ 7
=
GJ: ¥{ 2@}z -¥270©0© xvO2% -z"z Vv|v~o0? vy¥|a~¥pop ¥[ ajiya "z <
response of the com ments that were made on the remuneration report or, if the board does not propose any action, o
alz w¥v ' yCO " zvO¥m®© {¥" ~ovxa-~¥oC 2
3
<
=
K]
5]
£
alL
8|z
S|
2|8
2|3
<
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2. Overview of executive remuneration

2A. How we determine executive remuneration policies and structures

Four principles guide our decisions about executive remuneration at Quality Holdings (Australia): CA 300A(1)()
3 Fairness: provide a fair level of reward to all employees
3 Transparency: build a culture of achievement by transparent links between reward and
performance
3 Alignment: promote mutually beneficial outcomes by aligning employee, customer and shareholder
interests
3 The Quality Holdings (Australia) Culture: drive leadership performance and behaviours that create a

culture that promotes safety, diversity and employee satisfaction

2B. Our executive remuneration policies and structures

We reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration appropriate to their position, responsibilities CA 300A(1)(@).(b)
and performance, in a way that aligns with the business strategy.

Executives receive fixed remuneration and variable remuneration consisting of STI and LTI opportunities.
Executive remuneration levels are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee with reference to
the remuneration guiding principles and market move ments.

The chart below provides a summary of the structure of executive remuneration in FY24:

[ ~®zzxE£«oz va~¥rt

Base salary + superannuation + benefits

kv ~vwetz " z£«noz
STl plan LTI plan

Cash Deferred shares Performance rights
(2 years) (3 years)

60% financial performance

0 .
40% non+inancial performance s0% relative TSR

50% ROE

2C. Remuneration mix g at target

CA 300A(1)(a),(b)

CA 300A(1)(e)())

0
25% 30%
Other Fixedremuneration
0 ;
50% CEO executives st
60% N LT
*based on the value granted during the year, determined using the fair value of performance rights at grant date
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2D. Elements of remuneration

Corporate Information

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration consists of base salary, superannuation and other non -monetary benefits and is
designed to reward for:

3 i}z ©Ox¥!'z ¥{ 2}z z®zx«2~-zCO " ¥tz

3 i}z z®zx«2~-z2CO ©j~CCOA z®! z"  ~zvxz voy 8«ve~{-

3 Individual performance <
It is set with reference to comparable roles in similar companies. g
Short -term incentives - STI CA 300A(1)(ba) é
Under the STI, executives have the opportunity to earn an annual incentive award which is delivered in Reg 2M.3.03(1) -

cash and deferred shares. The STI recognises and rewards annual performance. tem 12(6)-(c)

How is it paid? 75% of any STl award ispaid in cash after the assessment of annual performance.
25% is deferred into Quality Holdings (Australia) shares for a further two year
period.

The deferred component was introduced in FY2 4 to align with prevalent
Australian market practice and to encourage executive share ownership.

How much can Executives have a target STI opportunity of 50% of fixed remuneration and a
executives earn? maximum STI opportunity of 100% of fixed remuneration.
Target STl is awarded for achieving the challenging objectives set prior to the
beginning of each year. Participants have the opportunity to earn up to two times
target for achieving stretch performance (i.e., significant out -performance against
performanc e measures).

Remuneration report gAudited

CA 300A(1)(ba)(i) -

How is performance The STIperformance measures were chosen as they reflect the core drivers of i
0}

measured? short-term performance and also provide a framework for delivering sustainable
value to the Group, its shareholders and customers.
We measure seven key performance indicators (KPIs) covering financial and non -
financial, Group and business unit measures of performance. For each KPI, a
target and stretch objective is set. A summary of the measures and weightings is
as follows:

[~nvux~v¢ c¥§~uvux
" ¥« W« ©~ 1 z @ " ¥«
e Wi «@o~2a

60% 0% 40%
Other functional executives 50% 0% 50%
Business unit leaders 30% 30% 40%

Consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

Group earnings per share (EPS) and business unit profit before tax (PBT) are the
financial measures against which management and the Board assess the short -
term financial performance of the Group.

The non-financial measures in the STI plan are:
3 Market share

3 Customer satisfaction score

3 Implementation of key growth initiatives

3

3

Disclosures in the financial statements

Safety
ESG

When is it assessed and = The STl award is determined after the end of the financial year following a review

paid? of performance over the year against the STI performance measures by the CEO
for all other executives (and in the case of the CEO, by the Board). The Board
approves the final STI award based on this assessment of performance. 75% is
paid in cash three months after the end of the performance period.

CA
300A(1)(ba)iii)

Additional Australian disclosures

Deferral terms 25% of the STl is deferred into shares, with the number of shares calculated based
¥o f«ve~27 ] ¥¢y~o|© =V«®©2" ve~v>CO - z~|
trading days immediately preceding the allocation date of the shares. The shares
are subject to a further two year service period.
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Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 162

ASX Additional information



gzZEf£«nonz VA |~-Body ~BFy¥Yo?d ~o«z

What happens if an If an executive resigns or is terminated for cause before the end of the financial

executive leaves? year, no STl is awarded for that year. Similarly any deferred STI awards are
forfeited, unless otherwise determined by the Board.
If an executive ceases employment during the performance period by reason of
redundancy, ill health, death, or other circumstances approved by the Board, the
executive will be entitled to a pro -rata cash payment based on assessment of
performance up to the date of ceasing employment for that year and any deferred
STl awards will be retained (subject to Board discretion).

What happens if there is  In the event of a change of control, a pro -rata cash payment will be made based
a change of control? on assessment of performance up to the date of the change of control and any
deferred STI awards will vest (subject to Board discretion).

Are executives eligible Executives receive dividends on deferred STI awards.
for dividends?
CA 300A(1)(ba)

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 12(b) -(c)

Under the LTI for FY2 4, an annual grant of performance rights was made to executives to align ItReg 125'\?5?-83§1_))
. . . em 1)-(vi1
remuneration with the creation of shareholder value over the long -term.

Long-term incentives -LTI

How is it paid? Executives are eligible to receive performance rights, being a right to an ordinary
share in Quality Holdings (Australia) with zero exercise price. The rights
automatically convert to shares upon vesting.

How much can The CEO has a target LTI opportunity of 50% of fixed remuneration and executives
executives earn? have a target opportunity of 17% of fixed remuneration.
The number of performance rights granted is determined using the 5 day
weighted average share price at the beginning of the performance period.
How is performance Awards are subject to two measures, weighted equally: relative TSR and ROE. CA 300A(1)(ba)() -
measured? Relative TSR was selected as it focuses executives on shareholder value creation ®
and is widely accepted and understood by shareholders.
ROE was introduced as a second measure in FYZ23 as it focuses executives on
generating earnings that efficiently use shareholder capital and the reinvestment
of earnings.

Relative TSR

ihg £zvO«™"z© 28}z | z"xzmwdv]|z x}ve|z ~ao
of dividends received during the period, assuming that all those dividends are re -
invested into new shares.

feve~a~ J¥¢y~n|© =V«©2 " ve~v>CO ihg ~0
ASX-listed companies ranked 100 to 200 on the ASX200 Index (excluding
companies in the mining and financial services sectors). These companies were
chosen as they are of a similar size and reflect the Group's competitors for capital.
The TSR for Quality Holdings (Australia) and comparator companies is measured CA 300A(1)(ba)(iv)
over three financial years (e.g., 1 January 202 4 to 31 December 202 6 for the
FY24 grant).

The proportion of performance rights that may vest based on relative TSR
performance is determined based on the following vesting schedule:

Below the 50 ™ percentile 0%
At the 50 ™ percentile 50%
Between the 50 ™ and 75™ percentile = Straight -line vesting between 50 -
100%
At or above the 75 ™ percentile 100%
ROE

ROE measures how well the Group has used shareholder funds and reinvested
earnings to generate additional earnings. ROE is defined as the net profit after tax
=ceVi> y~=a~yzy w v=z"v]|z ©O}lv z}¥¢tyz"  ©
alz X¥E£! amial @@orts] ~ o

The Board calculates the ROE performance hurdle by setting annual ROE targets
over each of three financial years (e.g., 1 January 202 4 to 31 December 202 6 for
the FY24 grant) which are then averaged to determine the target ROE hurdle. Due

to their sensitive nature, annual ROE targets are disclosed retrospectively.
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The proportion of performance rights that may vest based on ROE performance
across the performance period is determined based on the following vesting

Corporate Information

schedule:

04z jz (¥ £vaxz  lez'xzotviz -z0%-o

Below minimum of target range 0%

At minimum of target range 50%

Within target range Straight -line vesting between 50 -100%

At maximum of target range and above  100% 5
When is performance The performance measures are tested at the end of the three year performance CA §
measured? period to determine the number of performance rights that vest. There is no S00A(L)(ba(ii) g

opportunity for re -testing. Performance rights will lapse if the performance
measures are not met at the end of the performance period.

What happens if an If an executive resigns or is terminated for cause, any unvested LTIl awards are
executive leaves? forfeited, unless otherwise determined by the Board.
If an executive ceases employment during the performance period by reason of
redundancy, ill health, death, or other circumstances approved by the Board, the
executive will be entitled to retain a pro-rata number of unvested performance
rights based on service to the date of ceasing employment (subject to Board
discretion). Unvested rights retained will continue to be subject to the
performance vesting conditions.
The treatment of vested and unexercised awards will be determined by the Board
with reference to the circumstances of cessation.

Remuneration report gAudited

What happens if there is  In the event of a change of control, the performance period end date will be
a change of control? brought forward to the date of the change of control and awards will vest based
on performance over this shortened period (subject to Board discretion).

Are executives eligible Executives are not eligible to receive dividends on unvested performance rights.
for dividends? Executives will receive dividends on vested and unexercised performance rights.

Consolidated financial statements

CA 300A(1)(ba)
Options awarded to KMP in FY 22 have the same terms and conditions as disclosed above with the Reg 2M.3.03(1)

exception of the following: Item 15(b) (i)-(vi)

Corporate governance

How is it paid? Executives are eligible to receive share options, being an option to acquire an
ordinary share in Quality Holdings (Australia) upon payment of a pre -determined
exercise price.

How is performance Awards are subject to relative TSR hurdle. Relative TSR was selected as it focuses
measured? executives on shareholder value creation and is widely accepted and understood
by shareholders. CA 300A(1)(ba)() -
ihg £zvO0«™z© 28}z | z"xzmdv]|z x}vae|z ~ao (iv)
of dividends received during the period, assuming that all those dividends are re -
invested into new shares.
fe«ve~a~ ]¥¢y~a]|© =V«O©2 " vet~v>CO i hg ~0©
ASX-listed companies ranked 100 to 200 on the ASX200 Index (excluding
companies in the mining and financial services sectors). These companies were
chosen as they are of a similar size and reflect the Group's competitors for capital.
The TSR for Quality Holdings (Australia) and comparator companies is measured
over three financial years (e.g., 1 January 202 2 to 31 December 202 4 for the
FY22 grant).
The proportion of performance rights that may vest based on relative TSR
performance is determined based on the following vesting schedule:

Below the 50 ™ percentile 0%
At the 50 ™ percentile 50%

Disclosures in the financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

Between the 50 " and 75" percentile Straight -line vesting between 50 -
100%

At or above the 75 ™ percentile 100%
How much can The CEO has a target LTI opportunity of 50% of fixed remuneration and executives

executives earn? have a target opportunity of 17% of fixed remuneration.

The number of options granted is determined using the fair value at the date of
grant using a Monte -Carlo simulation model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the share options were granted.
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No awards of LTI were made to KMP in FY23 as the Group recovered from the effects on its business
from the general downturn in the economic environment.

Sign on payments
In addition to fixed remuneration, STl and LTI, the Board may determine, from time to time, to award

sign on payments to new executives. Regz“"'igﬁ(llé
Ms Ferns received a sign on payment of $50,000 on commencement of employment in lieu of foregone
benefits and incentives in her previous employment. Ms Ferns received the full award in ordinary shares 5
in Quality Holdings (Australia). In addition, she is en titled to receive a cash payment of $100,000 if she g
remains employed for three years from the date of her appointment (i.e., 3 January 202 7). g
c
2E. Changes for FY25 N
Q
The Board has reviewed market data for comparable companies in respect of the fixed remuneration of §
its executives and determined that a 2% increase in fixed remuneration will be applied for FY2 5. Further <m~
details will be provided in the FY2 5 remuneration report. =
o
3. Performance and executive remuneration outcomes in FY2 4 g
=
3A. Actual remuneration earned by executives in FY2 4 - -%
The actual remuneration earned by executives in FY2 4 is set out in section 10 below. This provides é g
shareholders with a view of the remuneration actually paid to executives for performance in FY2 4 and & £
the value of LTIs that vested during the period. Gl «
.©
3B. Performance against STI measures é
CA 300A(2)(ba)(i) 2
V X¥£fw~ova~¥o ¥[B{esvurRxvOeCLPVvQP«BYO® ~0O0 «Ozy 2a¥ £2 bl
Group and business unit performance against those measures is as follows for FY2 4: ME
Slo
=
Grow EPS Business Unit Market share | Customer Growth Safety People 8 %’
NPAT 5
o
Group ]
O
Investment Properties - ‘
Electronics
i)
Fire Prevention Equipment - ‘ S
5
IS
Below threshold hurdle (@) T";
At target g
Between threshold and target ¢ .‘g
Between target and stretch g
Not Applicable - 1=
(9]
The following table outlines the proportion of maximum STl earned in relation to the FY2  4: Reg 2""-'?-03(11% £
em
P S
o 2
2 Nal
ke}
[5]
2
T. Hannah 100% 43% =
©
D.J. Estreux 100% 42% ﬁ
R.J. Ferns 100% 34% §
G. Braddy 100% 44% s
M.X. Vo 100% 0% =
AM. John 100% 44% 2
S. Moran 100% 54%
L.P. Lyn 100% 32%
Based on this assessment, the average STI award was 37% as a percentage of maximum (and 74%as a 5
percent of target ). The proportion of STI forfeited is derived by subtracting the actual % of maximum received E
from the maximum STI opportunity and was 63 % on average for FY24. ? S
=
=8 i
2|5
o =
<|3
<
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3C. Performance against LTI measures

Corporate Information

CA 300A(1)(b)
CA
300A(1AA),(1AB)

LTI vesting is based on TSR performance relative to the companies within the peer group. Quality
Holdings (Australia) has outperformed the median of the peer group for the past five years to 31
December 2024, as outlined below.

300

250

200

150

Introduction

100

TSR (rebased to 100)

al
o

o

31/12/2021  31/12/2022 31/12/2024

Date

31/12/2019  31/12/2020 31/12/2023

——g—\edian TSR for the peer group
TSR (rebased to 100) Good Group (Australia) Limited

Remuneration report gAudited

LTI vesting outcomes
LTI awards granted in FY22 were tested against the relative TSR performance measure. Quality

Consolidated financial statements

Holdings (Australia) achieved a TSR of 252% over the three -year performance period ended 31 §
December 202 4, which positioned it above the 75th percentile relative to companies in the peer group. g
Consequently, 100% of options awarded in FY22 with a performance period ended 31 December 202 4 g
vested and became exercisable. o
3D. Overview of company performance CA 300A(1)(g) g
A 2

o

(@)

i}z 2vwtz wz¢¥- ©z2 0 ¥«? ~o{ ¥ £v?2 eanngsaw¥evementsiv ¢ ~
shareholder wealth for the past five years up to and including the current financial year.

e s oee | om | oo
8.1 6.5 5.8 5.2 4.7

300A(1AA),(1AB)

. 2
ceVi =9CE> 5
=
Share price at year end ($) 4.2 3.7 34 3.2 2.9 %
Basic EPS (cents) 38 33 30.7 375 35 Kz
[
Total dividends (cents per share) 10.32 8.4 8.46 8.98 8.43 S
g
4. How remuneration is governed 2
4A. Remuneration decision making ﬁ
. ()
i}z {¥¢C¢C¥-~o|] y~v| " "VE z) " z©z o2 @akny framéwork « | CO " z £ ;
8 &
5 B
Board 3 ©

[S]

2

7 ©

Review and approval c

-

@

<

Remuneration Committee =

K]

X¥E£! Bo~yz " zf£«woz ' 'va~¥o {"vEz-¥"j v S

Z®zXx«?~=az : CcZY " zf«mz va~¥o ¥ <

CEO
Recommendations on remuneration outcomes
for executive team
Management
Implementing remuneration policies

Remuneration advisors

External and independent remuneration advice
and information
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee is set out on page 160 of this annual report. Further
~o{ ¥ fva~¥n ¥uo a8}z gzf«wmz va@~¥o X¥££~2277C0O ¥tz
www.qualityholdingsaustralialtd.com.au .

4B. Use of remuneration advisors CA 300A(1)(h)

The Remuneration Committee approved the engagement of Company ABC to provide remuneration
recommendations regarding the remuneration mix and quantum for executives.

Both Company ABC and the Committee are satisfied the advice received from Company ABC is free
from undue influence from the KMP to whom the remuneration recommendations apply.

Introduction

The remuneration recommendations were provided to the Committee as an input into decision making
only. The Remuneration Committee considered the recommendations, along with other factors, in
making its remuneration decisions.

The fees paid to Company ABC for the remuneration recommendations were $35,000. In addition to
providing remuneration recommendations, Company ABC provided advice on other aspects of the
"zEf«mz va~¥o ¥{ a}lz \"¥«! CO z£! ¢¥ezandovaspaiya tetalof ~ ¥ «
$85,000 for these services.

4C. Clawback of remuneration
Ng 8}z z-azwo? ¥{ ©z" ~¥«O©O £~Ox¥oy«x? ¥ v fvaz" ~v¢
Board has the discretion to reduce, cancel or clawback any unvested STl or LTI.

Remuneration report gAudited

4D. Share trading policy

The Group securities trading policy applies to all NEDs and executives. The policy prohibits employees
from dealing in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited securities whilst in possession of material non -public
information relevant to the Group.

Consolidated financial statements

Z®zZX«?®~=20© £«©% ©p¥?d& zpddz" ~pd¥ vyvo  }zy|~\| Vv' " vo
options plan. The Group would consider a breach of this policy as gross misconduct, which may lead to
disciplinary action and potentially dismissal.

Corporate governance

4E. Executive employment agreements

Remuneration arrangements for executives are formalised in employment agreements. The following CAR:;OO;\(A”;?Q‘Q;
outlines the details of contracts with executives: ’ \tem 13
CEO

The CEO is employed under a three year contract which can be terminated with notice by either the

Group or the CEO.

Under the terms of the present contract, as disclosed to the ASX on 14 September 202 3:

The CEO receives fixed remuneration of $490,000 per annum.
i}z XZdCoO® av'|za hin ¥!l¥ ago~2" ~0© JE: ¥{ {~¢
100% of fixed remuneration.

Disclosures in the financial statements

3 The CEO is eligible to participate in the LTI plan on terms determined by the Board, subject to
receiving any required or appropriate shareholder approval.

All other executives are employed on individual open ended employment contracts that set out the
terms of their employment.

The Board has reviewed market data of comparable companies in respect of the fixed remuneration of
its executives and determined that a 2% increase in fixed remuneration will be applied for FY2 5.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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Termination provisions
i}z XZd vey z®zx«?2~-z20C 2z £~unva~¥ang ! " ¥.-~0~¥00© vV

Corporate Information

CEO notice period (by 6 months None 12 months 6 months
company or executive)

Other executives notice =~ 3 months None 6 months 3 months
period (by company or

executive)

Termination payments
The following arrangements applied to outgoing executives in office during FY2 4:

Introduction

L.P. Lyn

3 Due to health reasons, Ms Lyn resigned from her position on 31 December 202 4. As a result, Ms
Lyn received a termination payment of $110,725, in accordance with the terms of her
employment contract.

3 Ms Lyn will receive her STI payment for the financial year ending 31 December 202 4 which was
paid out fully in cash with no deferred component .

3 Ms Lyn also retain ed a pro rata of unvested awards under the LTI plans.

Remuneration report gAudited

8
3
£
i)
o
(2]
M.X. Vo =
s
3 M.X. Vo resigned from the Group on 30 May 202 4. Ms Vo received a $48,000 termination g o
payment on resignation. 203: o
o8 IS
3 Ms Vo was not eligible for an STI payment for the financial year ending 31 December 202 4, and g %
forfeited her unvested share options and performance rights . 2 g
=
. . . . ol o
5. Overview of non -executive director (NED) remuneration CA 300A(1)(@).(b) Ols
o
feve~2~ ]¥¢y~n|© =V«O©2 " ve~v>CO cZY {zz !'¥¢~x_ ~0© =
@)

can discharge the roles and responsibilities required in terms of good governance, strong oversight,
independence and objectivity. NEDs receive fees only and do not participate in any performance -related
incentive awards. NED fees reflect the demands and responsibilities of the directors.

The Remuneration Committee reviews NED remuneration annually against comparable companies. The
Board also considers advice from external advisors when undertaking the review process.

NED fees consist of base fees and committee fees. The payment of committee fees recognises the
additional time commitment required by NEDs who serve on Board committees. The chair of the Board
attends all committee meetings but does not receive any additio nal committee fees in addition to base
fees.

Disclosures in the financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 168

ASX Additional information



gz E£«oz VAI~-B/oRy ~2xw¥Ynd ~o« 2z

Contents

The table below summarises Board and Committee fees payable to NEDs for FY24 (inclusive of

Corporate Information

superannuation):
vy (eee
Chair 280,000
NED 120,000
X¥££~23zz {220
Audit Chair 35,000 s
Member 17,500 g
Remuneration Chair 30,000 :§
Member 15,000 =
Nomination” Chair N/A
Member N/A

" NEDs do not receive additional fees for participation in the Nomination Committee.

CZY©®© £v wz " z~f£w« ©zy {¥° z®) zo©z© " zvO¥aoviheydo ~
not receive retirement benefits.

The Board has confirmed there will be no increases in Board or committee fees for FY2 5.

Remuneration report gAudited

Maximum aggregate NED fee pool

NED fees are determined within an aggregate NED fee pool limit, which is periodically approved by
shareholders. The maximum aggregate amount that may be paid to NEDs for their services is

$1,500,000 during any financial year, as approved by shareholders at  the 202 3 AGM held on 30 March
2024.

The Board will not seek an increase to the aggregate NED fee pool limit at the 202 4 AGM.

Consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

Disclosures in the financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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6. Statutory remuneration

6A. Executive KMP remuneration for the years ended 31 December 202 4 and 31 December 202 3

ZX2¥

h} ¥8 2" £ wzuoz{ e @ a¥®Blz" £ wzurz{ h} vBvz ©2y £z820© iz" AR AR XV HEE=V
z £ “zEf«nz” SNV XV HEEV=F

Y~

Introduction

.------
WY¥ o df ¥oza? ~| 3 ¢ v "~ 2z £BOF &
GbCH g
o] o] of o] o) ol 9 o] s | o o] | 2
T.Hannah 2024 441,000 158,025 16,000 49,000 37,408 32,560 22,500 17,558 774,901 27.5 N S
2023 427,000 182,800 15,225 824 43,415 36,154 32,560 - - - 737,978 29.0 I ©
D.J.Estreux 2024 408,000 100,800 6,050 - 32,000 28,631 22,000 22,000 16,800 - 636,281 25.4 5 5
2023 390,000 120,000 6,000 - 30,000 27,662 22,000 - - - 595,662 23.8 g §
R.J.Ferns* 2024 315000 122,583 10,000 1,600 35,000 23,469 10,560 10,560 64,875 - 593,647 35.1 E
2023 - - - - - - - - - - - - g
G.Braddy 2024 225000 82,500 5,000 - 25,000 21,662 7,480 10,560 13,750 - 378,677 30.2 Sle
2023 225,000 106,400 4,520 - 25,000 21,462 440 - - - 382,822 27.8 i‘é g
M.X. Vo® 2024 80,000 - - - 8,000 7,177 (8,000) - - 48,000 135,177 - s 15
2023 171,000 62,000 5,200 - 19,000 15,569 3,000 - - - 275,769 17.3 §
AM.John® 2024 135000 44,550 700 - 15,000 14,811 10,560 5,360 7,425 - 233,406 29
2023 - - - - - - - - - - - - )
S. Moran 2024 225,000 101,250 6,000 - 25,000 19,778 6,820 9,900 16,875 - 410,623 32.8 §
2023 198,000 118,800 4,480 - 22,000 19,023 220 - - - 362,523 32.8 2
L.P. Lyn’ 2024 234,000 83,200 - - 26,000 19,746 12,120 6,600 - 110,725 492,391 20.7 ®
2023 216,000 88,580 - - 24,000 19,035 5,640 - - - 353,255 26.6 z
Total 2024 2,063,000 692,908 48,250 2,450 215,000 172,682 87,962 87,482 137,283 158,725 3,655,103 8
mg“t've 2023 1,627,000 678,580 35,425 824 163,415 138,905 63,860 - - - 2,708,009 g
%)
[a)

Non-monetary benefits include motor vehicle, travel and mobile phone allowances , including any FBT.
Includes the component of STI which is deferred in shares. The fair value of the deferred share component is amortised overt he three year vesting period.
R.J. Ferns was appointed to the newly created executive role of General Manager US Operations on 3 January 202 4. She received sign-on share awards of $50,000 on commencement of employment (in lieu of foregone benefits and incentives in her previous employm  ent) which

Additional Australian disclosures

vested immediately on grant. In addition, Ms Ferns will receive a cash incentive of $100,000 to the  extent she remains in employment for three years from the date of her appointment (i.e., 3 January 202 6).

M.X. Vo ceased employment on 30 May 202 4 and received a termination payment of $48,000. Ms Vo forfeited her share options, rights and STI. Any share based paymentexp  ense previously recognised under AASB 2 in respect of the unvested options and rights has been reversed.
A.M. John was appointed to the role Chief Operating Officer 2 June 202 4. He received a pro rata STI bonus for the period.

L.P. Lyn ceased employment on 31 December 202 4 and received a termination payment of $110,725 . Ms Lyn also received 100% of STI for FY24 in cash and retained a pro rata of unvested awards under the FY2 4 LTI plan. For awards retained, any unamortised fair value was fully
recognised at that date and for awards forfeited, the share -based payment expense previously recognised under AASB 2 has been reversed.

Appendices
ASX Additional
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6B. NED remuneration for the years ended 31 December 202 4 and 31 December 202 3

[~avex~ve ~zv-© h} ¥B 2" £ wz e¥ &L C¥  { i CA 300A)1)(©)
Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Items 6-11

Corporate Information

v oy h«} z"vaoog
V. Sheen 2024 279,000 31,000 310,000

2023 261,722 18,278 280,000 S

M. Krupp 2024 139,500 15,500 155,000 §

e}

2023 135,000 15,000 150,000 %
M. Simson 2024 121,500 13,500 135,000 » =
Q
2023 117,000 13,000 130,000 5
=J
C. Mohot* 2024 70,875 7,875 78,750 <m~
2023 109,589 10,411 120,000 g
Total 2024 610,875 67,875 678,750 g
2023 623,311 56,689 680,000 é
*  C. Mohot ceased employment on 28 J uly 202 4 g
5
=
o)
o

Consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

Disclosures in the financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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7. Options, rights and shares awarded and held by KMP
7A. Options awarded, vested and lapsed during the year

z

:x¥ca~0«zy>

The table below discloses the number of share options vested and lapsed during the year. No share options were awarded during the year as the Company is awarding

performance rights from FY2 4 onwards. Refer to Table 7D below.

Share options do not carry any voting or dividend rights, and can only be exercised once the vesting conditions have been met.

T. Hannah 2022 -
D.J. Estreux 2022 -
G. Braddy 2022 -
M.X. Vo 2022 -
L.P. Lyn 2022 -

# Determined at the time of exercise at the intrinsic value

1 Jan 202 2
1 Jan 202 2

1 Jan 202 2
1Jan 202 2
1 Jan 202 2

31 Dec 2024 -
31 Dec 2024 -

31 Dec 2024 -
31 Dec 2024 -
31 Dec 2024 -

There were no alterations to the terms and conditions of options awarded as remuneration  during the year.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

c¥ kve«akv C«z ¥{ Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item

-z ©2 z®z " x 12(a).(€).()

NES AT S o
ZV zVv
- 5,000 9,000 8,800
- 1,500 - 2,640
- | 23,000 - 40,480
- 10,000 - -
- 6,000 4,000 - -

Reg 2M.3.03(1) ltem 14
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7B. Option holdings of KMP*

Executive directors

T. Hannah 74,000
D.J. Estreux 50,000
Senior executives

G. Braddy 23,000
M.X. Vo 10,000
A.M. John -
S. Moran 500
L.P. Lyn 31,000
Total 248,500

(5,000) (9,000) 60,000
(1,500) - 48,500
(23,000) - -

- (10,000) -

- - 500

- (4,000) 27,000
(29,500)  (35,000) 379,000

* Includes options held directly, indirectly and beneficially by KMP.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

11,000
48,500

500
27,000
774,000

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 17
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Corporate Informati

7C. Performance rights awarded, vested and lapsed during the year

The table below discloses the number of performance rights (PR) granted, vested or lapsed during the year.

Directors C Report

Performance rights do not carry any voting or dividend rights and can only be exercised once the vesting conditions have been met. S
>
Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item E
12(a),(e).(f) =
Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item 5t
15(a),(b) E
CA 300A(1)(e)(ii) -(vi) g
T. Hannah* 2024 50,000 30 Mar 2024 $1.35 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 202 7 - - 67,500 - =
2 I3
D.J. 2024 50,000 31 Jan 2024 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 202 7 - - 66,000 - % §
Estreux 5 [
" c
R.J. Ferns 2024 24,000 31 Jan 2024 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 2027 - - 31,680 - E g
H -
G. Braddy 2024 24,000 31 Jan 2024 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 202 7 - - 31,680 - 3
M.X. Vo 2024 8,000 31Jan 2024 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 2027 - 8,000 10,560 - @ s
8 &
A.M. John 2024 24,000 2 Jun 2024 $1.34 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 2027 - - 32,160 - ‘%
[=}
o
o
S. Moran 2024 15,000 31 Jan 202 4 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 202 7 - - 19,800 - o
L.P. Lyn 2024 15,000 31 Jan 202 4 $1.32 31 Dec 2025 nil 31 Dec 2027 - 10,000 19,800 -

* As approved by shareholders at the 202 3 AGM on 30 March 2024.
~ Determined at the time of grant per AASB 2. For details on the valuation of the  performance rights , including models and assumptions used, please refer to Note 33.
# Determined at the time of exercise at the share price at that date .

There were no alterations to the terms and conditions of performance rights awarded as remuneration during the year. Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item 14

Disclosures in the financial

Additional Australian disclosures

Directors declal

Appendices
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7D. Performance rights holdings of KMP*

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 17

T. Hannah - 50,000 - - 50,000 - -
D.J. Estreux - 50,000 - - 50,000 - -
R.J. Ferns - 24,000 - - 24,000 - - -,%
G. Braddy - 24,000 - - 24,000 - - §
M.X. Vo - 8,000 - (8,000) - - - E
A.M. John - 24,000 - - 24,000 - -
S. Moran - 15,000 - - 15,000 - -
L.P. Lyn - 15,000 - (10,000 5,000 - -
)
Total - 210,000 - (18,000 192,000 - -

)

* Includes performance rights held directly, indirectly and beneficially by KMP.
# Relates to forfeiture on ceasing of employment.

Remuneration report gAudited

7E. Shares issued on exercise of options and performance rights

Consolidated financial statements

HF Yzxz£wz" GEGh}v " z0O ¥® ev-~y !z’ Reg 2M.3.03(1) o

ZzZ®z " X ~ X zZ o Item 16 8

¥la-~ g

o ¥ %

T. Hannah 5,000 2.33 3

D.J. Estreux 1,500 2.33 5

G. Braddy 23,000 233 §
Total 29,500

No shares were issued in exercise of performance rights during the year.

7F. Shareholdings of KMP* Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Iltem 18

Shares held in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (number)

Wv ¢vaxz - - Wv ¢vaoxz
F_vo«v™ T - - - HF Yzxz£wz

Disclosures in the financial statements

NEDs
V. Sheen 320,940 20,000 - - - - 11,000 - 331,940 20,000 - - 3
M. Krupp 112,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 122,000 - - - §
M. Simson 49,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 59,000 - - - B
C. Mohot 87,000 - - - - - 5,000 - 92,000 - - - h=
Executive KMP %
T. Hannah 699,000 = 6,000 - - 5,000 - (2,000) - 702,000 6,000 100,000 - §
D.J. Estreux 101,000 = 5,000 1,500 15,000 117,500 = 5,000 - - %
R.J. Ferns - - 50,000 - - - - - 50,000 - - - 5
G. Braddy - - - - 23,000 - - - 23,000 - - - §
M.X. Vo 400,000 - - - - - - - 400,000 - - - <
A.M. John - - - - - - - - - - - -

S. Moran - - - - - - 49,000 - 49,000 - - -

L.P. Lyn 34,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 44,000 - - -

Total 1,802,940 31,000 50,000 - 29,500 - 108,000 - 1,990,440 31,000 100,000 -

* Includes shares held directly, indirectly and beneficially by KMP.

" For M.X. Vo, balance at 31 December 202 4 reflects balance of shares held at date resigned.

Appendices
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# All equity transactions with KMP other than those arising from the  exercise of remuneration options have been entered into under terms Reg 2M.3.03(1)
and conditions no more favourable than those the Group would have adopted if dealing at arm's length. Item 19

8. Loans to KMP and their related parties (The below disclosure has been provided for illustrative purposes
only)

(i) Details of aggregate of loans to KMP and their related parties: o3 03'?1'3)9
Item 20

2024 XXX XXX XXX - XXX X

(i) Details of KMP and their related parties with aggregate of loans above $100,000 in the reporting period: o3 03'?:89
Iltem 21

KMP A XXX - XXX - XXX XXX

KMP B - - XXX - XXX XXX

(iii) Terms and conditions of loans to KMP and their related parties: Reg th“griggg;

Loans to directors are interest free. Senior executives are charged interest at the concessional rate of 4%

per annum. The average commercial rate of interest during the year was 6%.

During the year, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited provided a loan to D.J. Estreux of $XXX repayable

within five years on interest free terms, secured by a registered first mortgage over the property. No

amount was repaid during the year. The loan was approved by shareholders at the AGM.

A loan of $XXX was also provided to Everest Pty Ltd, a company controlled by R.J. Ferns. The loan is

repayable within three years, on a concessional rate of 4.25% per annum. An amount of $XXX was repaid

during the year. The loan was approved by shareholders at the AGM.

9. Other transactions and balances with KMP and their related parties

(i) Details and terms and conditions of other transactions with KMP and their related parties: ZM_S_OS'?BQ
Iltem 22

Purchases

During the year, purchases totalling $510,000 at market prices have been made by Group companies from

Gnome Industries Limited, of which V.SheenC® - ~{z ~© v y~"zx2a8¥" " wvoy x¥ao

outstanding at 31 December 202 4.

Sales

M. Simson holds a 25% equity interest in Home Fires Limited. During the year the Group supplied

extinguishers to Home Fires Limited to the value of $225,000 at normal market prices. At 31 December

202 4, Home Fires Limited owed nil to the Group.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited 176
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(i) Amounts recognised at the reporting date in relation to other transactions: Reg 2M.3.03(1)
2024 Items 23 & 24

$

Assets and liabilities
Current assets
Trade and other receivables -

Non-current assets
Total assets -

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10,000
Non-current liabilities -
Total liabilities 10,000
Revenues and expenses

Sale of goods 225,000
Interest -
Doubtful debts -
Total revenue 225,000
Purchases/Cost of Goods Sold 510,000
Interest -
Dividends -
Total expenses 510,000

10. Actual remuneration earned by executive KMP in FY2 4

The actual remuneration earned by executive KMPin FY24 is set out below. This information is considered to be relevant
as it provides shareholders with a view of the remuneration actually paid to executives for performance in FY2 4 and the
value of LTls that vested during the period. This differs from the remuneration details prepared in accordance with
statutory obligations and accounting standards on page 170 of this report, as those details include the values of
performance rights and options that have been awarded, but which may or may not vest.

[ ~® iz" £~no hi ai -z i ¥av¢
" zZE£«nz’F VAR A Jc- “zZE£«mz va -~

T. Hannah 506,000 - 182,800 20,450 709,250
D.J. Estreux 446,050 - 120,000 6,135 572,185
R.J. Ferns 360,000 - - 50,000 410,000
G. Braddy 88,000 48,000 62,000 - 198,000
M.X. Vo 150,700 - - - 150,700
A.M. John 256,000 - 118,800 - 374,800
S. Moran 260,000 110,725 88,580 - 199,305
L.P. Lyn 506,000 - 182,800 20,450 709,250
1) WOz Ovev' A O«| zE¥ogé&vi@~¥wzeey~-2®o0O«x} VvO £¥23¥" -z} -x&2Ayxnoy-
2) iz"£~pva@~¥o v £z8o20© |Vv~y Yy«  ~po|] 2}z {~movex~ve¢ ~zv'C
3) hir v~y y«" ~o| 2}z {~ovax~ve¢e ~zv Cl[2{¢tzeVv@hIEAl FieGCHBMKWEX-y—
"z¢zv©Oz MH z®kz2Pn&{ 2}z \ ¥« C
4) "pd" ~pO©~x -vet«z ¥{ ai” 2} vikvezx@lrYzy««®Orp|aPrz{Obvix~yt~XxzVV?2

Zoy ¥{ gz£f«wmz ' va@~¥@pm gz ] ¥"2

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Tony Hannah

T. Hannah
Managing Director

31 January 202 5
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Consolidated statement of financial position
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The below presentation of statement of financial position has been included because in Australia, assets and liabilities are
commonly presented in increasing order of liquidity.

Assets

Current assets

Cash and short-term deposits
Inventories

Right of return assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets
Prepayments

Other current financial assets

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Investment in an associate and a joint venture
Non-current financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Refund liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other current financial liabilities
Government grants

Income tax payable

Provisions

Dividends payable

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held
for sale

Non-current liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions

Government grants

Contract liabilities

Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Notes

30
4.2,29
4.3
21.2
21

28

As at
2024 2023 1 January 202 3
$000 $000 $000
Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)
17,528 14,916 11,066
26,027 23,830 24,296
1,124 929 856
25,672 22,290 25,537
4,541 5,180 3,450
244 165 226
551 153 137
75,687 67,463 65,568
13,554 C Cc
89,241 67,463 65,568
32,979 24,329 18,940
8,893 7,983 7,091
6,019 2,461 2,114
2,908 2,732 2,915
3,187 2,516 1,878
3,761 2,816 2,273
389 365 321
58,136 43,202 35,532
147, 377 110,665 101,100
16,969 20,023 18,248
2,880 2,486 1,836
6,242 5,844 3,796
2,832 3,142 4,834
2,953 254 303
149 151 150
3,511 3,563 4,625
922 156 85
410 Cc c
36,868 35,619 33,877
13,125 Cc c
49,993 35,619 33,877
22,147 23,313 21,358
806 c Cc
1,898 19 15
3,300 1,400 1,300
2,962 888 692
3,050 2,977 2,526
2,454 607 780
36,617 29,204 26,671
86,610 64,823 60,548
60,767 45,842 40,552

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10(f)
IAS 1.49, IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 8.28
IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.40A, IAS 1.40B
IAS 1.60, IAS 1.66
IAS 1.54(i)

IAS 1.54(g)

IFRS 15.821

IAS 1.54(h)

IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55

IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8

IAS 1.54(j), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.60
IAS 1.54(a)

IAS 1.54(b)

IAS 1.54(c)

IFRS 16.47

IAS 1.54(e), IAS 28.38
IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.69

IAS 1.54(k)

IFRS 15.105

IFRS 15.821

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8(g)
IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.55, IAS 20.24

IAS 1.54(n)

IAS 1.54()

IAS 1.54(p), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.60

IAS 1.54(m)

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(1)

IAS 20.24

IFRS 10.105

IAS 1.55, IAS 1.78(d)
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56
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Equity

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Other capital reserves

Retained earnings

Other components of equity

Reserves of a disposal group held for sale
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

~ O a } 7= x{¥~noav~nnx«~zvy¢>

As at

2024 2023 1 January 202 3

$000 $000 $000

Notes Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)

25 21,888 19,388 19,388
25 (508) (654) (774)
25 5,951 944 566
31,622 25,929 21,582

(642) (505) (418)

14 46 Cc Cc
58,357 45,102 40,344

2,410 740 208

60,767 45,842 40,552

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10(f)
IAS 1.49, IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)
IAS 8.28

IAS 1.54(r), IAS 1.78(€)

IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(q)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements
2.3 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with AASB 1054.8(a)
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 , Australian Accounting Standards and other AASB 1054.9
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Rounding

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand ($000), except when otherwise indicated under the option available to the company under
VhAX X¥"!¥"va~¥o© =g¥«oy~ao| ~ao [ ~20067/30% Tieldmpiny igdn
entity to which this legislative instrument applies.

ASIC CI2016/19 1

Australian Tax consolidation legislation AASB nt 1052.16(2)
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities implemented
the tax consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2005.

The head entity, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and the controlled entities in the tax AASBInt 1052.7,
consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group 8(e)-16(a).(b)
has applied the Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes an d

deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated group.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited also AASB Int 1052.12(a)
recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are AASB Int 1052.12(b)
recognised as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. Details of the tax
funding agreement are disclosed in Note 15.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax AASB Int 1052.12(c)
funding agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly ~ owned tax
consolidated entities.

Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

3 When the GST incurred on a sale or purchase of assets or services is not payable to or AASB Int 1031.7
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the
revenue or the expense item or as part of the cost of acquisition of the asse t, as applicable

3 When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of AASBInt 1031.8

receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. Commitments and contingencies are AASBInt 1031.9
disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or p ayable to, the taxation authority.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of AASBInt 1031.10 -11
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or  payable to,
the taxation authority is classified as part of operating cash flows.

General commentary AASB 105417

IFRS Standards Not Yet Issued in Australia

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures requires, for an entity intending to comply with IFRS Standards, to
disclose the information specified in paragraphs 30 and 31 of AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors on the potential effect of an IFRS Standard that has not yet been issued by the
AASB.
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15. Income tax

Corporate Information

Tax consolidation
(i) Members of the tax consolidated group and the tax sharing arrangement
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax
consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2002.  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is the head entity
of the tax consolidated group. Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing
agreement that provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head
. . L . . . . AASB Int 1052.16(a)
entity de fault on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial AASB It 1052.16(c)
statements in respect of this agreement on the basis that the possibility of default is remote. AASBInt 1052.53

Introduction

(i) Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

Measurement method adopted under AASB Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting

The head entity and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their M’;’;Sl:t"l‘gégg‘;g
own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the group allocation approach in AASB Int 1052.16(b)
determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and def erred taxes to allocate to members of the

tax consolidated group. The current and deferred tax amounts are measured in a systematic manner

that is consistent with the broad principles in AASB 112 Income Taxes. The nature of the tax funding

agreement is discussed further below.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

°
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Nature of the tax funding agreement

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Under the funding
agreement, the funding of tax within the Group is based on accounting profit, which is not an acceptable
method of allocation under AASB Interpretation 1052. The tax funding agreement requires payments
to/from the head entity to be recognised via an inter -entity receivable (payable) which is at call. To the
extent that there is a difference between the amount charged u nder the tax funding agreement and the
allocation under AASB Interpretation 1052, the head entity accounts for these as equity transactions
with the subsidiaries.

AASB Int 1052.16(c)

Consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

The amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding AASB Int 1052.52
advice from the head entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year.

The head entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to

pay tax instalments.

Notes

Disclosures in the financial statements
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24. Cash and short -term deposits

Cash flow reconciliation
Reconciliation of net profit before tax to net cash flows from operations:
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right -of-use assets
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Equipment received from customers
Share-based payment expense
Decrease in fair value of investment properties
Net foreign exchange differences
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fair value adjustment of a contingent consideration
Finance income
Finance costs
Other income
Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture
Movements in provisions, pensions and government grants
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables, contract assets and
prepayments
Decrease in inventories and right of return assets
Increase in trade and other payables, contract liabilities and refund
liabilities

Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

General commentary

al z=

X{ ¥~ood y~aox«~zvy ¢>
2024 2023
$000 $000

Restated
11,108 8,880
213 (193)
11,321 8,687
4,341 3,794
325 174
(190) (150)
412 492
306 300
(365) (240)
(532) (2,007)
358 ¢
(202) (145)
1,366 1,268
(98) (66)
652 ¢
(671) (638)
(835) (65)
(7,102) 2,431
1,129 1,111
4,511 2,530
14,726 17,476
250 221
(1,067) (1,173)
(2,935) (3,999)
10,974 12,525

When presenting the statement of cash flows using the direct method, AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
requires an entity to provide a reconciliation of the cash flows from operating activities to profit (loss). The Group has
reconciled net cash flows from operating activities to profit before tax. However, a reconciliation to profit after tax is al SO

acceptable under AASB 1054.

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the reconciliation, reflect the change in balances

between 202 4 and 202 3, including the 202 4 balances of the discontinued operations grouped in line -~ 2 z £ ©
Ct~vw~¢~23~20 y~"~

X¢vOO~{~zy vO© }z¢y {¥" ©vezC voy

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

¢v©oOO
zx2¢ v

AASB 1054.16
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26. Distributions made and proposed

Franking credit balance
The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent financial year

Corporate Information

are: 2024 2023
$000 $000
3 Franking account balance as at the end of the financial year at 30%
AASB 1054.13
(202 3: 30%) 9,057 7,627
3 Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable AASB 1054.14(a) 5
as at the end of the financial year 1,823 1,264 S
3 Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends as at the AASB 1054.14(b) e
end of the financial year (326) (324) =
3  Franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised AASB 1054.14(c) E_)
as receivables at the reporting date : - E
10,554 8,567 B3
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38. Auditors Gremuneration

General commentary

ASIC requested that the largest six audit firms encourage their clients to adopt a standard format for the disclosure of

a } z= x{¥~-oody~oox«-zvy >

Vey ~a¥”

remuneration. This disclosure is considered mandatory for ASX 300 clients but all listed entities are encouraged to consider

adopting this format in their FY202 3 financial reports.
The agreed disclosures are set out below:

. Category 1 - Fees to the group auditor for:

(i) auditing the statutory financial report of the parent covering the group

(i) auditing the statutory financial reports of any controlled entities

Il.  Category 2 - Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation to be provided by the auditor

lll. Category 3 - Fees for other assurance and agreed-upon-procedures services under other legislation or contractual
arrangements where there is discretion as to whether the service is provided by the auditor or another firm

IV. Category 4 - Fees for other services

An entity shall provide this disclose of fees for each auditor or reviewer, including any network firm.

The auditor of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is Ernst & Young (Australia).

Fees to Ernst & Young (Australia)

3 Fees for auditing the statutory financial report of the
parent covering the group and auditing the statutory
financial reports of any controlled entities

3 Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation
to be provided by the auditor
Assurance related
Special audits required by regulators

3 Fees for other assurance and agreed -upon-procedures
services under other legislation or contractual
arrangements where there is discretion as to whether the
service is provided by the auditor or another firm
Other

3 Fees for other services
Tax compliance

Total fees to Ernst & Young (Australia )

Fees to other overseas member firms of Ernst & Young
(Australia)

3 Fees for auditing the financial report of any controlled
entities

3 Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation
to be provided by the auditor
Assurance related

3 Fees for other assurance and agreed-upon-procedures
services under other legislation or contractual
arrangements where there is discretion as to whether the
service is provided by the auditor or another firm
Assurance compliance procedures

Fees for other services

3 Taxation services

3 Other non-audit services

Total fees to overseas member firms of Ernst & Young
(Australia)

i ¥2ve vey~2¥" CO "z£«wz ' va-~¥no

Consolidated

2024 2023

$ $
1,206,000 1,185,500
50,300 80,400
38,500 23,000
37,000 43,500
1,331,800 1,332,400
105,000 102,400
55,000 35,000
14,900 14,600
6,200 5,050
181,100 157,050
1,512,900 1,489,450

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

CA300(11B)(a),
CA 300(11C)(a)

AASB 1054.10(a)

AASB 1054.10(a)

AASB 1054.10(a)

AASB 1054.10(b)
CA 300(11B)(a),
CA 300(11C)(b)

AASB1054.10(b )

AASB 1054.10(b
CA 300(11B)(a)
AASB 1054.10(b
CA 300(11B)(a)
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39. Information relating to  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the Parent) Reg 2M.3.01(1)

Corporate Information

2024 2023
$000 $000
Current assets 44,183 39,413 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(a)
Total assets 83,417 72,848 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(b)
Current liabilities 17,444 20,233 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(c)
Total liabilities 22,980 25,223 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(d) S
g
8
Issued capital 26,559 19,388  Reg2M.3.01(1)(e) E
Retained earnings 33,513 27,975 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) b
Asset revaluation surplus a7 47  Reg2M.3.01(1)(e) 5
Net unrealised gains reserve 64 50  Reg2M.3.01(1)(e) jiz
Employee equity benefits reserve 209 145  Reg2M.3.01(1)(e) =
Cash flow hedge reserve 45 20 Reg2M.3.01(1)(e) %
60,437 47,625  Reg2m.3.01(1)(e) é
Profit or loss of the Parent entity 7,771 5,228  Reg2M.3.01(1)() g
Total comprehensive income of the Parent entity 7,810 5,298  Reg 2M.3.01(1)(q) g
(0]
The Parent has issued the following guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries: Reg 2M.3.01(1)(h) =

3 Pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 , Quality
Holdings (Australia) Limited and Hose Limited have entered into a deed of cross guarantee on
12 March 200 8. The effect of the deed is that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has
guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of any controlled entity or if they
do not meet their obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities
subject to the guarantee. The controlle d entities have also given a similar guarantee in the
event that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is wound up or if it does not meet its obligations
under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee.
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Corporate governance

The Parent has a contingent liability whereby an overseas customer has commenced an action Reg 2M.3.01(1)(1)
against the Group in respect of equipment claimed to be defective. It has been estimated that the
liability, should the action be successful, is $850,000.

The Parent entity has contractual obligations to purchase plant and equipment for $975,000 at Reg 2M.3.01(1)()
balance date (202 3: $350,000) principally relating to the completion of operating facilities of
Sprinklers Inc.

Notes

Disclosures in the financial statements
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. ASIC CI 2016/785
40. Closed group disclosures

Pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 , relief has been
granted to Hose Limited from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for the preparation, audit and
lodgement of their financial report.

As a condition of the Corporations Instrument, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and Hose Limited
=alz ¢X¢¥O©zy \ " ¥«! C>A zwoaz zy ~MatcK2009. The efgct okthie x -
deed is that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of
winding up of a controlled entity or if they do not meet their obligations under the terms of overdrafts,
loans, leases or other liab ilities subject to the guarantee. The controlled entities have also given a
similar guarantee in the event that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is wound up or if it does not

meet its obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other li  abilities subject to the
guarantee.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
summary of movements in consolidated retained earnings and consolidated statement of financial
position of the entities that are members of the Closed Group are as follows:

Closed Group

2024 2023

$000 $000
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Revenue from contracts with customers 85,017 78,583
Cost of sales (62,506) (60,443)
Other operating income 1,968 1,586
Other expenses (13,693) (11,463)
Finance costs (210) (187)
Share of profit of an associate 275 240
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 11,090 8,316
Income tax expense (3,253) (2,292)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 7,598 6,024
Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operation (refer ~ Note 14) 220 (188)
Profit for the year 7,818 5,836

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Profit for the year 7,818 5,836
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss

Net (loss) on cash flow hedges 27) (12)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss

Revaluation of office properties in Australia 124 -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 97 (12)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7,915 5,824

Closed Group

2024 2023

$000 $000
Summary of movements in consolidated retained earnings
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 25,945 25,709
Profit for the year 8,723 5,836
Dividends provided for or paid (1,984) (1,600)
Aggregate amounts transferred to reserves Cdepreciation transfer
for buildings 12 -
Retained earnings at the end of the year 32,696 29,945
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40. Closed group disclosures (continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position
Assets

Current assets

Cash and short-term deposits

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Prepayments

Assets and disposal group classified as held for sale

Non-current assets
Non-current financial assets
Investment in an associate
Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payable

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Convertible redeemable preference shares

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Equity

Issued capital

Retained earnings
Other reserves

Total Equity

0]

a } z= x{¥~-oody~oox«-zvy >

Closed Group

2024 2023
$000 $000
12,819 5,697
13,809 18,224
18,856 16,542
90 79
47,060 40,542
13,554 -
59,128 40,542
17,036 8,314
764 681

90 90
16,776 14,104
8,893 7,983

- 58
43,559 31,230
102,687 71,772
15,708 13,635
516 690
3,113 2,500
19,337 16,825
13,125 -
32,462 16,825
5,969 5,874
2,312 1,189
2,503 2,486
10,784 9,549
43,246 26,374
59,441 45,398
26,559 19,388
32,696 25,945
186 65
59,441 45,398
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as at 31 December 202 4

General commentary

All public companies are required to prepare a consolidated entity disclosure statement to the extent they are required
to prepare a financial report under Part 2M.3 of the Corporations Act. A public company is any company that is not a
proprietary company or a corporate collective investment vehicle (CCIV). As such will include public compa nies limited
by shares, limited by guarantee, unlimited by shares and no liability companies.

Corporate Information

Where consolidated financial statements are not prepared , the consolidated entity disclosure statement should state: CA295(3A)(b)
Disclosure of subsidiaries and their country of tax residency, as required by the Corporations Act 2001, does not apply 5
to the company as the company is not required by accounting standards to prepare consolidated financial statements. ‘g’
©
CA295(3A)(a)(i) - =
Body Body i =
corporate corporate % of SA 295(3A)(a)(iv) ~(vii) =
. Q
country of share capital Country of £
Entity name Entity type incorporation held tax residence 2
. . . ©’
Quality Holdings (Australia) Body o
Limited corporate Australia Australia %
Body =
Extinguishers Limited corporate Euroland 80 Euroland %) '%
Body é Z
Bright Sparks Limited corporate Euroland 95 Euroland % g
Body ol
Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited corporate Euroland 100 Euroland -g
Body g
. . . = ()
Wireworks Inc. corporate United States 98 United States ol
Body 5|
Sprinklers Inc. corporate United States 100 United States § %
cl o
Body ol o
Lightbulbs Limited Corporate Euroland 87.4 Euroland o g
Body s
Hose Limited (i) corporate Australia 100 Australia ©
Body Euroland and
Electronics Limited corporate Euroland 48 Asialand
Bubbler Trust Trust N/A N/A Australia 2
Cable Partnership Partnership N/A N/A Australia @ g
= Q
=1
(i) Trustee of a trust in the consolidated entity. CA 295(3A)(a)(iii) (—wd
2
©
£
Q
=
£
1%}
()
5
2 92
8 B
3
©
=
8
=
D
S
®
(=
S
=2
e
<
=
i)
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£
ol s
gls
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CA 295(4)
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the Company), CA 295(5)(a)
| state that:
1. Inthe opinion of the directors:
(a) the financial statements and notes of the Company and its subsidiaries ( collectively the CA 295(4)(d)(i) (i)
Group) are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 , including:
() giving atrue and fair view ofthe x ¥ o ©¥ ¢ ~yvazy zwoa~2a~CO { ~uo
31 December 2024 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001 ;
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting CA 295(4)(ca)
Standards as disclosed in Note 2.2 ;
(c) the consolidated entity disclosure statement required by section 295(3A) of the CA295(4)(da)
Corporations Act is true and correct;
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as CA 295(4)(c)
and when they become due and payable; and
(e) as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company
and the subsidiaries identified in Note 40 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to
which they are or may become subject to, by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between
the Company and those subsidiaries.
2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the CA 295(4)(e)

directors by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer in accordance with section 295A
of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 31 December 202 4.

On behalf of the board

Tony Hannah

T. Hannah CA 295(5)(c)
Managing Director

31 January 202 5 CA 295(5)(b)
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Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and not  shown elsewhere in this
report is as follows. The information is current as at 21  January 202 5.

(a) Distribution of equity securities

(i) Ordinary share capital ASX4.10.5
3 21,888,000 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 864 individual  shareholders
All issued ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the rights to dividends. ASX 4.10.6
(i) Preference share capital ASX4.10.5
3 2,500,000 7% convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares are held by five individual ASX 4.10.16
shareholders
All issued convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares have a nominal value of $1 and are ASX 4.10.6
convertible at the option of the Company or the shareholder into ordinary shareson 1  January 202 4 on
the basis of one ordinary share for every three preference shares held. Each preference share carries one
right to vote but the right is limited to matters affecting the rights of such shares.
(iii) Options ASX 4.10.5
3 725,000 options are held by 15 individual option holders ASX 4.10.16
Options do not carry a right to vote. ASX 4.10.6
The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class are: ASX 4.10.7
ASX 19.12
Fully paid Redeemable
ordinary shares preference shares Options
1-1,000 823 - 1
1,001 -5,000 21 - 1
5,001 -10,000 6 - 3
10,001 - 100,000 9 2 6
100,001 and over 5 3 4
864 5 15
Holding less than a marketable 45 - - ASX 4.10.8
parcel
(b) Substantial shareholders ASX4.104
Fully paid
Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage
S.J. Limited 10,740,177 52.85
International Fires P.L.C. 6,937,366 31.48
17,137,543 84.33
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(c) Twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities ASX4.10.9
Fully paid
Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage
S.J. Limited 10,740,177 52.85
International Fires P.L.C. 6,397,366 31.48
Macca Limited 434,891 2.14
JOG Pty Limited 434,891 2.14 s
The Hong Kong Family Trust 227,606 1.12 §
TW & Daughters Limited 93,481 0.46 3
M.A.B. Car Limited 93,481 0.46 £
Castellas Superannuation Trust 60,966 0.30 =
Weldin Pty Limited 20,322 0.10 %
Della Limited 20,322 0.10 z
Pat Lee Pty Limited 20,322 0.10 ©
Feeney & Co Limited 16,258 0.08 5
AJH Industries Limited 16,258 0.08 &
Madz Limited 16,258 0.08 S
MVH Pty Limited 8,129 0.04 g E
KMI Trust 8,129 0.04 g 2
Shimon & Sadhu Trust 6,097 0.03 2|
Krupp & Mystery AG 6,097 0.03 |
GMB Limited 6,097 0.03 I
P. Barns 6,097 0.03 S
18,633,245 91.69 =g
cgls
(d) Unquoted equity securities shareholdings greater than 20% ASX4.10.16 3 %
Number § 3
Convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares 3 £
S
International Fires P.L.C. 101,000 §
(e) On market share purchases for executive LTI plan ASX4.10.22
During the year Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited purchased 50,000 shares at an average price of
$3.90 per share for the purpose of satisfying the entitlements of options holders under the executive 2
plan. 2
2
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for the year ended 31 December 202 4 IAS 1.49

Commentary of IFRS accounting standards

The Group presents the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income in two separate
statements. For illustrative purposes, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive  income is presented as
a single statement in this Appendix.

IAS 1.10(b)
2024 2023 s 51
PEE P E E [IAS828
Notes Restated 1AS 1.51(d)(e)
Continuing operations (Note 2.5) IAS 1.81A
Revenue from contracts with customers 4 179,058 159,088 IFRS15.113(a)
Rental income 18 1,404 1,377
Revenue 180,462 160,465 'AS1.82(@)
Cost of sales (136,569) (128,386) !AS1103
Gross profit 43,893 32,079 'AS1.851AS1.103
Other operating income 13.1 2,435 2,548 1As1.103
Selling and distribution expenses (14,001) (12,964) 1AS 1.99, IAS 1.103
Administrative expenses 13.9 (18,290) (12,011) 1As1.99, IAS 1.103
Other operating expenses 13.2 (2,554) (353) a5 1oy AS 1103
Operating profit 11,483 9,299 |AS1.BC55-56
. IAS 1.82(b), IFRS
Finance costs 13.3 (1,366) (1,268) 720
Finance income 134 202 145
Other income 13.5 98 66
Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture 10, 11 671 638 AS1.82(c)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 11,108 8,880 'AS185
Income tax expense 15 (3,09 2) (2233) jnsisry’
Profit for the year from continuing operations 7,996 6,647 AS185
Discontinued operations
) . . . IAS 1.82(ea)
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year from  discontinued operations 14 220 (188) Frs 5.33(a)
Profit for the year 8,216 6,459 I1AS 1.81A(a)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods: IAS 1.82A
Net gain on hedge of net investment 21.3,25 278 - IFRS9.65.13
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 21.3,25 (246) (117) 'As21.32
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 21.3,25 (883) 34 IFRS7.23()
Net change in costs of hedging (32) -
Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through OCI 135 (21) (1) IFRS 7.20(a)(vii)
Share of other comprehensive loss of an associate 11 (30) - IAS 1.82A(b)
Income tax effect relating to the components of OCI 15 198 (10) 1As1.91
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods (736) (94)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI (26) 10 :igslg-fgg?ggvii)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 32 367 (390) 1as19.122
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland 17 846 - 1AS16.39
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate 11 30 - 1AS1.82A(b)
Income tax effect relating to the components of OCI 15 (356) 114 ias1.90
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 861 (266)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 125 (360) AS181A()
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,341 6,099 AS181A()
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for the year ended 31 December 202 4
2024 2023
PEE DEE
Restated
Profit attributable to: (Note 2.5)
Equity holders of the parent 7,928 6,220
Non-controlling interests 288 239
8,216 6,459
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 8,053 5,860
Non-controlling interests 288 239
8,341 6,099
Earnings per share 16
3 Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent DECEH DECEH
3 Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent bDECEH bDECEH
Earnings per share for continuing operations 16
3 Basic, profit from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent DECEH DECEH
3 Diluted, profit from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent bDECEH bDECEH

Commentary on IFRS accounting standards

The Group presents, for illustrative purposes, the disclosure of a single statement of profit or loss and OCI in this

Appendix.

The different components of OCI are presented on a net basis in the statement above. Therefore, an additional note is
required to present the amount of reclassification adjustments and current year gains or losses. Alternatively, the

individual components could have been presented within the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

In this Appendix, the Group illustrates the presentation of the income tax effects on OCI items on an aggregated basis

as allowed under IAS 1.91(b).

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(b)
IAS 1.51(b)
IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 8.28

IAS 1.81B (a)(ii)

IAS 1.81B(a)(i)

IAS 1.81(b)(ii)
IAS 1.81B(b)(i)

IAS 33.66
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